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SECTION I: GENERAL
DEFINITION AND ABBREVIATION

Unlessthe context otherwise indicates, requires or implies, the following terms shall have the following meanings
in this Prospectus. References to statutes, rules, regulations, guidelines and policieswill be deemed to include all
amendments, modifications or re-enactments notified thereto.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, termsin “Main Provisions of the Articles of Association”, “Statement of Special
Tax Benefits”, “Industry Overview”, “Key Industry Regulations and Policies”, “Financial Statements”,
“Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments”, will have the meaning ascribed to such terms in these
respective sections.

In case of any inconsistency between the definitions given below and the definitions contained in the General
Information Document (as defined bel ow), the definitions given below shall prevail.

The words and expressions used but not defined in this Prospectus will have the same meaning as assigned to
such terms under the Companies Act, the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”), the
SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SCRA, the Depositories Act and the rules and regulations made thereunder, as
applicable.

GENERAL AND COMPANY RELATED TERMS GENERAL TERMS

TERM DESCRIPTION

“ALUWIND ALUWIND ARCHITECTURAL LIMITED apublic limited company,
ARCHITECTURAL registered under the Companies Act, 1956 and having its registered
LIMITED”, “our Company”, | office at 604, Palm Spring Centre, Link Road, Malad (West), Mumbai
“we”,  “us”, “our”, “the | City, Mumbai, Maharashtra, India 40006.

Company”, “the | ssuer

Company” or “the Issuer”

13 CLINT3

we”, “us”, or “our”

Unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, refers to our
Company together with our Group Companies.

Our Promoters

The promoters of our company being Mr. Murli Manohar Ramshankar
Kabra, Mr. Rgjesh Kabra, Mr. Jagmohan Ramshankar Kabra and
Jagmohan Kabra HUF.

Promoters’ Group

Companies, individuals and entities (other than companies) as defined
under Regulation 2(1) (pp) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018
which is provided in the chapter titled “Our Promoters and Promoter’s
Group”.

COMPANY RELATED TERMS

TERM

DESCRIPTION

Articles/Articles of
Association/AOA

Unlessthe context otherwise requires, refersto the Articlesof Association
of our Company, as amended from time to time.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors constituted in accordance
with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. For details refer chapter
titled “Our Management” on page number 135 of this Prospectus.

Auditor of our Company

The Statutory Auditors of our Company, being M/s. R Kgjriwal and Co.
as mentioned in the chapter titled “General Information” beginning on
page number 51 of this Prospectus.

Banker to the Company

ICICI Bank Limited

Bankersto the | ssue

ICICI Bank Limited

Board of Directors/ Board /
BOD / Our Board

The Board of Directors of our Company, including all duly constituted
Committeesthereof.

Branch Office

Branch Office of the company is situated at:

a. Shop No 16, Mitha Nagar Municipal Shopping Centre,
Goregaon W Near Link Road, Mumbai 400090




TERM DESCRIPTION
b. First Floor, Flat No-4,
Amrut Park Co-operative Housing Society Ltd,
S. No. 219, Plot No. 19 Fina Plot No. 12,
Town planning Scheme No. 1, Kalyani Nagar Pune Nagar Road,
Y erwada, Pune 411006
CompaniesAct The Companies Act, 2013 asamended from time to time.
CIN Corporate  Identification Number of our Company i.e,
U74210MH2003PL C140090.

Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

The Chief Financial officer of our Company, being Ms. Varsha Amrutlal
Shah.

Company Secretary and

Compliance Officer (CS)

The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of our Company, being
Ms. Shripriya Mishra.

Director/Director(s)

Director(s) on the Board of our Company, as appointed from timeto time,
unless otherwise specified.

DepositoriesAct

The Depositories Act, 1996, asamended from time to time.

DIN Director Identification Number.

Equity Shares Equity Shares of our Company of Face Vaue of X 10/- each unless
otherwise specified in the context thereof.

Equity Shareholders Persons / Entities holding Equity Shares of Our Company.

Executive Director /ED

Whole-Time Directors/ Executive Directors on our Board.

Group Companies

Group Companies as defined under Regulation 2(1)(t) of the SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations, 2018, “Group companies shall include such companies with
which there were related party transactions, during the period for which
financia information is disclosed in the Restated Financial Information, as
covered under the goplicable accounting standards and as disclosed in the
chapter titled “Group Entities of our Company”” on page number 159 of this

Prospectus.

Independent Director

A Non-executive & Independent Director as per the Companies Act, 2013
and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

Ind AS Indian Accounting Standard.

Indian GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principlesin India.

ISIN International Securities Identification Number in this case being
INEOSTM 01017

IT Act The lncome Tax Act, 1961 as amended till date

Key Manageria Personnel / Key
Managerial Employees/ KMP

Key manageria personnel of our Company intermsof Regulation 2(1)(bb)
of the SEBI ICDR Regulations 2018, Section 2(51) of the CompaniesAct,
2013. For details, please refer chapter tiled “Our Management” on page
number 135 of this Prospectus.

Materiality Policy

The policy on identification of group companies, material creditorsand
material litigation, adopted by our Board on January 10, 2024, in
accordance with the reguirements of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Managing Director / MD

Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra being the Managing Director of our
Company.

Manufacturing Unit

Manufacturing Unit of our company issituated at Shree VVardhan, Gat No.
374, Opp. SBI, Pune-Aurangabad Highway, Koregaon Bhima, Shirur,
Pune, Maharashtra - 412 216.

MOA/ Memorandum /
Memorandum of Association

Memorandum of Association of our Company as amended from time to
time.

Non-Residents

A person resident outside India, as defined under FEMA, 1999.

Nomination and Remuneration
Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of our Board of Directors
constituted in accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.
For details refer chapter titled “Our Management” on page number 135
of thisProgpectus

Non-Executive Director

A Director not being an Executive Director

NRIs/ Non-Resident Indians

A person resident outside India, as defined under FEMA and who is a
citizen of India or a Person of Indian Origin under Foreign Outside India
Regulations, 2000.




TERM

DESCRIPTION

Peer Reviewed Auditor

The Statutory Auditors of our Company, being M/sR Kejriwal and Co.,
holding avalid peer review certificate, as mentioned in the chapter titled
“General Information” beginning on page number 51 of this Prospectus.

Registered Office

Registered Office of our company situated 604, Palm Spring Centre, Link
Road, Malad (West), Mumbai City, Mumbai, Maharashtra, India 40006.

Restated Financial Statements

Restated Financial Statements along with Report dated January 10, 2023
from the Peer Review Certified Auditor, M/s. R Kgriwa and Co.,
Chartered Accountants, Surat for the six months period ended on
September 30, 2023 and for the year ended March 31, 2023, 2022, 2021
included in the Prospectus.

ROC / Registrar of Companies Registrar of Companies, Mumbai.

Shareholders The holders of the Equity Shares, from timeto time

Stakeholders Relationship | The Stakeholders Relationship Committee of our Board of Directors

Committee constituted in accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.
For details refer chapter titled “Our Management” on page number
135 of this Prospectus

WTD Mr. Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra, Mr. Raesh Kabra & Mr.
Jagmohan Ramshankar Kabra being the Whole-Time Director of our
Company

ISSUERELATED TERMS

TERMS DESCRIPTION

Applicant Any prospective investor who makes an application pursuant to the terms
of the Prospectus and the Application Form.

Abridged Prospectus Abridged Prospectus means a memorandum containing such salient

features of aProspectusas may be specified by SEBI in this behalf.

Acknowledgement Slip

The dip or document issued by the Designated Intermediary to an
Applicant as proof of registration of the Application.

Application

An indication to make an offer during the Issue Period by an
Applicant, pursuant to submission of Application Form, to subscribe
for our Equity Shares at the Issue Price including al revisions and
modifications thereto, to the extent permissible under the SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations.

Application Form

The Form in terms of which the applicant shall apply for the Equity
Shares of our Company.

Application Amount

The number of Equity Shares applied for and as indicated in the
Application Form multiplied by the price per Equity Share payable by
the Applicants on submission of the Application Form.

Application Supported by
Blocked Amount / ASBA

An application, whether physical or eectronic, used by an Applicant
authorizing a SCSB to block the application amount in the ASBA
Account maintained with the SCSB and will include amounts blocked by
SCSB upon acceptance of UPI Mandate Request by UPI Applicantsusing
the UPI Mechanism.

ASBA Account

A bank account maintained with an SCSB and specified in the ASBA
Form submitted by ASBA Applicants for blocking the Bid Amount
mentioned in the ASBA Form and will include amounts blocked by
SCSB upon acceptance of UPI Mandate Request by UPI Applicants
using the UPI Mechanism.

Designated Date

The date on which amounts blocked by the SCSBs are transferred from
the ASBA Accountsincludingtheaccountslinkedwith UPI 1D, asthe case
may be, to the Public Issue Account or the Refund Account, as
appropriate, in terms of the Prospectus, after finalization of the Basis
of Allotment in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange,
following which the Board of Directors may Allot Equity Shares to
successful Bidders in the Offer.

Designated Intermediaries/
Collecting Agent

An SCSB with whom the bank account to be blocked, is maintained,
a syndicate member (or sub-syndicate member), a Registered Broker,
Designated CDP Locations for CDP, a registrar to the Issue and share




TERMS DESCRIPTION
transfer agent (RTA) (whose names is mentioned on website of the stock
exchange as eligiblefor this activity).

Depository Participant A Depository Participant as defined under the Depositories Act, 1996.

DPID Depository Participant’s I dentity Number.

Draft Prospectus The Draft Prospectus dated January 30, 2024 issued in accordance with
Section 26 of the Companies Act filed with the SME Platform of NSE
(NSE Emerge) under SEBI (ICDR) Regulations.

Designated Stock Exchange Nationa Stock Exchange of IndiaLimited

EligibleNRI NRIs from jurisdictions outside India where it is not unlawful to make
an issue or invitation under the Issue and in relation to whom the
Prospectus congtitutes an invitation to subscribe to the Equity Shares
Allotted herein.

Engagement L etter The Engagement Letter dated October 19, 2023, between our Company

and the LM.

Electronic Transfer of Funds

Refundsthrough ECS, NEFT, Direct Credit or RTGS as applicable.

Equity Listing Agreement

The listing agreements to be entered into by our Company with the Stock
Exchangein relation to our Equity Shares.

Fugitive Economic Offender

An individua who is declared a fugitive economic offender under
Section 12 of the Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018.

Fraudulent Borrower

Fraudulent borrower as defined under Regulation 2(1) (Ill) of the SEBI
ICDR Regulations.

Fresh Issue

Fresh Issue of 66,00,000 Equity Shares of ¥10/- each fully paid-up of our
Company for cash at apriceof % 45/- per Equity Share (including premium
of X 35/- per Equity Share aggregating to X 2,970 Lakhs.

General Corporate Purpose(s)

Include such identified purposes for which no specific amount is
alocated or any amount so specified towards general corporate purpose
or any such purpose by whatever name called, in the offer document.
Provided that any issue related expenses shall not be considered as a part
of general corporate purpose merely because no specific amount has
been allocated for such expensesin the offer document.

General Information Document
(s)/ GID

The General Information Document for investing in public issues
prepared and issued in accordance with the circular no. SEBI / HO /
CFD / DIL1/ CIR/ P/ 2020/ 37 dated March 17, 2020 and the circular
no. SEBI /HO/ CFD / DIL2 / CIR / P/ 2020 / 50 dated March 30,
2020, as amended by SEBI from time to time and the UPI Circulars.
The General Information Document shall be available on the website of
the Stock Exchange and the LM.

Issue Agreement

Issue Agreement dated January 30, 2024 between our Company and the
Lead Manager, pursuant to which certain arrangements are agreed to in
relation to the Issue.

I ssue Opening Date

The date on which the Issue opens for subscription. In this case being
March 28, 2024

Issue Closing date

The date on which the Issue closes for subscription. In this case being
April 4, 2024

I ssue Period The periods between the I ssue Opening Date and the Issue Closing Date
inclusive of both days and during which prospective Applicants may
submit their application

IPO Initial Public Offering

Issue/ Issue Size/ Public Issue/
Initial Public Issue/ IPO

The Initial Public Issue of up to 66,00,000 Equity Shares of X 10/- each
at X 45/- per Equity Share including Share Premium of X 35/- per Equity
Share aggregating to % 2,970 Lakhs by our Company.

Issue Price The price at which the Equity Shares are being issued by our Company
through this Prospectus, being X 45/- (including share premium of X 35/-
per Equity Share).

I ssue Proceeds The proceeds of the Issue which shall be available to our Company. For

further information about use of the Issue Proceeds, see chapter titled
“Obijects of the Issue” on page number 74 of this Prospectus.

LM / Lead Manager

Lead Manager to the Issue, in this case being Corpwis Advisors Private
Limited




TERMS

DESCRIPTION

Listing Agreement

The Equity Listing Agreement to be signed between our Company and
the National Stock Exchange of IndiaLimited

Lotsize TheMarket |ot and Trading | ot for the Equity Shareis3000 andin multiples
of 3000 thereafter; subject to aminimum allotment of 3000 Equity Shares
to the successful applicants.

Market Maker The Market Maker to thelssue, in this case being NNM Securities Private

Limited

Market Making Agreement

The Agreement entered into between the Market Maker, Lead Manager
and our Company dated March 19, 2024

Market Maker Reservation
Portion

The Reserved portion of 3,30,000 equity shares of % 10/- each at an
Issue Priceof % 45/- aggregating to % 148.50 Lakhsfor Designated Market
Maker inthe Public Issue of our Company.

NCLT National Company Law Tribunal.

Net I ssue The Issue (excluding the Market Maker Reservation Portion) of
62,70,000 Equity Shares of X 10/- each at X 45/- per Equity Share
including share premium of X 35/- per Equity Share aggregating to
2,821.50/- Lakhsby ALUWIND ARCHITECTURAL LIMITED

Net Proceeds Proceeds of the Issue that will be available to our Company, which shall
be the gross proceeds of the | ssue |less the | ssue expenses.

NPCI NPCI, a Reserve Bank of India (RBI) initiative, is an umbrella

organization for al retail payments in India. It has been set up with the
guidance and support of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and Indian
Banks Association (IBA).

Non-Institutional
Applicants/Investor / Nlls

All Applicants, including Eligible FPIs, that are not QIBs or Retail
Individual Applicants and who have applied for Equity Shares for an
amount of more than %2,00,000 (but not including NRIs other than
Eligible NRIs, QFIs other than eligible QFIs).

Non-Retail Portion including
Quadlified Ingtitution Buyers
(NRII)

The remaining portion of the Net Offer, after retails portion, being not
more than 50% of the Net issue which shall be available for alocation to
NRIIsin accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Prospectus

The Prospectus, to be filed with the ROC containing, inter aia, the Issue
opening and closing dates and other information.

Public I ssue Account

An Account of the Company under Section 40 of the Companies Act,
2013 opened with the Public Issue Account Bank pursuant to the Banker
to the Issue Agreement and where the funds shall be transferred by the
SCSBsfrom bank accounts of the ASBA Investors

Public Issue Account Bank /
Banker to the Issue

A bank which isaclearing member and registered with SEBI as a banker
to an issue and with which the Public Issue Account for collection of
Application Amounts from Escrow Account(s) and ASBA Accounts will
be opened, in this case being ICICI Bank Limited.

Qualified Ingtitutional Buyers/
QIBs

The qualified ingtitutional buyers as defined under Regulation 2(1)(ss) of
the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Qualified Foreign Investors/ QFIs

Non-resident investors other than SEBI registered FlIs or sub-accounts
or SEBI registered FVCls who meet ‘know your client’ requirements
prescribed by SEBI.

Refund Account Account opened / to be opened with a SEBI Registered Banker to the I ssue
from which the refunds of the whole or part of the Application Amount,
if any, shall be made.

Registered Brokers Stock Brokers registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange

Board of India (Stock Brokers and Sub Brokers) Regulations, 1992 and
the stock exchanges having nationwide terminas, other than the
Members of the Syndicate and having terminals at any of the Broker
Centresand eligible to procure Applications in terms of Circular No.
CIR/CFD/14/2012 dated October 04, 2012 and the UPI Circulars issued
by SEBI.

Registrar / Registrar to the | ssue

Registrar to the I ssue being Skyline Financial Services Private Limited

Registrar Agreement

The Registrar Agreement dated January 29, 2024, between our Company
and the Registrar to the Issue in relation to the responsibilities and
obligationsof the Registrar to the | ssue pertaining to the | ssue.




TERMS

DESCRIPTION

Registrar and Share Transfer

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents registered with SEBI and eligible

Agentsor RTAs to procure Applications at the Designated RTA Locations in terms of
circular no. CIR/CFD/POLICY CELL/11/2015 dated November 10, 2015
issued by SEBI

Regulations Unless the context specifies something else, this means the SEBI (Issue
of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018.

Retail  Individual Investors Individual investors (including HUFs applying through their Karta

/(RII) and Eligible NRI Bidders) who applies or bids for the Equity Shares of a
value of not more than  2,00,000/-.
Retail Portion The portion of the Net Offer being not less than 50% of the Net Equity

Shares which shall be available for allocation to RIls in accordance with
the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Revision Form

Form used by the Applicants to modify the quantity of the Equity Shares
or the Applicant Amount in any of their ASBA Form(s) or any
previous Revison Form(s). QIB Bidders and Non-Institutional Bidders
are not alowed to withdraw or lower their Applications (in terms of
quantity of Equity Shares or the Bid Amount) at any stage. Retail
Individual Applicants can revise their Application during the Issue
Period and withdraw their Applicationsuntil Issue Closing Date.

SCSB

Bankswhich are registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Bankersto an Issue) Regulations, 1994 and offer services
of ASBA, including blocking of bank account, alist of which isavailable
http://www.sebi.gov.in/pmd/scsb. pdf

Sponsor Bank

The Banker to the Issue which is registered with SEBI and appointed by
our Company to act as a conduit between the Stock Exchanges and the
NPCI in order to push the mandate collect requests and / or payment
instructions of the Retail Individual Bidders into the UPI and carry out
other responsihilities, in terms of the UPI Circulars.

Stock Exchange

National Stock Exchange of IndiaLimited

SME Platform of NSE
/ SME Exchange/

The SME platform of NSE i.e., NSE Emerge, approved by SEBI as an
SME Exchange for listing of equity shares issued under Chapter IX of

Stock Exchange/ NSE the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Emerge/ NSE

SEBI Securities and Exchange Board of India, congtituted under the SEBI
Act, 1992.

SEBI Act Securities and Exchange Board of India Act 1992, as amended from time

to time.

SEBI (ICDR) Regulations

SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018,
as amended

SEBI (LODR) Regulations

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, asamended.

SEBI (Takeover) Regulations

SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeover) Regulations,
2011, asamended from timeto time.

TRS/ Transaction Registration
Sip

The dip or document issued by a member of the Syndicate or an SCSB
(only on demand), as the case may be, to the Applicant, as proof of
registration of the Application.

Underwriter

Underwriter to the issue being NNM Securities Private Limited and
Corpwis Advisors Private Limited

Underwriting Agreement

The Agreement entered into between the Underwriters and our
Company dated March 19, 2024.

Unified Payment Interface or UPI

Unified payment Interface, which is an instant payment mechanism,
developed by NPCI.

UPI Circular

The SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/138 dated
November 1, 2018, SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/50 dated April 3, 2019, SEBI circular
no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/76 dated June 28, 2019, SEBI
Circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated July 26, 2019,
Circular  number  SEBI/HO/CFD/DCR2/CIR/P/2019/133  dated
November 8, 2019, Circular number
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TERMS

DESCRIPTION

SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/50 dated March 30, 2020, SEBI
circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL 2/CIR/P/2021/2480/1/M dated March 16,
2021, SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2021/47 dated
March 31, 2021, SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/P/CIR/2021/570
dated June 2, 2021, SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL 2/CIR/P/2022/45 dated April 5,
2022, SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2022/51 April 20,
2022, SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/P/CIR/2022/75 dated May
30, 2022 and any subsequent circulars or notifications issued by SEBI in
this regard and any subsequent circulars or notifications issued by SEBI
in thisregard.

UPI Applicants

Collectively, individual investors applying as Retail Individual Inventors
in the Retail Portion, and Other than retail individual investors applying
with an application size of more than X 200,000/- and up to ¥ 500,000/-
in the Other than Retail Investors category and applying under the UPI
Mechanism.

Pursuant to Circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/P/CIR/P/2022/45 dated
April 5, 2022 issued by SEBI, al individual investors applying in public
issues where the application amount is up to ¥ 500,000/ shall use UPI
and shall provide their UPI ID in the application form submitted with: (i)
astock broker registered with a recognized stock exchange (whose name
is mentioned on the website of the stock exchange as digible for such
activity), (ii) a depository participant (whose name is mentioned on the
website of the stock exchange as eligible for such activity), and (iii) a
registrar to an issue and share transfer agent (whose name is mentioned
on the website of the stock exchange as eligible for such activity)

UPI ID

ID created on UPI for single-window mobile payment system devel oped
by the NPCI.

UPI Mandate Request

A request (intimating the Retail Individual Bidder by way of a
notification on the Mobile App and by way of a SMS directing the
Retail Individua Bidder to such Mobile App) to the Retail Individual
Bidder initiated by the Sponsor Bank to authorize blocking of funds on
the Mobile App equivaent to Bid Amount and Subsequent debit of funds
in case of Allotment.

UPI Mechanism

The bidding mechanism that may be used by a RIl to make a Bid in the
Offer in accordance with the UPI Circulars.

UPI PIN Password to authenticate UPI transactions.

Willful Defaulter Willful defaulter as defined under Regulation 2(1)(l11) of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations.

Working Days i. Till Application/ Issue closing date:

All days other than a Saturday, Sunday or a public holiday

ii. Post Application / Issue closing date and till the Listing of
Equity Shares:
All trading days of stock exchanges excluding Sundays and
bank holidays in accordance with the SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL/CIR/P/2016/26 dated January 21, 2016 and
the SEBI  circular number
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/138 dated November 1, 2018.

TECHNICAL AND INDUSTRY RELATED TERMS

TERM DESCRIPTION

AC Air Conditioners

Alloy Any combination or compound of metals fused together; a mixture of
metals.

Alumina Any of several forms of aluminium oxide used in auminium production

and in abrasives, refractories, ceramics, and electrical insulation. Alumina
occurs naturaly as the mineral corundum and, with minor traces of
chromium and cobalt, asthe mineralsruby and sapphire, respectively. Inits
hydrated form it also occurs as the rock bauxite. Also called aluminium
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DESCRIPTION

oxide.

Aluminium

Aluminium is a soft, durable, lightweight, ductile and malleable metal with
appearance ranging from silvery to dull gray, depending on the surface
roughness. Aluminium is non-magnetic and does not easily ignite.

Aluminium Armour rods

Aluminium Armour rods are manufactured using high strength corrosion
resistant aluminium aloy wire. Aluminium armour rods may be used in all
environments.

Aluminium Billets

A billet isalength of metal (aluminium) that has a round or square cross-
section, with an area less than 36 sq. inches (230 cm?). Billets are created
directly via continuous casting or extrusion or indirectly via rolling an
ingot. Billets are further processed via profile rolling and drawing. Fina
products include bar stock and wire.

Aluminium Extrusion

Aluminium extrusions are of different kinds and can be broadly classified
as channds, angles, frames, tubes, trims and pipes.

Aluminium Foils

Aluminiumfoil isaluminium prepared in thin metal |leaves, with athickness
lessthan 0.2 millimeters.

AluminiumIngots

Aningot isamaterial usually metal (Aluminium), that is cast into a shape
suitable for further processing. Ingots are large rough castings designed for
storage and transportation. The shape usually resembles a rectangle or
sguare with generous fillets. They are tapered, usually with the big-end-
down.

Aluminium Slabs

A dabisalength of meta (Aluminium) that isrectangular in cross-section.
It is created directly from continuous casting or indirectly by rolling an
ingot. Slabs are usudly further processed viaflat rolling, skelping, and pipe
rolling. Common final products include sheet metal, plates, strip metal,
pipes, and tubes.

Anodising

Anodising isthe general name applied to methods of treating metals, where
the work piece is made the anode in an electrolytic cell, usualy to form
oxide coatings for the purpose of increasing the performance of the surface.
In the case of auminium, the anodising processformsalayer of aluminium
oxide - Al203 - or corundum, which is very hard, relatively inert,
eectricaly insulating and can absorb dyesto colour the film.

Bauxite

A soft, whitish to reddish-brown rock consisting mainly of hydrous
aluminium oxides and aluminium hydroxides along with silica, silt, iron
hydroxides, and clay minerals. Bauxite forms from the breakdown of clays
and isamajor source of aluminium. It isthe primary ore of aluminium.

Bauxite Ore

The primary and main provider of aluminium.

Biodegradability

Chemical dissolution of materials by bacteria or other biologica means.

Blister Packs

Blister pack isaterm for several typesof pre-formed plastic packaging used
for small consumer goods, foods, and for pharmaceuticals.

Busbars

In electrical power distribution, abus bar isa strip of copper or aluminium
that conducts electricity within a switch board, distribution board,
substation or other electrical apparatus.

CAGR

Compound Annua Growth Rate. Itisabusinessand investing specific term
for the smoothed annualized gain of an investment over agiven time period.

CSO

Central Statistical Organizations

Capital Intensity

Capital intensity isthe amount of capital per unit of labour input.

Casting

Casting is a manufacturing process by which a liquid material is usualy
poured into amold, which contains a hollow cavity of the desired shape,
and then alowed to solidify. The solidified part is also known as a
casting, which is gjected or broken out of the mold to complete the
process. Casting materials are usually metals or various cold setting
materials that cure after mixing two or more componentstogether.

Caoils

A series of connected spirals or concentric rings formed by gathering
or winding.

Conductors

A materia or an object that conducts heat, electricity, light, or sound.
Electrical conductors contain electric charges (usually electrons) that are
relatively free to move through the material; a voltage applied across
the conductor therefore creates an electric current.
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TERM DESCRIPTION

Copper A common metal of a reddish colour, both ductile and malleable and
very tenacious. It isone of the best conductors of heat and electricity. It is
one of the most useful metalsin it elf, and also in its aloys, brass and
bronze

Corrosion resistance Ability of asubstance to withstand corrosion.

Cylinder head The detachable metal casting that fits onto the top of a cylinder block

Door frame A framethat supports adoor, also called door case.

Dies Dies are made of high temperature-resistant steel and come in various
shapes, sizesand levelsof complexity.

Extrusions The process of shaping aluminium by forcibly making it flow through a
shaped opening in adie. Extruded aluminium comes out as an elongated
piece with the same profile as that of the die opening.

°F Fahrenheit

Ferrous Of or relating to or containing iron. Ferrous metals are those containing
iron such asnickel, steel and iron itself.

Fail A thin, flexible leaf or sheet of metal: aluminium foil. Aluminium foil is
aluminium prepared in thin metal leaves, with a thickness less than 0.2
millimeters

GDP Gross Domestic Product

Galvanised steel Galvanised stedl is mild steel with a coating of zinc. The zinc protects the
steel by providing cathodic protection to the exposed steel, so should the
surface be damaged the zinc will corrodein preference to the steel.

1Al International Aluminium Ingitute

1P Index of Industrial Production

KW Kilowatt

L aminated pouches

Two kinds of laminated poucheswidely used in India are Aseptic pouch
and Retort pouch

MT Metric Ton

MTPA Metric Tonnes Per Anhum

Malleability The property by virtue of which amaterial can be extended inal directions
without rupture by the application of load; a material's ability to be bent,
formed, or shaped without cracking or breaking. It isamaterial's ability to
deform under compressive stress.

M.E.R.C Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission.

Non-Ferrous Metal s other than iron and alloysthat do not contain an appreciable amount
of iron.

OEMs Origina Equipment Manufacturers

Oligopolistic A market condition in which sellers are so few that the actions of any one
of them will materialy affect price and have a measurable impact on
competitors.

Panel The space or section in afence or railing between two posts.

Power cables A power cableisan assembly of two or more electrical conductors, usually
held together with an overall sheath. The assembly isused for transmission
of electrica power. Power cables may be installed as permanent wiring
within buildings, buried in the ground, run overhead, or exposed.

Profiles Aluminium rod through the hot melt, extrusion, resulting in different
cross- sectional shape of the aluminium material.

Radiator A heating device consisting of a series of connected pipes, typically inside
an upright metal structure, through which steam or hot water is circulated
so as to radiate heat into the surrounding space. The radiator is always a
source of heat to its environment, although this may be for either the
purpose of heating this environment, or for cooling the fluid or coolant
supplied to it, asfor engine cooling.

Roofing The materials of which aroof is composed; materials for aroof.

Smelting Smeltingis a form of extractive metallurgy; its main use is to produce
ametal from its ore. Aluminais extracted from the ore Bauxite by means
of the Bayer process at an aluminarefinery.

T bar A rolled metal bar or beam with a cross section resemblinga T

Thermal conductivity

The property of amaterial's ability to conduct hest.
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Transformer

An electrical device by which alternating current of onevoltageis changed
to another voltage.

UltraViolet Rays

Ultraviolet rays are invisible rays that are part of the energy that comes
from the sun.

Venetian blinds A blind, asfor awindow, having overlapping horizontal slatsthat may be
opened or closed, especialy one in which the slats may be raised and
drawn together above the window by pulling a cord.

Vials A small container, usually with a closure, used especialy for liquids.

Window frame A frame that supports a window

Wirerod A metal rod from which wireis formed by drawing.

y-0-y Y ear on year

CONVENTIONAL AND GENERAL TERMS/ABBREVIATION

TERM DESCRIPTION

Alc Account

Act or Companies Act Companies Act, 2013, asamended from timeto time

AGM Annual General Meeting

AlF Alternate investment Fund as defined in and registered with SEBI under
SEBI AIF Regulations

AO Assessing Officer

ASBA Application Supported by Blocked Amount

AS Accounting Standards issued by the Ingtitute of Chartered Accountants of
India

AY Assessment Y ear

B.Com Bachelor of Commerce

BG Bank Guarantee

CAN Confirmation Allocation Note

CARO Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 as amended

Category | Foreign Portfolio
Investor(s)

FPIsregistered as Category | Foreign Portfolio Investors under the SEBI
FPI Regulations.

Category |1 Foreign Portfolio
Investor(s)

An FPI registered as a category |1 foreign portfolio investor under the
SEBI FPI Regulations

Category |11 Foreign Portfolio
Investor(s)

FPIs registered as category Il FPIs under the SEBI FPI Regulations,
which shall include all other FPIs not eligible under category | and 11
foreign portfolio investors, such as endowments, charitable societies,
charitable trusts, foundations, corporate bodies, trusts, individuals and
family offices

CDSL Central Depository Services (India) Limited

CFO Chief Financial Officer

CFSS Companies Fresh Start Scheme under Companies Act, 2013
CIN Corporate | dentity Number

CIT Commissioner of Income Tax

CRR Cash Reserve Ratio

CompaniesAct

Companies Act, 1956 (without reference to the provisions thereof that
have ceased to have effect upon notification of the Notified Sections) and
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent in force pursuant to the
notification of the Notified Sections, read with the rules, regulations,
clarifications and modifications thereunder

Companies Act 1956 Companies Act, 1956 (without reference to the provisions thereof that
have ceased to have effect upon notification of the Notified Sections)
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent in force pursuant to the notification

CompaniesAct 2013 of the Notified Sections, read with the rules, regulations, clarifications,
and modificationsthereunder

CAPPM Consumer Awareness, Publicity and Price Monitoring

Depositories NSDL and CDSL

DepositoriesAct

The Depositories Act, 1996 asamended from time to time

Depository

A depository registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India(Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018, as
amended from time to time
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TERM DESCRIPTION
DIN Director |dentification Number
DP/ Depository Participant A Depository Participant asdefined under the Depositories Act, 1996.
DPID Depository Participant’s |dentification
DPIIT Department for Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade
EBIDTA Earnings Before Interest, Depreciation, Tax and Amortization
ECS Electronic Clearing System
EGM Extraordinary General Meeting
Earnings Per Share i.e, profit after tax for a fiscal year divided by
EPS the weightedaverage outstanding number of equity shares at the end of
that fiscal year
EPF Act Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
ESl Act Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948

Financial Year / Fiscal / Fiscal
Year IFY

The period of twelve months ended March 31 of that particular year

FDI Foreign Direct Investment
FDR Fixed Deposit Receipt
FEMA Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, read with rules and

regulations there- under and as amended from timeto time

FEMA Regulations

Foreignh Exchange Management (Non-debt Instruments) Rules, 2019

FlI(9)

Foreign Ingtitutional Investors as defined under the SEBI FPI
Regulations.

Foreign Portfolio Investor or FPI

Foreign Portfolio Investors, as defined under the SEBI FPI Regulations
and registered with SEBI under applicable lawsin India.

Fis Financial I nstitutions

FIPB Foreign Investment Promotion Board

FVCI Foreign Venture Capital Investor registered under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital Investor) Regulations,
2000, as amended from time to time

GDP Gross Domestic Product

GIR Number Genera Index Registry Number

Gov/ Government/GOlI Government of India

GST Goods and Service Tax

GST Act The Central Goods and Service Tax Act, 2017

GSTIN GST ldentification Number

HUF Hindu Undivided Family

IFRS International Financia Reporting Standard

ICSl Institute of Company Secretaries of India

ICAI Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

Indian GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principlesin India

I.T. Act/ Income Tax Act

Income Tax Act, 1961, asamended from timeto time

ITAT

Income Tax Appellate Tribunal

INR/ Rs. / Rupees/X Indian Rupees, the legal currency of the Republic of India

IPO Initial Public Offering

KMP Key Managerial Personnel

LM Lead Manager

Ltd. Limited

Pvt. Ltd. Private Limited

MCA Ministry of Corporate Affairs

Merchant Banker Merchant banker as defined under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India(Merchant Bankers) Regulations, 1992 as amended

MOF Ministry of Finance, Government of India

MOU Memorandum of Understanding

MSMEs Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises

NA Not Applicable

NACH National Automated Clearing House

NAV Net Asset Value

NEFT National Electronic Fund Transfer

NOC No Objection Certificate
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TERM DESCRIPTION

NR/ Non-Residents Non-Resident

NRE Account Non-Resident External Account

NRI Non-Resident Indian, is a person resident outside India, as defined under
FEMA and the FEMA Regulations

NRO Account Non-Resident Ordinary Account

NSDL National Securities Depository Limited

NTA Net Tangible Assets

oCB Overseas Corporate Bodies

oCB Overseas Corporate Bodies

p.a Per annum

P/E Ratio Price/ Earnings Ratio

PAN Permanent Account Number allotted under the Income Tax Act, 1961, as
amended from timeto time

PAT Profit After Tax

PBT Profit Before Tax

PIO Person of Indian Origin

PLR Prime Lending Rate

PMBJP Pradhan Mantri Bhartiya Janaushadhi Pariyojana

QFI(s) Qualified Foreign Investor(s) asdefined under the SEBI FPI Regulations

R& D Research and Development

RBI Reserve Bank of India

RBI Act Reserve Bank of IndiaAct, 1934, as amended from timeto time

RoC or Registrar of Companies

The Registrar of Companies, Ahmedabad

RoCE

Return on Capital Employed

RoNW Return on Net Worth

RTA Regigtrar and Transfer Agents

RTI Right to Information, in terms of Right to Information Act, 2005

RTGS Real Time Gross Settlement

SAT Securities Appellate Tribunal

SCRA Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, as amended from time to
time

SCRR Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957, as amended from time to
Time

SCSBs Self-Certified Syndicate Banks

SEBI Securities and Exchange Board of India constituted under the SEBI Act,
1992

SEBI Act Securities and Exchange Board of India Act 1992, as amended from time

totime

SEBI (Venture Capital)
Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital) Regulations,
1996 as amended from time to time.

SEBI Insider Trading
Regulations

SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended
from time to time, including instructions and clarifications issued by
SEBI from time to time

SEBI ICDR Regulations/ ICDR
Regulations/ SEBI ICDR

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended from timeto time

SEBI (LODR)
Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, including
instructions and clarificationsissued by SEBI from timeto time

SEBI Takeover Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, as amended from time to time

SEBI FPI Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors)
Regulations, 2019, as amended from time to time.

SEBI FVCI Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital
Investors) Regulations, 2000

Sec./S. Section

SecuritiesAct The U.S. Securities Act of 1933, asamended
S& PBSE SENSEX S& P Bombay Stock Exchange Sensitive Index
SME Small and Medium Enterprises
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TERM DESCRIPTION

Stamp Act The Indian Stamp Act, 1899, as amended from time to time

State Government The Government of a State of India

Stock Exchanges Unlessthe context requires otherwise, refersto, the NSE Emerge

STT Securities Transaction Tax

TDS Tax Deducted at Source

TAN Tax Deduction and Collection Account Number

TIN Taxpayer |dentification Number

TRS Transaction Registration Slip

UIN Unique I dentification Number

U.S.GAAP Generally accepted accounting principlesin the United States of America

V CF/ Venture Capital Funds Foreign Venture Capital Funds as defined under the SEBI AIF
Regulations

Notwithstanding the foregoing:

In the section titled “Main Provisions of Articles of Association” beginning on page 287 of the
Prospectus, defined terms shall have the meaning given to such termsin that section;

In the chapters titled “Summary of the |ssue Document” and “Our Business” beginning on page 19 and
105 respectively, of the Prospectus, defined terms shall have the meaning given to such terms in that
section;

In the section titled “Risk Factors” beginning on page 26 of the Prospectus, defined terms shall have the
meaning given to such termsin that section;

In the chapter titled “Statement of Tax Benefits” beginning on page 89 of the Prospectus, defined terms
shall have the meaning given to such termsin that section;

In the chapter titled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Position and Results of
Operations” beginning on page 198 of the Prospectus, defined terms shall have the meaning given to
such termsin that section.
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CERTAIN CONVENTION, PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL, INDUSTRY AND MARKET DATA
CERTAIN CONVENTIONS

All references to ‘India’ contained in this Prospectus are to the Republic of India and its territories and possessions
and all references herein to the ‘Government’, ‘Indian Government’, ‘Gol’, ‘Central Government’ or the ‘State
Government’ are to the Gol, central or state, as applicable.

Unless otherwise specified, any time mentioned in this Prospectus is in Indian Standard Time (“IST”).
Unlessindicated otherwise, al referencesto ayear in this Prospectus are to a calendar year.

In this Prospectus, the terms “we”, “us”, “our”, the “Company”, “our Company”, “AAL”, “Aluwind
Architechtural Limited” and, unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, refers to Aluwind Architechtural
Limited. In this Prospectus, unless the context otherwise requires, all references to one gender also refers to
another gender and the word “Lac / Lakh” means “one hundred thousand”, the word “million (mn)” means “Ten
Lac / Lakh”, the word “Crore” means “ten million” and the word “billion (bn)” means “one hundred crore”.

FINANCIAL DATA

Unless stated otherwise, the financial data included in this Prospectus are extracted from the Restated financial
statements of our Company, prepared in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act and
Indian GAAP and restated in accordance with SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, as stated in the report of our Peer
Reviewed Auditors, set out in the Section titled “Financial Information” beginning on page number 161 of this
Prospectus.

Our fiscal year commences on 1st April of each year and ends on 31st March of the next year. All referencesto a
particular fiscal year are to the 12 months period ending on 31st March of that year. In this Prospectus, any
discrepancies in any table between the total and the sums of the amounts listed are due to rounding-off. All
decimals have been rounded off to two decimal points.

There are significant differences between Indian GAAP, IFRS and US GAAP. The Company has not attempted
to quantify their impact on thefinancial dataincluded herein and urges you to consult your own advisors regarding
such differences and their impact on the Company’s financial data. Accordingly, to what extent, the financial
statements included in this Prospectus will provide meaningful information is entirely dependent on the reader’s
level of familiarity with Indian accounting practices/ Indian GAAP. Any reliance by persons not familiar with
Indian accounting practices on thefinancial disclosures presented in this Prospectus should accordingly belimited.

Any percentage amounts, as set forth in “Risk Factors”, “Our Business”, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Resultsof Operations” and elsewhere in this Prospectus unless otherwise indicated,
have been calculated on the basis of the Company’s restated financial statements prepared in accordance with the
applicable provisions of the Companies Act and Indian GAAP and restated in accordance with SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations, as stated in the report of our Peer Reviewed Auditor, set out in the Section titled “Financial
Information” Statements, as Restated” beginning on page number 161 of this Prospectus.

INDUSTRY AND MARKET DATA

Unless stated otherwise, industry data used throughout the Prospectus has been obtained or derived from industry
and government publications, publicly availableinformation and sources. Industry publicationsgeneraly state that
the information contained in those publications has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable but that
their accuracy and completenessare not guaranteed, and their reliability cannot be assured. Although our Company
believesthat industry dataused in the Prospectusisreliable, it hasnot been independently verified.

Further, the extent to which theindustry and market data presented in the Prospectusis meaningful depends on the
reader's familiarity with and understanding of, the methodologies used in compiling such data. There are no
standard data gathering methodologies in the industry in which we conduct our business, and methodologies and
assumptions may vary widely among different industry sources.
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENT

All statements contained in the Prospectus that are not statements of historical facts congtitute “forward- looking
statements”. All statements regarding our expected financial condition and results of operations, business,
objectives, strategies, plans, goals and prospects are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking
statementsinclude statements asto our business strategy, our revenue and profitability, planned projects and other
matters discussed in the Prospectus regarding matters that are not historical facts. These forward-looking
statements and any other projections contained in the Prospectus (whether made by us or any third party) are
predictions and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual
results, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results, performance or
achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements or other projections.

9

These forward-looking statements can generally be identified by words or phrases such as “will”, “aim”, “will
likely result”, “believe”, “expect”, “will continue”, “anticipate”, “estimate”, “intend”, “plan”, “contemplate”,
“seek to”, “future”, “objective”, “goal”, “project”, “should”, “will pursue” and similar expressions or variations
of such expressions. All forward looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions about us
that could cause actual results to differ materially from those contemplated by the relevant forward-looking
statement. Important factors that could cause actual resultsto differ materially from our expectations include but

arenot limited to:

a. Genera economic and business conditions in the markets in which we operate and in the local, regional,
national and international economies;

b. Competition from existing and new entities may adversely affect our revenues and profitability;

c. Political ingability or changesin the Government could adversely affect economic conditionsin Indiaand
consequently our business may get affected to some extent.

d. Our business and financial performance is particularly based on market demand and supply of
our Products/services;

e. Theperformanceof our businessmay beadversely affected by changesin, or regulatory policiesof, thelndian
national, state and local Governments;

f.  Any downgrading of India’s debt rating by a domestic or international rating agency could have anegative
impact on our business and investment returns;

g. Changesin Government Policiesand political situation in Indiamay have an adverseimpact on the business
and operations of our Company;

h. Theoccurrenceof natural or man-madedisasterscould adversely affect our resultsof operationsand financia
condition.

i. Our ability to respond to technological changes;

j. Our ability to attract and retain qualified personnel;

k. Our ability to manage our growth effectively.

For further discussion of factors that could cause the actual results to differ from the expectations, see the
sections/chapters “Risk Factors”, “Business Overview” and “Management’s Discusson and Analysis of
Financial Position and Results of Operations” beginning on page number 26, 105and 19 8respectively
of this Prospectus. By their nature, certain market risk disclosures are only estimates and could be materialy
different from what occursin thefuture. Asaresult, actual gains or losses could materially differ from those that
have been estimated.

Forward looking statements reflect the current views as of the date of this Prospectus and are not a guarantee of
future performance. These statements are based on the management’s beliefs and assumptions, which in turn are
based on currently available information. Although our Company believes the assumptions upon which these
forward-looking statements are based are reasonable, any of these assumptions could prove to be inaccurate, and
the forward-looking statements based on these assumptions could be incorrect. None of our Company, the
Directors, the LM, or any of their respective affiliates have any obligation to update or otherwise revise any
statements reflecting circumstances arising after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of underlying events,
even if the underlying assumptions do not come to fruition. Our Company and the Directors will ensure that
investors in India are informed of material developments until the time of the grant of listing and trading
permission by the Stock Exchange.
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SECTION || - SUMMARY OF ISSUE DOCUMENT
A. Primary Business of our Company:

The company, led by Mr. Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra, Managing Director, operates in the aluminum
manufacturing industry, specializing in windows, doors, curtain walls, cladding, and glazing systems. With
decades of experience, it has areputation for delivering tailored solutions to architects, builders, institutions,
and corporations. Operating from a manufacturing facility situated in Pune, Maharashtra, spanning upto
45,000 sguare feet, the company utilizes advanced machinery for fabrication and assembly. Rigorous quality
checks are integrated into its streamlined production process to ensure consistent high standards.

The infrastructure and track record have facilitated market expansion, with products reaching cities across
India. The company's portfolio has numerous completed projects, and it currently manages a pipeline of 85
projects. This success underscores its commitment to excellence, sustained growth, and a dedication to
delivering exceptional resultsfor clients, making it an attractive prospect for potential investors.

For Detailed information on our business, please refer to the chapter titled “Business Overview” beginning
from page 105 of this Prospectus.

B. Summary of the Industry in which our Company Oper ates:

India's economy has showcased strong growth, with a 7.8% GDP increase in the April-June quarter of the
2023-2024 fiscal year. The growth is driven by factors like rapid urbanization, rising consumer aspirations,
increased digitalization, and supportive government reforms and policies.

Thereal estate sector in Indiais experiencing significant growth, presenting opportunities for the facade and
fenestration industry. With a projected market size of US$1 trillion by 2030, the sector iswitnessing increased
investments and demand for various real estate segments, including commercial spaces and residential
properties. The construction industry, ranking third among major sectors, plays a pivotal role in driving
economic effects. Key urban centreslike Bengal uru, Pune, and Chennai are emerging asfavoured destinations
for property investments, indicating a rising need for quality building solutions. The completion of
approximately 558,000 homes in 2023 highlights the robust activity in the real estate market, creating a
demand for innovative facade and fenestration solutions.

Additionally, the information on office market transactions, the growth of data centres, and the focus on
commercia real estateinvestmentsfurther underscore the relevance and potential opportunitiesfor the facade
and fenestration industry in Indias evolving real estate landscape. Foreign investments in the sector and the
commitment of major investors like Blackstone further emphasize the positive trajectory and attractiveness
of the Indian real estate market.

For Detailed information on our industry, please refer to the chapter titled “Industry Overview” beginning
from page 92 of this Prospectus.

C. Namesof the promoters

As on the date of this Prospectus, our Promoters are:
e  Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra;

o RageshKabra

e Jagmohan Ramshankar Kabra; and

e Jagmohan KabraHUF

For further details, see chapter titled ‘Our Promoter and Promoter Group’ beginning on page 153 of this
Prospectus.
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D. Sizeof theissue

The following table summarizes the details of the size of theissue:

Type Fresh Issue Size Offer For Sale Size Total Issue Size
(In Lakhs) (In Lakhs) (In Lakhs)
Fresh Fresh Issue of upto 66,00,000 NIL Fresh Issue of upto 66,00,000
Issue Equity Shares aggregating upto Equity Shares aggregating upto
32,970 Lakhs 32,970 Lakhs

The Issue has been authorized by a Resolution of our Board dated January 4, 2024 and the Fresh Issue has
been authorized by a Special Resolution of our Shareholders, dated January 4, 2024.

Object of theissue

Our Company intendsto utilize the Net Proceeds to meet the following Objects:

Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

Estimated Estimated
Amount to be schedule of schedule of
Particulars funded from Net deployment of deployment of
Proceeds (R In Net Proceedsin | Net Proceedsin
Lakhs) FY2024 FY 2025
(X In Lakhs) (X In Lakhs)
Funding of Working Capital requirements 2,045.00 - 2,045.00
General Corporate Expenses®@ 650.00 - 650.00
Total 2,695.00 - 2,695.00

(@ The amount utilised for general corporate purposes and where the company has not identified acquisition
or investment target shall not exceed 35% of the Gross Proceeds.
@ The amount unidentified inorganic growth shall not exceed 25% of the Gross Proceeds.

F. Aggregate pre-Offer Shareholding of our Promoters, our Promoter Group

Pre-1ssue Shareholding

Particulars Number of Shares | Percentage holding

Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra 63,90,468 35.02%
Rajesh Kabra 54,89,467 30.08%
Jagmohan Ramshankar Kabra 32,205 0.18%
Jagmohan Kabra HUF 26,76,240 14.67%
Total Promoters Shareholding (A) 1,45,88,380 79.95%
Mohini Kabra 11,52,000 6.31%
Govinda Jagmohan Kabra 7,71,120 4.23%
Akshat Murli Manohar Kabra 7,71,120 4.23%
Sunita Kabra 6,04,800 3.31%
Hemant Khator 36,000 0.20%
Total Promoters Group Shar eholding (B) 33,35,040 18.28%
Total Promoters & Promoters Group (A+B) 1,79,23,420 98.22%

For further details, see Chapter titled "Capital Sructure” beginning on page 61 of this Prospectus.

(This rest of the page is intentionally left blank)
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G. Summary of Restated Financial Statements:

(Amount in X Lakhs)

For the Six-months For the Financial Years ended
Particulars Spe%rt'g?]gdggy March 31,
2023 2023 2022 2021
Total Share Capital 253.44 253.44 12.07 10.77
Total Net Worth 2069.53 1702.56 1429.87 1041.33
Total Revenue 4142.96 4900.62 2925.13 2139.29
EBITDA 574.14 475.73 185.50 193.48
Profit After Tax 372.83 270.05 78.80 76.92
Face Value per equity share 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00
Earnings Per Share (As per Restated)
Basic 14.71 10.66 311 3.05
Diluted 14.71 10.66 311 3.03
Return on Equity (RoE) (%) 19.77% 17.24% 6.38% 7.67%
2%”” on Capital Employed (RoCE) 24.55% 2262% | 974% | 14.23%
Net Asset Vaue per equity share (As
oer Resteted) per equity ( 81.67 67.19 118171 | 964.19
Total Borrowings 993.98 707.52 638.92 436.06

For further details, please refer chpatet titled “Financial Information” beginning from page 161 of this
Prospectus

Notes:
A. Theratios have been computed as follows:
a. Earnings per share = Restated Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax / Weighted Average Number of Equity

OOw

Shares

b. Return on Equity (%) = Restated Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax / Average Shareholder’s Equity
c. Return on Capital Employed (%) = Restated Earnings before Interest and Tax (EBIT) / Capital

Employed

d. Net Asset Value per share (in %) = Restated net worth at the end of the year / Number of Equity

Shares outstanding at the end of the

period/year

Net Worth for calculating Ratios = Equity Share Capital + Reserves and Surplus
Capital Employed for calculating Ratios = Total Assets— Current Liabilities
EPS and Return on net worth numbers for the six months ended September 30, 2023, have not been

annualized.

H. Summary of Contingent Liabilities:

(Amount in X lakhs)

For the Six- For the Financial Yearsended March
months 31,
Particulars period ended
September 2023 2022 2021
30, 2023
(1) Contingent Liabilities (to the extent not provided for)
(A) Guarantees
(i) Guarantees to Banks and Financia
Ingtitutions against credit facilities 933.90 753.90 427.13 267.86

extended to Company Companies

(ii) Performance Guarantees

(iii) Financia Guarantees

(B) Custom Duty payable against Export

Obligation
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For the Six- For the Financial Yearsended March
months 31,
Particulars period ended
September 2023 2022 2021
30, 2023
(1) Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining
to be executed on capital account and not - - - -
provided for (net of advances)
(111) Pending Litigations
Claims against the Company not
acknowledged as debts in the books of - - - -
accounts
Total 933.90 753.90 427.13 267.86
Note:

* The company has an outstanding demand of Income tax for AY 2017-18 of Rs 6,78,926/ - including interest
uw/s 143 (1)(a) and Rs 8220/- isthe interest amount outstanding for AY 2019-20.

* The company has outstanding demand of TDS as on date of X 4,23,630/- which is under the verification
process by the company

It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above
pending resolution of the proceedings. The Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the
above contingent liabilities. Future cash outflows in respect of the above are determinable only on receipt of
judgments/ decisions pending with various forums/ authorities. The Company does not expect any outflow
of economic resources in respect of the above and therefore no provision is made in respect thereof.

For further details, see chapter titled “Financial Information” beginning from page 161 of this Prospectus.
Auditor Qualificationsor Adverse Remarks

There are no auditor qualifications which have not been given effect to in the Restated Financial Statements
except which are non-quantifiable.

For further details, see chapter titled "Restated Financial Statements' beginning on page 161 of this
Prospectus.

Summary of Outstanding Litigation
A summary of outstanding litigation proceedings involving our Company, Promoter, Directors, Subsidiaries,

and Group Companies as on the date of this Prospectus as disclosed in the section titled "Outstanding
Litigation and Other Material Developments’ on page 218 of this Prospectus

Name of entity | Number of | Number of | Number of | Number of | Number | Aggregate
criminal tax civil proceeding | of other amount
proceeding | proceedings | proceedings | slnvolving | pending involved
S Actionshby | litigations
Statutory/
Regulatory
Authorities
Company
By our company 2 Nil Nil Nil Nil | 2,180,000
Against our Nil | Direct tax - Nil Nil Nil 687,146
company 2

(This rest of the page is intentionally left blank)
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Name of entity | Number of | Number of | Number of | Number of | Number | Aggregate
criminal tax civil proceeding | of other amount
proceeding | proceedings | proceedings | slnvolving | pending | involved

S Actionsby | litigations
Statutory/
Regulatory
Authorities
Directorsand
Promoters
By our Directors Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
and promoters
Against our Nil | Directtax - Nil Nil Nil | 1,934,825
Directors and 7
promoters
Group
Companies
By our Group Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Companies
Against our Group Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Companies
Subsidiaries
By our Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Subsidiaries
Against our Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Subsidiaries

K. Risk Factors

Kindly refer Section titled "Risk Factors' beginning on page 26 of this Prospectus to have an informed view
before making an investment decision.

L. Summary of Related Party Transactions:
The disclosures of transactions with the related parties asrequired by AS 18 "Related Party Disclosures' are

given as under. Related parties have been identified on the basis of representation made by the management
of the company and information available with the company.

Names of related parties

Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra— Managing Director
Rajesh Kabra— Executive Director

Jagmohan Ramshankar Kabra— Executive Director

Description of Relationship
Key Management Personnel
Key Management Personnel
Key Management Personnel

MangalaKabra Wife of Director
Sangeeta Kabra Wife of Director
SunitaKabra Wife of Director

Govinda Kabra
Akshat Murli Manohar Kabra
Radhika Kabra

Son of Director
Son of Director
Daughter in law of Brother

(This rest of the page is intentionally left blank)
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Following isthe summary of the related parties transaction of the Company as of for the Six-months
period ended September 30, 2023, and for thefinancial yearsended on Mar ch 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021

(Amount in X lakhs)

Particulars 6M FY24 FY23 FY22 FY21

Rent Paid - - - 1.44
Remuneration Paid 34.47 68.57 81.86 39.58
Bonus 1.01 9.44 0.58 0.50
Loan Accepted 5.00 26.62 262.44 147.00
Loan Repaid 5.00 26.10 319.95 139.11
Total 45.49 130.73 664.84 327.63

For details pertaining to Related Party Transactions, kindly refer to the chapter titled “Related Party
Transactions” beginning on page 197 of this Prospectus

. Details of financing arrangement:

There are no financing arrangements whereby the promoter, member of promoter group, the directors of our
company and their relatives have financed the purchase by any other person of securities of our company
other than in the normal course of the business of the financing entity since inception of the company.

. Weighted average price at which the specified securities were acquired by our Promoters and our
Promoter Selling Shareholders, in the last one year

The weighted average price at which Equity Shareswere acquired by our Promotersin the one year preceding
the date of this Prospectusis as follows:

S Name of the Promoter Mr. Murli Mr. Rajesh Mr. Jagmohan
No Manohar Kabra Jagmohan Kabra
Kabra Kabra (HUF)
A No of Shares Acquired
From Bonus Issue 63,48,203 54,53,161 31,992 26,58,540
Total No. of Sharesacquired 63,48,203 54,53,161 31,992 26,58,540

B Purchasepriceper share(in Rs)

From Bonus I ssue

C Cost of Acquisition (in Rs)

From Bonus I ssue

Total Cost of Acquisition

D Weighted Average Price per -
equity share (total C/A) (in Rs)*

#As certified by R Kegjriwal & Co., Chartered Accountants, by way of their certificate dated March 20, 2024

UDIN - 24171607BKBFR0O8026

. Average cost of acquisition of our Promoter

The average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares for our Promoter as on the date of the Prospectusis as set

out below:
Name of the Promoter No. of Shares held Average Cost of Acquisition per
Share(In Rs.)"
Rajesh Kabra 54,89,467 1.63
Murli Kabra 63,90,468 3.59
Jagmohan Kabra (HUF) 26,76,240 0.33
Jagmohan Kabra 32,205 1554

* As certified by R Kegjriwal & Co., Chartered Accountants, by way of their certificate dated January 22,

2024 UDIN - 24171607BKBFQM4761
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P.

I ssue of Equity Sharesfor consideration other than cash in the last one year

Except for the bonus issue on March 27, 2023 and January 16, 2024 as disclosed in chapter titled "Capital
Structure” on page 61 of this Prospectus, our Company has not issued any Equity Sharesin the last one year
preceding the date of this Prospectus for consideration other than cash or through a bonus issue.

Split or Consolidation of Equity Sharesin the last one year

Our Company has not undertaken any split of the Equity Shares in the one year preceding the date of this
Prospectus.

Exemption from complying with any provisions of securitieslaws, if any, granted by SEBI

Our Company has not applied for any exemption from complying with any provisions of securities laws by
SEBI from complying with any provisions of securities |aws, as on the date of this Prospectus.

(Rest of the page isintentionally left blank)
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SECTION Il - RISK FACTORS

Any investment in equity securities involves a high degree of risk. Investor should carefully consider al the
information in this Prospectus, including the risks and uncertainties described bel ow, before making an investment
in our Equity Shares. To obtain a more complete understanding, you should read this section together with
Sections titled, “Business Overview”, “The Issue”, “Industry Overview”, “Restated Financial Information”,
“Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments”, and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations™ beginning on page numbers 105, 47, 92, 161, 218 and 198 respectively, as
well as the other financial and statistical information contained in this Prospectus.

Any of the following risks, aswell asthe other risks and uncertainties discussed in this Prospectus, could have an
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects and could cause the trading
price of our Equity Shares to decline, which could result in the loss of al or a part of your investment. The risks
and uncertainties described in this section are not the only risks that we may face. Additional risks and
uncertainties not known to us or that we currently believe to beimmaterial may also have an adverse effect on our
business, results of operations, financial conditions and prospects.

This Prospectus contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actua results could
differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements because of certain factors, including
the considerations described below and elsewhere in this Prospectus.

The financia and other related implications of risks concerned, wherever quantifiable, have been disclosed in the
risk factors mentioned below. However, there are certain risk factors where the effect is not quantifiable and hence
has not been disclosed in such risk factors. Y ou should not invest in this Issuing unless you are prepared to accept
therisk of losing all or part of your investment, and you should consult your tax, financial and legal advisors about
the consequences to you of an investment in the Equity Shares.

The financial information in this section is, unless otherwise stated, derived from our Restated Standalone
Financial Statements prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP, as per the requirements of the Companies Act,
2013, and SEBI (ICDR) Regulations.

The Risk factors have been determined on the basis of their materiality. The following factors have been
considered for determining the materiality.

1. Somerisksmay not be materia individually but may be material when considered collectively.
2. Somerisks may have material impact qualitatively instead of quantitatively.
3. Some risks may not be material at present but may have amaterial impact in the future.

INTERNAL RISKS

4, Our Company and Promoter of the Company are parties to certain litigation and claims. These legal
proceedings are pending at different levels of adjudication before the court and regulatory authority. Any
adver se decison may make usliable to liabilitiespenalties and may adver saly affect our reputation, business,
and financial gatus.

Our Company is currently involved in legal proceedings that are pending at different levels of adjudication
before various courts. In the event of any adverse rulings or the levying of penalties, we may need to make

payments or provisions for future payments, which could potentialy increase our expenses and current or
contingent liabilities.

(Rest of the page isintentionally left blank)
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Disciplinary . .
Statutory actions by the Material | ;'Tiacr:tz:zlns
Particulars Criminal Tax or SEBI or Stock pending totFr’le Extent
Proceedings | Proceedings | Regulatory Exchanges Civil Quantifiable
Actions against the Litigation
(X In Lakhs)
Promoter
Company
Against the Nil 2 Nil Nil Nil 6.87
Company
By the . . . .
Company 2 Nil Nil Nil Nil 21.80
Subsidiaries
Against the
Subsidiaries NA NA NA NA NA NA
By the
Subsidiaries NA NA NA NA NA NA
Directors/Promoters
Against the
Directors/Prom Nil 7 Nil Nil Nil 19.35
oters
By the
Directors Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil NIL
/Promoters
Group Companies
Against the NA NA NA NA NA NA
Promoter
By the NA NA NA NA NA NA
Promoter

We cannot assure that these legal proceedings will be decided in our favour.

For further detailsin relation to legal proceedings involving our Company, Promoters, Directors, see the
chapter titled “Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments” on page 218 of this Prospectus.

Our businessrequirestheservicesof third parties, including supplier sand subcontractors, which entail
certain risks.

Our business generally requires the services of third parties, including sub contractors and suppliers of labour
and materials. The timing and quality of products we install depends on the availability and skill of those
third parties, as well as contingencies affecting them, including labour and material shortages and industrial
action, such as strikes and lockouts. We cannot assure you that skilled third parties will continue to be
available at reasonable rates and in the areas in which we need to execute our projects. As a result, we may
be required to make additional investments or provide additional servicesto ensure the adequate performance
and delivery of contracted services, and any delay in project execution could adversely affect our profitability.

Thereisalso arisk that we may have disputes with our subcontractors arising from, among other things, the
quality and timeliness of work performed by the subcontractor, customer concerns about the subcontractor,
or our failure to extend existing orders or issue new orders under a subcontract. In addition, if any of our
subcontractors fail to deliver on a timely basis the agreed upon supplies and/or perform the agreed-upon
services, our ability to fulfil our obligations as a prime contractor may be jeopardized. In most instances, there
is no contractual relationship between our customers and our suppliers, subcontractors. Consequently, we
would have to seek remedies from our suppliers or sub-contractors, as the case may be, should any service or
product liability claim be made by our customers against us.

In case of any such claim against us, evenif it isnot proven, our reputation may suffer and our business may
be materially and adversely affected.

We cannot assure you that claims of such nature will not be brought against us, which could have a material
adverse effect on our reputation, business and financial performance.
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For detailsregarding services provided by the labour contractors kindly refer to sub-head ‘Site Installation
Process” under the head “Our Business Process can be explained as follows” in the chapter titled ‘Our
Business’ beginning on page 105 of this Prospectus.

Our projects are typically awarded to us on satisfaction of prescribed pre-qualification criteria and
following a competitive bidding process. Our business and our financial condition may be adversely
affected if new projects arenot awarded to us.

Our contracts are generally obtained through a competitive bidding process which involves certain
prequalification criteria like net worth, experience, capacity and performance, reputation for quality, safety
record, financia strength and bonding capacity and size of previous contractsin similar projects. In selecting
contractors for major projects, customers generally limit the tender to contractors they have pre-qualified
based on these criteria, although price competitiveness of the bid is the most important selection criterion.
Our ability to bid for and win such projects is dependent on our ability to show experience of working on
similar or larger projects and developing strong execution capabilities and credentials to execute more
challenging projects. The growth of our business mainly depends on our ability to obtain new contractsin the
sectors in which we operate. Generaly, it is very difficult to predict whether and when we will be awarded a
new contract. Our future results of operations and cash flows can fluctuate materially from period to period
depending on the timely award of contracts, commencement of work and completion of projects in the
scheduled time period. If we fail to qualify or are unable to obtain new contracts, our business and financial
condition could be adversely affected.

For details regarding mode of acquisition and sales model kindly refer to sub-head ‘Marketing and Lead
Generation” under the head “Our Business Process can be explained as follows” in the chapter titled ‘Our
Business’ beginning on page 105 of this Prospectus.

Increasein costsor ashortfall in availability of thematerialswe purchase could haveamaterial adverse
effect on our Company’s sales, profitability and results of operations.

Our Company is dependent on third party suppliers for procuring the materials which we use in executing
our projects. We are exposed to fluctuations in the prices of these materials as well as its unavailability,
particularly as we typically do not enter into any long term supply agreements with our suppliers and our
major requirement ismet in the spot market. The cost and availability of such materialsare subject to avariety
of factors and any increase in their cost and their availability at a reasonable price or at al, could adversely
affect our margins, sales and results of operations. Though the company recovers the increase in cost from
the customers, there can be no assurance that strong demand, capacity limitations or other problems
experienced by our suppliers will not result in occasional shortages or delaysin their supply of materials. If
we were to experience a significant or prolonged shortage of such materials from any of our suppliers, and
we cannot procure the products from other sources, we would be unable to meet our execution schedules and
to deliver such products to our customers in timely fashion, which would adversely affect our sales, margins
and customer relations. We cannot assure you that a particular supplier will continue to supply the required
materials to us in the future. Any change in the supplying pattern of our products can adversely affect our
business and profits. Though we enjoy favourable terms from the suppliers both in prices as well as in
supplies, our inability to obtain high quality materials in a timely and cost-effective manner would cause
delays in our execution cycles and delivery schedules, which may result in the loss of our customers and
revenues.

Thenatureof our business exposes usto liability claimsand contract disputesand our indemnities may
not adequately protect us. Any liability in excess of our reserves or indemnities could result in
additional costs, which would reduce our profits.

Time is often of the essence in our projects. We typically enter into contracts which provide for liquidated
damages for time overruns. In the event there are delays in our current or future orders and we are unable to
receive extensions from our customers, we may be exposed to liquidated damages and termination apart from
entailing significant cost and time overruns. Additionally, in some contracts, in case of delay dueto deficiency
in services or because of defective work done by us, clients may have the right to complete the work at our
risk and cost by engaging a third party. We are generally required to furnish performance guaranteesin the
form of bank guarantees. In the event we fail to perform under the terms of a contract, a bank guarantee may
be called upon by our customer, which could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.
In addition, our operations are subject to hazards inherent in providing fabrication services, such as risk of
work accidents, fire or explosion, including hazards that may cause injury and loss of life, severe damage to

28



10.

11.

and destruction of property and environmental damage. We may also be subject to claims resulting from
defects arising from fabrication services provided by uswithin the warranty periods extended by us. Further,
our subcontractors may not have adequate financial resources to meet their indemnity obligations to us.
Failure to effectively cover ourselves against any of these reasons could expose us to substantial costs and
potentially lead to material losses. Faults in design and execution might also require repair work, which may
not be foreseen. In addition, if there is a customer dispute regarding our performance or workmanship, the
customer may delay or withhold payment to us.

Our results of operations and cash flows could be adversely affected, if we are unable to collect our
dues and receivablesfrom, or invoice our unbilled servicesto, our clients.

Our business depends on our ability to successfully obtain payment from our clients of the amountsthey owe
us for work performed. We evaluate the financial condition of our clients and usually bill and collect on
relatively short cycles. Thereisno guarantee that we will accurately assess the creditworthiness of our clients.
Such conditions could cause clientsto delay payment, request modifications of their payment terms, or default
on their payment obligations to us, al of which could increase our receivables. Timely collection of fees for
client services also depends on our ability to complete our contractual commitments and subsequently bill for
and collect our contractual service fees. If we are unable to meet our contractual obligations, we might
experience delays in the collection of, or be unable to collect, our client balances, and if this occurs, our
results of operations and cash flows could be adversely affected. Our results of operations and cash flows
could be adversely affected, if we are unable to meet our contractual obligations, we might experience delays
in the collection of, or be unable to collect, our client balances. In addition, if we experience delaysin hilling
and collection for our services, our cash flows could be adversely affected.

Kindly refer Risk Factor No. 4 & the chapter titled “Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments” on
page 218 of this Prospectus, with respect to receipt of short payment from our clientele.

Our pricing structures do not accurately anticipate the cost and complexity of performing our work
and if we are unable to manage costs successfully, then certain of our contracts could be or become
unprofitable.

Our ability to improve or maintain our profitability is dependent on managing our costs successfully. Our
cost management strategies include maintaining appropriate alignment between the demand for our products
and services and our resource capacity, optimizing the costs of service delivery through business process
digitalization and deployment of tools, and effectively leveraging our sales and marketing and general and
administrative costs. Our contracts could prove unprofitable for us or yield lower profit margins than
anticipated, if we do not accurately estimate the resources required, costs and timing for completing projects,
future rates of wageinflation and currency exchangerates, or if wefail to complete our contractual obligations
within the contracted timeframe. There is a risk that we will underprice our contracts, fail to accurately
estimate the costs of performing the work or fail to accurately assess the risks associated with potential
contracts. In particular, any increased or unexpected costs, or wide fluctuations compared to our original
estimates or delays, or unexpected risks we encounter in connection with the performance of this work,
including those caused by factors outside of our control, could make these contracts less profitable or
unprofitable, which could adversely impact our profit margin. However our contracts usually provides for
escalation and delay charges clause to minimise such risks.

Failureto anticipate and develop new products & services and enhance existing execution capabilities
in order to keep pace with rapid changesin technology and industry may suffer our business.

The facade industry is characterized by rapid technological changes, evolving industry standards, changing
client preferences, and new product and service introductions that could result in product obsolescence and
short product life cycles. Our success depends on our ability to anticipate these advances, enhance our existing
offerings or develop new service offeringsto meet client needs, in atimely manner. We may not be successful
in anticipating or responding to these advances on a timely basis. It may also happen that the products or
services or technologies we develop may not be successful in the marketplace. We may also be unsuccessful
in stimulating customer demand for new and upgraded products & services, or seamlessly manage to
introduce new products, service or transitions. If we fail to address the demands of the rapidly evolving IT
environment, particularly with respect to emerging technologies, and technological obsolescence, it could
have amaterial adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.
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We have certain contingent liabilities that have not been provided for in our Company’s financials
which if materialised, could adver sely affect our financial condition.

Our contingent liabilities as per our Restated Standalone Financial Statements on September 30, 2023 is as
under:

Contingent Liabilities: (R in Lakhs)

Asat Sep Asat March 31,

Particulars 30, 2023 2023 2022 2021

L etter of credit and bank guarantee given by the bank on
behalf of the company 933.90 | 753.90 427.13 | 267.86

The company has outstanding demand of TDS as on date of X 4,23,630/- which is under the verification
process by the company.

The company has an outstanding demand of Income tax for AY 2017-18 of Rs 6,78,926/ - including interest
u/s 143 (1) (&) and Rs 8220/- is the interest amount outstanding for AY 2019-20.

In the event any such contingencies mentioned above were to materialize or if our contingent liabilities were
toincreaseinthefuture, our financial condition could be adversely affected. For further details, see the section
entitled “Financial information” on page 161 of this Prospectus.

For further details, please refer section “Financial Information” beginning from page 161 of this Prospectus

Within the parameters as mentioned in the chapter titled ‘Objects of this Issue’ beginning on page 74
of this Prospectus, our Company’s management will have flexibility in applying the proceeds of this
Issue. The fund requirement and deployment mentioned in the Objects of this Issue have not been
appraised by any bank or financial institution.

We intend to use entire Issue Proceeds towards meeting the working capital requirement, and general
corporate purposes. We intend to deploy the Net Issue Proceeds in financia year 2024 and 2025 and such
deployment is based on certain assumptions and strategy which our Company believesto implement in future.
The funds raised by the Issue may remain idle on account of change in assumptions, market conditions,
strategy of our Company, etc., For further details on the use of the | ssue Proceeds, please refer chapter titled
“Objects of the Issue” beginning on page 74 of this Prospectus. The deployment of funds for the purposes
described above is at the discretion of our Company’s Board of Directors. The fund requirement and
deployment is based on internal management estimates and has not been appraised by any bank or financial
ingtitution. Accordingly, within the parameters as mentioned in the chapter titled ‘Objects of the Issue’
beginning on page 74 of this Prospectus, the Management will have significant flexibility in applying the
proceeds received by our Company from the Issue. Our Board of Directorswill monitor the proceeds of this
Issue.

However, the deployment of the funds shall be subject to compliance of applicable lawsin regard of the same.

We generate our major portion of salesfrom our operationsin certain geographical regions especially
Maharashtra. Any adverse developments affecting our operations in these regions could have an
adverseimpact on our revenue and results of operations.

Our revenue from our customers situated in Maharashtra contributed significant portion of our total revenue
from operations as per our Restated Standal one Financial Statements. Such geographical concentration of our
business in these regions heightens our exposure to adverse developments related to competition, as well as
economic and demographic changes in these regions which may adversely affect our business prospects,
financial conditions and results of operations. We may not be able to leverage our experience in Maharashtra
region to expand our operations in other parts of India and overseas markets, should we decide to further
expand our operations. Factors such as competition, culture, regulatory regimes, business practices and
customs, industry needs, transportation, in other markets where we may expand our operations may differ
from those in such regions, and our experience in these regions may not be applicable to other markets. In
addition, as we enter new markets and geographical areas, we are likely to compete not only with national
players, but also local players who might have an established local presence, are more familiar with local
regulations, business practices and industry needs, have stronger relationships with local dealers, relevant
government authorities, suppliers or are in a stronger financial position than us, all of which may give them
acompetitive advantage over us. Our inability to expand into areas outside M aharashtramarket may adversely
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affect our business prospects, financial conditions and results of operations. While our management believes
that the Company has requisite expertise and vision to grow and mark its presence in other markets going
forward, investors should consider our business and prospectsin light of the risks, losses and challenges that
we may face and should not rely on our results of operations for any prior periods as an indication of our
future performance.

. There are certain discrepancies in some of our corporate records relating to forms filed with the
Registrar of Companies.

In the past, our company has filed certain forms with the RoC which have certain inadvertent, clerical, or

typographical error as mentioned below:

Sr. Details of Discrepancy Actionstaken by the Company
No.
1 Thelist of membersason March | The said error was observed during the Due Diligence
31, 2022 as attached in Form | process of the Company for the purpose of IPO. The
MGT-7 filed for FY 21-22 has | Company convened a Board Meeting dated January 23,
error w.r.t. the number of shares | 2024 wherein the error was noted and the matter was
held by Mr. Rajesh Kabra and | discussed.
Mr. Murli Manohar Kabrawhich
is erroneously interchanged with | It was discussed that the said error is a typographical
each other. error in the attachment filed with MGT — 7A for FY 21-
22. The Company’s records like Register of Members,
Share Certificates and Financial Statements, correctly
mention the respective shareholding. In totality, therein
no change in the share capital of the Company and the
shareholders. Although, the number of shares
mentioned in the attachment, were interchanged among
two shareholders, all the subsequent filings are done
correctly (as actuals), ignoring the typographical error.
However, for the sake of prudence, an undertaking and
indemnity was sought and received by the Company
from both the shareholders confirming their correct
shareholding as on March 31, 2022. The same was
recorded in the Board Meeting and placed appropriately
in Company’s records.
2. In form 5 filed for increase in | Under Companies Act 1956, the Form 5 was an
authorized capital pursuant to | approval based form and the same was approved by
Extra Ordinary General meeting | ROC, Mumbai. Further, the Company, post January
held on January 05, 2008 has | 2008, has undertaken several corporate actions with
following Discrepancies: respect to increasein Authorised Capital and relevant E-
Forms (including atered MOA) for the same were also
1. erroneoudly afilecontaining | filed with ROC.
blank page has been attached
inlieu of Revised MOA The said error has now been identified during the Due
Diligence process for the purpose of 1PO and thus there
is no means to rectify the same. Moreover, the said
discrepancy relates to filing done in FY 2008 and the
same is beyond limitation period.

We are not in the receipt of the data pertaining to multiple e-forms and challan paid w.r.t RoC forms. Also,
we are not being able to access the MCA platform for public domain data due to technical error, to ascertain
the compliance of the filling of the RoC forms. Therefore, we are not being able to ascertain the filing date
and compliances of the filings of RoC Forms.

Further, as on date of this Prospectus, there have been no queries or penalties imposed by any authorities.
In the event of any cognizance being taken by the concerned authorities in respect of above, actions may be
taken against our Company and its directors, in which event the financials of our Company, Directors, Key
Manageria Personnel, and if any officer in default may be affected.
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Further we cannot assure that we may not make delayed filingsin future and not be subjected to fine, penalty
or interest. Further with the expansion of our operations there can be no assurance that deficiencies in our
internal controls and non- compliances will not arise, or that we may be able to implement, and continue to
maintain, adequate measures to rectify or mitigate any such deficienciesin our internal controls, in atimely
manner or at all.

We do not own the land on which our Pune officeislocated.

The Pune office of our Company which is situated at First floor, at Flat No-4, Amrut Park Co-operative
Housing Society, situated at S. No. 219, Plot No.19 Final plot No. 12 Town planning scheme no 1, Kalyani
Nagar Road, Y erwada, Pune 411006, is taken on rent from Mrs Alice Avelino Lobo. If we do not comply
with certain conditions of the lease/rent agreement, the lessor may terminate the lease, which could have an
adverse effect on our operations and there can be no assurance that renewal of lease agreement with the
owner will be entered into. In the event of non-renewal of lease, we may be required to shift our officeto a
new location and there can be no assurance that the arrangement we enter into in respect of new premises
would be on such terms and conditions as the present one.

For details regarding lease property kindly refer to the head “Property” in the chapter titled ‘Our Business’
beginning on page 105 of this Prospectus.

Our Company has negative cash flows from its operating activities, investing activities as well as
financing activities in the past years, details of which are given below. Sustained negative cash flow
could impact our growth and business.

Our Company had negative cash flows from our operating activities, investing activities as well as financing
activities in the previous year(s) as per the Restated Standalone Financial Statements and the same are
summarized as under:

(Rin Lakhs)
For the six- For the Financial Yearsended
Particulars months period March 31,
ended September
30, 2023 2023 2022 2021

Net cash (used in)/ Generated from operating activities (246.07) 152.70 | (181.88) 301.40
Net cash (used in)/ Generated from investing activities 40.66 (155.60) | (324.62) (38.64)
Net cash (used in)/ Generated from finance activities 246.41 20.07 465.66 | (211.91)

Cash flow of a company is a key indicator to show the extent of cash generated from operations to meet
capital expenditure, pay dividends, repay loans and make new investments without raising finance from
external resources. If we are not able to generate sufficient cash flowsin future, it may adversely affect our
business and financial operations.

For further details, please refer section “Financial information” beginning from page 161 of this Prospectus

Our Company requires significant amounts of working capital for a continued growth. Our inability
to meet our working capital requirements may have an adver se effect on our results of operations.

Our business is working capita intensive. A significant portion of our working capital is utilized towards
inventories, trade receivables and other current assets. Summary of our working capital position as per our
Restated Financial Statementsis given below:-

(Rin Lakhs)
S Actual Actual Actual Actual
No. PETEELIETS Fiscal 2021 | Fiscal 2022 | Fiscal 2023 Sepztg%ber
| Current Assets
Inventories 562.07 787.08 938.88 716.72
Trade receivables 764.83 1106.36 1428.07 1917.12
Short-Term Loans and Advances 25.06 109.17 95.10 152.22
Cash & Bank balances 112.09 71.24 88.41 129.40
Other Current Assets 140.05 335.07 633.41 1167.52
Total (A) 1604.11 2408.91 3183.87 4082.99
I Current Liabilities
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S Actual Actual Actual Actual
No. penueians Fiscal 2021 | Fiscal 2022 | Fiscal 2023 Sepztgngber
Trade payables 483.05 653.66 1089.59 987.62
Other Current Liabilities 176.17 472.85 48636 706.13
Short Term Provisions 33.65 31.85 91.80 131.34
Total (B) 692.88 1158.35 1667.76 | 1825.10
I | Total Working Capital Gap (A- 911.23 1250.56 151610 | 2257.89
B)

We intend to continue growing by expanding our business operations. This may result in increase in the
guantum of current assets particularly inventories, trade receivables and other current assets. Our inability to
maintain sufficient cash flow, credit facility and other sources of fund, in atimely manner, or at all, to meet
the requirement of working capital could adversely affect our financial condition and result of our operations.

For further details regarding working capital requirement, please refer to the chapter titled “Objects of the
Issue” beginning on page 74 of this Prospectus.

Our businessis subject to seasonal and other fluctuations that may affect our financial performance
and business operations.

Our business and operations are affected by seasonal factors. In particular, the monsoon season in the second
quarter of each Fiscal may restrict our ability to carry on activities related to our projects and fully utilize our
resources. During periods of curtailed activity due to adverse weather conditions, we may continue to incur
operating expenses and our project related activities may be delayed or reduced. Adverse seasonal
developments may also require the evacuation of personnel, suspension or curtailment of operations, resulting
in damage to project sites or delays in the delivery of materials. Such fluctuations may adversely affect our
liquidity, business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects. As a result, our revenues and
profits may vary significantly during different financial periods and certain periods are not indicative of our
financial position for the year.

Our industry islabour intensive and our business operations may be materially adver sely affected by
strikes, work stoppages or increased wage demands by our employees or those of our suppliers.

We believe that the industry in which we operate faces competitive pressures in recruiting and retaining
skilled and unskilled labour. Our industry being labour intensive is highly dependent on labour force for
carrying out its business operations. Shortage of skilled/unskilled personnel or work stoppages caused by
disagreements with employees could have an adverse effect on our business and results of operations. We
have not experienced any major disruptions to our business operations due to disputes or other problemswith
our work force in the past; there can be no assurance that we will not experience such disruptionsin the future.
Such disruptions may adversely affect our business and results of operations and may aso divert the
management's attention and result in increased costs. India has stringent labour legislation that protects the
interests of workers, including legislation that sets forth detailed procedures for the establishment of unions,
dispute resolution and employee remova and legidation that imposes certain financial obligations on
employers upon retrenchment. We are also subject to laws and regulations governing relationships with
employees, in such areas as minimum wage and maximum working hours, overtime, working conditions,
hiring and terminating of employees and work permits. Although our employees are not currently unionized,
there can be no assurance that they will not unionizein the future. If our employees unionize, it may become
difficult for us to maintain flexible labour policies, and we may face the threat of labour unrest, work
stoppages and diversion of our management's attention due to union intervention, which may have a material
adverse impact on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

At present our manufacturing facility is not fully automated. Further any disruption in production at,
or shutdown of, our manufacturing facility could adversely affect our business, results of operations
and financial condition.

The manufacturing unit of our Company is located at Shree Vardhan, Gat no. 374, Opp. SBI, Pune-
Aurangabad Highway, Koregaon Bhima, Shirur, Pune, Maharashtra — 412216. Our products are fabricated
and assembled at this facility. At present, our manufacturing facility is not fully automated and requires
manual intervention and processes. Our manufacturing facility is susceptible to damage or interruption or
operating risks, such as human error, power loss, breakdown or failure of equipment, power supply or
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processes, performance below expected levels of output or efficiency, obsolescence, loss of services of our
externa contractors, terrorist attacks, acts of war, break-ins, and industrial accidents and similar events.
Further, our manufacturing facility isalso subject to operating risk arising from compliance with the directives
of relevant government authorities. Operating risks may result in personal injury and property damage and in
theimposition of civil and criminal penalties. If our Company experiences delaysin production or shutdowns
due to any reason, including disruptions caused by disputes with its workforce or any external factors, our
Company’s operations will be significantly affected, which in turn would have a material adverse effect on
its business, financial condition and results of operations.

For details regarding semi-automated machinery kindly refer to the head “Plant and Machinery” in the
chapter titled ‘Our Business’ beginning on page 105 of this Prospectus.

We require a number of approvals, NOCs, licences, registrations and permitsin the ordinary course
of our business. Some of the approvals are required to be transferred in the name of “Aluwind
Architectural Limited” from “Aluwind Architectural Private Limited” pursuant to name change of
our company and any failure or delay in obtaining the same in a timely manner may adver sely affect
our operations.

We were a private limited company in the name of “Aluwind Architectural Private Limited” which was
carrying business of manufacturing, engineering, designing and installation of all types of windows and
facade systems. Our Company was converted into a public limited company pursuant to shareholders
resolution passed at the extraordinary general meeting of our Company held on October 4, 2023, and the
name of our Company was changed to “Aluwind Architectural Limited” and a Fresh Certificate of
Incorporation dated January 03, 2024, was issued by the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai

Additionally, we need to apply for renewal of approval swhich expire, from timeto time, asand when required
in the ordinary course of our business pursuant to our conversion from a private limited company to a public
limited company, we need to take necessary steps for transferring the approvals of our company in the new
name. In case of delay or failure to obtain the same, it could affect our business operations. Any failure to
renew the approval sthat have expired, or to apply for and obtain the required approvals, licences, registrations
or permits, or any suspension or revocation of any of the approvals, licences, registrations and permits that
have been or may beissued to us, could result in delaying the operations of our business, which may adversely
affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects. We cannot assure you that the
approvals, licences, registrations and permits issued to us would not be suspended or revoked in the event of
non-compliance or aleged non-compliance with any terms or conditions thereof, or pursuant to any
regulatory action.

For more information, see chapter “Government and Other Approvals” on Page 224 of this Prospectus.

Wedepend on certain brand namesand our cor porate name and logo that wemay not beableto protect
and/or maintain. We have alogo which isused for our business purpose.

Our ability to market and sell our products depends upon the recognition of our brand names and associated
consumer goodwill. The registered owners of trademark “ALU-WinD” under class 6 are Aluwind
Architectural Private Limited. Our Company would be required to file an application to get the above
trademark transferred in the name of Aluwind Architectural Limited. This may affect our ability to protect
our trademark in the event of any infringement of our intellectual property. We may not assure you that we
shall be able to successfully transfer the above logo in the name of M/s Aluwind Architectural Limited. Asa
result, this could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and
prospects. In case of failure to renew our intellectual property on time, it may adversely affect our business
operations. Our failure to comply with existing or increased regulations, or the introduction of changes to
existing regulations, could adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and
prospects. The material approvals, licences or permits required for our business include trade licence, excise
and tax laws, environment laws and shops and establishment licences, among others.

See “Government and other Approvals” on page 224 of this Prospectus, for further details on the required
material approvals for the operation of our business.
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business may have an adver se effect on our results of operations.

For the period ended March 31, 2023 and September 30, 2023, our revenue from operations from our top 5
customers contributed to 42.88% and 40.47% respectively and our revenue from operations from our top 10
customers contributed to 67.11% and 59.09% respectively of our revenues from operations as per our
Restated Financial Statements. Our Company is primarily engaged in providing windows and facade systems
and solutions to customers and usually a single contract may take 6 months to 3 years for completion. Aswe
operate on contract basis, our revenue from operations for a particular period may be concentrated in few
clients or may be dependent on some large contracts. Larger contracts from few customers may represent a
larger part of our portfolio, increasing the potential volatility of our resultsand exposureto individual contract
risks. We may be vulnerable to accepting onerous contractual terms with regard to change in scope of work
or inclusion of additional work within the scope of an existing contract. Such concentration of our business
on afew projects or clients may have an adverse effect on our results of operations and result in a significant
reduction in the award of contracts which could also adversely affect our business if we do not achieve our
expected margins or suffer |osses on one or more of these large contracts, from such clients. We cannot assure
that we shall generate the same quantum of business, or any business at al, and the loss of business from one
or more of them may adversely affect our revenues and results of operations. However, the composition and
revenue generated from these customers might change as we continue to add new customers in the normal
course of business. While we be believe that we shall not face challenges in finding new customers in the
ordinary course of business, our results of operations and financial condition may be adversely affected if we
remain dependent on few customers.

For detailsin relation to revenue fromfew customerskindly refer to the head “Details of Top Ten Customers”
in the chapter titled ‘Our Business’ beginning on page 105 of this Prospectus.

Our Company has synergistic collabor ation with Eternia (a brand of Hindalco Industries Limited). If
we are unableto take benefit of such synergies or renew the said agreement, we may have to acquire
the same product from the market at competitive ratesthus affecting our marginswhich may impact
the results of our operation. However, our Company because of its long market standing has the
possibilities of collaborating with other market players.

Our Company has synergistic collaboration with Eternia (a brand of Hindalco Industries Limited) through
an agreement wherein Eternia(abrand of Hindal co Industries Limited) has chosen us astheir Anchor Partner
for fabrication of Eternia Windows Systems in the MMRDA region. This agreement brings synergies in
marketing, sales and quality for both the parties. Further, this agreement is valid till December’ 2026 and is
renewable on mutually agreeable terms.

The Company carries out various projects wherein they install Eternia (a brand of Hindalco Industries
Limited) windows systems. The revenue that the Company generates from projects where Eternia products
are used, asa% of total revenue generated from operations, for past three years and stub period isasfollows:

(% in Lakhs

Type of Project Apr 2020 - | Apr 2022 - | Apr 2022 - | Apr 2023 -

Mar 2021 | Mar 2022 Mar 2023 | Sep 2023
Revenue from projects involving Eternia 56.82 491.05 2528.06 2159.60
Brand products
Total Revenue from operations 2128.25 2899.09 43886.49 4135.81
Percentage of revenue from Projects
involving Eternia Brand Products to Total
revenue from operations 2.67% 16.94% 51.74% 52.22%

We maintain good relationship with our supplier (Hindalco Industries Limited) however, we cannot assure
that such an agreement will be renewed. If the agreement is not renewed, we may have to acquire the same
product from the market at competitive rates thus affecting our margins which may impact the results of our
operation. This may affect our margins and thus, impacting our results from operations which cannot be
quantified as on date.

Further, we have worked with various Companies for procurement of aluminium frames and hardware
material in the past and continue to maintain good relationships with them. In case required, we do and can
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always choose to procure materials from market players such as Schuco, Technal, Alumil, Reyners, Jindal
etc.

For details regarding our collaboration with Eternia kindly refer to the head “Collaborations / Performance
Guarantee” in the chapter titled ‘Our Business’ beginning on page 105 of this Prospectus

Any sowdown in the real estate sector in India could significantly decrease the demand for our
products.

The demand for our products is dependent, among other things, on the conditions of the global and, in
particular, the Indian economy. For instance, the demand for our productsis significantly affected by thereal
estate sector. A decline in economic activity in India or in international markets may have an adverse effect
on consumer and industrial demand for new infrastructural structures or complexes. If development of real
estate declines, it would have a corresponding impact on the demand for our products leading to lower
margins or slack in project executions and may materially and adversely affect our business, financial
condition, results of operations, cash flows and business prospects.

Any delay in completion of civil structure by the principal contractor or third partiesinvolved or the
customer could result in delay of our project execution and consequently affect our businessoper ations.

We are primarily engaged in designing, drawing, fabricating and installation of windows and facade systems
at various civil structure sites. We are dependent on the principal contractor and other parties to carry out
their scope of work so as to enable us to initiate our project execution. In the life cycle of a construction
project, there are phases which needs to be completed by other respective parties post which we can start our
work. Any delay in execution of work by such parties may result in consequent delay in our project execution
and may hinder our business operations adversely. Also if thereis any delay from the customer like delay in
approval of plans of the project, delay in starting the construction activity, delay in release of payments etc.
we may also suffer adelay in our project execution or cash flows which may adversely affect our financia
condition and results of operations.

We havein the past entered into related party transactions and may continue to do so in the future.

Our Company has entered into various transactions with our Promoters, Promoter Group, Directors and their
relatives. While we believe that al such transactions are conducted on arms length basis, there can be no
assurance that we could not have achieved more favorable terms had such transactions were not entered into
with related parties. Furthermore, it is likely that we will enter into related party transactionsin future. There
can be no assurance that such transactions, individually or in aggregate, will not have an adverse effect on
our financial condition and results of operation. For details on the transactions entered by us, please refer to
chapter “Related Party Transactions” beginning on page 197 of the Prospectus.

Therelated party transactions entered into by the company in the past are in compliance with Companies Act,
2013, accounting standard and other applicable laws and further we undertake to comply with the provisions
of Companies Act, 2013, accounting standards and other applicable laws w.r.t related party in the future as
well.

Compliancewith, and changesin, safety, health and environmental lawsand regulations may adver sely
affect our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

Due to the nature of our business, we expect to be or continue to be subject to extensive and increasingly
stringent environmental, health and safety laws and regulations and various labour, workplace and related
laws and regulations. We are also subject to environmental laws and regulations, including but not limited to:
Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981

Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974

Hazardous Waste Management & Handling Rules, 2008

Other regulations promulgated by the Ministry of Environment and Forests and the

Pollution Control Boards of the state of Maharashtra.

which govern the discharge, emission, storage, handling and disposal of a variety of substances that may be
used in or result from the operations of our business. The scope and extent of new environmental regulations,
including their effect on our operations, cannot be predicted and hence the costs and management time
required to comply with these requirements could be significant. Amendments to such statutes may impose

"o apoTe
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additional provisionsto be followed by our Company and accordingly the Company needs to incur clean-up
and remediation costs, aswell as damages, payment of fines or other penalties, closure of production facilities
for non-compliance, other liabilities and related litigation, could adversely affect our business, prospects,
financial condition and results of operations.

If we are unable to source business opportunities effectively, we may not achieve our financial
objectives.

Our ability to achieve our financial objectiveswill depend on our ability to identify, evaluate and accomplish
business opportunities. To grow our business, we will need to hire, train, supervise and manage new
employees and to implement systems capabl e of effectively accommodating our growth. However, we cannot
assure you that any such employees will contribute to the success of our business or that we will implement
such systems effectively. Our failure to source business opportunities effectively could have a materia
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. It is aso possible that the
strategies used by us in the future may be different from those presently in use. No assurance can be given
that our analyses of market and other data or the strategies we use or plans in future to use will be successful
under various market conditions.

Our insurance cover age may not be adeguate.

Our Company has obtained insurance coverage in respect of certain risks. We have taken insurance policies
to insure our assets against standard fire and specia perils, employee’s compensation insurance policy to
insure our employees against some specified risks and vehicleinsurance policiesto insure our vehicles. While
we believe that we maintain insurance coverage in adequate amounts consistent with size of our business, our
insurance policies do not cover al risks, specifically risks like housebreaking, terrorism, etc. There can be no
assurance that our insurance policies will be adequate to cover the losses in respect of which the insurance
has been availed. If we suffer asignificant uninsured loss or if insurance claim in respect of the subject-matter
of insurance is not accepted or any insured loss suffered by us significantly exceeds our insurance coverage,
our business, financial condition and results of operations may be materially and adversely affected. Further,
we deem it imperative to uphold a Keyman Insurance policy as a strategic measure to safeguard our business
against potential financial ramifications arising from the unfortunate event of the death or incapacitation of a
crucial team member. This policy serves as a crucia tool in mitigating the adverse financial consequences
associated with the loss of a key employee. By ensuring funds are readily available, the policy covers
prospective losses, recruitment expenses, and other related costs. Given the substantial reliance our company
places on our Individual Promoter and their relatives, the absence of this insurance policy exposes us to
significant risks. Therefore, the maintenance of this policy is deemed indispensable for risk mitigation and
the sustained stability of our operations. If we suffer a significant uninsured loss or if insurance claim in
respect of the subject-matter of insurance is not accepted or any insured loss suffered by us significantly
exceeds our insurance coverage, our business, financial condition and results of operations may be materially
and adversely affected.

For detailsin relation to insurance kindly refer to the head “Insurance” in the chapter titled ‘Our Business’
beginning on page 105 of this Prospectus.

Theindustry segmentsin which we operate being fragmented, we face competition from other players,
which may affect our business operations and financial conditions.

The market for our products and services is competitive on account of both the organized and unorganized
players. Players in this industry generally compete with each other on key attributes such as technical
competence, quality of products and services, designing and execution, pricing and timely delivery. Some of
our competitors may have longer industry experience and greater financial, technical and other resources,
which may enable them to react faster in changing market scenario and remain competitive. Moreover, the
unorganized sector offers their products & services at highly competitive prices which may not be matched
by us and consequently affect our revenue from operations and growth prospects. Growing competition may
result in a decline in our market share and may affect our margins which may adversely affect our business
operations and our financia condition.

For details in relation to competition kindly refer to the sub-head “Competition” head “Utilities and
Infrastructure Facilities” in the chapter titled ‘Our Business’ beginning on page 105 of this Prospectus.
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Failure or disruption of our IT and/or business resour ce planning systems may adver sely affect our
business, financial condition, results of operations, cash flows and prospects.

We have implemented some information technology (“IT”) and/or business resource planning systems to
cover key areas of our operations. We are dependent on technology in relation to customer order management
and dispatches, production planning and reporting, manufacturing processes, financial accounting and
scheduling material purchase and shipments. Werely on our IT infrastructure to provide us with connectivity
and data backup across our locations and functions. While the business resource planning systems that we
have implemented have enabled us to improve our working capital cycles, despite an increase in our sales
over the period, we can provide no assurance that we will be able to do so in the future. We believe that we
have deployed adequate I T disaster management systems including data backup and retrieval mechanisms, at
our manufacturing facility and registered office. However, any failure or disruption in the operation of these
systems or the loss of data due to such failure or disruption (including due to human error or sabotage) may
affect our ability to plan, track, record and analyze work in progress and sales, process financial information,
manage our creditors, debtors, or otherwise conduct our normal business operations, which may increase our
costs and otherwise adversely affect our business, financia condition, results of operations and cash flows.

If we fail to maintain and enhance our brand and reputation, our clients’ recognition of, and trust in
us, and our business may be materially and adver sely affected.

Our business depends significantly on the strength of our brand and reputation of completing our projectsin
atimely and efficient manner. Our Company is known to conduct operations in a manner that ensures that
our projects are free of any defects or vulnerabilities. We believe that continuing to devel op awareness of our
brand, through focused and consistent branding and marketing initiatives is important for our ability to
increase our revenues, grow our existing market share and expand into new markets. Consequently, defects,
delays, consumer complaints, or negative publicity or mediareportsinvolving us, or any of our projects could
harm our brand and reputation and may dilute the impact of our branding and marketing initiatives and
adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects. In addition, adverse
publicity about any regulatory or legal action against us could damage our reputation and brand image,
undermine public confidence in us and reduce long-term demand for our operations, even if the regulatory or
legal action is unfounded or immaterial to our operations. We may be involved in costly lawsuits or time
consuming regulatory proceedings. If we are unable to neutralize the impact of such negative publicity
effectively or efficiently, we may suffer damage to our reputation and relationships with our clients, lenders,
suppliers and communities and experience significant project delays or cost overruns.

Our operations are subject to accidentsand other risks and could expose usto material liabilities, loss
in revenues and increased expenses. Further glass being a fragile commaodity is also susceptible to
breakages.

While we conduct various scientific and site studies during the course of bidding for projects, there are always
anticipated or unforeseen risks that may come up due to adverse weather conditions, geological conditions,
specification changes and other reasons. Additionally, our operations are subject to hazards inherent in
providing fabrication and construction services, such as risk of equipment failure, work accidents, fire or
explosion, including hazards that may cause injury and loss of life, severe damage to and destruction of
property and equipment, and environmental damage. Also our input material glass being afragile commodity
is susceptible to breakages. Our policy of covering these risks through contractual limitations of liability,
indemnities and insurance may not always be effective and this may have a material adverse effect on our
reputation, business, financial condition and results of operations.

If weareunableto manageour growth or execute our strategies effectively, our businessand prospects
may be materially and adver sely affected.

Our revenue and our business operations have grown in recent years. We may not be able to sustain these
rates of growth in future periods due to anumber of factors, including, among others, our execution capability,
our ability to maintain customer satisfaction, macroeconomic factors out of our control, the greater difficulty
of growing at sustained rates from a larger revenue base, our inability to control our expenses and the
availabhility of resources for our growth. In addition, our anticipated expansion will place a significant strain
on our management, systems and resources. Our development and expansion strategies will require
substantial managerial efforts and skills and the incurrence of additional expenditures and may subject usto
new or increased risks. Further, pursuing these strategies may require us to expand our operations through
internal development efforts as well as partnerships, joint ventures, investments and acquisitions. We may
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not be able to efficiently or effectively implement our growth strategies or manage the growth of our
operations, and any failure to do so may limit future growth and hamper our business strategies.

Our Company has no formal supply agreement or contract with our vendors/suppliers for the
uninterrupted supply of major materials. Our business may be adversely affected if there is any
disruption in the material supply.

We do not have any formal agreements with our vendors/suppliers as we operate on a purchase order system.
Due to the absence of any formal contract with our vendors/suppliers, we are exposed to the risks of irregular
supplies or no supplies at al and delayed supplies which would materially affect our results of operations. In
the event of any disruption in the materials supply or the non availability of materials, the assembling,
fabrication and dispatch schedule may be adversely affected impacting the sales and profitability of the
Company. In the event the prices of such materials were to rise substantially, we may find it difficult to make
alternative arrangements for supplies of our materials, on the terms acceptable to us, which could materially
affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. Our management believes that we maintain
good relationswith our suppliers and we shall also not face any challengein finding new suppliersif required.

Our Company isdependent on vendor s/suppliers providersfor the delivery of our input materialsand
products and any disruption in their operations or a decrease in the quality of their services could
affect our Company'sreputation and results of operations.

Our Company uses vendors/suppliers providersfor delivery of our input materialsand final products. Though,
our business has not experienced any disruptions due to transportation strikes in the past, any future
transportation strikes may have an adverse effect on our business. In addition, goods may be lost or damaged
in transit for various reasons including occurrence of accidents or natural disasters. There may aso be delay
in delivery of products which may also affect our business and results of operation negatively. An increase
in the freight costs or unavailability of freight for transportation of our input materials or finished goods may
have an adverse effect on our businessand results of operations. Further, disruptions of transportation services
due to weather-related problems, strikes, lock-outs, inadequacies in the road infrastructure, or other events
could impair ability to procure input materials on time. Any such disruptions could materialy and adversely
affect our business, financia condition and results of operations.

Our lendershave imposed certain restrictive conditions on usunder our financing arrangements.

Under our financing arrangements, we are required to comply with certain financial and other covenants.
There can be no assurance that we will be able to comply with these financial or other covenants. Our level
of existing debt and any new debt that we incur in the future has important consequences. Any failure to
comply with these requirements or other conditions or covenants under our financing agreements that is not
waived by our lenders or is not otherwise cured by us, may require usto repay the borrowing in whole or part
and may include other related costs. Our Company may be forced to sell some or all of its assets or limit our
operations. This may adversely affect our ability to conduct our business and impair our future growth plans.
For further information, see the chapter titled “Financial Indebtedness” on page 215 of the Prospectus.
Though these covenants are restrictive to some extent for us, however it ensures financia discipline, which
would help usin the long run to improve our financia performance.

Our Company has unsecured loans which are repayable on demand. Any demand loan from lenders
for repayment of such unsecured loans, may adver sely affect our cash flows.

Ason September 30, 2023, our Company has unsecured loans amounting to X 48.99 lakhs as per our Restated
Standalone Financial Statements from related and other parties that are repayable on demand to the relevant
lender. Further, some of these loans are not repayable in accordance with any agreed repayment schedule and
may be recalled by the relevant lender at any time. Any such unexpected demand or accelerated repayment
may have amaterial adverse effect on the business, cash flows and financial condition of the borrower against
which repayment is sought. Any demand from lenders for repayment of such unsecured loans, may adversely
affect our cash flows. For further details of unsecured loans of our Company, please refer the chapter titled
Restated Financial Satements as beginning on page 161 of this Prospectus.
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Our lenders have charge over our movable and immovable propertiesin respect of finance availed by
us.

We have secured our lenders by creating a charge over our movable and immovable properties in respect of
loans/ facilities availed by us from banks and financial institutions. In the event we default in repayment of
the loans/ facilities availed by us and any interest thereof, our properties may be forfeited by lenders, which
in turn could have significant adverse effect on business, financial condition or results of operations.

For further information on the “Financial Indebtedness” please refer to page 215 of this Prospectus.

We have not made any alter nate arrangements for meeting our working capital requirementsfor the
Objects of the issue. Further we have not identified any alternate source of financing the ‘Objects of
the Issue’. Any shortfall in raising / meeting the same could adversely affect our operations and
financial performance.

As on date, we have not made any alternate arrangements for meeting our working capital requirements
mentioned in the objects of the issue. We meet our working capital requirements through our bank finance,
owned funds, unsecured loans and internal accruals. Any shortfal in our, internal accruals and our inability
to raise borrowingsin future would result in us being unable to meet our working capital requirements, which
in turn will negatively affect our financial condition and results of operations. Further we have not identified
any alternate source of funding and hence any failure or delay on our part to raise money from this issue or
any shortfall in the issue proceeds may hamper our operations.

For further details please refer to the chapter titled “Objects of the Issue” beginning on page 74 of this
Prospectus.

Our ability to pay dividends in the future will depend upon our future earnings, financial condition,
cash flows, working capital requirements, capital expenditure and restrictive covenants in our
financing arrangements.

We may retain all our future earnings, if any, for use in the operations and expansion of our business. As a
result, we may not declare dividends in the foreseeabl e future. Any future determination as to the declaration
and payment of dividends will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend on factors that
our Board of Directors deem relevant, including among others, our results of operations, financia condition,
cash requirements, business prospects and any other financing arrangements. Additionally, under some of our
loan agreements, we may not be permitted to declare any dividends, if there is a default under such loan
agreements or unless our Company has paid all the duesto the lender up to the date on which the dividend is
declared or paid or has made satisfactory provisions thereof. Accordingly, realization of a gain on
shareholders investments may largely depend upon the appreciation of the price of our Equity Shares. There
can be no assurance that our Equity Shares will appreciate in value.

For details of our dividend history, see “Dividend Policy” on page 160 of this Prospectus.

The deployment of funds raised through this Issue shall not be subject to any Monitoring Agency and
shall be purely dependent on the discretion of the management of our Company.

Since the Issue size is less than 310,000 lakhs, there is no mandatory requirement of appointing an
Independent Monitoring Agency for overseeing the deployment of utilization of funds raised through this
Issue. The deployment of these funds raised through this Issue, is hence, at the discretion of the management
and the Board of Directors of our Company and will not be subject to monitoring by any independent agency.
Any inability on our part to effectively utilize the | ssue proceeds could adversely affect our financials.

However, the deployment of the funds shall be subject to compliance of applicablelawsin regard of the same.
Our future funds requirements, in the form of issue of capital or securities and/or loans taken by us,
may be prejudicial to the interest of the shareholders depending upon the terms on which they are
eventually raised.

We may require additional capital from time to time depending on our business needs. Any issue of sharesor

convertible securities would dilute the shareholding of the existing shareholders and such issuance may be
done on terms and conditions, which may not be favourable to the then existing shareholders. If such funds
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areraised in the form of loans or debt, then it may substantially increase our interest burden and decrease our
cash flows, thus prejudicialy affecting our profitability and ability to pay dividendsto our shareholders.

Our success depends largely upon the services of our Directors, Promotersand other Key Managerial
Personnel and our ability to attract and retain them. Demand for Key Managerial Personnel in the
industry is intense and our inability to attract and retain Key Managerial Personnel may affect the
operations of our Company.

Our successis substantially dependent on the expertise and services of our Directors, Promoters and our Key
Manageria Personnel. They provide expertise which enables us to make well informed decisionsin relation
to our business and our future prospects. Our future performance will depend upon the continued services of
these persons. Demand for Key Managerial Personnel in the industry is intense. We cannot assure you that
we will be able to retain any or al, or that our succession planning will help to replace, the key members of
our management. The loss of the services of such key members of our management team and the failure of
any succession plansto replace such key members could have an adverse effect on our business and the results
of our operations.

In addition to normal remuneration or benefits and reimbur sement of expenses, some of our Directors
and key managerial personne are interested in our Company to the extent of their shareholding, as
lender s and dividend entitlement in our Company.

Our Directors and Key Manageria Personnel are interested in our Company to the extent of remuneration
paid to them for services rendered and reimbursement of expenses payable to them. In addition, some of our
Directorsand Key Manageria Personnel may also be interested to the extent of their shareholding, unsecured
loan given by them or entities in which they are interested and dividend entitlement in our Company.

For further information, see “Capital Structure” and “‘Our Management” on pages 61 and 135, respectively,
of this Prospectus.

Our Promoters and members of the Promoter Group will continue jointly to retain majority control
over our Company after the Issue, which will allow them to determine the outcome of matters
submitted to shareholdersfor approval.

After completion of the I ssue, our Promoters and Promoter Group will collectively own 72.13 % of the Equity
Shares. Asaresult, our Promoters together with the members of the Promoter Group will be able to exercise
a significant degree of influence over us and will be able to control the outcome of any proposal that can be
approved by amajority shareholder vote, including, the election of membersto our Board, in accordance with
the Companies Act and our Articles of Association. Such a concentration of ownership may aso have the
effect of delaying, preventing or deterring a change in control of our Company. In addition, our Promoters
will continue to have the ability to cause us to take actions that are not in, or may conflict with, our interests
or the interests of some or al of our creditors or minority shareholders, and we cannot assure you that such
actions will not have an adverse effect on our future financial performance or the price of our Equity Shares.

We could be harmed by employee misconduct or errors that are difficult to detect and any such
incidences could adver sely affect our financial condition, results of operations and reputation.

Employee misconduct or errors could expose us to business risks or losses, including regulatory sanctions
and cause serious harm to our reputation. There can be no assurance that we will be able to detect or deter
such misconduct. Moreover, the precautions we take to prevent and detect such activity may not be effective
inall cases. Our employees and agents may also commit errorsthat could subject usto claimsand proceedings
for alleged negligence, as well as regulatory actions on account of which our business, financia condition,
results of operations and goodwill could be adversely affected.

(Rest of the page is intentionally left blank)
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Theaverage cost of acquisition of Equity Sharesby our Promoter s could be lower than theissue price.

Our Promoters’ average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares in our Company is as follows:

Name of Promoter Average Cost of Acquisition
(in X per share)

Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra 3.59

Rajesh Kabra 1.63

Jagmohan Ramshankar Kabra 1554

Jagmohan Kabra HUF 0.33

* Ascertified by RKejriwal & Co., Chartered Accountants, by way of their certificate dated January 22,2024
UDIN — 24171607BKBFQM4761

This average cost of acquisition is lower than the issue price as may be decided by the Company in
consultation with the Lead Manager.

ISSUE SPECIFIC RISKS

51.

52.

53.

The I'ssue price of our Equity Shares may not be indicative of the market price of our Equity Shares
after the Issue and the market price of our Equity Shares may decline below the issue price and you
may not be ableto sell your Equity Sharesat or abovethe | ssuePrice.

The Issue Price of our Equity Shares will be determined by fixed price method. This price is based on
numerous factors (For further information, please refer chapter titled “Basis for Issue Price” beginning on
page 81 of this Prospectus) and may not be indicative of the market price of our Equity Shares after the I ssue.
The market price of our Equity Shares could be subject to significant fluctuations after the Issue, and may
decline below the Issue Price. We cannot assure you that you will be able to sell your Equity Shares at or
above the Issue Price. Among the factors that could affect our share price include without limitation. The
following:

o Half yearly variations in the rate of growth of our financial indicators, such as earnings per share,
net income and revenues;

Changesin revenue or earnings estimates or publication of research reports by analysts;
Speculation in the press or investment community;

General market conditions; and

Domestic and international economic, legal and regulatory factors unrelated to our performance.

Any futureissuance of Equity Shares, or convertible securitiesor other equity linked securities by us
may dilute your shareholding and any sale of Equity Shares by our Promoters or members of our
Promoter Group may adversely affect the trading price of the Equity Shares.

Any future issuance of the Equity Shares, convertible securities or securities linked to the Equity Shares by
us, including through exercise of employee stock options granted pursuant to the ESOP Schemes may dilute
your shareholding in our Company, adversely affect the trading price of the Equity Shares and our ability to
raise capital through an issue of our securities. In addition, any perception by investors that such issuances or
sales might occur could also affect the trading price of the Equity Shares. We cannot assure you that we will
not issue additional Equity Shares. The disposal of Equity Shares by any of our Promoters and Promoter
Group, or the perception that such sales may occur may significantly affect the trading price of the Equity
Shares. Except as disclosed in “Capital Structure” on page 61, we cannot assure you that our Promoters and
Promoter Group will not dispose of, pledge or encumber their Equity Sharesin the future.

Fluctuation in the exchanger ate between thelndian Rupeeand for eign currenciesmay have an adver se
effect on the value of our Equity Shares, independent of our operating results.

On ligting, our Equity Shares will be quoted in Indian Rupees on the Stock Exchanges. Any dividends in
respect of our Equity Shareswill also be paid in Indian Rupees and subsequently converted into the relevant
foreign currency for repatriation, if required. Any adverse movement in currency exchange rates during the
time that it takes to undertake such conversion may reduce the net dividend to foreign investors. In addition,
any adverse movement in currency exchange rates during a delay in repatriating outside India the proceeds
from a sale of Equity Shares, for example, because of a delay in regulatory approvals that may be required
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for the sale of Equity Shares may reduce the proceeds received by equity shareholders. For example, the
exchange rate between the Rupee and the U.S. dollar has fluctuated substantially in recent years and may
continue to fluctuate substantially in the future, which may have an adverse effect on the trading price of our
Equity Shares and returns on our Equity Shares, independent of our operating results.

QIBs and Non-Institutional Investors are not permitted to withdraw or lower their Bids (in terms of
guantity of Equity Sharesor the Bid Amount) at any stage after submitting a Bid.

Pursuant to the SEBI ICDR Regulations, QIBs and Non-Institutional Investors are not permitted to withdraw
or lower their Bids (in terms of quantity of Equity Shares or the Bid Amount) at any stage after submitting a
Bid. Retail Individual Investors can revise their Bids during the Bid/Offer Period and withdraw their Bids
until Bid/Offer Closing Date. While our Company is required to complete Allotment pursuant to the Offer
within six Working Days from the Bid/Offer Closing Date, events affecting the Bidders’ decision to invest in
the Equity Shares, including material adverse changesin international or national monetary policy, financial,
political or economic conditions, our business, results of operation or financial condition may arise between
the date of submission of the Bid and Allotment. Our Company may complete the Allotment of the Equity
Shares even if such events occur, and such events limit the Bidders’ ability to sell the Equity Shares Allotted
pursuant to the Offer or cause the trading price of the Equity Shares to decline on listing.

EXTERNAL RISKS
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Our industry ishighly fragmented and competitive and increased competitive pressure may adver sely
affect our results.

The aluminium market in India is growing fast and many small and big companies are entering into
manufacturing and trading of auminium products, as consumers are opting auminium to be abetter substitute
of steel and other metals and has created demand for the same. Due to this, there have been alarge number
of players entering into this market which has created intense competition. We believe that the principal
competitive factors in our markets are price, quality and raw material supply. There are many companiesin
India, which are present across the value chain and hold a commanding position in the industry; such
companies pose athreat to our Company.

A slowdown in economic growth in Indiaor in the Statesin India, in which we operate, could cause our
businessto suffer.

Our performance and the quality and growth of our assets are dependent on the health of the overall Indian
economy and the economy of the States in India in which we operate. India’s economy could be adversely
affected by agenera riseininterest rates, weather conditions adversely affecting agriculture, commodity and
energy pricesor various other factors. Any slowdown in the Indian economy or in the Statesin Indiain which
we operate or future volatility in global commodity prices could adversely affect the policy of the various
Governments towards infrastructure, which may in turn adversely affect our financial performance.

The extent and reliability of Indian infrastructure could adver sely affect our results of operationsand
financial condition.

India’s physical infrastructure is less developed than that of many developed countries. Any congestion or
disruption in its port, rail and road networks, electricity grid, communication systems or any other public
facility could disrupt our normal business activity. Any deterioration of India’s physical infrastructure would
harm the national economy, disrupt the transportation of goods and supplies, and add costs to doing business
in India. These problems could interrupt our business operations, which could have an adverse effect on our
results of operations and financial condition.

We are subject to risks arising from interest rate fluctuations, which could adversely impact our
business, financial condition and operating results.

Changes in interest rates could significantly affect our financial condition and results of operations. If the

interest rates for future borrowings increase significantly, our cost of servicing such debt will increase. This
may negatively impact our results of operations, planned capital expenditures and cash flows.
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Any downgrading of India’s debt rating by a domestic or international rating agency could have a
negative impact on our business.

India’s sovereign debt rating could be downgraded due to various factors, including changes in tax or fiscal
policy or a decline in India’s foreign exchange reserves, which are outside our control. Any adverse revisions
to India’s credit ratings for domestic and international debt by domestic or international rating agencies may
adversely impact our ability to raise additional financing, and the interest rates and other commercial terms
at which such additional financing isavailable. This could have a materia adverse effect on our business and
financial performance, ability to obtain financing for capital expenditures and the price of our Equity Shares.

Taxes and other levies imposed by the Government of India or other State Governments, as well as
other financial policiesand regulations, may have a material adverseimpact on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Taxes and other leviesimposed by the Central or State Governmentsin Indiathat impact our industry include
customs duties, excise duties, sales tax, income tax and other taxes, duties or surcharges introduced on a
permanent or temporary basis from time to time. There can be no assurance that these tax rates/slab will
continue in the future. Further, with the Introduction of the Goods and Services Act, tax rates and its
implication may have material impact on our products. Any changes in these tax rates/s abs could adversely
affect our financial condition and results of operations.

Foreign investorsare subject to foreign investment restrictionsunder Indian law that limits our ability
to attract foreign investors, which may adver sely impact the market price of the Equity Shares.

Under the foreign exchange regulations currently in force in India, transfer of shares between non- residents
and residents are freely permitted (subject to certain exceptions) if they comply with the pricing guidelines
and reporting requirements specified by the RBI. If the transfer of shares, which are sought to be transferred,
isnot in compliance with such pricing guidelines or reporting requirements or fall under any of the exceptions
referred to above, then the prior approval of the RBI will be required. Additionally, shareholders who seek to
convert the Rupee proceeds from a sale of shares in India into foreign currency and repatriate that foreign
currency from Indiawill require ano objection/ tax clearance certificate from the income tax authority. There
can be no assurance that any approval required from the RBI or any other government agency can be obtained
on any particular terms or at all.

Global economic, political and social conditionsmay harm our ability to do business, increase our costs
and negatively affect our stock price.

Globa economic and political factors that are beyond our control, influence forecasts and directly affect
performance. These factors include interest rates, rates of economic growth, fiscal and monetary policies of
governments, change in regulatory framework, inflation, deflation, foreign exchange fluctuations, consumer
credit availability, consumer debt levels, unemployment trends, terrorist threats and activities, worldwide
military and domestic disturbances and conflicts, and other matters that influence consumer confidence,
spending and tourism.

Civil disturbances, extremities of weather, regional conflicts and other political instability may have
adver se effects on our operations and financial performance.

Certain eventsthat are beyond our control such as earthquake, fire, floods and similar natural calamities may
cause interruption in the business undertaken by us. Our operations and financial results and the market price
and liquidity of our equity shares may be affected by changes in Indian Government policy or taxation or
social, ethnic, political, economic or other adverse developmentsin or affecting India.

Natural calamities could have a negative impact on the Indian economy and cause our Company’s
businessto suffer.

The Covid-19 pandemic had brought the world to a standstill affecting al sectors and the livelihood of many
are at stake including the Indian economy. However, our Country is achieving normalcy by various measures
taken by the Government. The pandemic is controlled, however any major outbreak will seriously impact our
business. Further, our Country in the past has experienced natural calamities such as earthquakes, tsunami,
floods etc. The extent and severity of these natural disasters determine their impact on the Indian economy.
Prolonged spells of abnormal rainfall or other natural calamities could have a negative impact on the Indian
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economy, which could adversely affect our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations
aswell as the price of the Equity Shares.

Terrorist attacks, civil unrest, and other actsof violence or war involving Indiaor other countriescould
adversely affect the financial markets, our business, financial condition, and the price of our Equity
Shares.

Any magjor hostilities involving India or other acts of violence, including civil unrest or similar events that
are beyond our control, could have a material adverse effect on India’s economy and our business. Incidents
such asthe terrorist attacks in India, other incidents such asthosein US, Indonesia, Madrid and London, and
other acts of violence may adversely affect the Indian stock markets where our Equity Shareswill trade. Such
acts could negatively impact business sentiment as well as trade between countries, which could adversely
affect our Company’s business and profitability.

Changes in government regulations or their implementation could disrupt our operations and
adver sely affect our business and results of operations.

Our business and industry isregulated by different laws, rules and regulationsframed by the Central and State
Government. These regulations can be amended / changed on a short notice at the discretion of the
Government. If we fail to comply with al applicable regulations or if the regulations governing our business
or their implementation change adversely, we may incur increased costs or be subject to penalties, which
could disrupt our operations and adversely affect our business and results of operations.

Thepriceof our Equity Sharesmay bevolatile, or an activetrading market for our Equity Shares may
not develop.

Prior to this|ssue, there has been no public market for our Equity Shares. Our Company and the Lead Manager
has appointed NNM Securities Private Limited as Designated Market Maker for the equity shares of our
Company. However, the trading price of our Equity Shares may fluctuate after this Issue due to avariety of
factors, including our results of operations and the performance of our business, competitive conditions,
general economic, political and social factors, the performance of the Indian and global economy and
significant developments in India’s fiscal regime, volatility in the Indian and global securities market,
performance of our competitors, the Indian Capital Markets and Finance industry, changes in the estimates
of our performance or recommendations by financial analysts and announcements by us or others regarding
contracts, acquisitions, strategic partnership, joint ventures, or capital commitments.

You will not be able to sell immediately on Indian Stock Exchanges any of the Equity Shares you
subscribe in the Issue until the I ssue receives appropriate trading permissions.

The Equity Shares will be listed on the Stock Exchange. Pursuant to Indian regulations, certain actions must
be completed before the Equity Shares can be listed and trading on stock exchange. We cannot assure you
that the Equity Shareswill be credited to investor’s demat accounts, or that trading in the Equity Shares will
commence, within the time periods specified in this Prospectus. Any failure or delay in obtaining the approval
would restrict your ability to dispose of the Equity Shares. In accordance with Section 40 of the Companies
Act, 2013 if the permission of listing the Equity Sharesis denied by the stock exchanges, we are required to
refund all monies collected to investors.

The Issue Price of our Equity Shares may not be indicative of the market price of our Equity Shares
after thislssue.

The price is based on humerous factors and may not be indicative of the market price for our Equity Shares
after the Issue. The market price of our Equity Shares could be subject to significant fluctuations after the
Issue, and may decline below the Issue Price. There can be no assurance that you will be able to resell your
Shares at or abovethe Issue Price. Among the factorsthat could affect our Share price are: quarterly variations
in the rate of growth of our financial indicators, such as earnings per share, net profit and income; changesin
income or earnings estimates or publication of research reports by analysts, speculation in the press or
investment community; general market conditions;, and domestic and international economic, legal and
regulatory factors unrelated to our performance.
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70. Investorsmay not be able to enforce a judgment of a foreign court against our Company.

Our Company is incorporated under the laws of India. Our Company’s assets are primarily located in India
and al our Directors and Key Managerial Personnel are residents of India. Asaresult, it may not be possible
for investors to effect service of process upon our Company or such personsin jurisdictions outside India, or
to enforce against them judgments obtained in courts outside India. Moreover, it is unlikely that a court in
Indiawould award damages on the same basis as aforeign court if an action were brought in Indiaor that an
Indian court would enforce foreign judgmentsif it viewed the amount of damages as excessive or inconsistent
with Indian public policy.

(Rest of the pageisintentionally left blank)
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SECTION IV —INTRODUCTION

THE ISSUE

PRESENT ISSUE IN TERMS OF THISPROSPECTUS

Equity Shares|Issued *

Up to 66,00,000 Equity shares of face value of % 10/- each fully paid up
for cash at price of X 45/- per Equity share (including a share premium of
¥ 35/- per Equity share) aggregating to X 2,970 Lakhs

Out of which

Issue Reserved for the Market
Makers

Up to 3,30,000 Equity shares of face value of ¥ 10/- each fully paid up for
cash at price of T 45/- per Equity share (including a share premium of X
35/- per Equity share) aggregating to ¥ 148.50 Lakhs

Net Issueto the Public

Up to 62,70,000 Equity shares of face value of X 10/- each fully paid up
for cash at price of X 45/- per Equity share (including a share premium of
¥ 35/- per Equity share) aggregating to ¥ 2,821.50 Lakhs

Out of which?

A. Retail Individual Investors

At least 31,35,000 Equity shares of face value of ¥ 10/- each fully paid up
for cash at price of % 45/- per Equity share (including a share premium of
% 35/- per Equity share) aggregating to ¥ 1,410.75 Lakhs

B. Other than Retail Individua
Investors (including Non-
Ingtitutional Investors  and
Quadlified Institutional Buyers)

Not more than 31,35,000 Equity shares of face value of X 10/- each fully
paid up for cash at price of X 45/- per Equity share (including a share
premium of X 35/- per Equity share) aggregating to ¥ 1,410.75 Lakhs will
be available for allocation to investor other than Retail Individual
Investors

Pre and Post-I ssue Equity shares

Equity Sharesoutstanding prior
tothelssue

1,82,47,420 Equity shares having face value of X 10/- each

Equity Shares outstanding after
the lssue

Up to 2,48,47,420 Equity shares having face value of % 10/- each

Objectsof thelssue/ Use of Issue
Proceeds

Please refer the chapter titled “Objects of the |ssue” on page 74 of this
Prospectus.

Note:

! The present Issue has been authorized by the Board of Directors vide a resolution passed at its meeting
held on January 4, 2024, and by the shareholders of the Company vide a special resolution passed
pursuant to Section 23 & 62(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 at the EGM held on January 4, 2024

2Theallocation in the net issue to the public category shall be made as per the requirements of Regulation
253(2) of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, as amended from time to time, which reads as follows:
(8 minimum fifty per cent to Retail Individual Investors; and

(b) remaining to:

i. Individual applicants other than Retail Individual Investors; and
ii. Other investors including corporate bodies or institutions, irrespective of the number
of specified securities applied for;
Provided that the unsubscribed portion in either of the categories specified in clauses (a) or (b) may be
allocated to applicantsin the other category.

If the Retail Individual Investors category is entitled to more than fifty per cent of the issue size on a
proportionate basis, accordingly the Retail Individual Investors shall be allocated that higher

percentage.

For further details, please refer to the section titled “Issue Information” beginning on page 238 of this

Prospectus.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ALUWIND ARCHITECTURAL LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN ASALUWIND ARCHITECTURAL PRIVATE LIMITED)

RESTATED STATEMENT OF ASSETSAND LIABILITIES

(X in Lakhs)
Sr. No Particulars Notes For the six-months For the year ended March 31,
period ended
September 30, 2023 2023 2022 2021
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1) Shareholders’ Funds
a. Share Capital 4 253.44 253.44 12.07 10.77
b. Reserves & Surplus 5 1816.09 1449.13 1417.80 1030.56
2069.53 1702.56 1429.87 1041.33
2) Share Application Money Pending Allotment - - - -
3) Non-Current Liabilities
a. Long Term Borrowings 6 104.57 105.13 114.67 105.98
b. Long Term Provisions 7 18.53 8.69 5.60 7.46
123.10 113.81 120.27 113.44
4) Current Liabilities
a. Short Term Borrowings 8 889.41 602.39 524.26 330.08
b. Trade Payables 9
Total Outaandlng dues of Micro enterprises 48075 35357 253,53 282,06
and small enterprises
Total Outstanding dues of creditors other
than Micro enterprises and small enterprises 506.87 736.03 40013 200.99
c. Other Current Liabilities 10 706.13 486.36 472.85 176.17
d. Short Term Provisions 11 131.34 91.80 31.85 33.65
Total Current Liabilities 2,714.51 2,270.15 1,682.61 1,022.96
Total Equity & Liabilities 4,907.14 4,086.53 | 3,232.74 2,177.73
ASSETS
1 Non Current Assets
a. Property, Plant & Equipment and 12
Intangible Assets
i. Tangible Assets 647.38 614.96 541.09 323.39
ii. Intangible Assets 0.09 0.09 0.09 0.19
iii. Intangible Assets under devel opment 7.18 3.82 - -
iv. Capital Work in Progress - - - 4.40
b. Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 13 8.48 4.92 3.45 (0.52)
c. Non-current Investments 14 52.61 171.80 171.80 135.35
d. Long Term Loans & Advances 15 96.61 96.61 96.61 99.15
e. Other Non Current Assets 16 11.80 10.46 10.79 11.66
824.14 902.66 823.83 573.62
2) Current Assets
a Current Investments - - - -
b. Inventories 17 716.72 938.88 787.08 562.07
c. Trade Receivables 18 1917.12 1,428.07 | 1,106.36 764.83
d. Cash and Cash Equivalents 19 129.40 88.41 71.24 112.09
e. Short Term Loans & Advances 20 152.22 95.10 109.17 25.06
f. Other Current Assets 21 1,167.52 633.41 335.07 140.05
Total Current Assets 4,082.99 3,183.87 | 2,408.91 1,604.11
Total Assets 4,007.14 4,086.53 | 3,232.74 2,177.73

The accompanying notes form an integral part of restated financias statements
As per our report of even date attached

For RKeriwal & Co
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-

Khushboo Shah
Partner

FRN: 133558W

M.No.: 171607

Date: 10/01/2024

Place: Surat

UDIN: 24171607BK BFQJ8914

For and on behalf of Aluwind Architectural Limited

Sa/-

Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra

DIN: 00178667
Managing Director

Sd/-
Varsha Amrutlal Shah
Chief Financial Officer

Sd/-

Rajesh Kabra
DIN: 00178688
Executive Director

Sd/-

Shripriya Mishra
Company Secretary
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ALUWIND ARCHITECTURAL LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN ASALUWIND ARCHITECTURAL PRIVATE LIMITED)

RESTATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND L OSS

(X in Lakhs)
Sr. No Particulars Notes For the six-months For theyear ended March 31,
period ended
September 30, 2023 2023 2022 2021
A INCOME
Revenue from Operations 22 4,136.15 4,886.72 2,898.65 2,128.35
Other Income 23 6.82 13.90 26.48 10.94
Total Income (A) 4,142.97 4,900.62 2,925.13 2,139.29
B EXPENDITURE
Cost of Services 24 2,925.72 3,761.72 2,229.60 1,556.18
Purchase of Stock in Trade - - - -
Change in Inventories 25 89.24 (52.23) (17.03) 6.84
Employee benefit expenses 26 372.63 496.95 367.44 256.96
Finance costs 27 40.55 51.10 45.11 50.26
Depreciation and amortisation expense 28 42.61 78.81 61.00 40.12
Administrative Selling & Other Expenses 29 174.42 204.55 133.14 114.89
Total Expenses (B) 3,645.16 4,540.89 2,819.26 2,025.25
C Pr ofit befor e exceptional, extraordinary 497.80 359.73 105.87 114.04
itemsand tax (A-B)
Exceptiond items - - - -
D Profit befor e extraordinary items and tax 497.80 359.73 105.87 114.04
Extraordinary Expenses - - - -
E Profit befor e tax 497.80 359.73 105.87 114.04
Tax expense:
(i) Current tax 128.54 91.14 31.05 32.53
(i) Earlier Year Tax Adjustment - - - -
(i) Deferred tax (3.56) (1.46) (3.97) 459
F Total Tax Expense 124.97 89.67 27.08 37.12
G Profit after tax (E-F) 372.83 270.05 78.80 76.92
Adjusted Earning per equity share 30
(face value of Rs 10/- each): Basic (in Rs) 1471 1066 311 3.05
Adjusted Earning per equity share
(face value of Rs 10/- each): Diluted (in Rs) 1471 1066 811 3.03

The accompanying notes form an integral part of restated financials statements

As per our report of even date attached

For RKegriwal & Co
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-

Khushboo Shah

Partner

FRN: 133558W

M.No.: 171607

Date: 10/01/2024

Place: Surat

UDIN: 24171607BK BFQJ8914

For and on behalf of Aluwind Architectural Limited

Sd/-

Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra
DIN: 00178667
Managing Director

Sd/-

Varsha Amrutlal Shah
Chief Financial Officer

Sd/-
Rajesh Kabra
DIN: 00178688

Executive Director

Sd/-

Shripriya Mishra
Company Secretary

49




ALUWIND ARCHITECTURAL LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN ASALUWIND ARCHITECTURAL PRIVATE LIMITED)

RESTATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(R in Lakhs)
Particulars For the six-months For theyear ended March 31,
period ended
September 30, 2023 2023 2022 2021

Cash flow from operating activities:
Net Profit before tax as per Profit And Loss A/c 497.80 359.73 105.87 114.04
Adjusted for:
Depreciation & Amortisation 42.61 78.81 61.00 40.12
Interest & Finance Cost 40.55 51.10 45.11 50.26
Other Income (0.49) (2.58) (2.91) (2.82)
Profit or Loss on digposal of assets (1.19) (0.57) 14.84 1.08
Restated adjustments- Prior period item (5.86) 2.64 4.75 1.04
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 57341 489.13 228.66 203.72
Adjusted for (Increase)/ Decrease:
Inventories 222.16 (151.80) (225.01) 236.39
Trade Receivables (489.05) (321.71) (341.53) (228.39)
L oans and advances and other assets (591.24) (284.27) (276.57) (97.37)
Liabilities & Provisons 167.18 512.49 463.61 219.58
Cash Generated From Operations (117.54) 243.83 (150.83) 333.94
Direct Tax Paid (128.54) (91.14) (31.05) (32.53)
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Operating Activities: (A) (246.07) 152.70 (181.88) 301.40
Cash Flow From Investing Activities:
(Purchase)/Sale of Fixed Assets (78.50) (155.93) (293.44) (32.14)
Increase in Non-Current Assets (1.34) 0.33 0.88 (2.10)
(Purchase)/Sale of Investments 120.50 - (32.06) (4.40)
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Investing Activities: (B) 40.66 (155.60) (324.62) (38.64)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
Proceeds From Share Capital & Share Premium - - 304.99 -
Proceeds/(Repayment) from Long/ Short Term Borrowing-Net 286.47 68.59 202.86 (164.46)
Other Income 0.49 2.58 291 2.82
Interest & Finance Cost (40.55) (51.10) (45.11) (50.26)
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Financing Activities ( C) 246.41 20.07 465.66 (211.90)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 41.00 17.16 (40.85) 50.86
Cash & Cash Equivaents As At Beginning of the Y ear 88.41 71.24 112.09 61.23
Cash & Cash Equivalents As At End of the Year 129.40 88.41 71.24 112.09

Statement of cash flow has been prepared under the indirect methord as set out in AS-3 on statement of cashflows specified under Sec-
133 of Companies Act,2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Components of closing cash & cash equivalents:

Balances with Banks
- Current Account 1.38 191 17.75 4.82
- in Fixed Deposits (Marked aslein) 117.84 82.41 51.81 105.97
Cash on hand 10.18 4.09 1.69 1.30
129.40 88.41 71.24 112.09

The accompanying notes form an integral part of restated financials statements

As per our report of even date attached

For RKegriwal & Co
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of Aluwind Architectural Limited

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Khushboo Shah Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra Rajesh Kabra
Partner DIN: 00178667 DIN: 00178688
FRN: 133558W Managing Director Executive Director
M.No.: 171607

Date: 10/01/2024 Sd/- Sd/-

Place: Surat Varsha Amrutlal Shah Shripriya Mishra
UDIN: 24171607BK BFQJ8914 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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GENERAL INFORMATION

BRIEF SUMMARY:

Our Company was originally incorporated as “Aluwind Architectural Private Limited” as a Private Limited
Company under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 vide Certificate of Incorporation dated April 22, 2003,
issued by the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra. Subsequently, our Company was converted into a
Public Limited Company pursuant to shareholders resolution passed at Extra-ordinary General Meeting of our
Company held on October 4, 2023 and the name of our Company was changed to “Aluwind Architectural
Limited”. A fresh Certificate of Incorporation consequent upon Conversion from Private Limited Company to
Public Limited Company dated January 3, 2024 was issued by the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai.

Our Corporate Identification Number is U74210MH2003PL C140090.

The Promoters of our Company are Mr. Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra, Mr. Rajesh Kabra, Mr. Jagmohan
Ramshankar Kabra and M/s. Jagmohan Kabra HUF.

For further details please refer to the chapter titled “History and Certain Corporate Matters” beginning on page
130 of this Prospectus.

Brief Infor mation of the Company and I ssue
Registered & Corporate Office | Aluwind Architectural Limited
Register ed Office: 604, Palm Spring Centre, Link Road, Malad (West),
Mumbai City, Mumbai, Maharashtra, India 400064

Manufacturing Unit: Shree Vardhan, Gat No. 374, Opp. SBI,
Pune-Aurangabad Highway, Koregaon Bhima,
Shirur, Pune, Maharashtra 412216

Branch Office:

a) Shop No 16, Mitha Nagar Municipal Shopping Centre,
Goregaon W Near Link Road, Mumbai 400090

b) First Floor, Flat No-4, Amrut Park Co-operative Housing
Society Ltd, S. No. 219, Plot No. 19 Final Plot No. 12,
Town planning Scheme No. 1,
Kalyani Nagar Pune Nagar Road,
Y erwada, Pune 411006

Contact Person: Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra
Contact Number: 022- 35135036/37/38/39

Email I D: compliance@al uwind.net

Investor Grievance | D: investors@al uwind.net
Website: www.aluwind.net

Date of Incorporation April 22, 2003

Company Registration Number | 140090

Corporate Identification | U74210MH2003PL C140090
Number (CIN)

Company Category Company Limited by Shares
Company Sub-category Indian Non-Government Company

Registrar of Companies (RoC) Registrar of Companies, Mumbai

Registrar of Companies, 100, Everest, Marine Drive,
Mumbai-400002, M aharashtra India

Contact No: 022-22812627/22020295/22846954

Email 1D: roc.mumbai @mca.gov.in

Website: www.mca.gov.in

Designated Stock Exchange Emer ge Platform of

National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE Emerge”)
Exchange Plaza, Plot no. C/1, G Block,

Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051
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Tel. No: 022 2659 8100/ 2659 8114 / 66418100
Email ID: emerge@nse.co.in
Website: www.nseindia.com

I ssue Programme I ssue Openson: March 28, 2024
Issue Closeson: April 4, 2024
Company Secretary and | ShripriyaMishra

Compliance Officer Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Address: D-3 D-4, Panch Ratan Apartment, Kali KaTall,
Delhi Gate, Agra, Uttar Pradesh — 282 002

Contact Number: 022- 35135036/37/38/39

Email ID: compliance@al uwind.net

Website: www.aluwind.net

Varsha Amrutlal Shah

Chief Financial Officer

Address. A/63, Shruti Co-operative housing Society,
Near Charkop Petrol Pump, Sector - 6,
Kandivali West, Mumbai - 400 067

Contact Number: 022- 35135036/37/38/39

Email ID: varshashah@aluwind.net

Website: www.aluwind.net

R Kegriwal & Co.

Satutory & Peer Review Auditor

Peer Review Number: 014301

FRN: 133558W

Address: 2, Aastha, HiraModi Sheri, Sagrampura, Ring Road,

Surat, Gujrat- 395002

Contact Number: 0261-3599664

Email ID: audit@rkejriwal.com

Contact Person: CA Khushboo Shah

Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

Statutory & Peer Review
Auditor of the Company

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF OUR COMPANY:

Our Company’s Board comprises of the following Directors as on the date of this Prospectus:

S’o'. N;?;?L:QG Designation DIN Residential Address
Flat No. 403, Bldg-G, Palm Project,
Murli Manohar . . Pam Court Complex, Link Road,
1| Ramshankar Kabra | Managing Director | 00178667 | goying b _Mart, Malad (West) Dely
Mumbai - 400064
401, Rustomjee, Ozone Tower-4,
. . . Goregaon Mulund Link Road, Near
2 Rajesh Kabra Executive Director 00178688 Mini Exchange, Goregaon West,
Mumbai - 400104
C-11-A, S. N. 201, Kumar Picasso,
Jagmohan . . 17 1/2 Ndli,
3 Ramshankar Kabra Executive Director 08247152 Pune City, Hadapsar, Pune -
411028
Woman Non- 1106 Palm Court, G Wing, New
4 Aruna Bangur Executive 08179706 | Link Road, Near Infiniti Mall,
Independent Director Malad West, Mumbai - 400064
_ Non-Executive E Block 802, DSR Fortune Prime,
5 Santosh Kumar Rathi ; 06478349 | Madhapur, Rangareddy, Telangana
Independent Director
- 500081
_ Woman Non- Room No. 3, Francis Chawl, Ash_ok
Y ogita Dharmendra . Nagar, Near Bonanza Industria
6 - Executive 10109812 ! -
Poriya Independent Director Estate, Band_ongrl, Kandivali East
S.0, Mumbai - 400101

For further details of the Board of Directors, please refer to the chapter titled “Our Management” beginning on
page 135 of this Prospectus.
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DETAILSOF KEY INTERMEDIARIES PERTAINING TO THISISSUE AND OUR COMPANY:

LEAD MANAGER TO THE I SSUE RTA& REGISTRAR TO THE ISSUE
C 0 — P W | S NS PR F
s S k liné
CORP TE WIS O M,
HARERENTE e Fn.nrrllxr\xrﬁ'f‘"lrd
Corpwis Advisors Private Limited skvline Fi ial Services Private Limited
CIN : U74900MH2014PTC322723 oI 7489001 1o05PTo07 130
Address: 510, 5th Floor, Dilkap Chambers, Plot — A/7 VeeraDesal | aqdress D-153/ A. First Floor. Okhla Industrial Area,
Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai, M aharashtra— 400 053 Phase- |. New Delhi — 110020
Tel: +91-22-4972 9990 Tel: +91-11-40450193-97
Email ID: ipo@corpwis.com E-mail 1D; ipo@skylinerta.com

Investor Grievance Email |D: investors@corpwis.com

Contact Person: Mr. Vishal Kumar Garg Investor Grievance Email |D: grievances@skylinerta.com

Contact person: Mr. Anuj Kumar

Website: www.corpwis.com Website: www.skylinerta.com
SEBI Regn. No.: INM000012962 SEBI Regn. No.: INROO0003241
LEGAL ADVISOR TO THE ISSUE BANKERSTO OUR COMPANY

CANDOUR

Candour Legal ICICI Bank Limited
Address: First Floor, C-wing, Elanza Crest, Opp Courtyard by | Address: PM Rao Road Branch, Bharath Building Opp Srinivas
Marriott, SBR, Bodakdev, Ahmedabad — 380054, Gujarat, India Hotel Mangalore 575 001

Tel: +91-72288 88745 Tel: +91-96638 66046
Email ID: contact@candourlegal.com Email I D: m.ashwin@icicibank.com
Website: www.candourlegal.com Website: www.icicibank.com
Contact Person: M M Thapar Contact Person: Mr. Ashwin Kumar N
STATUTORY AND PEER REVIEWED AUDITORS OF BANKERSTO THE ISSUE / SPONSOR BANK /
THE COMPANY* ESCROW COLLECTION BANK / REFUND BANK
¢ 1cici Bank
Satutory & Peer Review Auditor ICICI Bank Limited
Peer Review Number: 014301 Address: Capital Market Division, 5" Floor, HT Parekh Marg,
FRN: 133558W Churchgate, Mumbai — 400 020
Address: 2, Aastha, HiraModi Sheri, Sagrampura, Ring Road, Tel: +91-022-6805 2182
Surat, Gujrat- 395002 Email ID: ipocmg@icicibank.com
Tel: +91-0261-3599 664 Website: www.icicibank.com
Email ID: audit@rkejriwal.com Contact Person: Mr. Varun Badai
Contact Person: CA Khushboo Shah SEBI Regn. No.: INBI00000004

MARKET MAKER

N N M SECURITIES PVT. LTD

NNM Securities Private Limited

CIN: U67120MH1997PTC111496

Address: B 6/7, Shri Siddhivinayak Plaza, 2™ Floor, Plot No. B-31,
Oshiwara, Opp Citi Mal, Oshiwara, Andheri (West), Mumbai - 400 053
Tel: +91-22-4079 0000 / 4079 0099

Email 1D: support@nnmsecurities.com

Website: www.nnmsecurities.com

Contact Person: Nikunj Anilkumar Mittal

SEBI Regn. No.: INZ000234235

*In accordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, we have appointed M/s R Kgjriwal & Co., Chartered
Accountants, (FRN: 133558W) as Peer Review Auditor vide Board Resolution dated October 03, 2023. M/s R
Keriwal & Co., Chartered Accountants has carried out the restatement of financial statements for the period
ended September 30, 2023 and for the financial year ended March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022, and March 31,
2021.
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TYPE OF ISSUE
The present Issueis considered to be 100% Fixed Price |ssue.
STATEMENT OF INTER-SE ALLOCATION OF RESPONSIBILITIESAMONG LEAD MANAGERSs

Since Corpwis Advisors Private Limited (“Corpwis™) is the sole Lead Manager to the Issue, all the responsibilities
relating to co-ordination and other activities in relation to the Issue shall be performed by them and hence a
statement of inter-se allocation of responsibilitiesis not required.

SELF-CERTIFIED SYNDICATE BANKS

The liss of SCSBs notified by SEBI for the ASBA process is avalable at
http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes, or at such other website as may be
prescribed by SEBI from time to time. A list of the Designated SCSB Branches with which an ASBA Applicant
(other than a RIB using the UPI Mechanism), not bidding through Syndicate/Sub Syndicate or through a
Registered Broker, RTA or CDP may submit the Application Forms, is avalable at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=34, or at such other
websites as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time.

SCSBSAND MOBILE APPLICATIONSENABLED FOR UPI MECHANISM

In accordance with SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/76 dated June 28, 2019, SEBI Circular
No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated Jduly 26, 2019 and SEBI Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2022/45 dated April 5, 2022, UPI Applicants may apply through the SCSBs and
mobile applications whose names appears on the website of the SEBI
(https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecogni sedFpi=yes& intml d=40) and
(https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecogni sedFpi=yes& intmld=43)  respectively, as
updated from time to time. A list of SCSBs and mobile applications, which are live for applying in public issues
using UPI mechanism is available on
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecogni sedFpi=yes& intml d=35 and
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes& intmld=43, respectively. A list
of SCSBs and mobile applications, which are live for applying in public issues using UPI mechanism is provided
as ‘Annexure A’ for the SEBI circular number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated July 26, 2019.

SYNDICATE SCSB BRANCHES

In relation to Application Forms submitted to a member of the Syndicate, the list of branches of the SCSBsat the
Specified Locations named by the respective SCSBs to receive deposits of Application Forms from the members
of the Syndicate is available on the website of the SEBI
(https.//www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherA ction.do?doRecogni sedFpi=yes& intmld=35) and updated from
time to time or any such other website as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time. For more information on
such branches collecting Application Forms from the Syndicate at Specified Locations, see the website of the
SEBI at https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes& intmld=35 as updated
from time to time or any such other website as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time.

REGISTERED BROKERS

Applicants can submit ASBA Formsin the Offer using the stockbroker network of the stock exchange, i.e. through
the Registered Brokers at the Broker Centres. The list of the Registered Brokers, including details such as postal
address, telephone number and e-mail address, is provided on the websites of the respective Stock Exchanges at
www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com, as updated from time to time.

REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENTS

Thelist of the RTAs eligible to accept ASBA Forms at the Designated RTA Locations, including details such as
address, telephone number and e-mail address, is provided on the websites of the respective Stock Exchanges at
https://www.bseindia.com/Static/Publicl ssues/RtaDp.aspx and
http://www.nseindia.com/products/content/equities/ipos/asba_procedures.htm, respectively, asupdated fromtime
to time..
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COLLECTING DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANTS

The list of the Collecting Depository Participants (CDPs) eligible to accept Application Forms at the Designated
CDP Locations, including details such a name and contact details, are provided at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherA ction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes& intmld=19 for NSDL CDPsand
a https.//www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes& intmld=18 for CDSL CDPs,
asupdated from timeto time. Thelist of branches of the SCSBs named by the respective SCSBsto receive deposits
of the Application Forms from the Designated Intermediaries will be available on the website of the SEBI
(www.sebi.gov.in) and updated from time to time.

BROKERSTO THE ISSUE

All members of the recognized stock exchanges would be eligible to act as Brokers to the I ssue.
CREDIT RATING

Asthisisanissue of Equity Shares, thereis no credit rating for this Issue.

IPO GRADING

Since the issue is being made in terms of Chapter IX of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, there is no requirement of
appointing an PO Grading agency.

DEBENTURE TRUSTEES
Since thisis not a debenture issue, appointment of debenture trustee in not required.
MONITORING AGENCY

As per Regulation 262(1) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, appointment of monitoring agency is required only if
Issue size exceeds X 100 Crores. Hence, our Company is not required to appoint a monitoring agency in relation
to the issue.

Pursuant to Regulation 32(3) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, our Company shall on a half yearly basis
disclose to the Audit Committee the uses and application of the Net Proceeds. Until such time as any part of the
Net Proceeds remains unutilized, our Company will disclose the utilization of the Net Proceeds under separate
heads in our Company’s balance sheet(s) clearly specifying the amount of and purpose for which Net Proceeds
have been utilized so far, and details of amounts out of the Net Proceeds that have not been utilized so far, also
indicating interim investments, if any, of such unutilized Net Proceeds. In the event that our Company is unable
to utilize the entire amount that we have currently estimated for use out of the Net Proceeds in a fiscal, we will
utilize such unutilized amount in the next fiscal. Further, in accordance with Regulation 32(1)(a) of the SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015, our Company shall furnish to the Stock Exchanges on a half yearly basis, a statement
indicating material deviations, if any, in the utilization of the Net Proceeds for the objects stated in this Prospectus.

FILING OF DRAFT PROSPECTUS/PROSPECTUS WITH THE BOARD AND THE REGISTRAR OF
COMPANIES

The Offer Document will not be filed with SEBI, nor will SEBI issue any observation on the | ssue Document in
terms of Regulation 246(2) of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations. However, pursuant to Regulation 246(5) of the SEBI
(ICDR) Regulations, the copy of the Offer Document shall be furnished to the Board (SEBI) in soft form.

Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2018/011 dated January 19, 2018, a copy of the
Prospectus will be filed online through SEBI Intermediary Portal at https://siportal.sebi.gov.in. A copy of the
Prospectus along with the documents required to be filed under Section 26 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be
delivered to the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, situated at Registrar of Companies, 100, Everest, Marine Drive,
Mumbai-400002, Maharashtra India and also the respective e-form shall be filled with the MCA Site.

APPRAISING ENTITY

No appraising entity has been appointed in respect of any objects of this Issue.
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GREEN SHOE OPTION

No green shoe option is contemplated under the Issue.

EXPERT OPINION

Except as disclosed below, our Company has not obtained any expert opinions:

Our Company has received written consent dated January 22, 2024 from M/s R Kgriwal & Co., Chartered
Accountants, to include their name as required under section 26(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with SEBI
ICDR Regulations in the Draft Prospectus/Prospectus, and as an “expert” as defined under section 2(38) of the
Companies Act, 2013 to the extent and in their capacity as our Statutory Auditor and in respect of their (i)
examination report, dated January 10, 2024 on our Restated Consolidated Financial Statements; and (ii) their
report dated January 22, 2024 on the Statement of Special Tax Benefits in this Draft Prospectus/Prospectus (iii)
in respect to various other certificates issued by them and such consent has not been withdrawn as on the date of
this Prospectus. However, the term “expert” shall not be construed to mean an “expert” as defined under the U.S.
Securities Act.

Our Company has received written consent dated January 10, 2024 from Mr. Prakash M. Shrivastav, Chartered
Engineer, Registration No. F-101353/6 to include their name as an ‘expert’ as defined under Section 2(38) of
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of certificates issued by him to our Company and disclosed in the Draft
Prospectus/Prospectus. Such consents have not been withdrawn as on the date of this Prospectus. It is clarified,
the term “expert” shall not be construed to mean an “expert” as defined under the U.S. Securities Act.

CHANGESIN AUDITORS

Except as disclosed below, there has been no change in the statutory auditors during the three years immediately
preceding the date of this Prospectus:

Name of the Auditor Appoint Date of Appointment / | Reason

ment/ Resignation

Resignation
R Kgriwa & Co. Appointment | October 04, 2023 Appointment as the
Peer Review Number: 014301 Statutory Auditor for the
FRN: 133558W Financia Year 2023-
Address: 2, Aastha, Hira Modi 2024 to fill up Casua
Sheri, Sagrampura, Ring Road, Vacancy
Surat - 395002
Email ID: audit@rkejriwal.com
Shyam Saboo & Co Resignation | October 03, 2023 The Auditors did not
FRN: 124373W have a peer review
Address: 103-D, 1% Floor, Sumit certificateissued by ICAI
Samarth Arcade - B Wing, Aarey
Road, Near Jan Mandir,
Goregaon (W), Mumbai — 400062
Email ID: shyam.saboo@gmail.com

WITHDRAWAL OF THE ISSUE

In accordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, our Company, in consultation with Lead Manager, reserves the
right not to proceed with this issue at any time after the Issue Opening Date, but before our Board meeting for
Allotment without assigning reasons thereof.

If our Company withdraws the I ssue after the I ssue Closing Date, we will give reason thereof within two days by
way of apublic notice which shall be published in the same newspapers where the pre-issue advertisements were
published.

Further, the Stock Exchanges shall be informed promptly in this regard and the Lead Manager, through the

Registrar to the Issue, shall notify the SCSBs to unblock the Bank Accounts of the ASBA Applicants within one
Working Day from the date of receipt of such notification.
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In case our Company withdraws the Issue after the Issue Closing Date and subsequently decides to undertake a
public offering of Equity Shares, our Company will file a fresh Offer Document with the Stock Exchange where
the Equity Shares may be proposed to be listed.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the I ssueis also subject to obtaining the final Listing and Trading Approval of the
Stock Exchange, which the Company shall apply for after Allotment. In terms of the SEBI Regulations, Non-
Retail Applicants shall not be allowed to withdraw their Application after the Issue Closing Date.

UNDERWRITING AGREEMENT

This Issueis 100% Underwritten. The Underwriting agreement has been entered on March 19, 2024. Pursuant to
theterms of the Underwriting Agreement, the obligations of the Underwriters are several and are subject to certain
conditions specified therein. The Underwriters have indicated their intention to underwrite the following number
of specified securities being offered through this I ssue:

Details of the Underwriter No. of shares | Amount % Of the
underwritten Underwritten | total Issue
(% in Lakh) Size
Underwritten
NNM Securities Private Limited 56,10,000 2,524.50 85%
CIN: U67120MH1997PTC111496

Address: B 6/7, Shri Siddhivinayak Plaza, 2nd Floor,
Plot No. B-31, Oshiwara, Opp Citi Mall, Oshiwara,
Andheri (West), Mumbai - 400 053

Td: +91-22-4079 0000 / 4079 0099

Email ID: support@nnmsecurities.com

Website: www.nnmsecurities.com

Contact Person: Nikunj Anilkumar Mittal

SEBI Regn. No.: INZ000234235

Corpwis AdvisorsPrivate Limited 9,90,000 445,50 15%
CIN : U74900MH2014PTC322723

Address: 510, 5th Floor, Dilkap Chambers, Plot — A/7
Veera Desai Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai,
Maharashtra, PIN:400053

Tel. No.: +91 — 22 — 4972 9990

Email 1D: ipo@corpwis.com

Investor Grievance Email ID:
investors@corpwis.com

Contact Person: Mr. Visha Kumar Garg

Website: www.corpwis.com

SEBI Regn. No.: INM000012962

Tota 66,00,000 2970.00 100%

In the opinion of our Board of Directors (based on a certificate given by the Underwriters), the resources of the
abovementioned Underwriter are sufficient to enable it to discharge its underwriting obligation in full. The
abovementioned Underwriters are registered with SEBI under Section 12(1) of the SEBI Act as Stock Broker and
Merchant Banker respectively.

DETAILSOF MARKET MAKING ARRANGEMENT
Our Company and the Lead Manager have entered into a tripartite agreement dated March 19, 2024 with NNM

Securities Private Limited, the Market Maker for this Issue, duly registered with NSE EMERGE to fulfil the
obligations of Market Making for the issue:
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Name NNM Securities Private Limited

Correspondence Address B 6/7, Shri Siddhivinayak Plaza, 2nd Floor, Piot No.
B-31, Oshiwara, Opp Citi Mall, Oshiwara, Andheri
(West), Mumbai - 400 053

Contact No. +91-22-4079 0000 / 4079 0099
Fax No. 022 — 2272 2279

E-Mail support@nnmsecurities.com
Website WWWw.nnmsecurities.com
Contact Person Mr. Nikunj Anilkumar Mittal
SEBI Registration No. INZ000234235

NNM Securities Private Limited, registered with NSE Emerge Platform will act as the Market Maker and has
agreed to receive or deliver of the specified securities in the Market Making process for a period of three years
from the date of listing of our Equity Shares or for a period as may be notified by any amendment to SEBI ICDR
Regulations.

The Market Maker shall fulfill the applicable obligations and conditions as specified in the SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations, and its amendments from time to time and the circulars issued by the NSE and SEBI regarding this
matter from time to time.

Following is a summary of the key details pertaining to the Market Making arrangement:

> On the basis of the representations and warranties contained in this Agreement and subject to the terms
and conditions herein, the Market Maker hereby agreesto;

a) Subscribe to 3,30,000 equity shares being the market maker reservation portion as specified in the
Draft Prospectus and Prospectus, on afirm basis and pay the amounts as are specified in the Draft
Prospectus and Prospectus. The Market Maker agrees not to withdraw its application.

b) Ensure Market making in the Equity Shares of “ALUWIND” in the manner and on the terms and
conditions contained in this Agreement, and as specified by SEBI and NSE from time to time

» The Market Maker shall be required to provide a 2-way quote for 75% of the time in aday. The same
shall be monitored by Stock Exchange. Further, the Market Maker shall inform Stock Exchange in
advance for each and every black out period when the quotes are not being offered by the Market Maker.

> The minimum depth of the quote shall be Rs. 1 Lakh. However, the investors with holdings of value less
than Rs. 1 Lakh shall be allowed to offer their holding to the Market Maker in that scrip provided that
he/she sdlls higher entire holding in that scrip in one lot along with a declaration to the effect to the
selling broker.

> After completion of the first three months of market making, in terms of SEBI Circular No.
CIR/MRD/DSA/31/2012 dated November 27, 2012; the Market Maker shall be exempt from providing
buy quote on attaining the prescribed threshold limits (including the mandatory allotment of 5% of Equity
Shares of the Offer). Further, the Market Maker can offer buy quotes only after the Market Maker
complies with prescribed re-entry threshold limits. Only those Equity Shares which have been acquired
by the Market Maker on the platform of the SME Exchange during market making process shall be
counted towards the Market Maker’s threshold. The Market Maker shall be required to provide two-way
quotes during the first three months of the market making irrespective of the level of holding.

» There shall be no exemption/threshold on downside. However, in the event the Market Maker exhausts
its inventory through market making process, the concerned Stock Exchange may intimate the same to
SEBI after due verification.

» Thelnventory Management and Buying/Selling Quotations and its mechanism shall be asper therelevant
circularsissued by SEBI and Emerge Platform of NSE from time to time.

> Execution of the order at the quoted price and quantity must be guaranteed by the Market Maker(s), for
the quotes given by them.
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The Market Maker shall not sell in lots less than the minimum contract size allowed for trading on the
Emerge Platform of NSE (in this case currently the minimum trading lot size is 3000 Equity Shares;
however, the same may be changed by the Emerge Platform of NSE from time to time).

The prices quoted by the Market Maker shall be in compliance with the Market Maker Spread
requirements and other particulars as specified or as per the requirements of the Emerge Platform of NSE
and SEBI from time to time.

The Market Maker shall not be responsible to maintain the price of the Equity Shares of the Issuer
Company at any particular level and is purely supposed to facilitate liquidity on the counter of Issuer
Company via its 2-way quotes. The price of the Equity Shares shall be determined and be subject to
market forces.

There would not be more than (5) five Market Makers for the Company’s Equity Shares at any point of
time and the Market Makers may compete with other Market Makers for better quotes to the investors.
At this stage, NNM Securities Private Limited is acting as the sole Market Maker.

The Market Maker shall start providing quotes from the day of the listing / the day when designated as
the Market Maker for the respective scrip and shall be subject to the guidelines laid down for market
making by the Emerge Platform of NSE.

On thefirst day of the listing, there will be pre-opening session (call auction) and there after the trading
will happen as per the equity market hours. The circuits will apply from the first day of thelisting on the
discovered price during the pre-open call auction.

The Marker Maker may also be present in the opening call auction, but there is no obligation on him to
do so.

The securities of the company will be placed in SPOS and would remain in Trade for Trade settlement
for 10 days from the date of listing of Equity share on the Stock Exchange.

The shares of the company will be traded in continuous trading session from the time and day the
company gets listed on Emerge Platform of NSE and market maker will remain present as per the
guidelines mentioned under NSE and SEBI circulars.

The Market Maker has to act in that capacity for aperiod of three years.

There will be special circumstances under which the Market Maker may be alowed to withdraw
temporarily / fully from the market — for instance due to system problems, any other problems. All
controllable reasons require prior approval from the Exchange, while force-majeure will be applicable
for non-controllable reasons. The decision of the Exchange for deciding controllable and non-
controllable reasons would be final.

The Market Maker(s) shall have the right to terminate said arrangement by giving one month notice or
on mutually acceptable terms to the Lead Manager/Merchant Banker, who shall then be responsible to
appoint areplacement Market Maker(s).

In case of termination of the above mentioned Market Making agreement prior to the completion of the
compulsory Market Making period, it shall be the responsibility of the Lead Manager/Merchant Banker
to arrange for another Market Maker(s) in replacement during the term of the notice period being served
by the Market Maker but prior to the date of releasing the existing Market Maker from its duties in order
to ensure compliance with the requirements of regulation 261 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations. Further
the Company and the L ead Manager/Merchant Banker reserve the right to appoint other Market Maker(s)
either as areplacement of the current Market Maker or as an additional Market Maker subject to the total
number of Designated Market Makers does not exceed 5 (five) or as specified by the relevant laws and
regulations applicable at that particulars point of time. The Market Making Agreement shall be available
for inspection at our Registered Office from 11.00 am. to 5.00 p.m. on working days.

Risk containment measures and monitoring for Market Makers: Emerge Platform of NSE will have all
margins which are applicable on the NSE Main Board viz., Mark-to-Market, Value-At-Risk (VAR)
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Margin, Extreme Loss Margin, Special Margins and Base Minimum Capital etc. NSE can impose any
other margins as deemed necessary from time-to-time.

Punitive Action in case of default by Market Makers: Emerge Platform of NSE will monitor the
obligations on a real time basis and punitive action will be initiated for any exceptions and / or non-
compliances. Penalties / fines may be imposed by the Exchange on the Market Maker, in case he is not
ableto providethedesired liquidity in aparticular security asper the specified guidelines. These penalties
/ fines will be set by the Exchange from time to time. The Exchange will impose a penalty on the Market
Maker in case heis not present in the market (offering two way quotes) for at least 75% of thetime. The
nature of the penalty will be monetary as well as suspension in market making activities / trading
membership.

The Department of Surveillance and Supervision of the Exchange would decide and publish the penalties/
fines / suspension for any type of misconduct / manipulation / other irregularities by the Market Maker
from time to time.

Price Band and Spreads: SEBI Circular bearing reference no: CIR/MRD/DP/ 02/2012 dated January 20,
2012, has laid down that for Issue size up to Rs. 250 Crores, the applicable price bands for the first day
shall be:

e Incaseequilibrium priceisdiscovered in the Call Auction, the price band in the normal trading
session shall be 5% of the equilibrium price.

e In case equilibrium price is not discovered in the Call Auction, the price band in the normal
trading session shall be 5% of the Issue price.

Additionally, the trading shall take place in TFT segment for first 10 days from commencement of
trading. The price band shall be 20% and the Market Maker Spread (difference between the sell and the
buy quote) shall be within 10% or asintimated by Exchange from time to time.

The following spread will be applicable on the SME Exchange Platform.

Sr. No. Market Price Slab (in Rs.) Proposed spread (in % to saleprice)
1. Up to 50 9
2. 50t0 75 8
3. 75 to 100 6
4. Above 100 5

Pursuant to SEBI Circular number CIR/MRD/DSA/31/2012 dated November 27, 2012, limits on the
upper side for Market Makers during market making process has been made applicable, based on the
Issue size and asfollows:

Issue Size Buy quote exemption threshold Re-Entry threshold for buy

(including mandatory initial quote (including mandatory

inventory of 5% of the Issue Size) initial inventory of 5% of the

I ssue Size)

Upto Rs.20 Crores 25% 24%
Rs.20to Rs.50 Crores | 20% 19%
Rs.50to Rs.80 Crores | 15% 14%
Above Rs.80 Crores 12% 11%

The Market Making arrangement, trading and other related aspects including all those specified above
shall be subject to the applicable provisions of law and / or normsissued by SEBI / NSE from time to

(Rest of the pageisintentionally left blank)
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Equity Share capital of the Company, as on the date of this Prospectus and after giving effect to the Issueis
set forth below:

Aggregate Aggregate

. Nominal Value/ Value
No. Particulars Face Value at |ssuePrice
(X in Lakhs) (X in Lakhs)

A. | Authorized Share Capital

2,49,90,000 Equity Shares of 310/- each 2,499.00 -
B. | Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Share Capital prior tothe
Issue
1,82,47,420 Equity Shares 1,824.74 -
C. | Present issuein terms of the Prospectus
Fresh Public Issue up to 66,00,000 Equity Shares at an Issue 660.00 2,970.00

Price of T 45/-@ per Equity Share @

Which Comprises ©:

3,30,000 Equity Shares at an Issue Price of X 45/- per Equity 33.00 148.50
Shareisreserved as Market Maker Portion
Net Issue to Public of 62,70,000 Equity Sharesat an Issue Price 627.00 2,821.50

of T 45/- per Equity Share to the Public

Of the Net | ssue to the Public

31,35,000 Equity Shares for cash at a price of % 45/- per Equity 313.50 1,410.75
Share will be available for Allocation for Retail Individual

Investors

31,35,000 Equity Shares for cash at a price of % 45/- per Equity 313.50 1,410.75

Share will be available for Allocation to other than Retail
Individual Investors

D. | Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Share Capital after the Issue

2,48,47,420 Equity Shares 2,484.74 11,181.34
E. | Securities Premium Account

Before the | ssue 24478

After the Issue 2,554.78

Note:

@ The present Issue has been authorized by the Board of Directors vide a resolution passed at its meeting held
on January 4, 2024, and by the shareholders of the Company vide a special resolution passed pursuant to Section
23 & 62(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 at the EGM held on January 4, 2024.

@ The Issue Price isfinalized at the time of opening of the issue in discussion with the Lead Manager.

(3) Allocation to all categories shall be made on a proportionate basis subject to valid Applications received at
or abovethe Issue Sze. Under subscription, if any, in any of the categories, would be allowed to be met with spill -
over from any of the other categories or a combination of categories at the discretion of our Company in
consultation with the Lead Manager and Designated Stock Exchange. Such inter-se spill over, if any, would be
affected in accordance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

CLASSOF SHARES

The Company has only one class of share capital i.e., Equity Shares of face value of 310.00/- each only.

All the issued Equity Shares are fully paid-up. The Company has no outstanding convertible instruments as on
the date of this Prospectus.

NOTESTO CAPITAL STRUCTURE
1. Detailsof changesin Authorized Share Capital of the Company sinceincor poration:

At the time of incorporation of our Company, the Authorized Share Capital of the Company was Z 5,00,000
consisting of 50,000 Equity Shares of % 10/- each.
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Further Authorized Share Capital of the Company has been altered in the manner set forth below:

Date of Amendment /
Shareholders’ Resolution

Nature of Amendment

AGM/
EGM

January 5, 2008

The Authorized Share Capital of the company wasincreased
from  5,00,000/- divided into 50,000 Equity shares of X 10/-
each to % 25,00,000/- divided into 2,50,000 Equity shares of
% 10/- each

EGM

February 20, 2023

The Authorized Share Capital of the company wasincreased
from T 25,00,000/- divided into 2,50,000 Equity shares of %
10/- each to % 5,00,00,000/- divided into 50,00,000 Equity
shares of 310/- each

EGM

September 30, 2023

The Authorized Share Capital of the company wasincreased
from  5,00,00,000/- divided into 50,00,000 Equity shares of
% 10/- each to T 24,99,00,000/- divided into 2,49,90,000
Equity shares of X 10/- each

AGM

Share Capital History:

History of Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Equity Share Capital of the Company

The following table sets forth the history of the Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Equity Share Capital of the

Company:
.. |FaceValue| IssuePrice . Cumulative
No. of Equity - . Cumulative .
per Equity | per Equity Natur e of Nature of " Paid-up
DElEE: Al mmE! EIEES Share Share Consideration Allotment N, 0 [SaE Capital
allotted Shares
(In}) (In}) (In})
April 22, 2003 Subscription to
(On incorporation) ® 10,000 10/- 10/- Cash MOA 10,000 1,00,000
March 31, 2008 @ 61,900 10/- 50/- Cash Further |ssue 71,900 7,19,000
February 20, 2014 © 35,800 10/- 50/- Cash Further Issue 1,07,700 10,77,000
Preferential Issue
March 31, 2022 @ 12,984 10/- 2,349/- Other than Cash| (Loan to Equity 1,20,684 12,06,840
Conversion)
March 27,2023 ® | 24,13,680 10/- Nil Other than Cash|  Bonus Issue* 2534364 | 2,53,43,640
January 16,2024 © | 1,57,13,056 10/- Nil Other than Cash| Bonus Issug** 1,82,47,420 | 18,24,74,200

Note:
All the above-mentioned shares are fully paid up since the date of allotment

*Bonus Ratio: Ratio of Bonus Issue was 20:1 i.e (Twenty (20) Equity Shares for every One (1) fully paid-up
Equity Share held)

** Bonus Ratio: Ratio of Bonus Issue was 62:10 i.e (Sxty Two (62) Equity Shares for every Ten (10) fully
paid-up Equity Share held)

(Rest of the pageisintentionally left blank)
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@ Initial Subscribers to the Memorandum of Association of our company:

Number of
Sr. No.| Name of the Allottee |Face Value (%)|Issue Price ()| Nature of Allotment | Equity Shares
Allotted
1 Murli Manohar 5000
Ramshankar Kabra 10/- 10/- Subscription to MoA '
2. Rajesh Kabra 5,000
Total 10,000
@ Allotment of shares dated March 31, 2008:
Number of
Sr. No.| Name of the Allottee|Face Value ()|l ssue Price (%) | Nature of Allotment | Equity Shares
Allotted
1 Sunita Kabra 4,000
2 Ramshankar Bhimrgj
Kabra 10/- 50/- Further Issue 29,000
3 Mohini Kabra 11,200
4 Jagmohan Kabra HUF 17,700
Total 61,900
© Allotment of shares dated February 20, 2014:
Number of
Sr. No.| Name of the Allottee |Face Value (R)|Issue Price (R) | Nature of Allotment | Equity Shares
Allotted
1 Murli Manohar 17.900
Ramshankar Kabra 10/- 50/- Further Issue '
2 Rajesh Kabra 17,900
Total 35,800
@ Allotment of shares dated March 31, 2022:
Number of
Sr. No.| Name of the Allottee |Face Value (R)|Issue Price (R) | Nature of Allotment | Equity Shares
Allotted
1 Murli Manohar 9365
Ramshankar Kabra Preferential 1ssue '
2 Rajesh Kabra 10/- 2,349/- (Loan to Equity 3,406
3 Jagmohan Conversion) 213
Ramshankar Kabra
Total 12,984
® Allotment of shares dated March 27, 2023:
Number of
Sr. No.| Name of the Allottee [Face Value (%)|Issue Price (%) |Nature of Allotment™ |Equity Shares
Allotted
1 Murli Manohar
Ramshankar Kabra 8,45,300
2 Rajesh Kabra 7,26,120
3 SunitaKabra 80,000
4 Mohini Kabra 2,00,000
5 Jagmohan KabraHUF 10/- i Bonus issue 3,54,000
6 Govinda Jagmohan 1.02.000
Kabra T
7 Akshat Murli
Manohar Kabra 1,02,000
8 Jagmohan
Ramshankar Kabra 4,260
Total 24,13,680

*Bonus Ratio: Ratio of Bonus Issue was 20:1 i.e (Twenty (20) Equity Shares for every One (1) fully paid-up
Equity Share held)
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© Allotment of shares dated January 16, 2024:

. Natur e of Number of
Sr. No.| Name of the Allottee |Face Value ()|l ssue Price () o Equity Shares
Allotment
Allotted
1 Murli Manohar 55,02,903
Ramshankar Kabra
2 Rajesh Kabra 47,27,041
3 Sunita Kabra 5,20,800
4 Mohini Kabra 9,92,000
5 Jagmohan Kabra HUF 23,04,540
6 Govinda Jagmohan 6,64,020
Kabra
7 Akshat Murli 10/- - Bonusissue 6,64,020
Manohar Kabra
8 Jagmohan 27,732
Ramshankar Kabra
9 Prakash Kumar 1,55,000
Agarwal
10 Dinesh G Hamirwasia 62,000
11 Pradeep Kumar Soni 62,000
12 Hemant Khator 31,000
Total 1,57,13,056

** Bonus Ratio: Ratio of Bonus Issue was 62:10 i.e (Sxty Two (62) Equity Shares for every Ten (10) fully
paid-up Equity Share held)

Issue of Equity sharesfor consideration other than cash:

Except as set out below, we have not issued Equity Shares for consideration other than cash:

NI @ Face Issue Benefits
DEE i@ [EGuIisy Value | Price | Consideration rlzzgen g accrued to | Allottees o Eheres
Allotment Shares (n3) | (n3 Allotment ——— allotted
allotted pany
Murli Manohar
March 31 Preferential Loan Ramshankar Kabra 9,365
arch o4, 12,984 10 | 2,349 3,04,99,416 eren Converted | Rajesh Kabra 3,406
2022 Allotment . )
into Equity Jagmohan Ramshankar
213
Kabra
Murli Manohar
Ramshankar Kabra 8,45300
Rajesh Kabra 7,26,120
Sunita Kabra 80,000
Capitalizatio Mohini Kabra 2,00,000
Marh2h | 2413680 | 10- | NIL NIL Bonusissue | nof Reserves Jeag\T:gga';;b;ﬁ;UF 354,000
|
and Surplus Kabra 1,02,000
Akshat Murli Manohar
Kabra 1,02,000
Jagmohan Ramshankar
Kapra 4,260
Murli Manohar
Ramshankar Kabra 55,02,903
Rajesh Kabra 47,27,041
Sunita Kabra 5,20,800
Mohini Kabra 9,92,000
Jagmohan Kabra HUF 23,04,540
Govinda Jagmohan
January 16 Capitaizatio | Kabra 6,64.020
202{1 ! 1,57,13,056 10/- NIL NIL Bonus issue n of Reserves | Akshat Murli Manohar 6.64.020
and Surplus Kabra T
Jagmohan Ramshankar 27.732
Kabra
Prakash Kumar 1,55,000
Agarwal
Dinesh G Hamirwasia 62,000
Pradeep Kumar Soni 62,000
Hemant Khator 31,000

Our company has not revalued our assets since inception and have not issued any Equity Shares (including
bonus shares) by capitalizing any revaluation reserves.
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The Company has not issued any Equity Sharesin terms of any scheme approved under sections 391-394 of
the Companies Act, 1956 or sections 230-234 of the Companies Act, 2013, as applicable.

The Company has not issued any Equity Shares under any employee stock option scheme or employee stock
purchase scheme.

The Company has not issued any Equity shares at price below Issue Price within last one (1) year from the
date of this Prospectus except as mentioned below:

Number of !
Date o Equity Face Issje Whether part | Reason Benefits o SEEs
Value | Price | of Promoter | for accrued to | Allottees
AIETETS SIEES (In%) | (In}) rou Allotment compan glene
allotted group pany
Murli Manohar
Promoter Ramshankar Kabra 8,45,300
Promoter Rajesh Kabra 7,26,120
Promoter Group Sunita Kabra 80,000
Promoter Group Capitalization Mohini Kabra 2,00,000
Marh2l | 2413680 | 10~ | NIL Promoter BOnS | of Reserves and Jgg\mg K;"gﬁ;” F_| 354000
Promoter Group Surplus Kabra s 1,02,000
Promoter Group Aksnat Murli Manohar 1,02,000
Kabra
Promoter Jagmohan Ramshankar 4,260
Kabra
Murli Manohar
Promoter Ramshankar Kabra 55,02,903
Promoter Rajesh Kabra 47,27,041
Promoter Group Sunita Kabra 5,20,800
Promoter Group Mohini Kabra 9,92,000
Promoter Jagmohan Kabra HUF 23,04,540
Promoter Group e Govinda Jagmohan 6,64,020
January 16 Bonus Capitalization Kabra
’ 1,57,13,056 10/- NIL - of Reservesand | Akshat Murli Manohar
2024 Promoter Group issue Surplus Kabra 6,64,020
Promoter Jagmohan Ramshankar 27,732
Kabra
. Prakash Kumar
Public Agawal 1,55,000
Public Dinesh G Hamirwasia 62,000
Public Pradeep Kumar Soni 62,000
Promoter Group Hemant Khator 31,000

(Rest of the pageisintentionally left blank)
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8. Shareholding Pattern of the Company:

The table below presents the current shareholding pattern of the Company as on the date of this Prospectus:
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2 8 5 58 0.95%*-\_-’ 5 o EE‘BE 5 c °$°.9_;zﬁ,-\ c
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5 s c = 4 g B 2| ©8 22n e e 2
S < z % O O 2 g w L L
Al Promoreésrg‘ugjomme's 9 1,79,23,420 17923420 | 98.22% 98.22% 1,79,23,420
B Public 3 3,24,000 3,24,000 1.78% 1.78% 3,24,000
c Non- Promoters-
Non-Public
Shares
c1 underlying DRs
Shares held by
Cc2 Employee
Trusts
Total 12 1,82,47,420 1,82,47,420 100% 100% 1,82,47,420

The Company will file the shareholding pattern of the Company, in the form prescribed under Regulation 31 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, one (1) day prior to the listing

of the Equity shares. The shareholding pattern will be uploaded on the website of Stock Exchange before commencement of trading of such Equity Shares.

Notes—

- Ason date of this Prospectus, one (1) Equity share holds one (1) vote.

- Theterm “Encumbrance” has the same meaning as assighed under regulation 28(3) of SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011

- Wehave only one class of Equity Shares of face value of 310.00/- each.
- We have entered into tripartite agreement with CDSL and NSDL.




9. Detailsof Shareholding of the major shareholder s of the Company

a. Setforth below isalist of Shareholders holding 1% or more of the paid-up share capital of the Company and
the number of Equity Shares held by them as on the date of filing of this Prospectus

Number of % of the Pre-Issue
METISE] ETEIENBRES Equity Shares share capital

Promoters

Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra 63,90,468 35.02%
Rajesh Kabra 54,89,467 30.08%
Jagmohan Kabra HUF 26,76,240 14.67%
Promoter Group (Other than Promoters)

Mohini Kabra 11,52,000 6.31%
Govinda Jagmohan Kabra 7,71,120 4.23%
Akshat Murli Manohar Kabra 7,71,120 4.23%
Sunita Kabra 6,04,800 3.31%
Total 1,78,55,215 97.85%

b. None of the shareholders of the Company holding 1% or more of the paid-up capital of the Company as on
the date of the filing of this Prospectus are entitled to any Equity Shares upon exercise of warrant, option or
right to convert a debenture, loan, or other instrument.

c. Particulars of the shareholders holding 1% or more of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company and
the number of shares held by them 10 (Ten) days prior to the date of filing of this Prospectus:

Number of % of the Pre-1ssue
METISE] ETETENBEES Equity Shares® share capital

Promoters

Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra 63,90,468 35.02%
Rajesh Kabra 54,89,467 30.08%
Jagmohan Kabra HUF 26,76,240 14.67%
Promoter Group (Other than Promoters)

Mohini Kabra 11,52,000 6.31%
Govinda Jagmohan Kabra 7,71,120 4.23%
Akshat Murli Manohar Kabra 7,71,120 4.23%
SunitaKabra 6,04,800 3.31%
Total 1,78,55,215 97.85%

Note:

@ Details of shares held on March 10, 2024
@ There are no vested outstanding options.

d. Particulars of the shareholders holding 1% or more of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company and
the number of shares held by them one (1) year prior to filing of this Prospectus:

Number of % of the Pre-lssue
NEBET ST RERS Equity Shares® share capital

Promoters

Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra 42,265 35.02%
Rajesh Kabra 36,306 30.08%
Jagmohan Kabra HUF 17,700 14.67%
Promoter Group (Other than Promoters)

Mohini Kabra 10,000 8.29%
Govinda Jagmohan Kabra 5,100 4.23%
Akshat Murli Manohar Kabra 5,100 4.23%
Sunita Kabra 4,000 3.31%
Total 1,20,471 99.82%

Note:

@ Details of shares held on March 20, 2023
@ There are no vested outstanding options.
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e.

10.

a

Particulars of the shareholders holding 1% or more of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company and
the number of shares held by them two (2) years prior to the date of filing of this Prospectus:

Number of % of the Pre-1ssue
NEMIEET SRETENT RES Equity Shares® share capital
Promoters
Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra 32,900 30.55%
Rajesh Kabra 32,900 30.55%
Jagmohan Kabra HUF 17,700 16.43%
Promoter Group (Other than Promoters)
Mohini Kabra 10,000 9.29%
Govinda Jagmohan Kabra 5,100 4.74%
Akshat Murli Manohar Kabra 5,100 4.74%
SunitaKabra 4,000 3.71
Total 1,07,700 100.00%
Note:

@ Details of shares held on March 20, 2022
@There are no vested outstanding options.

Our Company has not made any public offer (including any rightsissue to the public) since itsincorporation.

The Company does not have any intention or proposal to alter its capital structure within a period of six (6)
months from the date of opening of the Issue by way of split/consolidation of the denomination of Equity
Shares or Right Issue of Equity Shares whether preferential or bonus, rights, or further public issue basis.
(Including issue of securities convertible into or exchangeable, directly, or indirectly for Equity Shares),
whether on a private placement basis/ preferential basis, or by way of issue of bonus Equity Shares, or on a
rightsbasis, or by way of further public issue of Equity Shares, or otherwise. However, if the Company enters
into acquisitions, joint ventures or other arrangements, the Company may subject to necessary approvals,
consider raising additional capital to fund such activity or use Equity Shares as currency for acquisitions or
participation in such joint ventures.

Details of Build-up of our Promoter’s shareholding:

As on the date of this Prospectus, the Promoters of our Company i.e. Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra,
Rajesh Kabra, Jagmohan Ramshankar Kabra and Jagmohan Kabra HUF hold 1,45,88,380 Equity Shares,
equivalent to 79.95% of the pre-1PO issued, subscribed and paid-up Equity Share capital of the Company and
none of the Equity Shares held by the Promoters are subject to any pledge.

All the Equity Shares held by our Promoters as detailed herein below, were fully paid-up on the respective
dates of alotment of such Equity Shares.

Set forth below are the details of the build — up of our Promoter’ shareholding in the Company since
incorporation:

Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra:
Date of Number Face | ssue/ Nature Nature of Pre-issue Post-
Allotment/ of Value per Transfer of Transaction Share issue
Acquisition/ Sale Equity Equity Price per Consideration Holding Share
Shares Share () Equity Share % Holding
®) %
April 22, 2003 5,000 10/- 10/- Cash Subscription to MoA 0.03 0.02
February 20, 2014 17,900 10/- 50/- Cash Further Issue 0.10 0.07
) Gift Transfer received
March 29, 2016 10,000 10/- NIL Gift from Mohini Kabra 0.05 0.04
Preferential Issue
March 31, 2022 9,365 10/- 2,349/- Other than Cash (Loan to Equity 0.05 0.04
Conversion)
March 27,2023 | 845,300 10- NIL Capitalization of Bonus Issue 4.63 3.40
Reserves & Surplus

January 16, 2024 | 55,02,903 10- NIL Rg"\g ?g’;&s Bonus Issue 30.16 2215
Total 63,90,468 35.02 25.72
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b. Rajesh Kabra:

Date of Number Face | ssue/ Nature Nature of Pre-issue Post-
Allotment/ of Value per Transfer of Transaction Share issue
Acquisition/ Sale Equity Equity Price per Consideration Holding Share
Shares Share () Equity Share % Holding
®) %
April 22, 2003 5,000 10/- 10/- Cash Subscription to MoA 0.03 0.02
February 20, 2014 17,900 10/- 50/- Cash Further Issue 0.10 0.07
March 29, 2016 10,000 10- NIL Gift Gift Transfer recelved 0.05 0.04
from Mohini Kabra
Preferential Issue
March 31, 2022 3,406 10/- 2,349/- Other than Cash (Loan to Equity 0.02 0.01
Conversion)
March 27,2023 | 7,26,120 10- NIL Capitalization of Bonus Issue 3.98 292
Reserves & Surplus
January 16,2024 | 47,27,041 10- NIL ol ?gj:;lzs Bonus Issue 25,91 19.02
Total 54,89,467 30.08 22.09
¢. Jagmohan Ramshankar Kabra:
Date of Number Face I ssue/ Nature Nature of Pre-issue Post-
Allotment/ of Value per Transfer of Transaction Share issue
Acquisition/ Sale Equity Equity Price per Consideration Holding Share
Shares Share () Equity Share % Holding
® %
Preferential |ssue
March 31, 2022 213 10/- 2,349/- Other than Cash (Loan to Equity 0.00 0.00
Conversion)
March 27, 2023 4,260 10- NIL Capitalizetion of Bonus Issue 0.02 0.02
Reserves & Surplus
Janvary 16,2024 | 27,732 10/- NIL Rgx;“ ff“s‘;j:gus Bonus Issue 015 011
Total 32,205 0.18 0.13
d. Jagmohan Kabra HUF:
Date of Number Face | ssue/ Nature Nature of Pre-issue Post-
Allotment/ of Value per Transfer of Transaction Share issue
Acquisition/ Sale Equity Equity Price per Consideration Holding Share
Shares Share () Equity Share % Holding
®) %
March 31, 2008 17,700 10/- 50/- Cash Further Issue 0.10 0.07
March 27,2023 | 3,554,000 10- NIL Capitalizetion of Bonus Issue 194 142
Reserves & Surplus
January 16, 2024 | 23,04,540 10/- NIL Rg"\/‘i f&a“s"’;gzs Bonus Issue 12.63 9.27
Total 26,76,240 14.67 10.77

11. Ason the date of this Prospectus, the Company has 12 Members/Shareholders

12. Shareholding of our Promoters and Promoter Group

The details of shareholding of our Promoters, and the Promoter Group (other than our Promoters) as on the
date of this Prospectus are set forth below:

Pre-Issue Shareholding Post-1ssue Shareholding

Particulars Number of Per centage Number of Per centage

Shares holding Shares holding
Promoters
Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra 63,90,468 35.02% 63,90,468 25.72%
Rajesh Kabra 54,89,467 30.08% 54,89,467 22.09%
Jagmohan Ramshankar Kabra 32,205 0.18% 32,205 0.13%
Jagmohan KabraHUF 26,76,240 14.67% 26,76,240 10.77%
Total Promoters Shareholding (A) 1,45,88,380 79.95% 1,45,88,380 58.71%
Promoter Group (other than Promoter)
Mohini Kabra 11,52,000 6.31% 11,52,000 4.64%
Govinda Jagmohan Kabra 7,71,120 4.23% 7,71,120 3.10%
Akshat Murli Manohar Kabra 7,71,120 4.23% 7,71,120 3.10%
Sunita Kabra 6,04,800 3.31% 6,04,800 2.43%
Hemant Khator 36,000 0.20% 36,000 0.14%
Total Promoters Group Shareholding (B) 33,35,040 18.28% 33,35,040 13.42%
Total Promoters & Promoters Group 1,79,23,420 98.22% 1,79,23,420 72.13%
(A+B)
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13. Except asprovided below, no Equity Shareswere acquired/ purchased/ sold by the Promoter Group, Directors
and their immediate relatives within six months immediately preceding the date of filing of this Prospectus.

. % of Pre Category of
Disthe o o e 1 Name of Shareholder 1wl Sy issue A.I lotment/ Promoter s/ Promoter
Transfer Share ; Acquirel Transfer ;
Capital Group/ Director
September 04, 2023 Mohini Kabra 25,000 0.14 Sdes Promoter Group
September 04, 2023 Mohini Kabra 10,000 0.05 Sadles Promoter Group
December 26, 2023 Mohini Kabra 5,000 0.03 Sdles Promoter Group
December 26, 2023 Mohini Kabra 10,000 0.06 Sdes Promoter Group
December 26, 2023 Hemant Khator 5,000 0.03 Purchase Promoter Group
Murli Manohar . .
January 16, 2024 Ramshankar Kabra 55,02,903 30.16 Allotment viaBonus | Promoter & Director
January 16, 2024 Rajesh Kabra 47,27,041 25.91 Allotment viaBonus | Promoter & Director
Jagmohan Ramshankar .
January 16, 2024 K abra HUE 23,04,540 12.63 Allotment via Bonus Promoter
January 16, 2024 Jagmo“?;‘;‘g‘d“a”kar 27,732 015 | Allotment viaBonus | Promoter & Director
January 16, 2024 Sunita Kabra 5,20,800 2.85 Allotment via Bonus Promoter Group
January 16, 2024 Mohini Kabra 9,92,000 5.44 Allotment via Bonus Promoter Group
January 16, 2024 Govinda Jagmohan Kabra 6,64,020 3.64 Allotment via Bonus Promoter Group
January 16, 2024 Aksnat Nlll;llra,\vl anohar 6,64,020 3.64 Allotment via Bonus Promoter Group
January 16, 2024 Hemant Khator 31,000 0.17 Allotment via Bonus Promoter Group

14. There are no financing arrangements whereby the promoter, member of promoter group, the directors of our
company and their relatives have financed the purchase of the Equity Shares of our Company by any other
person during the period of six monthsimmediately preceding the date of filing of this Prospectus.

15. Following arethe details of Equity Shares of the Company held by Directorsand Key Management Personnel
of the Company:

Designation No. of Equity % of Pre-Issue
Name of Director/KMP ‘ Equity Share

Shares :

Capital

Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra Managing Director 63,90,468 35.02%

Rajesh Kabra Executive Director 54,89,467 30.08%

Jagmohan Ramshankar Kabra Executive Director 32,205 0.18%
Aruna Bangur Independent Director - -
Santosh Kumar Rathi Independent Director - -
Y ogita Dharmendra Poriya Independent Director - -
Varsha Amrutlal Shah Chief Finance Officer - -
Shripriya Mishra Company Secretary - -

16. Details of Promoter’ contribution locked in for threeyears:

Pursuant to Regulation 236 & 238 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, an aggregate of at least 20% of the post
Issue Equity Share capital of the Company held by our Promoter shall be considered as Promoter’ contribution
(“Promoter Contribution”) and locked in for aperiod of three yearsfrom the date of Allotment. Our Promoter
have granted consent to include such number of Equity Shares held by them as may congtitute 20% of the
post issue Equity Share capital of the Company as Promoter Contribution and have agreed not to sell or
transfer or pledge or otherwise dispose of in any manner, the Promoter Contribution from the date of filing
of this Prospectus until the commencement of the lock-in period specified above. Details of the Equity Shares
forming part of Promoter Contribution and proposed to be locked-in for aperiod of three years are asfollows:

(Rest of the page is intentionally left blank)
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Thedetails of lock-in of sharesfor 3 (three) yearsareasunder:

Date of Date when Nature of No. of Face Issue % of Pre- % of L ock
Allotment / made Fully Transaction Shares Value | Price/ Issue Post-Issue | in
Acquisition of paid up Equity ®) Acquisition | Equity Equity Period
fully paid up Shares Price Share Share
Shares R Capital Capital
Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra
April 22, 2003 April 22, 2003 Subscription to MoA 5,000 10 10 0.03 0.02
February 20, 2014 February 20, 2014 Further Issue 17,900 10 50 0.10 0.07
March20,2016 | March20,2016 | CifLlransierreceived | )4 q5q, 10 NIL 0.05 0.04 3Years
from Mohini Kabra
March 27, 2023 March 27, 2023 Bonus Issue 6,58,000 10 NIL 3.61 2.65
January 16, 2024 January 16, 2024 Bonus Issue 19,09,100 10 NIL 10.46 7.68
Total (A) 26,00,000 14.25 10.46 3Years
Rajesh Kabra
April 22, 2003 April 22, 2003 Subscription to MoA 5,000 10 10 0.03 0.02
February 20, 2014 February 20, 2014 Further Issue 17,900 10 50 0.10 0.07
March20,2016 | March20,2016 | Ciftlranserrecaived | 4 q5q, 10 NIL 0.05 0.04 3Years
from Mohini Kabra
March 27, 2023 March 27, 2023 Bonus Issue 6,58,000 10 NIL 3.61 2.65
January 16, 2024 January 16, 2024 Bonus Issue 19,09,100 10 NIL 10.46 7.68
Total (B) 26,00,000 14.25 10.46 3 Years
Total (C) 52,00,000 28.50 20.92 3Years

The minimum Promoter’s contribution has been brought in to the extent of not less than the specified
minimum lot and from persons defined as “Promoter” under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations. All Equity Shares,
which are being locked in are not ineligible for computation of Minimum Promoters Contribution as per
Regulation 237 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations and are being locked in for 3 years as per Regulation 238(a)
of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulationsi.e. for a period of three years from the date of alotment of Equity Shares
in thisIssue.

The entire pre-Offer shareholding of the Promoters and Promoter Group, other than the Minimum Promoters
contribution which is locked in for three years, shall be locked in for a period of one year from the date of
allotment in this Issue.

Eligibility of Share for “Minimum Promoters Contribution in terms of clauses of Regulation 237(1) of
SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018:

Reg. No. Promoters’ Minimum Contribution Eligibility Status of Equity
Conditions Shares forming part  of

Promoter’s Contribution
237(1) () (i) Specified securities acquired during the | The minimum Promoter’s

preceding three years, if they are acquired for | contribution does not consist of
consideration other than cash and revaluation | such Equity Shares. Hence Eligible
of assets or capitalization of intangible assets
isinvolved in such transaction

237 (1) () (ii) Specified securities acquired during the | The minimum Promoter’s
preceding three years, resulting from abonus | contribution does not consist of
issue by utilization of revaluation reserves or such Equity Shares. Hence Eligible
unrealized profits of the issuer or from bonus
issue against Equity Shares which are
ineligible  for  minimum  promoters’
contribution

237 (1) (b) Specified securities acquired by promoters | The minimum Promoter’s
during the preceding one year at aprice lower | contribution does not consist of
than the price at which specified securitiesare | such  Equity Shares. Hence
being offered to public in the initial public | Eligible.

offer

237(2) (c) Specified securities allotted to promoters | The minimum Promoter’s
during the preceding one year at a price less | contribution does not consist of
than the Offer price, against funds brought in | such  Equity Shares. Hence
by them during that period, in case of an issuer Eligible.

formed by conversion of one or more
partnership firms, where the partners of the
erstwhile partnership firms are the promoters
of the issuer and there is no change in the
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management:  Provided that specified
securities, allotted to promoters against capital
existing in such firmsfor aperiod of morethan
one year on a continuous basis, shal be
eligible

237 (1) (d) Specified securities pledged with any creditor. | Our Promoters have not Pledged
any shares with any creditors.
Accordingly, the minimum
Promoter’s contribution does not
consist of such Equity Shares.
Hence Eligible.

In terms of undertaking executed by our Promoters, Equity Shares forming part of Promoter’ Contribution
subject to lock in will not be disposed/ sold/ transferred by our Promoter during the period starting from the
date of filing of this Prospectustill the date of commencement of lock in period as stated in this Prospectus.

Details of Equity SharesLocked-in for 1 Year:

Other than the Equity Shares|ocked-in as Promoter’ Contribution for a period of 3 years as stated in the table
above, the entire pre-Issue capital of the Company, including the excess of minimum Promoter’ Contribution,
as per Regulation 238 & 239 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, shall be locked in for aperiod of 1 year from
the date of Allotment of Equity Sharesin the Issue. Such lock — in of the Equity Shares would be created as
per the bye laws of the Depositories.

Inscription or recording of non-transferability

In terms of Regulation 241 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, the Equity Shares which are subject to
lock-in shall carry inscription ‘non-transferable’ along with the Ratio of specified non-transferable period
mentioned in the face of the security certificate. The shareswhich are in dematerialized form, if any, shall be
locked-in by the respective depositories. The details of lock-in of the Equity Shares shall also be provided to
the Designated Stock Exchange before the listing of the Equity Shares.

Pledge of Locked in Equity Shares

Pursuant to Regulation 242 of the SEBI | CDR Regulations, the locked-in Equity Shares held by our Promoters
can be pledged with any scheduled commercial bank or public financia ingtitution or systematicaly
important non-banking finance company or ahousing finance company as collateral security for loans granted
by them, provided that:

(a) if the equity shares are locked-in in terms of clause (@) of Regulation 238, the loan has been granted to
the company or its subsidiary(ies) for the purpose of financing one or more of the objects of the Offer
and pledge of equity sharesis one of the terms of sanction of the loan;

(b) if the specified securities are locked-in in terms of clause (b) of Regulation 238 and the pledge of
specified securitiesis one of the terms of sanction of the loan.

Provided that such lock-in shall continue pursuant to the invocation of the pledge and such transferee shall
not be eligible to transfer the equity sharestill the lock-in period stipulated in these regulations has expired.

Transferability of Locked in Equity Shares

(a8 Pursuant to Regulation 243 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, Equity Shares held by our Promoters, which
are locked in as per Regulation 238 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, may be transferred to and amongst
our Promoters/ Promoter Group or to a new promoter or persons in control of our Company subject to
continuation of the lock-in in the hands of the transferees for the remaining period and compliance with
SEBI SAST Regulations as applicable.

(b) Pursuant to Regulation 243 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, Equity Shares held by shareholders other
than our Promoters, which are locked-in as per Regulation 239 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, may be
transferred to any other person holding shares, subject to continuation of the lock-in in the hands of the
transferees for the remaining period and compliance with SEBI SAST Regulations as applicable.
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17.

18.

19.

20.

21

22,

23.

24,

25,

26.

The Company, its Promoter, Directors and the Lead Manager have no existing buyback arrangements or any
other similar arrangements for the purchase of Equity Shares being issued through the Issue.

All Equity Shares offered pursuant to the Issue shall be fully paid-up at the time of Allotment and there are
no partly paid-up Equity Shares as on the date of this Prospectus. Further, since the entire money in respect
of the Issue is being called on application, al the successful Applicants will be offered fully paid-up Equity
Shares.

As on the date of this Prospectus, the Lead Manager and their respective associates (as defined under the
SEBI MB Regulations) do not hold any Equity Shares of our Company. The Lead Manager and their affiliates
may engage in the transactions with and perform servicesfor our Company in the ordinary course of business
or may in the future engage in commercial banking and investment banking transactions with our Company
for which they may in the future receive customary compensation.

The post-Issue paid up Equity Share Capital of the Company shall not exceed authorized Equity Share Capital
of the Company.

Our Company has from the date of incorporation till the date of this Prospectus never implemented any
Employee Stock Option Plan and/or Scheme.

No person connected with the Issue, including, but not limited to, the Company, the members of the
Syndicate, or the Directors of the Company, shall offer any incentive, whether direct or indirect, in any
manner, whether in cash or kind or services or otherwise to any Bidder for making a Bid, except for fees or
commission for services rendered in relation to the I ssue.

We hereby confirm that there will be no issue of Equity Shares whether by the way of issue of bonus shares,
preferential alotment, rights issue or in any other manner during the period commencing from the date of
filing of this Prospectus until the Equity Shares have been listed on the Stock Exchanges or al application
monies have been refunded, as the case may be.

The Company has no outstanding warrants, options to be issued or rights to convert debentures, loans, or
other convertible instruments into Equity Shares as on the date of this Prospectus.

There shall be only one denomination of the Equity Shares, unless otherwise permitted by law. The Company
will comply with such disclosure and accounting norms as may be specified by SEBI from timeto time.

Our Company shall ensure that transactions in the Equity Shares by our Promoters and our Promoter Group
between the date of this Prospectus and the Issue Closing Date shall be reported to the Stock Exchange within
24 hours of such transaction.

(Rest of the pageisintentionally left blank)
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SECTION V - PARTICULARS OF THE ISSUE
OBJECTSOF THE ISSUE

Our Company proposes to utilize the funds which are being raised towards funding the following objects and
achieve the benefits of listing on the Emerge Platform of NSE:

1. Funding of working capital requirements of the Company
2. General Corporate Expenses

Our Company believes that listing will enhance our Company’s corporate image, brand name and create a public
market for its Equity Shares in India besides unlocking the value of our Company. Having a listing on a stock
exchange also affords our company increased credibility with the public, having the company indirectly endorsed
through having their stock traded on the exchange. It also Improves supplier, investor and customer confidence
and improves our standing in the market place. It will also provide liquidity to the existing shareholders.

The main objects clause of our Memorandum of Association and the objects incidental and ancillary to the main
objects enables our Company to undertake the activitiesfor which funds are being raised in the Issue. The existing
activities of our Company are within the objects clause of our Memorandum.

| SSUE PROCEEDS

The proceeds of the Issue, after deducting Issue related expenses, are estimated to be % 2,970 Lakhs (the “Net
Issue Proceeds™). The following table summarizes the requirement of funds:

Particulars Estimated (Amount % in lakh)
Gross Proceeds from the I ssue 2,970.00
(Less) Issue Related Expenses 275.00
Net Proceeds 2,695.00

(@ The Issue related expenses are estimated expenses and subject to change.
REQUIREMENT OF FUNDS
Our funding requirements are dependent on a number of factors which may not be in the control of our
management, changes in our financial condition and current commercial conditions. Such factors may entail
rescheduling and / or revising the planned expenditure and funding requirement and increasing or decreasing the
expenditure for a particular purpose from the planned expenditure.

The following table summarizes the requirement of the fund:

Sr. No. Particulars Amount (X In Lakhs)
1. Funding of Working Capital requirements 2,045.00
2. General Corporate Expenses 650.00
Total 2,695.00

The fund requirements mentioned above are based on internal management estimates of the Company and have
not been verified by the Lead Manager or appraised by any bank, financial institution, or any other external
agency. They are based on current circumstances of business and the Company may have to revise its estimates
from time to time on account of various factors beyond its control, such as market conditions, competitive
environment, cost of commodities and interest or exchange rate fluctuations. Consequently, the fund requirements
of the Company are subject to revisions in the future at the discretion of the management. In the event of any
shortfall of fundsfor the activities proposed to be financed out of theissue proceeds as stated above, the Company
may re-allocate the issue proceeds to the activities where such shortfall has arisen, subject to compliance with
applicable laws. Further, in case of ashortfall in theissue proceeds or cost overruns, the management may explore
arange of optionsincluding utilizing our internal accruals or seeking debt financing.
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PROPOSED SCHEDULE OF IMPLEMENTATION AND UTILIZATION OF NET PROCEEDS

We propose to deploy the Net Proceeds for the aforesaid purposes in accordance with the estimated schedule of

implementation and deployment of funds set forth in the table below:

Estimated Estimated
Amount to be schedule of schedule of
: funded from Net deployment of deployment of
PEriE.lers Proceeds (R In Net Proceedsin Net Proceedsin
Lakhs) FY2024 FY 2025
(R In Lakhs) (R In Lakhs)
Funding of Working Capital requirements 2,045.00 - 2,045.00
General Corporate Expenses 650.00 - 650.00
Total 2,695.00 - 2,695.00

As per Management estimation, the total amount proposed to be utilized from the IPO Proceeds for the above-
mentioned purpose is to be deployed by March 31, 2025, subject to getting approvals from regulatory authorities
in atimely manner.

Since such expenditure does not involve the implementation of any specific project, a schedule of deployment of
fundsin relation to such an object has not been provided. If the Net Proceeds towards any of the Objects are not
completely utilized towards such objects by March 31, 2025, such amounts will be utilized (in part or full) in
subsequent periods as determined by us, in accordance with applicable law.

Any expenditure after filing of Prospectus till the listing for the above-mentioned objects, will be reimbursed to
the Company on actually basis from the PO Proceeds.

MEANS OF FINANCE

Our Company proposes to meet the entire requirement of funds for the objects of the Issue from the following
means.

1. Issue of Equity Shares through this Prospectus.

2. Interna Accruals of the Company.

Accordingly, as required under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, we confirm that there is no requirement for us to
make firm arrangements of finance through verifiable means towards at least 75% of the stated means of finance,
excluding the amount to be raised from the Net Proceeds or through existing identifiable internal accruals.

The requirements of the objects detailed above are intended to be funded from the Proceeds of the I ssue.
Accordingly, we confirm that there isno requirement for usto make firm arrangements of finance under
Regulation 230(1)(e) and 9 (C) of Part A of Schedule VI of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, through verifiable
means towards at least 75% of the stated means of finance, excluding the amount to be raised from the
proposed public Issue or through existing identifiable internal accruals.

The fund requirement and deployment are based on internal management estimates and have not been
appraised by any bank or financial institution. These are based on current conditions and are subject to
change in light of changes in external circumstances or costs, other financial conditions, business, or
strategy, as discussed further below.

In case of variations in the actual utilization of funds allocated for the purposes set forth above, increased fund
requirements for a particular purpose may be financed by surplus funds, if any, available in respect of the other
purposes for which funds are being raised in this Issue. If surplus funds are unavailable, the required financing
will be through our internal accruals and/or debt.

We may have to revise our fund requirements and deployment as a result of changes in commercial and
other external factors, which may not be within the control of our management. This may entailer
scheduling, revising, or cancelling the fund requirements and increasing or decreasing the fund
requirements for a particular purpose from its fund requirements mentioned below, at the discretion of
our management. In case of any shortfall or cost overruns, we intend to meet our estimated expenditure
from internal accrualsand/or debt. In case of any such re-scheduling, it shall be made by compliance of the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
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DETAILSOF THE OBJECTSOF THE ISSUE

1.

FUNDING OF WORKING CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS OF THE COMPANY

Our businessisworking capital intensive and we fund the majority of our working capital requirementsthrough
internal accruals, net worth, financing from different banks and financial institutions and unsecured loans. We
expect a further increase in the working capital requirements in view of current and potential operations that
may be awarded. Accordingly, we have proposed to use 2,045 Lakhs out of the issue proceeds to mest the
working capital requirements.

Basis of Estimation of Working Capital Requirements

Details of the estimation of working capital requirement are as follows:

(Rin Lakhs)
S Actual Actual Actual Actual
No. PEFTELIENS Fiscal 2021 | Fiscal 2022 | Fiscal 2023 Sepztg';gber
| Current Assets
Inventories 562.07 787.08 938.88 716.72
Trade receivables 764.83 1106.36 1428.07 1917.12
Short-Term Loans and Advances 25.06 109.17 95.10 152.22
Cash & Bank balances 112.09 71.24 88.41 129.40
Other Current Assets 140.05 335.07 633.41 1167.52
Total (A) 1604.11 2408.91 3183.87 4082.99
I Current Liabilities
Trade payables 483.05 653.66 1089.59 987.62
Other Current Liabilities 176.17 472.85 486.36 706.13
Short Term Provisions 33.65 31.85 91.80 131.34
Total (B) 692.88 1158.35 1667.76 1825.10
i Total Working Capital Gap (A- 911.23 1250.56 1516.10 2257.89
B)

On the basis of the existing working capital requirements, the Board of Directors of the company pursuant to
its resolution dated January 16, 2024 has approved the estimated and projected working capital requirements
for Fiscal 2024, Fiscal 2025 and Fiscal 2026 as set forth below:

(Rin Lakhs
Sr. Particulars Projected Projected Projected
No. Fiscal 2024 | Fiscal 2025 Fiscal 2026
| Current Assets
Inventories 1213.86 1614.96 2148.14
Trade Receivables 2199.02 3710.85 5009.65
Short Term Loans and Advances 249.95 329.93 440.25
Cash & Bank balances 1464.43 300.79 489.66
Other Current Assets 1319.41 2374.94 3206.18
Total (A) 6446.68 8331.48 11293.87
I Current Liabilities
Trade payables 521.42 610.92 868.45
Other Current Liabilities 764.29 831.92 1194.17
Short Term Provisions 100.99 144.48 111.08
Total (B) 1386.70 1587.32 2173.71
Il Total Working Capital Gap (A-B) 5059.98 6744.16 9120.16
v Funding Pattern
Short Term Borrowings 417.01 440.06 779.28
Internal Accruals 4642.96 4259.09 8340.88
PO Proceeds - 2045.00 -
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Key assumptions for working capital projections made by the Company:

Actual Actual Actual Actual Projected Projected | Projected
Particulars Basis FY FY FY Sep 2023 FY FY FY
2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26
Inventory Cost of Material 132 129 o1 a4 72 72 72
Days Consumed
Adva_nce to | Costof Material 6 17 9 9 15 15 15
suppliers Consumed
Trade Revenue from
Receivables - 131 139 107 83 91 114 114
Operations
Days
Trade .
Payables ggﬁg‘j&'\gfe”aj 113 107 106 61 3 27 29
Days
Advance .
from Cost of Material 15 46 25 18 18 15 18
Consumed
customers

Justification for “Holding Period” levels derived from our Restated Financial Statements

S. No.

Particulars

Current Assets

Inventory

Our inventory based on the restated financia statement was 132, 129, 91 days for the
years ended March 31, 2021, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2023 and 44 days for six
month period ended on September 30, 2023. Going forward we have estimated slightly
inventory level and hence, alower inventory holding period for coming years, as we
aim to complete more projects. We aso have taken steps to improve our inventory
management; like implementing better inventory tracking systems, improving supply
chain management, improved logistics and renegotiating contracts with suppliers.

Advance to
suppliers Days

Our Advanceto Suppliersdayson restated financial statementswas6,17,9 for theyears
ended March 31, 2021, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2023 and 9 days for six month
period ended on September 30, 2023. Going forward we have estimated advance to
supplierslevel of 15 daysin coming years as we expect to increase our Inventories by
giving advances to our suppliers to ensure efficient completion of projects and for
better price negotiations. This will in turn lead to improvements in our profitability
margins.

Trade
Receivables

Our trade receivables based on restated financial statements was 131,139,107 days for
the years ended March 31, 2021, March 31, 2022, and March 31, 2023, and 83 days
for six month period ended on September 30, 2023. Going forward we have estimated
trade receivables level of 91, 114 days, and 114 days in coming years as by ensuring
faster completion of projects, we are expecting realisation of more revenue. We also
expect to implement a stringent debtor management policy. Thisis planned by revising
credit terms, refined collection processes and adjusting credit checks.

Current Liabilities

Trade Payables

Our Trade Payable on restated financial statements were 113, 107, 106 for the years
ended March 31, 2021, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2023 and 61 days for six month
period ended on September 30, 2023. Going forward, we have estimated Trade payable
days to reduce in coming years to ensure better negotiable payment terms and faster
delivery of goods to ensure efficient completion of projects. This would aso ensure
improvements in profitability margins.

Advance from
Customers Days

Our advance from customers days on restated financial statements were 15, 46, 25 for
the years ended March 31, 2021, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2023 and 18 days for
six month period ended on September 30, 2023. Going forward, we have estimated the
Advance from Customers daysto reduce aswe are expecting more efficient completion
of projects, this would ensure revenue recognition on a timely basis and hence,
advances reflecting in the books would reduce.

(For the above details relating to the working capital requirement, we have relied upon the certificate dated
January 25, 2024, UDIN — 24171607BKBFRA9783 issued by the Statutory Auditors of the Company i.e., M/s.

RKejriwal & Co., Chartered Accountants)
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2. GENERAL CORPORATE PURPOSES

The Net Proceeds will befirst utilized towards the Objects as mentioned above. The balance is proposed to be
utilized for general corporate purposes, subject to such utilization not exceeding 25% of the amount being
raised by the Company through this issue, in compliance with the Regulation 230(2) of SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations. The Company intends to deploy the balance Net Proceedsii.e., ¥ 650 Lakhs, which is 21.89% of
the amount being raised by the Company through this issue, towards general corporate purposes, subject to
above mentioned limit, as may be approved by the management of the Company, including but not restricted
to, the following:

e Strategic Initiatives

e Brand Building and strengthening of marketing activities; and

e Ongoing general corporate exigencies or any other purposes as approved by the Board subject to

compliance with the necessary regulatory provisions.

The quantum of utilization of funds towards each of the above purposes will be determined by the Board of
Directors of the Company based on the permissible amount actually available under the head “General
Corporate Purposes” and the business requirements of the Company, from time to time. We in accordance with
the policies of the Board, will have flexibility in utilizing the balance Net Proceeds for general corporate
purposes, as mentioned above.

ISSUE RELATED EXPENSES

The total expenses of the Issue are estimated to be approximately X 275 Lakhs. The expenses of this Issue
include, among others, underwriting and Issue management fees, printing and stationery expenses,
advertisement expenses and legal fees, etc. The estimated |ssue expenses are as follows:

e TERL A Per centage of
Activity Amount @ thetes] thetotal Issue
(R In Lakhs) I ssue Sze
expenses

I ssue Management Expenses (including Lead Manager Fees,
Underwriter Fees, Legal Advisors, Market Maker, Registrar, 205.00 74.55% 6.90%
etc.)
Advertising and Marketing Expenses 40.00 14.55% 1.35%
Regulatory and other fees 5.00 1.82% 0.17%
Printing, Stationery and Postage 10.00 3.64% 0.34%
Other Expenses (including Peer Review Auditor, Issue
Related Certifications and Confirmations, Our of Pocket 15.00 5.45% 0.51%
Expenses, Bankersto the Issue, etc.)
Total estimated | ssue expenses 275.00 100% 9.26%

The above mentioned amounts are excluding GST.

The I'ssue expenses are estimated expenses and subject to change. The Issue expenses shall be payable within
30 working days post the date of receipt of the final invoice from the respective Intermediaries by our
Company.

Details of Funds Deployed w.r.t. I ssuerelated Expensestill the date of this Prospectus:

. Amount

P (Z In Lakhs)
I ssue Management Expenses (including Lead Manager Fees, Underwriter Fees, Legal 15.00
Advisors, Market Maker, Registrar, etc.)
Advertising and Marketing Expenses -
Regulatory and other fees 3.75
Printing, Stationery and Postage -
Other Expenses (including Peer Review Auditor, Issue Related Certifications and 3.73
Confirmations, Our of Pocket Expenses, Bankersto the Issue, etc.)
Total estimated | ssue expenses 22.48

(For the above details relating to the funds deploved w.r.t. Issue related Expenses, we have relied upon the
certificate dated March 20, 2024, UDIN — 24171607BKBFRM7618 issued by the Satutory Auditors of the
Company i.e., M/s. RKgjriwal & Co., Chartered Accountants)
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PROPOSED YEAR-WISE DEPLOYMENT OF FUNDS:

The overall cost of the proposed object and the proposed year wise break up of deployment of funds are as under:

(Rin Lakhs)
Amount to be deployed d A|rgosdn:rt§n?$he
Particulars Already Incurred| from the Net Proceeds cpioy . Total
in Financial Year 2024 _Net I?roceedsm
Financial Year 2025
Working Capital - - 2,045 2,045
Requirements
General Corporate - - 650 650
Purposes
Total - - 2,695 2,695

DETAILSOF FUNDSALREADY DEPLOYED TILL DATE AND SOURCES OF FUNDS DEPLOYED

The Company has confirmed that till the date of this rospectus that no funds have been deployed for the proposed
objects of the Issue.

BRIDGE FINANCING

We have currently not raised any bridge loans against the proceeds of the Issue. However, depending on our
requirement, we might consider raising bridge financing facilities, pending receipt of the proceeds of the Issue.

APPRAISAL BY APPRAISING AGENCY

None of the Objects have been appraised by any bank or financia institution or any other independent
organization. The funding requirements of the Company and the deployment of the proceeds of the Issue are
currently based on management estimates. However, the funding requirements of the Company are dependent on
anumber of factors which may not be in the control of the management of the Company, including variationsin
interest rate structures, changes in our financial condition and current commercia conditions and are subject to
changesin light of changesin external circumstances or in our financial condition, business, or strategy.

SHORTFALL OF FUNDS
Any shortfall in meeting the objects will be met by way of internal accruals.
INTERIM USE OF FUNDS

Pending utilization of the Issue Proceeds for the Objects of the Issue described above, the Company shall deposit
the funds only in one or more Scheduled Commercia Banks included in the Second Schedule of Reserve Bank
of IndiaAct, 1934.

In accordance with Section 27 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company confirmsthat utilization of the proceeds
of the Issue as described above, it shall not use the funds from the Issue Proceeds for any investment in equity
and/or real estate products and/or equity linked and/or real estate linked products.

MONITORING OF UTILIZATION OF FUNDS

There is no requirement for a monitoring agency as the Issue size is less than % 10,000 lakhs. Pursuant to
Regulation 41 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, the Company shall on a half yearly basis disclose to the Audit
Committee the uses and application of the Issue Proceeds. Until such time as any part of the Issue Proceeds
remains unutilized, the Company will disclose the utilization of the Issue Proceeds under separate heads in the
Company’s balance sheet(s) clearly specifying the amount of and purpose for which Issue Proceeds have been
utilized so far, and details of amounts out of the | ssue Proceeds that have not been utilized so far, also indicating
interim investments, if any, of such unutilized Issue Proceeds. In the event that the Company is unableto utilize
the entire amount that we have currently estimated for use out of the Issue Proceedsin afiscal year, wewill utilize
such unutilized amount in the next fiscal year.
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VARIATION IN OBJECTS

In accordance with Section 27 of the Companies Act 2013, the Company shall not vary object of the I ssue without
the Company being authorized to do so by Company’s shareholders in relation to the passing of such special
resolution shall specify the prescribed details as required under the Companies Act and shall be published in
accordance with the Companies Act and the rules thereunder. As per the current provisions of the Companies
Act, the Promoter or controlling shareholders would be required to provide an exit opportunity to such
shareholders who do not agree to the proposal to vary the objects, at such price, and in such manner as prescribed
by Securities and Exchange Board of Indiain this regard.

OTHER CONFIRMATIONSs

There are no material existing or anticipated transactions with the Promoter, Directors, Key Manageria Personnel
of the Company, and Group Entities, in relation to the utilization of the proceeds of the Issue. No part of the issue
proceeds will be paid by us as consideration to the Promoter, Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company or Group Entities, except in the normal course of business and in compliance with the applicable laws.

(Rest of the pageisintentionally left blank)
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BASISFOR ISSUE PRICE

Investors should read the following summary with the section titled “Risk Factors” on page 26, the details about
our Company under the chapter titled “Our Business” and its financial statements under the section titled
“Financial Information” beginning on pages 105 and 161 respectively including important profitability and
return ratios, as set out under the chapter titled “Other Financial Information” of the Company on page 196 to
have a more informed view. The issue price of the Equity Shares of our Company could decline due to these risks
and theinvestor may lose all or part of his/their investment.

QUALITATIVE FACTORS

For details of Qualitative factors please refer to the paragraph ‘Our Strengths’ in the chapter titled ‘Our
Business’ beginning on page 105 of this Prospectus.

Quantitative Factors (Based on Standalone Financial Statements)

1. Basic & Diluted Earnings per share (EPS), asrestated and adjusted for Bonus:

Adjusted
S Period : Restated- (POSt Bon_u ) Weights
No. Basic Diluted Basic Diluted
EPS ) EPS ) EPSR) | EPS®)
1 FY 2020-21 3.05 3.03 0.42 0.42 1
2 FY 2021-22 3.11 311 0.43 0.43 2
3 FY 2022-23 10.66 10.66 1.48 1.48 3
Weighted Average* 6.87 0.95
06 months ended
September 30, 2023 (not 14.71 14.71 2.04 2.04
annualized)

The figures disclosed above are based on the restated financial statements of the Company for the
period ended 30" September, 2023.

The face value of each Equity Share is I 10.00.

The above statement should be read with Sgnificant Accounting Policies and the Notes to the
Restated Financial Satements.

*Weighted average is calculated using Diluted EPS
Adjusted (Post Bonus) Basic and Diluted EPS s calculated after giving impact of Bonus issued on

January 16, 2024 which is after last audited Balance Sheet date to comply with SEBI ICDR
Regulations

2. PriceEarning (P/E) Ratio in relation to the I ssue Price of X45/- per share:

Sr. No Particulars P/E

1 P/E ratio based on the Basic & Diluted EPS, as restated and 22.02*
adjusted post bonus for Stub period (six month period ending
September 30, 2023)

2 P/E ratio based on the Basic & Diluted EPS, as restated and 30.41
adjusted post bonus for FY 2022-23

3 P/E ratio based on the Weighted Average EPS for last three 47.16
FY, asrestated and adjusted post bonus

*not annualized
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Industry P/E Ratio

Particulars P/E Ratio
Highest 34.2
Lowest 34.2
Average 34.2

*Note: Theindustry high and low has been considered fromtheindustry peer set provided later inthis chapter.
The industry composite has been calculated as the arithmetic average P/E Ratio of the industry peer set
disclosed in this chapter. For further details, see “Comparison of Accounting Ratios with Industry peers”
below.

Return on Net worth (RoNW)

Sr. No Period RONW (%) Weights
1. FY 2020-21 7.67% 1
2. FY 2021-22 6.38% 2
3. FY 2022-23 17.24% 3
Weighted Average 12.03%
06 mor_wths ended September 30, 2023 (not 19.77%
annualized)

RONW (%) = Net profit after tax/ Average Net worth.

Net worth = Equity share capital + Reservesand Surplus (including Securities Premiumand Surplus/ (Deficit)
and other comprehensive income excluding share application money).

Net Profit after tax = Calculated before accounting for Non-controlling Interest

Net Asset Value (NAV) per Equity Share:

Sr. No. Asat NAV
1 Ason March 31, 2023 9.33

2 As on September 30, 2023 8.33

3 NAYV after |ssue* 20.28
Issue Price 45.00

NAV as on March 31, 2023 and as on September 30, 2023 is calculated based on Total Shareholder Equity/
Total number of weighted average equity shares at the end of the period i.e. after giving effect of Bonus done
on January 16, 2024

Where, Total Shareholder equity = Equity share capital + Reserves and Surplus (including Securities
Premium and Surplus/ (Deficit) and other comprehensive income excluding share application money).

*NAV after Issueis calculated after giving effect of I ssue Proceedsin restated financial information i.e. Total
Shareholder Equity as on September 30, 2023 plus Proceeds of the Issue divided by outstanding number of
Equity shares as on September 30, 2023 plus number of shares to be issued due to Initial Public Offer (IPO).

Comparison of Accounting Ratioswith Industry Peer(s)

Comparison with other Listed Companies

Face Value Book value
Sr * | Name of the company ® Per ps@ | _PE © Ff)ON\(’Qf per share (3)
0. Ratio (%) @
Share)
Aluwind Architectural 10 1471 | 2202¢ | 19.77% 81.66
Limited
Listed Peers
2 Innovators Facade o
Systems Ltd 10 2.68 34.2 3.80% 71.75

*Not annualised

Source: The Company’s Financial Figures are based on restated audited financial statements for the period
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ended on September 30, 2023, unless provided otherwise. With respect to Industry peers, all the financial
information mentioned aboveis on a consolidated basi s (unless otherwise available only on standalone basis)
and sour ced fromthe audited financial s of the respective companiesfor the period ended September 30, 2023,
unless provided otherwise.

Note:

(1) Basic EPSfor the year ended September 30, 2023

(2) P/E Ratio has been taken as on 17" January 2024 (Source: WWw.screener..in, Www.moneycontrol.com).
(3) RONW has been calculated using Profit After Tax divided by the average Net Worth as on 30" September,
2023. The financials are taken from the Annual reports of the companies mentioned.

(4) Book Value per share has been calculated as Net worth divided by Total number of equity shares
outstanding as on 30" September 2023.

Key Performance Indicators:

The KPIsdisclosed below have been used historically by our Company to understand and analyze the business
performance, which as aresult, help usin analyzing the growth of our Company.

We have described and defined the KPIs, as applicable, in ‘Definitions and Abbreviations’ on page 4 of this
Prospectus.

Our Company confirms that it shall continue to disclose all the KPIs included in this chapter on a periodic
basis, at least once in ayear (or any lesser period as determined by the Board of our Company), for aduration
of one year after the date of listing of the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange or for such other duration as
may be required under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations. Further, the ongoing KPIswill continue to be certified
by a member of an expert body as required under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations.

The list of our KPIsalong with brief explanation of the relevance of the KPI for our business operations are
set forth below:

(R in Lakhs
Key Financial Performance Sggtzgggr M azr(;:;;l, M zazr(;:£1231, M azrggl?al,

Revenue from Operations® 4136.15 4886.72 2898.65 2128.35
Growth in Revenue from Operations @ - 68.59% 36.19% 23.21%
EBITDA® 574.14 475.73 185.50 193.48
EBITDA Margin (%) @ 13.88% 9.74% 6.40% 9.09%
PAT 372.83 270.05 78.80 76.92
PAT Margin (%) ® 9.01% 553% 2.72% 3.61%
Net Worth ® 2,069.53 1,702.56 1,429.87 1,041.33
Return on equity (%) 19.77% 17.24% 6.38% 7.67%
Return on capital employed (%) © 24.55% 22.62% 9.74% 14.23%
Net Asset Value per equity share® 81.66 67.18 1184.80 966.88
Total Borrowings? 993.98 707.52 638.92 436.06
Debt-Equity Ratio (times) @ 0.48 0.42 0.45 0.42
Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio 2 2.47 3.86 3.10 3.27
Inventory Turnover Ratio @3 3.53 4.36 3.31 2.29
Trade Payables Turnover Ratio 4 2.20 3.76 3.61 2.86
Trade Receivables days 148 95 118 112
Inventory days (9 103 84 110 160
Trade Payable days 166 97 101 127
Working Capital Cycle (days) 19 85 81 127 144
Net fixed asset turnover ratio (times) (9 6.50 8.42 6.67 6.44
Current Ratio (times) 2?0 1.50 1.40 1.43 157
Working Capital Turnover Ratio 219 3.53 2.68 214
(times)@Y
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Notes:

(1) Revenue from operation means revenue from sale of the products

(2) Growth in Revenue from Operations (%) is calculated as Revenue from Operations of the relevant period
minus Revenue from Oper ations of the preceding period, divided by Revenue from Oper ations of the preceding
period.

(3) EBITDA is calculated as Profit before tax + Depreciation + Finance Costs — Other Income

(4) EBITDA Margin is calculated as EBITDA divided by Revenue from Operations

(5) PAT Margin is calculated as PAT for the period/year divided by revenue from operations

(6) Net worth means the aggregate val ue of the paid-up share capital and all reserves created out of the profits
and securities premium account.

(7) Return on Equity is calculated by comparing the proportion of net income against the amount of average
shareholder equity

(8) Return on Capital Employed is calculated as follows: Profit for the period/ year plus finance cost plus tax
expenses (EBIT) divided by (Total Assets minus Total Current Liabilities)

(9) Net Asset Value per share (in Z) = Restated net worth at the end of the year / Number of Equity Shares
outstanding at the end of the period/year

(10) Total Borrowingsis calculated as Long Term Borrowings + Short Term Borrowings.

(11) Debt to Equity ratio is calculated as Total Debt divided by equity.

(12) Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio is calculated as Revenue from operations divided by average trade
receivables.

(13) Inventory Turnover Ratio is calculated as cost of goods sold divided by average inventory. Cost of Goods
Sold have been defined as cost of materials consumed plus purchases of stock-in-trade plus changes in
inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade, work-in-progress.

(14) Trade Payables Turnover Ratio is calculated as cost of goods sold divided by average trade payables.
Cost of Goods Sold have been defined as cost of materials consumed plus purchases of stock-in-trade plus
changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade, work-in-progress.

(15) Trade receivable days is calculated as average trade receivables divided by revenue from operations
multiplied by 365 for fiscal years

(16) Inventory days is calculated as average inventory divided by Cost of Goods Sold multiplied by 365 for
fiscal years. Cost of Goods Sold have been defined as cost of materials consumed plus purchase of stock-in-
trade plus changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade, work-in-progress

(17) Trade payable days is calculated as average trade payables divided by cost of goods sold multiplied by
365 for fiscal years. Cost of Goods Sold have been defined as cost of materials consumed plus purchases of
stock-in-trade plus changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade, work-in-progress

(18) Working Capital Cycle is defined as trade receivable days plus inventory days less trade payable days
(19) Net fixed asset turnover ratio is calculated by dividing net sales by the average fixed assets

(20) Current Ratio is calculated by dividing Current assetsto Current Liabilities

(21) Working Capital Turnover Ratio is calculated as Revenue from operations divided by average working
capital. Working capital is calculated as current assets minus current liabilities.

Explanationsfor the certain financial data based on Restated Financial Statements

Key Financial Performance | Explanations

Revenue from Operations Revenue from Operationsis used by the management to track the revenue
profile of the business and in turn helps to assess the overall financia
performance of the Company and volume of the business.

Growth in  revenue from | The growth in revenue from operations reflects an increase in the income

operations generated by a company's core business activities over a specific period.

EBITDA EBITDA provides information regarding the operational efficiency of the
business

EBITDA Margin EBITDA Margin (%) is an indicator of the operational profitability and
financia performance of the business

PAT Profit after tax provides information regarding the overall profitability of
the business

PAT Margin PAT Margin (%) is an indicator of the overall profitability and financial
performance of the business

Net Worth Net Worth is an important metric to gauge a company's health, providing
auseful snapshot of its current financial position.
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Trade Receivables Turnover | The accounts receivable turnover ratio measures the number of times a
Ratio company's accounts receivable balance is collected in a given period.
Trade Payables Turnover Ratio | Trade Payables Turnover Ratio isused to measure the number of timesthe
businessis paying off its creditors or suppliersin an accounting period.
Inventory Turnover Ratio Inventory turnover is a financia ratio showing how many times a
company turned over its inventory relative to its cost of goods sold
(COGS) in agiven period.

Trade Receivables days Trade Receivables days is the average number of days required for a
company to receive payments from its customers

Inventory days Inventory days is the average number of days required for a company to
convert itsinventory into sales

Trade Payable days Trade Payable daysisthe average number of days required for acompany
to pay its suppliers

Return on Equity Return on equity provides how efficiently the Company generates profits

from shareholders’ funds
Return on Capital Employed Return on capital employed provides how efficiently the Company
generates earnings from the capital employed in the business

Debt-Equity Ratio Debt / Equity Ratio is used to measure the financia leverage of the
Company and provides comparison benchmark against peers
Cash Conversion Cycle Working Capital Cycleisthetimeit takesto convert net current assets and

current liabilitiesinto cash

Net fixed asset turnover ratio | Net fixed asset turnover ratio isindicator of the efficiency with which the
company is ableto leverage its assets to generate revenue from operations
Current Ratio The current ratio is a liquidity ratio that measures the company’s ability to
pay short-term obligations or those due within one year

Working Capital Turnover | Working Capital Turnover Ratio is an efficiency ratio that measures the

Ratio efficiency with which a company is using its working capital in order to
support the sales and help in the growth of the business.
Total Borrowings Total Borrowings means the amount of liabilities arising from borrowings

from banks and other financial ingtitutions.

(For the above details relating to the KPIs, we have relied upon the certificate dated January 25 2024, UDIN
— 24171607BKBFQZ3345 issued by the Statutory Auditors of the Company i.e., M/s. R Kgjriwal & Co.,
Chartered Accountants)

K ey Performance Indicators comparison with peer Company

Aluwind Architectural Ltd | Innovators Facade SystemsLtd

Key Financial Performance September March 31, September 30, March 31,
30, 2023 2023 2023 2023

Revenue from Operations® 4136.15 4886.72 10034.9 18116.58
Growth in Revenue from Operations - 68.59% - 103.03%
@)
EBITDA ® 574.14 475.73 1237.21 1908.76
EBITDA Margin (%) @ 13.88% 9.74% 12.33% 10.54%
PAT 372.83 270.05 504.99 842.13
PAT Margin (%) ® 9.01% 5.53% 5.03% 4.65%
Net Worth ® 2,069.53 1,702.56 13537.05 13032.07
Return on equity (%) 19.77% 17.24% 3.80% 6.95%
Return on capital employed (%) © 24.55% 22.62% 3.44% 147.87%
Net Asset Value per equity share® 81.66 67.18 7175 69.07
Total Borrowings“® 993.98 707.52 5679.3 3851.87
Debt-Equity Ratio (times) 0.48 0.42 0.42 0.30
Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio 12 2.47 3.86 3.30 6.40
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Inventory Turnover Ratio (2 3.53 4.36 0.94 2.09
Trade Payables Turnover Ratio (4 2.20 3.76 1.10 4.28
Trade Receivables days 19 148 95 110.49 57.05
Inventory days (6 103 84 387.45 174.38
Trade Payable days 1" 166 97 332.46 85.29
Working Capital Cycle (days) *® 85 81 165.48 146.13
Net fixed asset turnover ratio (times) 6.50 8.42 212 4.17
(19)

Current Ratio (times) %9 1.50 1.40 1.82 157
Working Capital Turnover Ratio 219 3.53 1.45 291
(times) @V

Weighted average cost of acquisition

a.

Price per share of our Company based on the primary/ new issue of shares (equity / convertible
securities)

There has been no issuance of Equity Shares or convertible securities excluding shares issued under
ESOP/ESOS and issuance of bonus shares during the 18 months preceding the date of this Prospectus,
where such issuanceisequal to or morethan 5% of thefully diluted paid-up share capital of our Company
(calculated based on the pre-Issue capital before such transaction(s) and excluding employee stock
options granted but not vested, as applicable), in a single transaction or multiple transactions combined
together over a span of 30 days.

Price per share of our Company based on the secondary sale / acquisition of shares (equity /
convertible securities)

There have been no secondary sale/ acquisitions of Equity Shares or any convertible securities, where
the Promoter, members of the Promoter Group are a party to the transaction, during the 18 months
preceding the date of this Prospectus, where either acquisition or sale is equal to or more than 5% of the
fully diluted paid up share capital of our Company (calculated based on the pre-1ssue capital before such
transaction/s and excluding ESOPs granted but not vested), in a single transaction or multiple
transactions combined together over a span of rolling 30 days.

For the purpose of disclosure under part (a) and (b) above, ‘primary transaction’ refers to a primary
issue of Equity Sharesor securities convertibleinto Equity Shares, excluding sharesissued under a bonus
issuance and sub-division of shares and secondary transactions’ refer to any secondary sale or
acquisition of Equity Securities (excluding gifts)

Note: 1 Primary and secondary transactionsin thelast three years preceding the date of this Prospectus

The Weighted average cost of acquisition of Equity shares of basis the last five primary and secondary
transactions (secondary transactions where promoters, promoter group, selling shareholders or
shareholder(s) having the right to nominate director(s) on the Board of Aluwind Architectural Limited,
are a party to the transaction), not older than three years irrespective of the size of transactions:

Number Price

Sr. : Date of Value of
Transaction . of shares per
No. Transaction (Actual) | share shares
1 Preferential 1ssue (Loan to March 31, 2022
Equity Conversion) 12,984 2,349 | 3,04,99,416
2 Transfer of shares by Mohini December 26, 2023

5,000 100 5,00,000

Kabrato Hemant K hator
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C.

3 Transfer of shares by Mohini
Kabrato Pradeep Soni

December 26, 2023

10,000

100

10,00,000

4 Transfer of shares by Mohini
Kabrato Prakash Kumar
Agarwal

September 4, 2023

25,000

100

25,00,000

5 Transfer of shares by Mohini
Kabrato Dinesh Hamirwasia

September 4, 2023

10,000

100

10,00,000

Total

62,984

3,54,99,416

Weighted average cost of acquisition, Floor price and Cap Price

Types of transactions

Weighted
average
cost of
acquisition
R per Equity
Share)

Floor price*
(i.e. NA)

Cap price*
(i.e. NA)

Weighted average cost of acquisition for last 18
months for primary / new issue of shares (equity/
convertible securities), excluding shares issued
under an employee stock option plan/employee
stock option scheme and issuance of bonus shares,
during the 18 months preceding the date of filing of
the Prospectus, where such issuance is equal to or
more than five per cent of the fully diluted paid-up
share capital of the Company (calculated based on
the pre-issue capital before such transaction/s and
excluding employee stock options granted but not
vested), in a single transaction or multiple
transactions combined together over a span of
rolling 30 days

NA

NA

NA

Weighted average cost of acquisition for last 18
months for secondary sale/ acquisition of shares
equity/convertible securities), where promoter/
promoter group entities or Selling Shareholders or
shareholder(s) having the right to nominate
director(s) in the Board are a party to the
transaction (excluding gifts), during the 18 months
preceding the date of filing of the Prospectus,
where either acquisition or saleis equal to or more
than five per cent of the fully diluted paid-up share
capital of the Company (calculated based on the
pre-issue capital before such transaction/s and
excluding employee stock options granted but not
vested), in a single transaction or multiple
transactions combined together over a span of
rolling 30 days

NA

NA

NA

Since there were no primary or secondary transactions of equity shares of our Company during the 18
months preceding the date of filing of the Prospectus, the information has been disclosed for price per
share of our Company based on the last five primary or secondary transactions where Promoter
/Promoter Group entities or Selling Shareholders or shareholder(s) having the right to nominate
director(s) on our Board, are a party to the transaction, not older than three years prior to the date of
filing of this Prospectus irrespective of the size of the transaction

above [Weighted average cost of acquisition]
(Total value of shares/ Total number of shares)

(a) Based on primary issuances NA NA NA
(b) Based on secondary transactions NA NA NA
(c) Based on last five transactions mentioned 15.28* NA NA

* Adjustment for Bonus of 24,13,680 Equity shares allotted on March 27, 2023 and 1,57,13,056 Equity

shares allotted on January 16, 2024
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Explanation for Issue Price being 2.95 times of weighted average cost of acquisition of primary
issuance price/ secondary transaction price of Equity Shares (set out in (c) above) along with our
Company’s key performance indicators and financial ratios for the 6M FY24, FY23, FY22 and
FY21:

The Issue Price of %45/- being 2.95 times of Weighted Average Cost of Acquisiton (WACA) of past 5
primary/ secondary issuances (as disclosed above) along with our Company’s Key Performance
Indicators and financial ratiosisjustified in view of the above mentioned quantitative figures.

Explanation for Issue Price being 2.95 times of weighted average cost of acquisition of primary
issuance price / secondary transaction price of Equity Shares (set out in (c) above) in view of the
exter nal factorswhich may have influenced the pricing of the I ssue.

Not Applicable.
The Issue Price will be 4.5 times of the face value of the Equity Shares.

(For the above details relating to the basis of Issue Price, we have relied upon the certificate dated
March 20, 2024, UDIN - 24171607BKBFRP5355 issued by the Statutory Auditors of the Company i.e.,
M/s. RKgjriwal & Co., Chartered Accountants)

The Issue Price of X 45/- has been determined by our Company, in consultation with the LM, on
thebasisof themarket demand from investor sfor the Equity Sharesthrough the Fixed Pricelssue.
The Issue Price, as determined by our Company, in consultation with the LM, isjustified of the
Issue Pricein view of the above qualitative and quantitative parameters.

Bidders should read the abovementioned information along with the sections/chapter entitled “Risk
Factors”, “Our Business”, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
“Financial Information” on pages 26, 105, 198 and 161, respectively, to have a more informed view.
The trading price of the Equity Shares could decline due to the factors mentioned in the section entitled
“Risk Factors” page 26 or any other factorsthat may arisein the future and you may lose all or part of
your investments.

(Rest of the page isintentionally left blank)
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STATEMENT OF TAX BENEFITS

STATEMENT OF SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO THE COMPANY AND ITS
SHAREHOLDERS

To,

The Board of Directors,

Aluwind Architectural Limited

604, Palm Spring Centre,

Link Road, Malad (West),

Mumbai City, MUMBAI, Maharashtra, India, 400064

Dear Sir,

Subject - Statement of special tax benefits ('the statement') available to Aluwind Architectural Limited
('the company'), and its shareholder prepared in accordance with the requirement in Point No. 9 (L) of
Part A of Schedule VI tothe SecuritiesExchange Boar d of I ndia (I ssue of Capital Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018.

Reference - Initial Public Offer of Equity Sharesby Aluwind Architectural Limited

1.

We hereby confirm that the enclosed Annexure |, prepared by Aluwind Architectural Limited (‘the
Company"), which provides the specia tax benefits under direct tax and indirect tax laws presently in force
in India, including the Income-tax Act, 1961, the Central Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, the Integrated
Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, the Union Territory Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, respective State
Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 and the rules, regulations, circulars and notifications issued thereon,
available to the Company and its shareholders. Several of these benefits are dependent on the Company or its
shareholders fulfilling the conditions prescribed under the relevant provisions of the Taxation Laws. Hence,
the ability of the Company and or its shareholders to derive the tax benefitsis dependent upon their fulfilling
such conditions which, based on business imperatives the Company faces in the future, the Company or its
shareholders may or may not choose to fulfil.

This statement of specia tax benefits is required as per Schedule VI (Part A)(9)(L) of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 as amended
("SEBI ICDR Regulations). While the term 'special tax benefits has not been defined under the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, it is assumed that with respect to special tax benefits available to the Company and its
shareholders and the same would include those benefits as enumerated in the statement. The benefits
discussed in the enclosed statement cover the specia tax benefits available to the Company and its
Shareholders and do not cover any general tax benefits available to them. Any benefits under the Taxation
Laws other than those specified in the statement are considered to be general tax benefits and therefore not
covered within the ambit of this statement. Further, any benefits available under any other laws within or
outside India, except for those specifically mentioned in the statement, have not been examined and covered
by this statement.

The benefits discussed in the enclosed Annexures are not exhaustive and the preparation of the contents stated
isthe responsibility of the Company's management. We are informed that these Annexures are only intended
to provideinformation to theinvestors and are neither designed nor intended to be a substitute for professional
tax advice. In view of theindividual nature of the tax conseguences and the changing tax laws, each investor
is advised to consult his or her own tax consultant with respect to the specific tax implications arising out of
their participation in the proposed initia public offering.

In respect of non-residents, the tax rates and the consequent taxation shall be further subject to any benefits
available under the applicable Double Taxation Avoidance Agreement, if any, between Indiaand the country
in which the non-resident has fiscal domicile.

We do not express any opinion or provide any assurance asto whether:
i.) The Company or its shareholders will continue to obtain these benefits in future;
ii.) The conditions prescribed for availing the benefits have been / would be met with; and
iii.) The revenue authorities courtswill concur with the views expressed herein.
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6. The Content of the enclosed Annexures are based on information, explanations and representations obtained
from the company and on the basis of their understanding of the business activities and operations of the
company.

7. No assurance is given that the revenue authorities/ Courts will concur with the view expressed herein. Our
views are based on existing provisions of law and itsimplementation, which are subject to change from time
to time. We do not assume any responsibility to updates the views conseguent to such changes.

8. Weshall not beliableto any claims, liabilities or expenses relating to this assignment except to the extent of
fees relating to this assignment, as finally judicially determined to have resulted primarily from bad faith or
intentional misconduct. We will not be liable to any other person in respect of this statement.

9. This certificate is provided solely for the purpose of assisting the addressee Company in discharging its
responsibility under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 for inclusion in the Prospectus /Prospectus in connection with the proposed
issue of equity shares and is not be used, referred to or distributed for any other purpose without our written
consent.

For RKgriwal & CO.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 133558W/

Sd/_

CA Khushboo Shah

Partner

Membership Number: 171607
UDIN: 24171607BKBFQL 9982
Place: Surat

Date: 22.01.2024

(Rest of the page isintentionally left blank)
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ANNEXURE | TO THE STATEMENT OF TAX BENEFITS

The information provided below sets out the special tax benefits available to the Company and the Shareholders
under the Taxation Laws presently in forcein India. It is not exhaustive or comprehensive and is not intended to
be a substitute for professional advice. Investors are advised to consult their own tax consultant with respect to
the tax implications of an investment in the Equity Shares particularly in view of the certain recently enacted
legidation may not have adirect legal precedent or may have a different interpretation on the benefits, which an
investor can avall.

YOU SHOULD CONSULT YOUR OWN TAX ADVISORS CONCERNING THE INDIAN TAX
IMPLICATIONS AND CONSEQUENCES OF PURCHASING, OWNING AND DISPOSING OF
EQUITY SHARESIN YOUR PARTICULAR SITUATION
A. SPECIAL TAX BENEFITSTO THE COMPANY
The Company is not entitled to any special tax benefits under the Taxation Laws.
B. SPECIAL TAX BENEFITSTO THE SHAREHOLDER
The Shareholders of the Company are not entitled to any specia tax benefits under the Taxation Laws.
Note:
1. All the above benefits are as per the current tax laws and will be available only to the sole / first name
holder where the shares are held by joint holders.
We hereby give our consent to include our above referred opinion regarding the special tax benefits available
to the Company and to its shareholders in the Draft Prospectus / Prospectus (Collectively called as Offer
Document)
(For the above details relating to the statement of tax benefits, we have relied upon the certificate dated 22

January 2024, UDIN — 24171607BKBFQL9982 issued by the Statutory Auditors of the Company i.e., M/s. R
Kejriwal & Co., Chartered Accountants)

(Rest of the pageisintentionally left blank)
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SECTION VI — ABOUT THE COMPANY
INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The information in this section includes extracts from publicly available information, data and statistics and has
been derived from various government publications and industry sources. Neither we nor any other person
connected with the Issue have verified this information. The data may have been re-classified by us for the
pur poses of presentation. Industry sources and publications generally state that the information contained therein
has been obtained from sources generally believed to be reliable, but that their accuracy, completeness, and
underlying assumptions are not guaranteed, and their reliability cannot be assured and, accordingly, investment
decisions should not be based on such information.

Industry sources and publications are also prepared based on information as on specific dates and may no longer
be current or reflect current trends. Industry sources and publications may also base their information on
estimates, projections, forecasts, and assumptions that may prove to be incorrect and, accordingly, investment
decisions should not be based on such information. You should read the entire Prospectus, including the
information contained in the sections titled “Risk Factors” and “Financial Statements” beginning on page 26
and 161 of Prospectus.

MACROECONOMIC OVERVIEW

The global recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic and Russia’s invasion of Ukraine is slowing amid widening
divergences among economic sectors and regions.

The World Health Organization (WHO) announced in May that it no longer considers COVID-19 to be a “global
health emergency.” Supply chains have largely recovered, and shipping costs and suppliers’ delivery times are
back to pre-pandemic levels. But forces that hindered growth in 2022 continue to persist. Inflation remains high
and continues to erode household purchasing power. Policy tightening by central banks in response to inflation
has raised the cost of borrowing, constraining economic activity. Immediate concerns about the health of the
banking sector have subsided, but high interest rates are filtering through the financial system, and banks in
advanced economies have significantly tightened lending standards, curtailing the supply of credit. The impact of
higher interest rates extends to public finances, especially in poorer countries grappling with elevated debt costs,
constraining room for priority investments. As a result, output losses compared with pre-pandemic forecasts
remain large, especially for the world’s poorest nations.

Despite these headwinds, global economic activity was Figure 1. Value Added in the Services Sector: Distance to
resilient in the first quarter of 2023, with that resilience driven  Pre-Pandemic Trends
mainly by the services sector. The post-pandemic rotation of ~ (Féee
consumption back toward servicesis approaching completion 4,
in advanced economies (including in tourism dependent ==
economies of southern Europe), and it accelerated in anumber  ° | =ENE
of emerging market and developing economies in the first o
quarter. However, as mobility returnsto pre-pandemic levels, 5 |
the scope for further acceleration appears more limited.At the
same time, non-services sectors, including manufacturing,
have shown weakness, & high-frequency indicators for the -15 ¢
second quarter point to a broader slowdown in activity. Amid  ,, |
softening consumption of goods, heightened uncertainties ‘ ‘ , ,
regarding the future Geo-economics landscape, weak ~225019:01 20:Q1 21:Q1 22:01 23:01
productivity growth, & a more challenging financia
enVi ronmentr fl rms ha\/e maled baCk inveStment in prOdUCtive zgré?ﬁ\:e'il;\leirtﬁﬂgfnsé::g Iahrl:g lsrfgf:)aciiic: Irzt;la(r)g:énl one standard deviation
Capac|ty Gross fixed Cap|ta| formation and industrial around the means. For 18 AEs, the sample comprises AUS, CAN, CHE, CZE, DEU,
A . . DNK, ESP, FRA, GBR, ISR, ITA, KOR, NOR, NZL, SGP, SWE, TWN, and USA. For
production have slowed sharply or contracted in maor 16 EMDE, the sample comprises ARG, BRA, CHL, CHN, COL, HUN, IDN, IND,
advanced economies, dragging_international trade and  BEX TS PER P RS, A TR e 24 eyt s e
manufacturing in emerging markets with them. International ~ EMDEs = emerging market and developing economies.
trade and indicators of demand and production in
manufacturing al point to further weakness. Excess savings built up during the pandemic are declining in
advanced economies, especialy in the United States, implying a slimmer buffer to protect against shocks,
including those to the cost of living and those from more restricted credit availability.
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Global growth is projected to fall from 3.5 % in 2022 to 3.0 % in both 2023 and 2024 on an annual average basis.
The forecast for 2023-24 remains well below the historical (2000-19) annual average of 3.8 %. It is also below
the historical average across broad income groups, in overall GDP as well as per capita GDP terms. Advanced
economies continue to drive the decline in growth from 2022 to 2023, with weaker manufacturing, as well as
idiosyncratic factors, offsetting stronger services activity. In emerging market and developing economies, the
growth outlook is broadly stable for 2023 and 2024, athough with notable shifts across regions. On a year-over-
year basis, global growth bottomed out in the fourth quarter of 2022. However, in some major economies, it isnot
expected to bottom out before the second half of 2023. World trade growth is expected to decline from 5.2 % in
2022 t0 2.0 % in 2023, beforerising to 3.7 % in 2024, well below the 2000-19 average of 4.9 %. The declinein
2023 reflects not only the path of global demand, but also shifts in its composition toward domestic services,
lagged effects of US dollar appreciation—which slows trade owing to the widespread invoicing of productsin US
dollars—and rising trade barriers. These forecasts are based on a number of assumptions, including those
regarding fuel and non-fuel commodity prices and interest rates. Oil pricesrose by 39 % in 2022 and are projected
to fall by about 21 % in 2023, reflecting the slowdown in global economic activity. Assumptions regarding global
interest rates have been revised upward, reflecting actual and signaled policy tightening by major central banks
since April.

The Federal Reserve and Bank of England are now expected to raise rates by more than assumed in the April 2023
WEO—to apeak of about 5.6% in the case of the Federal Reserve - before reducing them in 2024. The European
Central Bank is assumed to raise its policy rate to a peak of 3.75 % in 2023 and to ease gradually in 2024.
Moreover, with near-term inflation expectationsfalling, real interest rates are likely to stay up even after nominal
rates start to fall.

Global Growth Outlook Projections (in %)

Estimate Projections
2022 2023 2024

World Output 35 3.0 3.0
Advanced Economies 2.7 15 14
United States 21 1.8 1.0
Euro Area 35 0.9 15
Germany 1.8 (0.3) 1.3
France 25 0.8 13
Italy 3.7 11 0.9
Spain 5.5 25 2.0
Japan 1.0 14 1.0
United Kingdom 4.1 04 1.0
Canada 34 17 14
Other Advanced Economies 2.7 2.0 23
Emerging Market and Developing Economies 4.0 4.0 4.1
Emerging and Developing Asia 4.5 53 5.0
China 3.0 5.2 4.5
India4/ 7.2 6.1 6.3
Emerging and Developing Europe 0.8 1.8 2.2
Russia (2.1 15 13
Latin Americaand the Caribbean 39 1.9 2.2
Brazil 29 21 12
Mexico 3.0 2.6 15
Middle East and Central Asia 54 25 32
Saudi Arabia 8.7 1.9 2.8
Sub-Saharan Africa 3.9 35 4.1
Nigeria 33 3.2 3.0
South Africa 1.9 0.3 1.7
Memorandum

Emerging Market and Middle-Income Economies 3.9 3.9 39
Low-Income Developing Economies 5.0 45 5.2

Source: International Monetary Fund, World Economic Outlook, July 2023 Update

Note: Real effective exchange rates are assumed to remain constant at the levels prevailing during May 2, 2023
May 30, 2023. Economies are listed on the basis of economic size. The Aggregated quarterly data are seasonally
adjusted. WEO = World Economic Outlook.
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1. Difference based on rounded figures for the current and April 2023 WEO forecasts. Countries for which
forecasts have been updated relative to April 2023 WEO for ecasts account for approximately 90 % of world GDP
measured at purchasing-power-parity weights.

2. For World Output (Emerging Market and Developing Economies), the quarterly estimates and projections
account for approximately 90 % (80 %) of annual world (emerging market and developing economies) output at
pur chasing-power -parity weights.

3. Excludes the Group of Seven (Canada, France, Germany, Italy, Japan, United Kingdom, United Sates) and
€euro area countries.

4. For India, data and projections are presented on a fiscal year basis, with FY 2022/23 (starting in April 2022)
shown in the 2022 column. India's growth projections are 6.6 % in 2023 and 5.8 % in 2024 based on calendar
year.

5. Indonesia, Malaysia, Philippines, Sngapore, Thailand.

6. Smple average of growth rates for export and import volumes (goods and services).

7. Smple average of prices of UK Brent, Dubai Fateh, and West Texas Intermediate crude oil. The average
assumed price of oil in USdollars a barrel, based on futures markets (as of June 1, 2023), is $76.43 in 2023 and
$71.68 in 2024.

8. Excludes Venezuela.

9. Theinflation rate for the euro area is 5.2% in 2023 and 2.8% in 2024, that for Japan is 3.4% in 2023 and
2.7% in 2024, and that for the United Statesis 4.4% in 2023 and 2.8% in 2024.

(Source:- IMF, World Economic Outlook, July 2023)

Advanced Economies Group

For advanced economies, the growth slowdown projected for 2023 remains significant: from 2.7 % in 2022t0 1.5
% in 2023. About 93 % of advanced economies are projected to have lower growth in 2023, and growth in 2024
among this group of economiesis projected to remain at 1.4 %.

In the United States, growth is projected to slow from 2.1 % in 2022 to 1.8 % in 2023, then slow further to 1.0
% in 2024. For 2023, the forecast has been revised upward by 0.2 % point, on account of resilient consumption
growth in the first quarter, areflection of a still-tight labor market that has supported gainsin real income and a
rebound in vehicle purchases. However, this consumption growth momentum is not expected to last: Consumers
have largely depleted excess savings accumulated during the pandemic, and the Federal Reserve is expected to
raise rates further.

Growth in the Euro zoneis projected to fall from 3.5 % in 2022 to 0.9 % in 2023, beforerising to 1.5 % in 2024.
The forecast is broadly unchanged, but with a change in composition for 2023. Given stronger services and
tourism, growth has been revised upward by 0.4 % point for Italy and by 1.0 % point for Spain. However, for
Germany, weakness in manufacturing output and economic contraction in the first quarter of 2023 means that
growth has been revised downward by 0.2 % point, to —0.3 %.

Growth in the United Kingdom is projected to decline from 4.1 % in 2022 to 0.4 % in 2023, then to riseto 1.0
% in 2024. Thisis an upward revision of 0.7 % point for 2023, reflecting stronger-than-expected consumption
and investment from the confidence effects of falling energy prices, lower post-Brexit uncertainty (following the
Windsor Framework agreement), and aresilient financial sector asthe March global banking stress dissipates.
Growth in Japan is projected to rise from 1.0 % in 2022 to 1.4 % in 2023, reflecting a modest upward revision,
buoyed by pent-up demand and accommaodative policies, then slow to 1.0 % in 2024, as the effects of past stimuli
dissipate.

For Emerging market and developing economies, growth is projected to be broadly stable at 4.0 % in 2023 and
4.1% 2024, with modest revisions of 0.1 % point for 2023 and - 0.1 % point for 2024. However, this stable average
masks divergences, with about 61 % of the economiesin thisgroup growing faster in 2023 and therest - including
low-income countries and three of the five geographic regions described in what follows - growing more slowly.
Growth in emerging and developing Asiaison track to riseto 5.3 % in 2023, then to moderate to 5.0 % in 2024,
reflecting a modest (0.1 % point) downward revision for 2024. The forecast for Chinais unchanged at 5.2 % for
2023 and 4.5 % for 2024, but with a change in composition: Consumption growth has evolved broadly in line
with April 2023 WEO projections, but investment has underperformed due to the ongoing real estate downturnin
that country. Stronger-than-expected net exports have offset some of the investment weakness, although their
contribution is declining as the global economy slows. Growth in Indiais projected at 6.1 % in 2023, reflecting
momentum from stronger-than-expected growth in the fourth quarter of 2022 as a result of stronger domestic
investment.
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Growth in Emer ging and developing Europe is projected to rise to 1.8 % in 2023, and to rise further to 2.2 %
in 2024. The forecast for Russia in 2023 has been revised upward by 0.8 % point to 1.5 %, reflecting hard data
(on retail trade, construction, and industrial production) that point to a strong first half of the year, with a large
fiscal stimulus driving that strength.

Latin America and the Caribbean is expected to see growth decline from 3.9 % in 2022 to 1.9 % in 2023,
although thisreflects an upward revision of 0.3 % point since April, and to reach 2.2 % in 2024. The decline from
2022 to 2023 reflects the recent fading of rapid growth during 2022 after pandemic reopening, as well as lower
commodity prices; the upward revision for 2023 reflects stronger-than-expected growth in Brazil—marked up by
1.2 % pointsto 2.1 % since the April WEO - given the surgein agricultural production inthe first quarter of 2023,
with positive spillovers to activity in services. It also reflects stronger growth in Mexico, revised upward by 0.8
% point to 2.6 %, with a delayed post-pandemic recovery in services taking hold and spilloversfrom resilient US
demand.

Growth in the Middle East & Central Asia is projected to decline from 5.4 % in 2022 to 2.5 % in 2023, with a
downward revision of 0.4 % point, mainly attributable to a steeper-than-expected growth slowdown in Saudi
Arabia, from 8.7 %in 2022 t0 1.9 % in 2023, anegative revision of 1.2 % points. The downgradefor Saudi Arabia
for 2023 reflects production cuts announced in April and June in line with an agreement through OPEC+ (the
Organization of the Petroleum Exporting Countries, including Russia and other non-OPEC oil exporters), whereas
private investment, including from “giga-project” implementation, continues to support strong non-o0il GDP
growth.

In Sub-Saharan Africa, growth is projected to decline to 3.5 % in 2023 before picking up to 4.1 % in 2024.
Growth in Nigeria in 2023 and 2024 is projected to gradually decline, in line with April projections, reflecting
security issuesin the oil sector. In South Africa, growth is expected to decline to 0.3 % in 2023, with the decline
reflecting power shortages, although the forecast has been revised upward by 0.2 % point since the April 2023
WEO, on account of resilience in services activity in the first quarter.

Inflation and Uncertainty:

Global headline inflation is set to fall from an annual average of 8.7 % in 2022 t0 6.8 % in 2023 and 5.2 % in
2024, broadly asprojected in April, but above pre-pandemic (2017-19) levels of about 3.5 %. About three-quarters
of the world’s economies are expected to see lower annual average headline inflation in 2023. Monetary policy
tightening is expected to gradually dampen inflation, but a central driver of the disinflation projected for 2023 is
declining international commodity prices. Differences in the pace of disinflation across countries reflect such
factors as different exposures to movements in commodity prices and currencies and different degrees of
economic over-heating. The forecast for 2023 is revised down by 0.2 % point, largely on account of subdued
inflation in China. The forecast for 2024 has been revised upward by 0.3% point, with the upgrade reflecting
higher-than-expected core inflation.

Coreinflation is generally declining more gradually. Globally, it is set to decline from an annual average of 6.5
% in 2022 t0 6.0 % in 2023 and 4.7 % in 2024. It is proving more persistent than projected, mainly for advanced
economies, for which forecasts have been revised upward by 0.3 % point for 2023 and by 0.4 % point for 2024
compared with the April 2023 WEO. Global core inflation is revised down by 0.2 % point in 2023, reflecting
lower-than-expected core inflation in China, and up by 0.4 % point in 2024. On an annua average basis, about
half of economies are expected to see no decline in core inflation in 2023, although on a fourth-quarter-over-
fourth-quarter basis, about 88 % of economies for which quarterly dataare available are projected to see adecline.
Overdl, inflation is projected to remain above target in 2023 in 96 % of economies with inflation targets and in
89 % of those economiesin 2024.

Inflation persists: Tight labor markets and pass-through from past exchange rate depreciation could push up
inflation and risk de-anchoring longer-term inflation expectations in a number of economies. The institutional
setup of wage setting in some countries could amplify inflation pressures on wages. Moreover, El Nifio could
bring more extreme temperature increases than expected, exacerbate drought conditions, and raise commaodity
prices. The war in Ukraine could intensify, further raising food, fuel, and fertilizer prices. The recent suspension
of the Black Sea Grain Initiative is a concern in this regard. Such adverse supply shocks might affect countries
asymmetrically, implying different dynamics for core inflation and inflation expectations, a divergence in policy
responses, and further currency movements.
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Financial markets reprise: Financial markets have adjusted their expectations of monetary policy tightening
upward since April but still expect less tightening than policymakers have signaled, raising the risk that
unfavorable inflation data releases could - as in the first quarter of 2023 - trigger a sudden rise in expectation
regarding interest rates and falling asset prices. Such movements could further tighten financial conditions and
put stress on banks and non-bank financial institutions whose balance sheets remain vulnerable to interest rate
risk, especially those highly exposed to commercial real estate. Contagion effects are possible, and a flight to
safety, with an attendant appreciation of reserve currencies, would trigger negative ripple effects for global trade
and growth.

(Source: World Economic Outlook Update, July 2023, IMF)

INDIAN ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

After reaching 7.2% in FY 2022-23, real GDP growth is expected to slow to 6% in FY 2023-24, before rising to
7 % in FY 2024-25. While indicators suggest that India’s growth is stable for now, headwinds from the impact of
rapid monetary policy tightening in the advanced economies, heightened global uncertainty and the lagged impact
of domestic policy tightening will progressively take effect. With slower growth, inflation expectations, housing
prices and wages will progressively moderate, hel ping headline inflation converge towards 4.5%. Thiswill alow
interest rates to be lowered from mid-2024. The trade restrictions (including export bans on variousrice varieties)
imposed in 2022 to fight inflation are assumed to be withdrawn. The current account deficit will narrow, reflecting
abating import price pressures.

FY 2022-23 ended on a positive note, due to higher-than-expected agriculture output and strong government
spending. However, high inflation, in particular for energy and food, and the ensuing monetary tightening to
anchor expectations are weighing on purchasing power and household consumption, particularly in urban areas.
Tighter financial market conditions are reflected in weakening credit-supported demand for capital goods, agood
proxy for business investment. Although services export growth remains brisk and the sectoral surplus rose by
35%, it is insufficient to offset the imbalance in goods’ trade. Low labor productivity is affecting the
competitiveness of “Made in India” goods and participation in global value chains. The current account deficit
narrowed in the October-December quarter to 2.2% of GDP, from 2.7% in the same period in FY 2021-22.
Headline inflation has fallen below 6% (the central bank’s upper bound of the tolerance band) since March 2023,
dueto lower food prices, aswell as base effects. Employment and wage estimates suggest improving labor market
conditionsin rural areas, while export-oriented service firms report increasing difficulties filling vacancies.
(Source: publicly available extract - OECD Economic Outlook, Volume 2023 Issue 1)

Inthefirst quarter of the fiscal year 2024 (Q1FY 24), India's Gross Domestic Product (GDP) is projected to exhibit
arobust growth of 7.8%, showcasing a notable increase from the 13.1% growth recorded in the same period last
year. This growth reinforces India's position as the fastest-growing major economy.

The National Statistical Office (NSO) data highlights a promising trgjectory, with the agricultural sector
demonstrating a growth of 3.5%, a notable improvement from the 2.4% growth observed year-on-year (Y oY).
Conversely, the manufacturing sector withessed a slight decel eration, achieving agrowth rate of 4.7% in Q1FY 24,
down from the 6.1% Y oY growth seen in the previous year.

(Source: PIB)

This impressive economic growth, outpacing regional counterparts, can be attributed to several factors. Notably,
asurge in government capital expenditure, strong momentum in the services sector, and improved consumption
played vita roles. Additionally, the favorable base effect contributed to the remarkable growth. Despite softness
in external trade due to global economic challenges, India's GDP growth remained resilient.

The services sector's growth was bolstered by vibrant activity in financial services, trade, hotels, and the transport
sector. This robust economic performance provides the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) with the flexibility to focus
on managing inflationary expectations while fostering a conducive economic environment.

(Rest of the pageisintentionally left blank)
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Quarter-wise Real GDP Growth Rates (%) (Constant Prices)
(Base 2011-12) and Monthly CPI Data
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(Source: MoSPI, National Statistical Office | Publication: Advance and Quarterly Estimates)

Domestic growth prospects are strongly influenced by global developments. India has seized the opportunity of
discounted Ural soil, which has increased Russia’s share in its energy imports. The sourcing of fertilizers from
Russia has also increased considerably, more than doubling in volume in case of urea. Overall, Indian imports
from Russia rose from USD 9.9 billion (1.6% of total imports) in FY 2021-22 to USD 46.2 billion (6.5%) in FY
2022-23.

(Source: publicly available extract - OECD Economic Outlook, Volume 2023 Issue 1)

Exportsfared remarkably well during the pandemic and aided recovery when all other growth engineswerelosing
steam in terms of their contribution to GDP. In the coming period, the significance of merchandise exportsin
India's overall trade landscape may experience fluctuations, influenced by the economic slowdown observed in
various partner countries. India's current account deficit (CAD) exhibited a decline in Q4 of 2022-23 compared
to the previous quarter (Q3:2022-23) and the same quarter in the previous fiscal year (Q4:2021-22). This shift
suggests a noteworthy change in India's trade dynamics and economic indicators over the specified periods.

The government is also focusing on renewable sources to generate energy and is planning to achieve 40% of its
energy from non-fossil sources by 2030. In the Union Budget of 2022-23, the government announced funding for
the production linked incentive (PL1) scheme for domestic solar cells and module manufacturing of % 24,000 crore
(US$ 3.21 hillion).

(Source - PIB)

INDUSTRIAL SECTOR:
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SERVICE SECTOR:

The growth in the services sector also remained strong in FY 23, largely driven by the contact-intensive services
sectors. This sector completely recovered to the pre-pandemic level in FY 23, driven by the remova of mobility
restrictions, the release of pent-up demand, and near-universal vaccination coverage. PMI Services remained in
the expansionary zone throughout the year, supported by improvement in new business intakes, increased orders
placed, and flagged price pressures of inputs and raw materials post-October 2022. Trade, Hotels, Transport,
Communication and Services related to Broadcasting and Financial Real Estate & Professional Services are major
drivers of the growth in this sector.
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The India Services PMI survey for July reported a strong performance in the sector, driven by increased demand
and new business gains. The Business Activity Index rose from 58.5 in June to 62.3 in July, marking the sharpest
increase in output since June 2010. International sales also contributed to the growth in total new orders. To
mitigate rising costs, services firms raised their selling charges. Among sub-sectors, Finance & Insurance stood
out with the highest growth in business activity and new orders.

In July, there was a notable increase in overall new orders, marking the strongest growth in over 13 years. This
increase was particularly pronounced in the service sector, while manufacturing orders saw a similar pace of
growth as in June. Cost inflation increased in July, affecting both goods producers and service providers, with
input costsrising at their fastest ratein ayear. However, the prices charged for Indian goods and servicesincreased
at aslower rate, reaching athree-month low. Charge inflation moderated in both manufacturing and services.
(Source: RBI Bulletin, November 2023)

INDIAN REAL ESTATE MARKET

The real estate sector is one of the most globally recognized sectors. It comprises of four sub-sectors - housing,
retail, hospitality, and commercial. The growth of this sector iswell complemented by the growth in the corporate
environment and the demand for office space as well as urban and semi-urban accommodation. The construction
industry ranks third among the 14 major sectors in terms of direct, indirect and induced effects in all sectors of
the economy.

In India, the real estate sector is the second-highest

Market size of real estatein India (US employment generator, after the agriculture sector. Itisalso

$Billions expected that this sector will incur more non-resident Indian

1200 (NRI) investment, both in the short term and the long term.

1000 Bengaluru is expected to be the most favoured property

1000 investment destination for NRIs, followed by Ahmedabad,
800 Pune, Chennai, Goa, Delhi and Dehradun.

650

600 By 2040, real estate market will grow to X 65,000 crore

(US$ 9.30 billion) from % 12,000 crore (US$ 1.72 billion)

400 in 2019. Readl estate sector in Indiais expected to reach US$

200 120 180 1 trillion in market size by 2030, up from US$ 200 billion

in 2021 and contribute 13% to the country’s GDP by 2025.

0 Retail, hospitality, and commercial real estate are also

2017 2020 2025F 2030F growing significantly, providing the much-needed

infrastructure for India's growing needs.
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In FY23, India’s residential property market witnessed with the value of home sales reaching an all-time high of
% 3.47 lakh crore (US$ 42 billion), marking arobust 48% year-on-year increase. The volume of salesalso exhibited
a strong growth trajectory, with a 36% rise to 379,095 units sold.

Indian real estate developers operating in the country’s major urban centres are poised to achieve a significant feat
in 2023, with the completion of approximately 558,000 homes.

India’s real estate sector saw over 1,700 acres of land deals in top eight cities in the first nine months of FY 22.
Foreign investmentsin the commercial real estate sector were at US$ 10.3 billion from 2017-2021. Asof February
2022, Developers expect demand for office spacesin SEZsto shoot up after the replacement of the existing SEZs
act.

As per ICRA estimates, Indian firms are expected to raise > 3.5 trillion (US$ 48 hillion) through infrastructure
and real estate investment trustsin 2022, as compared with raised funds worth US$ 29 billion to date.

The office market in the top eight cities recorded transactions of 22.2 msf from July 2020 to December 2020,
whereas new completions were recorded at 17.2 msf in the same period. In terms of share of sectoral occupiers,
Information Technology (IT/ITeS) sector dominated with a 41% share in the second half of 2020, followed by
BSFI and Manufacturing sectors with 16% each, while Other Services and Co-working sectors recorded 17% and
10%, respectively.

Around 40 million square feet were delivered in Indiain 2021. It is expected that the country will have a 40%
market share in the next 2-3 years. Indiais expected to deliver 46 million square feet in 2022.

According to Savills India, real estate demand for data centres is expected to increase by 15-18 million sg. ft. by
2025.

In 2020, the manufacturing sector accounted for 24% of office space leasing at 5.7 million square feet. SMEs and
electronic component manufacturers leased the most between Pune, Chennai and Delhi NCR, followed by auto
sector leasing in Chennai, Ahmedabad and Pune. The 3PL, e-commerce and retail segments accounted for 34%,
26% and 9% of office space leases, respectively. Of the total PE investmentsin real estate in Q4 FY 21, the office
segment attracted 71% share, followed by retail at 15% and residential and warehousing with 7% each.

In 2022, office absorption in the top seven cities stood at 38.25 million Sqg. ft.

In thefirst quarter of 2023 (January-March), net office absorption in the top six cities stood at 8.3 million sq. ft.
Fresh real estate launches across India’s top seven cities grabbed a 41% share in the first quarter of 2023 (January-
March), marking an increase from the 26% recorded in the same period four years ago. Out of approximately 1.14
lakh units sold across the top seven citiesin the first quarter of 2023, over 41% were fresh launches.

In the third quarter of 2021 (between July 2021-September 2021), new housing supply stood at ~65,211 units,
increased by 228% Y oY across the top eight cities compared with ~19,865 units launched in the third quarter of
2020.

In 2021-22, the commercia space is expected to record increasing investments. For instance, in October 2021,
Chintels Group announced to invest X 400 crore (US$ 53.47 million) to build a new commercia project in
Gurugram, covering a9.28 lakh square feet area. The transactions of commercial real estate doubled and reached
1.5 million sg. ft. in Q1 of 2023.

According to the Economic Times Housing Finance Summit, about three houses are built per 1,000 people per
year compared with the required construction rate of five houses per 1,000 population. The current shortage of
housing in urban areas is estimated to be ~10 million units. An additional 25 million units of affordable housing
are required by 2030 to meet the growth in the country’s urban population.

The Government of India has been supportive towards the real estate sector. In August 2015, the Union Cabinet
approved 100 Smart City Projects in India. The Government has also raised FDI (Foreign Direct Investment)
limitsfor townships and settlements development projectsto 100%. Real estate projectswithin Special Economic
Zones (SEZ) are also permitted for 100% FDI. Construction isthe third-largest sector in terms of FDI inflow. FDI
in the sector (including construction development & activities) stood at US$ 55.5 billion from April 2000-
December 2022.

Exportsfrom SEZsreached X 7.96 lakh crore (US$ 113.0 billion) in FY 20 and grew ~13.6% from X 7.1 lakh crore
(US$ 100.3 billion) in FY 19. Indian real estate is expected to attract a substantial amount of FDI in the next two
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yearswith US$ 8 hillion capital infusion by FY 22. As of December 31, 2022, Indiaformally approved 425 SEZs.

In the first-half of 2021, India registered investments worth US$ 2.4 billion into real estate assets, a growth of
52% YoY.

Share of the top listed developers in the Indian residential market is expected to increase to 29% in FY 24, from
25% in FY 21, driven by a strong pipeline for residential project launch.

Between July 2021-September 2021, a total of 55,907 new housing units were sold in the eight micro marketsin
India (59% Y oY growth).

In 2022, housing sales in the NCR surged 67% to reach 58,460 units compared with the same period last year.
In October 2021, Chintels Group announced to invest 2400 crore (US$ 53.47 million) to build anew commercial
project in Gurugram, covering a 9.28 lakh square feet area.

Government of India’s Housing for All initiative is expected to bring US$ 1.3 trillion investments in the housing
sector by 2025. Since 2019, 122.69 lakh houses have been sanctioned and 71.57 houses have been completed and
delivered to urban poor under the Pradhan Mantri Awas Y ojana-Urban (PMAY -U).

The scheme is expected to push affordable housing and construction in the country and give a boost to the real
estate sector. On July 09, 2020, Union Cabinet approved the development of Affordable Rental Housing
Complexes (AHRCs) for urban migrants and poor as a sub-scheme under PMAY -U.

In October 2021, the RBI announced to keep benchmark interest rate unchanged at 4%, giving a major boost to
the real estate sector in the country. The low home loan interest rates regime is expected to drive the housing
demand and increase sales by 35-40% in the festive season in 2021.

Government has also released draft guidelines for investment by Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITS) in non-
residential segment.

The Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs has recommended all the states to consider reducing stamp duty of
property transactionsin abid to push real estate activity, generate more revenue and aid economic growth.

In July 2021, the Securities and Exchange Board of Indialowered the minimum application value for Real Estate
Investment Trusts from % 50,000 (US$ 610.7) to X 10,000-15,000 (US$ 122.13-183.2) to make the market more
accessible to small and retail investors.

MARKET OUTLOOK

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has given its approval for the Real Estate Investment Trust
(REIT) platform, which will allow all kind of investorsto invest in the Indian real estate market. It would creste
an opportunity worth % 1.25 trillion (US$ 19.65 hillion) in the Indian market in the coming years. Responding to
an increasingly well-informed consumer base and bearing in mind the aspect of globalisation, Indian real estate
developers have shifted gears and accepted fresh challenges. The most marked change has been the shift from
family-owned businesses to that of professionally managed ones. Real estate developers, in meeting the growing
need for managing multiple projects across cities, are also investing in centralised processes to source material
and organise manpower and hiring qualified professionals in areas like project management, architecture and
engineering.

The residential sector is expected to grow significantly, with the central government aiming to build 20 million
affordable houses in urban areas across the country by 2022, under the ambitious Pradhan Mantri Awas Y ojana
(PMAY) scheme of the Union Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs. Expected growth in the number of housing
unitsin urban areas will increase the demand for commercia and retail office space.

The current shortage of housing in urban areasis estimated to be ~10 million units. An additional 25 million units
of affordable housing are required by 2030 to meet the growth in the country’s urban population.

The growing flow of FDI in Indian rea estate is encouraging increased transparency. Developers, in order to
attract funding, have revamped their accounting and management systems to meet due diligence standards. Indian
real estate is expected to attract a substantial amount of FDI in the next two years with US$ 8 billion capital
infusion by FY 22.

(Source: Indian Real Estate Industry, Indian Brand Equity Foundation (IBEF))
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OVERVIEW OF FACADE AND FENESTRATION INDUSTRY IN INDIA

The Indiafacade market size reached US$ 2,855.4 Million in 2023. Looking forward, IMARC Group expectsthe
market to reach US$ 5,431.9 Million by 2032, exhibiting a growth rate (CAGR) of 7.18% during 2024-2032. The
increasing construction activities, rising number of commercial spaces, and the growing number of remodeling
and upgradation projects represent some of the key factors driving the market

(Source: India Facade Market Report, IMARC Group)

In recent years, the globa facade market has experienced a notable surge in profitability, propelled by the
increasing demand for alternative electricity sources in both commercial and residential constructions. This
growth can be attributed to advancements in technology, particularly the emergence of energy-efficient facade
materials. Consequently, promising opportunities lie ahead for the market, buoyed by the robust pace of
construction activities worldwide.

Facades seamlessly blend aesthetic appeal with superior performance in a unique manner unmatched by other
construction systems. This characteristic is expected to significantly drive product demand in the forthcoming
years.

A key factor anticipated to propel the facade industry is the imperative to curtail heating and air conditioning
expenses, striving for energy efficiency. This cost-cutting trend is projected to foster sustainable product
development over the forecast period.

Thesurgein popularity of green buildings necessitates high-transparency glass, facilitating light penetration while
maintaining heat resistance. The forecast period is expected to witness an uptick in the application of high-
performance facades focused on energy conservation and solar control, delivering substantial economic and
ecological benefits. This shift has spurred demand for triple-glazed facades, boasting alower U-value compared
to their double-glazed counterparts.

Presently, the industry is dominated by classic designs exuding arigid and elegant appearance. However, modern
facades utilizing advanced lightweight materials are anticipated to exhibit significant growth in the years ahead.
Benefits such as resilience against adverse weather conditions and detection of unwanted intrusions are among
the primary reasons for the remarkable growth of modern facades during the forecast period.

In India, the facade cladding industry is undergoing a transformative phase concerning functionality and
performance parameters. Adherence to stringent energy and quality standards, coupled with technological
advancements, has empowered architects and designers to express their preferences and ideologies in distinctive
and more accessible ways than before. These norms and technological strides have led to:

1. Development of robust, energy-efficient, innovative, and adaptabl e facade systems like Back Ventilated
Facade System, Double Skin Facade System, Louvers Facade Systems, and Energy-Efficient Facade
Cladding Systems.

2. Introduction of innovative cladding materials such as Exterior Grade HPL Compact Laminates, Glass
Fibre Reinforced Concrete, Metal Claddings (Zinc, Copper, Aluminum, and Steel), Polycarbonate
Panels, Fibreglass Reinforced Plastics, and Clay Tiles. Architects now must consider not only technical
aspects but also design elements that enhance aesthetic appeal and exclusivity while ensuring energy
efficiency.

The spending patterns of Indian consumers concerning their homes have witnessed a shift. Presently, Indian
consumers prioritize both cost-effectiveness and value, willing to invest in robust, aesthetic, uniquely designed,
and durable products.

The Indian fenestration industry is evolving gradually, driven by a changing and more experimental generation of
end-users seeking revolutionary, non-traditional materials, new designs, colors, and energy-efficient elementsfor
their homes and offices. Traditional materials like timber are being swiftly replaced by engineered products and
thermoplastics like PV C resin, with uPV C gaining traction in the Indian market. Architects and interior designers
recognizethe potential of these materialsin reducing air conditioning costs, driving adiscernibleyet steady market
expansion.
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DIFFERENT TYPES OF BUILDING FACADE SYSTEMS

1.

Steel Facade Systems:
Lightweight steel-filled walls have become a prevalent replacement for traditional inner blockwork sheetsin
both steel-framed and concrete buildings. Various facade systems can be affixed to thesefiller walls.

Light Steel Infill Walls:
Light steel wallsin a steel-framed building come in two primary types:

- Light steel infill walls spanning between floors or between floors and edge beams.
- Panelized systems positioned outside the lab edges, attached at specific discrete points.

The preference for lightweight steel fill wallsis due to the simplicity of installation and the ability to provide
custom-cut C sections according to project dimensions. Thisinnovation has been a significant development
in the past decade. These walls, made of C sections, span between 2.4 and 5 meters between floors and are
designed to withstand wind pressures on the building facade and the weight of the specific coating system

applied.

Aluminum Composite Panels (ACP):

ACP refersto flat panels with a thermoplastic core sandwiched between two aluminum sheets. Widely used
for exterior cladding of buildings, ACP is favored for its remarkable rigidity and strength despite being
lightweight. It offers versatility in color options and can mimic various materials like wood or marble. ACP
finds applications not only in building exteriors but also in coatings, partitions, false ceilings, and more. The
sheets come in varying thicknesses and are coated with PV DF for a superior finish.

Double-Skin Facade Systems:

Originating in northern Europe, double-skin facades comprise two glasswalls separated by acavity, primarily
facing south. They are designed to reduce a building's energy consumption. Shading devices are typically
installed within the cavity. These facades have multiple variations in layout, creating a thermal buffer zone
and passive solar gainsthat aid in reducing heat loss in winter.

Brick Slip Systems:

Modern bricks can be manufactured in the form of brick planks attached to supporting steel sheets or
composite panels. This lightweight system allows for quick installation, and mortar may not be necessary.
The brick sheets can be stacked verticaly, alowing for creative architectural effects, and their weather
resistance relies on the backing material.

Precast Concrete Panels:

Masonry facades are established using natural stone panels or prefabricated concrete panels placed at floor
heights. Stainless steel support brackets and restriction pins are employed for stability. The thickness of
manually placed stone varies based on wind load and stone tensile strength. Continuous areas of masonry
siding exhibit low air permeability, controlled with careful detailing at interfaces and penetrations.

Steel and Glass Facades:
Steel and glass synergies are frequently seen in multi-storey building facades and roofs. Glass panels are
typically supported by vertical steel elements separate from the main structural frame.

Insulated Wall Panels:

These are sandwich panelswith composite metal cladding or concrete panels with insulation between internal
and external elements. Steel-faced insulated panels are common in low-rise, single-storey industrial and
commercia buildings. Various insulating materials are available, and careful selection is necessary to meet
functional and performance requirements.

Curtain Walling:

Curtain wallsare light metallic or glazed cladding systems supported directly by a structural framework. They
can mimic a monolithic coating system by attaching stone plates or large tiled fascias. These systems offer
strength, an eco-friendly environment inside buildings, and reduced energy consumption.

The facade construction process, though costly (often accounting for up to 35% of total construction costs),
is deemed worthwhile due to the significant contributions it makes to energy cost reduction and building
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longevity. In the current construction landscape, sustainability is paramount, and achieving sustainable
structures requires making informed choices regarding materials, opting for those that reduce environmental
impact in the long run, such as clay, argemax, and wood.

KEY DEMAND DRIVERS OF THE INDUSTRY
Prospectsin Facade Materials Market in Asia Pacific:

The construction industry in Asia Pacific has been exhibiting a robust Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR).
This growth, propelled by rapid expansion in the industrial sector, positions the region as a significant market for
facade materials. Emerging nations like India, China, and Southeast Asia are anticipated to present the most
lucrative opportunities in the forthcoming years. Moreover, the governments in the Asia Pacific region are
enacting stringent regulations to encourage the use of eco-friendly materials, attracting investorsto capitalize on
these opportunities.

Global Capital Inflow and Real Estate Transformation in India:

Theevolving real estate landscapein Indiaholds significant implicationsfor the real estate investment community.
The year 2018 marked a pivota phase for the realty market, driven by policy changes such as demonetization,
RERA, and REITsin 2016, followed by GST in 2017. Global capital inflow into Indian real estateis set to expand
substantially, especially in emerging economies, catalyzed by world population growth and increasing GDP per
capita. Collaboration with governments is becoming increasingly important for real estate developers to revamp
their business models and ensure project compl etion within stipulated deadlines.

Transformation of Office Sector and REIT Impact:

The listing of Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITS) is set to transform the office sector, enabling builders to
secure funds more easily for building projects. REITs are expected to attract smaller investors with minimal risk
appetite, contributing to increased funding in the office sector. The rise of REITs will influence developers to
either corporatize or face potential takeovers by larger counterparts.

Trends Shaping the Real Estate Sector:

The real estate sector is withessing an increase in industry consolidation due to the surge in developers, projects,
and a lack of customers. Competition for prime assets is intensifying, fueled by new wealth from emerging
economies. The affordable housing segment is significantly impacted, with plans to build over one crore houses
in rural India by 2019, supported by cheaper sources of finance. The real estate investment community needs to
adapt to these trends and ensure they possess the necessary capabilities to navigate the evolving real estate

landscape.

Emerging Trendsin Real Estate Investment:

With shifting trends in the rea estate sector, people are increasingly considering investments on a smaller scale.
Real estate investment, even on asmall scale, continuesto be areliable means of generating cash flow and building
wealth. The evolving dynamics of the real estate market are compelling individuals to explore investment
opportunities at various levels.

DIFFERENT TYPES OF WINDOWSIN THE MARKET
1. Aluminium Bi-fold Windows:

Aluminium bi-fold windows stand out as a prevalent choice for residential settings due to their versatile
design, capable of swinging in and out, opening to one side or both sides, and even accommodating a 90-
degree corner, depending on the specific model chosen. Notably, their effortless cleaning and maintenance
features contribute to their popularity. The conventional charm of aluminium bi-fold windows is undeniably
captivating and adds a visually appealing element to any space.

2. Aluminium Stacking Windows:
Known by various names such as folding windows, folding-sliding windows, or concertina windows, this
particular window style encompasses the entire vertical expanse of a wall, providing an unobstructed

panoramic view of the surroundings. Comprising multiple panels, typicaly ranging from 3 to 10, these
windows elegantly fold upon one another when opened. Originating as a modern-day innovation, they prove
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to be anideal choice for individuals residing in spacious homes with ample room to spare. For those seeking
to imbue their living spaces with an air of refinement, transforming even modest residences into sanctuaries
of pure sophistication and modern elegance, aluminium stacking windows emerge as the window solution of
choice.

Aluminium Tilt-Turn Windows:

Aluminium tilt-turn windows, also referred to as windows with a unique dual functionality, can either open
at an angle from their top portion or swing wide open akin to a door. Their distinctive feature of
accommodating both horizontal and vertical movements renders them particularly suitable for residences
characterized by limited space and petite balconies. The versatility of these windows not only facilitates
efficient ventilation but also complements the spatial constraints often encountered in smaller homes.

Aluminium Sliding Windows:

Aluminium sliding windows, characterized by their horizontal opening mechanism as they smoothly dide
from one side to another, embody a minimalistic design that seamlessly complements various home settings.
Particularly well-suited for residences lacking extensive balcony or backyard spaces, these windows stand
out for their sleek appearance. Renowned for their stylish aesthetic, they introduce a sense of versatility and
contemporary design elements into any home. Opting for glazing on these windows can enhance insulation
and energy efficiency, contributing to a reduction in electricity bills. Enthusiasts of this window type will
find adiverserange of aluminium sliding window options readily available in the home improvement market,
catering to different preferences and styles.

Aluminium Casement Windows:

An auminium casement window distinguishes itself as a casement window featuring frames and hinges
crafted from aluminium. Affixed to itsframe through one or more side hinges, these windows gracefully open
outward, presenting an inviting opportunity to welcome the refreshing morning or evening breeze into the
living space. The growing trend of embracing aluminium casement windows is evident, with an increasing
number of individuals recognizing them not only for their ease of cleaning and aesthetic appeal but also asa
desirable addition to their homes.

(Rest of the page is intentionally left blank)
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OUR BUSINESS

Some of the information in the following discussion, including information with respect to our plans and
strategies, contain forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. You should read “Forward
Looking Statements” on page 18 for a discussion of the risks and uncertainties related to those statements. Our
actual results may differ materially from those expressed in or implied by these forward-looking statements. Also
read ‘“Risk Factors” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” beginning on pages 26 and 198 for a discussion of certain factors that may affect our business,
financial condition or results of operations. Our financial year ends on March 31 of each year, and referencesto
a particular financial year are to the twelve months ended March 31 of that year. Unless otherwise indicated or
the context otherwise requires, in this chapter, references to “Company, “Our Company”, “we” or “us” mean
Aluwind Architectural Limited.

Investors are accordingly cautioned against placing undue reliance on such information in making an investment
decision and should consult their own advisors and evaluate such information in the context of the Restated
Financial Satements and other information relating to our business and operations included in this Prospectus.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Our company was incorporated as “Aluwind Architectural Private Limited” on April 22, 2003, as a private limited
company under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant™ to Certificate of Incorporation issued by
Registrar of Companies, Mumbai (“RoC”) with the object to take over the business of M/s. Alu-Wind Industires
[a Partnership Firm, between Mr. Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra& Mr. Rajesh Kabra] and further to run the
taken over Business. Our Company was converted into a public limited company pursuant to shareholders
resolution passed at the extraordinary general meeting of our Company held on October 4, 2023, and the name of
our Company was changed to “Aluwind Architectural Limited” and a Fresh Certificate of Incorporation dated
January 03, 2024, was issued by the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai. The Corporate Identification Number of
our Company is U74140DL2015PL C286390. The company has its registered office at 604, Palm Spring Centre,
Link Road, Maad (West), Mumbai City, MUMBAI, Maharashtra, India, 400064.

With an operating history spanning over years, the company commenced its business operations as a family
venture. Today, the company operatesin the segment of manufacturing and installing adiverse range of aluminum
products. Thisincludes windows, doors, curtain walls, cladding, and glazing systems, all meticulously crafted to
meet the unique needs of architects, consultants, builders, ingtitutions, and corporations.

At the helm of the company stands Mr. Murli Manohar Kabra, the Managing Director, whose knowledge and
practical experience in managing large projects have played a pivotal role in guiding the organization. Thanks to
his leadership and expertise, the company has achieved numerous milestones in this industry, consistently
delivering quality products and servicesto its clients.

Operating from a cutting-edge 45,000-square-foot facility in Pune, Maharashtra, this tech-driven company
specializesin aniche product segment. With infrastructure and advanced machinery, including a powder coating
facility and CNC machines, it ensures precision in manufacturing aluminum products like windows, doors, and
curtain walls. The facility is strategically organized with distinct sub-divisions for manufacturing, testing, and
storage, ensuring an efficient production process. Specialized machines, such as a two-part pump for glazing,
contribute to the company's unique offerings. Additionally, it maintainsadisplay center and goods storage premise
in Pune. Rigorous quality checks at multiple stages underscore the company's commitment to meeting the highest
standards.

On the backing of this infrastructure, the company has successfully expanded its market presence, with products
sold in cities across India, including Mumbai, Pune, Bangalore, Hyderabad, among others, the company
demonstrates a widespread reach and a commitment to serving customers across the nation.

Expanding upon this foundation, the company has successfully executed numerous projects over the yearsand is
presently managing a diverse portfolio of ongoing projects. These achievements reflect the company's
commitment to excellence, continuous growth, and its dedication to delivering outstanding results for its clients.

The company is dedicated to achieving excellence in product quality and has recently solidified its commitment
through a strategic collaboration with Eternia, a cutting-edge product line from Hindalco (Aditya Birla Group).
This collaboration positions the company as anchor partner for Eternia products in the MMRDA region. By
aligning with this latest offering, the company not only reinforces its dedication to maintaining high-quality
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standards but also looks forward to establish itself asaplayer in delivering custom tailored solutionsto its clientele
in the fenestration industry.

The company aspires to lead the fagade and fenestration industry, aiming to be at the forefront by delivering
elegant products that contribute to enhancing the city's skyline. With a clear vision, it strives to redefine
architectural landscapes and set new standards for aesthetic and functional excellence in the industry.

OUR VISION

To be the most trusted name and become the market leader in the Facade and Fenestration industry across India
by delivering high quality and innovative products on time. We are Committed to Customer Satisfaction and
Value creation for al our stakeholders.

OUR MISSION

Aluwind is committed to exceeding Customer expectation, crafting architectural masterpieces and fostering the
culture of excellence and innovation. While meeting our commitments, Aluwind is striving to become a vendor
of choice in the Facade and Fenestration industry. We aspire to bring growth and well-being for al our
stakeholders.

OUR VALUES

Safety: Prioritizing the safety of our employees, communities, and the environment at large is paramount.
Quality: Delivering products that meet the highest standards in quality of material and its performance.

Sustainability: Attaining operational efficiencies and building an ecosystem that minimizes environmental
impact and utilizes resources responsibly.

Innovation: Embracing new technologies and approaches to improve efficiency, safety, and quality of products.

Commitment: Committed to excellence and continuous improvement in al aspects of the business and its
responsibility.

(Thisrest of the page isintentionally left blank)
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JOURNEY OF THE COMPANY

Aluwind incorporated asa Private Limited
Company and took over the business of
M/s. Aluwind Industries, a partnership
firm

2007

PAN India’s biggest work — Mantri
Cosmos (Hyderabad) — worth INR 7
crore

2015

Tied up with Eternia Window Systems
and received its Eternia Project Marian
Park

2022

Received India 500 SME Awards for its
outstanding contribution in quality and
excellence, in realm of customer
satisfaction, impact on society through
service and management

2024

Keyseventsand Milestonesin the history of our Company

*—0 00 0 ©

2003

Successfully delivered a significant
project valued at approx. 3 crores in
Kayaninagar for Vascon Engineers in
2007. Subsequently, accomplished
multiple projects for Vascon Engineers
totalling approx 21 crores between 2007
and 2009

2013

Bagged 1st prestigious order from L& T
Realty Ltd in 2015. Series of new work
order received from L& T during 2015-
2022 — cumulative value ~ Rs 65 crs

2020

Aluwind receives its first biggest
work order — Birla Vanyaworth over
INR 20 crores

2023

Conversion of the company from
private to public limited company

(Thisrest of the page isintentionally left blank)
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OUR KEY OFFERINGS

Since its establishment, Aluwind has undertaken and successfully concluded numerous projects. Our diverse
portfolio of products- tailored to architectural aluminium needs- encompasses an extensive array, catering to a
wide spectrum of requirements. This includes but is not limited to aluminium profiles, glass facades, doors,
windows, curtain walls, and structural glazing solutions. Our commitment to excellence and innovation allows us
to deliver quality products that meet the unique demands of modern architecture and construction projects.

1. Systemized Doors& Windows

Our company excels in crafting innovative architectural
solutions, notably in the form of systemized doors &
windows, which are sometime also laboratory tested to
international market standards based on clientele
requirements. These system windows seamlessly blend
functionality with aesthetics, allowing for versatile space
division and efficient natural light penetration along with
maintaining high grade structural elements for long term
usability. Each element is meticulously designed and
manufactured using high-grade aluminium profiles,
ensuring durability and a sleek, modern finish. These
systemized windows & doors serve as a hallmark of our
commitment to providing customizable solutions that
enhance the overall ambiance and usability of any space.
Ranging from economic to premium to ultra-premium
windows, we provide diverse range of products fitting into
our clients requirements.

2. Curtain Walls

Curtain walls represent a pinnacle of architectural
ingenuity, and our company takes pride in crafting curtain
wall systems. These walls seamlessly blend aesthetic
elegance with structural robustness, providing an iconic
exterior to modern buildings. Utilizing high grade
aluminium profiles and advanced glazing techniques, our
curtain walls ensure energy efficiency and environmental
sustainability. They create a striking visual impact while
allowing an abundance of natural light, fostering a
harmonious interaction between the building and its
surroundings. With numerous cost engineering options
available, these curtain walls fit into the budget and
provide quick and elegant solution and value for money
for our clients.

3. Structural Glazing

At our company, we excel in engineering sophisticated
structural glazing systems that redefine architectural
possibilities. Structural glazing involves the use of high-
performance glass bonded to the aluminium structure with
specialized sealants and adhesives, presenting a seamless,
frameless appearance. This technique allows for
uninterrupted expanses of glass, optimizing views and
natural light while maintaining exceptional structural
integrity. Our approach combines precision engineering,
top-tier materials, and expertise to create iconic and
contemporary facades that merge design brilliance with
engineering excellence. These factory made glazing
panels offer high degree of quality and an easier solution
to complicated facades.
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Unitized Glazing

In the realm of engineering at its peak, where glass has
revolutionized architectural facade, our company
specializes in an architectural modern product. These
unitized glazing product are a testament to our dedication
to elegance and functionality, providing a transparent and
inviting facade that entices customers. These pre-
fabricated factory made panels are meticulously quality
designed and manufactured in factory and transported
with our in house logistics system on site. This kind of
glazing reduces all the on-site construction hassle and
complications and installation is very quick on site to
match the clients’ time requirement. Crafted with
premium materials and employing advanced techniques,
these unitized are of glazing technique in construction
sector.

Spider Glazing

Innovative and visually striking, our company specializes
in crafting suspended glazing, often referred to as spider
glazing. This cutting-edge system utilizes slender,
stainless steel point-fixings resembling spider legs to
suspend glass panels. The result is a stunning, modern
fagade with minimal structural obstructions, providing a
sense of openness and transparency. Our suspended
glazing solutions are meticulously designed and
engineered to ensure not only an aesthetically pleasing
look but also exceptional strength and durability. This
represents our commitment to pushing design boundaries
and offering solutions that redefine architectural
aesthetics.

Aluminium Composite Panel

A cornerstone of our product lineup, aluminum composite
panels (ACP) reflect our dedication to blending versatility
with aesthetics. These panels consist of a composite
structure, typically comprising two aluminum sheets
bonded to a non-aluminum core. ACPs offer a range of
design and colour shade options, enabling architects and
designers to achieve a variety of looks, from modern to
rustic look. Our ACPs are crafted using high-quality
materials, ensuring durability, weather resistance, and
ease of installation. These panels symbolize our
commitment to providing adaptable and visually
appealing architectural solutions.

Sky Light

Sky lights, a hallmark of our architectural offerings, are
our dedication to providing natural illumination and
elegance solutions. These roof-mounted windows or
panels allow an abundance of daylight to infuse interiors,
creating a vibrant and uplifting atmosphere. Our skylights
are meticulously designed to maximize energy efficiency
while accentuating architectural aesthetics. Utilizing
high-quality materials and advanced glazing technologies,
we engineer skylights that not only enhance the aesthetic
appeal of a space but also promote a sustainable and
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energy-conscious environment along with providing a
good weather tightness to avoid water ingress to our
internal side of the building. Our sky lights stand as a
testament to our commitment to innovative design and
enhancing the connection between indoor and outdoor
spaces.

Railing & Balustrades

Railing & Balustrades exemplify a safety & reliable
solution to our clients. Weather be it commercial office
space for employees and business owners or residential
house occupants, these structures are highly structuraly
tested to adverse effects of weather to offer a sound high
tested system. These structures are either supported by
aluminium or stainless steel vertical post or anchored to
the building structure and glassis held in between the post
or with seamless horizontal aluminium system where
glass is cantileved. Our Railing & Balustrade Systems
ensures longevity and weather resistance.

Canopy

At Aluwind, we specidize in creating canopies that go
beyond mere architectural features, becoming elegant
expressions of form and function. Our canopies are crafted to
provide a perfect harmony of shade, shelter, and style,
transforming both outdoor and indoor spaces. Whether
envisioning a modern, minimalist design or a classic, ornate
structure, our solutions are tailored to unique aesthetic
preferences and practical needs.

Functioning as inviting extensions of your space, our
canopies enhance outdoor lounges, building entrances, and
offer protection against the dust and water. They redefine the
look and feel of your property, making it more inviting,
comfortable, and energy-efficient. Customization options in
materials, colors, and lighting ensure that your canopy
complements existing surroundings or stands out as a
statement piece.

Tailored to suit various architectural styles and preferences,
our canopies are a harmonious blend of design, functionality,
and durability. They symbolize our commitment to enhancing
outdoor spaces while offering protection and visual appeal.

(Thisrest of the page isintentionally left blank)
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OUR BUSINESS PROCESS FLOW:

1 Marketing and

3 Detail Design

Lead Generation

5 Coating
Process

Site Installation 9

OUR BUSINESS PROCESS CAN BE EXPLAINED ASFOLLOWS:
Marketing and L ead Generation:

We employ a proactive approach to generate inquiries and establish a stable order pipeline. Our Head of
Department conducts weekly review meetings to devise strategies for targeting specific clients and areas based
on the prevailing market conditions. Notably, our business thrives on an impressive 80% repeat client rate,
indicative of our strong, enduring client relationships. This stems from our deeply ingrained value culture, which
dictates that we only make commitments when we are confident and capabl e of delivering ordersas per the client's
specifications and timelines.

Type of client: Builders and Developers, Project Management Companies (PMC’s), Architects and institutional
clients of residential, commercial and institutional properties.
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Mode of acquisition of Clientsand our sales model:

1. New clients are approached by Marketing and Sales Departments of the Company and a lead is generated
based on target clients and specific research.

2. The company approaches to builders and developers when their promotion and advertisements are seen in
print media.

3. Also, many times clients approach the Company when they float new project to apply in tender.

4. Dueto continuing client relationships, many new projects are received from existing clientsaswell for which
aone-to-one negotiation is carried out.

5. Theteam, then, understands the requirements of the potential client based on design, product and/or project
specifications.

6. The Company’s in-house Sales team visits and pitches to the client according to their needs.

7. Once the discussion reaches afina stage, a tender is released by the clients, for which the Company either
goes for offline or online bidding.

8. The negotiations are carried out through offline bidding process that involves Email negotiations, one-to-one
communication, etc. Our contracts are generally obtained through a competitive bidding process which
involves certain prequalification criterialike net worth, experience, capacity and performance, reputation for
quality, safety record, financia strength and bonding capacity and size of previous contracts in similar
projects. In selecting contractors for major projects, customers generally limit the tender to contractors they
have pre-qualified based on these criteria, athough price competitiveness of the bid is the most important
selection criterion.

9. Once the client is on-boarded, the project is completed in different phases as per the agreed terms and
conditions.

For risk associated with our marketing and lead generating avenues kindly refer to risk factor No 6 mentioned in
Section titled ‘Risk Factors’ beginning of page 26 of this Prospectus.

Techno-Commercial Approach with Concept Design:

Our client engagement process includes providing detailed estimates and concept drawings to offer a clear view
of the required product, all within the specified budget. Subsequently, our team engages in value engineering to
tailor the product to the client's architectural requirements without compromising technical parameters while
staying within the client's budget.

Detail Design:

Once awarded aproject, theinitia step isthe detail design stage, where our expert designers create shop drawings
based on the client's specific requirements. These designs undergo scrutiny by expert consultants to ensure they
meet the client's demands and adhere to industry standards.

Material Procurement:

Following the approval of the detail design, the material procurement process begins. Our design team generates
material requirements, which are then reviewed by our store team. This processis facilitated by our ERP system,
which streamlines order placement and stock reservation. Material procurement planning takes into account
supplier turnaround times and project timelines.

Coating Process:

The coating process involves applying the desired colour to the raw auminium, aligning with the client's or

architect's intent. Our quality-focused approach utilizes a thorough 7-tank process to ensure an even and long-
lasting coating on the aluminium surface.

112



Fabrication Process:

After coating, the materials move through the fabrication process, where various operations like cutting, milling,
drilling, and more are performed on the aluminium profiles. Our fabrication line is equipped with CNC cutting
and 4-axis CNC machining, along with pneumatic punching presses, to ensure precise and efficient production.

Assembly Process:

The fabricated components are meticulously assembled by our skilled workforce. Stringent quality checks are
conducted at multiple stages by our production and quality teams. Regular training sessions keep our assembly
team updated to consistently deliver high-quality products.

Dispatch Process:

Our dispatch and in-house logistics team meticulously organizes the assembled panels, marked by a separate
Finished Goods layout. This meticulous approach ensures that our in-house vehicles are optimally utilized while
prioritizing product quality.

Site I nstallation Process:

Our site installation team ensures precise placement of fabricated components, conducting thorough quality
checksfor fit and finish. Safety standards are paramount, with on-site supervisors overseeing the process.

Our Company handles its projects independently i.e. our Company does not engage into sub-contracting for its
projects. All the projects of our Company are undertaken by our Company itself and Our Company only hires
labour, required at project sites for completion of its projects, on contractual basis.

The Company is dependent on third party labour contractorsfor supply of labour, asisageneral industry practice.

For risk associated with respect to Labour Contractors kindly refer to Risk Factor No 5 mentioned in Section
titled ‘Risk Factors’ beginning of page 26 of this Prospectus.

Handing Over Process.
Before project completion, a detailed inspection ensures all components meet specifications. We provide
comprehensive documentation, address client concerns, and prioritize clear communication for a smooth

transition.

CERTAIN KEY OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL METRICS

(< in Lakhs)
Asat Asat Asat Asat
Particulars September | March 31, | March 31, | March 31,

30, 2023 2023 2022 2021
Revenue from Operations (X in Lakhs) 4,136.15 4,886.72 2,898.65 2,128.35
Revenue from Operations growth (%) - 68.59% 36.19% 23.21%
Earnings before Interest, Depreciation, tax and
amortization (EBITDA) (X in Lakhs) 574.14 475.73 185.50 193.48
EBITDA Margin (%) 13.88% 9.74% 6.40% 9.09%
Profit before Tax (PBT) (% in Lakhs) 497.80 359.73 105.87 114.04
PBT Growth (%) 38.38% 239.77% -7.16% 45.90%
PBT Margin (%) 12.04% 7.36% 3.65% 5.36%
Profit after Tax (PAT) (X in Lakhs) 372.83 270.05 78.80 76.92
PAT Growth (%) 38.06% 242.72% 2.44% 30.78%
PAT Margin (%) 9.01% 5.53% 2.72% 3.61%
Debt to Equity Ratio 0.48 0.42 0.45 0.42
Return on Equity (RoE) (%) 19.77% 17.24% 6.38% 7.67%
Return on Capital Employed (RoCE) (%) 24.55% 22.62% 9.74% 14.23%

* All figures are as per Restated Financial Statements
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DETAILSOF TOP TEN CUSTOMERS

List of top 10 customers as a percentage of total revenue from operations of ¥ 2,128.35 Lakhs for the
financial year ending on March 31, 2021 is provided hereinbelow:

Sr. No. Particulars Amount (in Lakhs) % of total revenue
from operations

1 City Corporation Pvt Ltd 349.81 16%

2 Larsen & Toubro Limited 265.84 12%

3 Honeywell Automation India Limited 223.71 11%

4 Hamlet Construction Pvt.Ltd 158.00 7%

5 ABB IndiaLtd. 131.00 6%

6 L&T Parel Project Private Limited 91.94 4%

7 Shapoorji Pallonji & Co. 88.40 4%

8 Bhate & Raje Constrction Co. Pvt. Ltd. 76.01 4%

9 L & T Pard Project LLP 75.26 4%

10 Ratilal Bhagwandas Construction Company 73.74 4%
Total 1,533.71 2%

List of top 10 customers as a percentage of total revenue from operations of ¥ 2,898.65 Lakhs for the
financial year ending on March 31, 2022 is provided hereinbelow:

Sr. No. Particulars Amount (in Lakhs) % of total revenue
from operations

1 Bhate & Raje Contstructions 640.43 22%

2 L& T Parel Project Private Limited 429.09 15%

3 City Corporation Pvt Ltd 279.58 10%

4 Larsen & Toubro Limited 265.88 9%

5 Retail Work 189.93 7%

6 Ratilal Bhagwandas Construction Company 186.45 6%

7 Marian Projects Pvt. Ltd. 140.71 5%

8 Birla Estates Private Limited 117.46 4%

9 Hamlet Construction Pvt.Ltd 102.57 4%

10 ABB IndiaLtd. 86.92 3%
Total 2,439.01 84%

List of top 10 customers as a percentage of total revenue from operations of ¥ 4,886.72 Lakhs for the
financial year ending on March 31, 2023 is provided hereinbelow:

Sr. No. Particulars Amount (in Lakhs) % of total revenue
from operations

1 L& T Seawood Limited 664.32 14%

2 Birla Estates Private Limited 456.21 9%

3 Retail work 333.52 7%

4 Keystone Realtors Pvt. Ltd. 321.43 7%

5 Runwal Developers Pvt.Ltd. 320.09 7%

6 Supreme Heights LLP 304.12 6%

7 Bhate & Raje Contstructions 262.19 5%

8 L& T Parel Project Private Limited 220.83 5%

9 Ratilal Bhagwandas Construction Company 211.69 1%

10 City Reality and Development 185.26 1%
Total 3,279.66 67%
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List of top 10 customer s as a per centage of total revenue from operations of X 4,136.15 L akhsfor the stub
period ending September 30, 2023 is provided hereinbelow:

Sr.No. | Particulars Amount (in Lakhs) | % of total revenue
from operations

1 Birla Estates Private Limited 499.04 12%

2 Retail work 351.51 9%

3 GeraDevelopers Pvt Ltd 327.44 8%

4 L& T Seawood Limited 289.95 7%

5 Gigaplex Estate Private Limited-Non Sez
Division 205.98 5%

6 Larsen & Toubro Limited 184.71 4%

7 Shapoorji Pallonji & Co. 170.92 4%

8 R Retail Ventures Private Limited 158.43 1%

9 Piramal Realty 129.73 3%

10 Runwal Developers Pvt.Ltd. 126.41 3%
Total 2,444.13 59%

(For the above detailsrelating to top ten customers, we have relied upon the certificate dated February 23, 2024,
UDIN — 24171607BKBFRK6452 issued by the Satutory Auditors of the Company i.e., M/s. R Kegjriwal & Co.,
Chartered Accountants)

For risk associated with respect to our customers kindly refer to Risk Factor No 24 mentioned in Section titled
‘Risk Factors’ beginning of page 26 of this Prospectus.

DETAILSOF TOP TEN SUPPLIERS

List of top 10 supplier sasa per centage of total purchasesof ¥ 1,082.52 Lakhsfor thefinancial year ending
on March 31, 2021 is provided hereinbelow:

Sr.No. | Particulars Amount (in Lakhs) | % of total
pur chases
1 Jajoo Architectural Glass Pvt. Ltd 139.78 13%
2 Neelam Metal 115.19 11%
3 Hindalco Ind.Ltd. 51.82 5%
4 Neelam Corpoartion 40.29 4%
5 Ramco Extrusion Pvt. Ltd 37.80 3%
6 Allarch IndiaPvt Ltd 32.33 3%
7 FG Glass Industries Pvt. Ltd 31.20 3%
8 KD Metal 21.54 2%
9 Jindal Aluminium Ltd 10.30 1%
10 Sapphire Glass Solution Pvt. Ltd 7.15 1%
Total 487.40 45%

List of top 10 supplier sasa per centage of total purchasesof X 2,051.52 L akhsfor thefinancial year ending
on March 31, 2022 is provided hereinbelow:

Sr.No. | Particulars Amount (in Lakhs) | % of total
pur chases
1 Hindalco Ind.Ltd. 707.26 34%
2 Fg Glass Industries Pvt. Ltd 158.40 8%
3 Neelam Metal 123.79 6%
4 Neelam Corpoartion 109.16 5%
5 KD Metd 57.54 3%
6 Allarch IndiaPvt Ltd 55.92 3%
7 Jajoo Architectural Glass Pvt. Ltd 55.72 3%
8 Ramco Extrusion Pvt. Ltd 53.32 3%
9 JK coating 45.42 2%
10 Magnumtuff India Pvt Ltd 42.45 2%
Total 1,408.96 69%
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List of top 10 supplier sasa percentage of total purchases of X 3,280.64 Lakhsfor the financial year ending
on March 31, 2023 isprovided hereinbelow:

Sr. No. Particulars Amount (in Lakhs) | % of total
pur chases
1 Hindalco Ind.Ltd. 1438.05 44%
2 Sqjal glassLtd. 163.97 5%
3 Jajoo Architectural Glass Pvt. Ltd 160.87 5%
4 Ramco Extrusion Pvt. Ltd 150.33 5%
5 Magnumtuff India Pvt Ltd 130.33 4%
6 Allarch IndiaPvt Ltd 92.01 3%
7 FG Glass Industries Pvt. Ltd 80.43 2%
8 Sapphire Glass Solution Pvt. Ltd 73.80 2%
9 KD Metd 69.49 2%
10 Neelam Corpoartion 69.49 2%
Total 2,428.78 74%

List of top 10 suppliers as a percentage of total purchases of ¥ 2,276.66 L akhs for the stub period ending
on September 30, 2023 is provided hereinbelow:

Sr. No. Particulars Amount (in Lakhs) % of total
pur chases
1 Hindalco Ind.Ltd. 696.86 30%
2 Sgjal glassLtd. 177.02 8%
3 Jajoo Architectural Glass Pvt. Ltd 173.70 8%
4 Ramco Extrusion Pvt. Ltd 151.75 7%
5 Allarch India Pvt Ltd 77.93 3%
6 Neelam Corpoartion 76.68 3%
7 Jindal Aluminium Ltd 51.40 2%
8 Magnumtuff India Pvt Ltd 36.33 2%
9 Nakoda Coating 31.62 1%
10 Neelam Metal 28.63 1%
Total 1,501.91 66%

(For the above details relating to top ten suppliers, we have relied upon the certificate dated February 23, 2024,
UDIN - 24171607BKBFRK6452 issued by the Statutory Auditors of the Company i.e., M/s. R Kejriwal & Co.,
Chartered Accountants)

OUR COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS
Experienced L eadership Backed by a Skilled Professional Team

Our sustained business growth can be attributed to the extensive industry knowledge and expertise of our senior
management, who collectively possess hands-on experience of more than two decades. Their experience has
played a pivotal role in shaping and executing our business strategies and operational processes. By leveraging
the market acumen of our promoters and senior management, we adeptly identify market opportunities and tailor
products and services to cater to specific customer segments. This collective wealth of market experience has
significantly contributed to our business’s growth trajectory and sustained profitability. For further details of our
management team, see “Our Management” on page 135 of this Prospectus.

Robust Financial Performance: Maintaining Profitability through COVID-19 Challenges

We have demonstrated robust financial performance with a consistent track record of profitability, even amidst
the challenges posed by the COVID-19 pandemic. For the six months ending September 30, 2023, and the
Financial Y ears 2023, 2022, and 2021, our profit after tax stood at ¥372.83 Lakhs, 3270.05 Lakhs, X78.80 Lakhs,
and X76.92 Lakhs, respectively. Additionally, we maintained a strong EBITDA of 3580.96 Lakhs, ¥489.63 Lakhs,
%211.98 Lakhs, and %204.42 Lakhs, respectively, for the corresponding periods. Despite the prolonged impact of
COVID-19 in the Financial Year 2021, our profitability was higher by 30.78% compared to the preceding
Financial Year 2020. To enhance profitability, we have implemented measures such as optimizing production
facility utilization, undertaking process improvement initiatives, and refining planning and execution strategies.
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Moreover, this strategy facilitates comprehensive customer service, boosting revenue per customer while
maintaining cost-effectiveness and profitability.

Fostering L ongstanding Client Relationships and Builder's Frater nity Connectivity

Since our company’s incorporation, we have been actively involved in a multitude of projects spanning
Residential, Commercial, and Institutional building segments, develop by various builders/devel opers. Our strong
client relationships are of utmost importance to us. We firmly believe that our motivated team, combined with
efficient work processes, synergize to deliver exceptional client satisfaction. Our commitment to quality work and
timely project execution has significantly contributed to strengthening existing client bonds and winning new
projects. Many of our clients have entrusted us with repeat orders, a testament to our performance. Having a
clientele that includes some of India’s leading real estate developers groups like L&T, Birla, etcs, allows us to
competitively bid for and secure adiverse range of projects. Additionally, our company boasts strong connectivity
within the builder’s fraternity, further empowering our ability to secure projects and maintain fruitful
collaborations. Our consistent emphasis on client satisfaction has been pivotal in our ability to successfully bid
for and secure new projects.

Widening Horizons. Unmatched Excellencein Aluminium Solutions

Our company, a pioneer in fabricating and installing aluminium windows, doors, Curtain Walls, Cladding &
Glazing Systems, boasts an extensive market reach. Catering to Architects, Consultants, Builders, Institutions &
Corporates, we transcend geographical boundaries to deliver superior aluminium solutions.

Crafting Spaceswith Precision and Excellencein Aluminium

Our expertise in fabricating and installing aluminium windows, doors, Curtain Walls, Cladding & Glazing
Systems ensures unmatched quality, elevating architectural visionsto reality.

OUR BUSINESS STRATEGIES

1. Organic Growth;
Our business strategy emphasizes organic growth through continual innovation and improvement. By
investing in research, development, and honing our in-house capabilities, we aim to organically expand our
product offerings, customer base, and market reach. This approach enables us to adapt to changing market
dynamics and sustain a steady, controlled growth trajectory.

2. Brownfield Expansion:
Opting for brownfield expansion aigns with our strategic goal to maximize operational efficiency and
optimize resources. By strategically utilizing existing infrastructure and enhancing production capacities, we
minimize costs and accelerate our growth trajectory. This expansion approach ensures a seamless transition
into higher production levels and allows us to meet increasing market demands effectively.

3. Tie-up with World-renowned Vendors:
Collaborating with world-renowned vendors is a cornerstone of our strategy to ensure the highest quality
materials and components for our products. These partnerships enable us to integrate cutting-edge
technologies and superior materials into our offerings, enhancing the value proposition for our customers.
Thetie-up strengthens our product portfolio and positions us as areliable and quality-focused industry player.

4. Expansion of Eternia Brand:
Expanding the Eternia brand is a key aspect of our growth strategy, focusing on establishing a strong brand
presence. By leveraging the trust and credibility associated with the Eternia brand, we seek to diversify our
product line and capture a larger share of the market. The expansion strategy includes introducing new
product variants, improving brand visibility, and ensuring consistent quality to resonate with a broader
customer base.

5. Geographical Expansion:
We recognize the potential for expansion and are considering regionslike Karnataka, Gujarat, and Telangana.
We plan to create a superior value proposition, a strong go-to-market strategy, competitive profit structures,
and a high market share before expanding. The demand for more pleasant and naturally lit workspaces, along
with the increasing need for office space beautification, supports this expansion strategy. Additionally, we
are exploring the export of our manufactured panelsto leverage our manufacturing excellence and experience.
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Product Expansion:

Considering the significant growth potential in the facade systems market, we aim to expand our current
facade business. The facade systems market includes a range of products such as cladding materials and
curtain walls, offering benefits like improved thermal and sound insulation, as well as increased natural
lighting. The growing demand for sustainable building solutions, including energy-efficient facade systems,
aligns with our expansion goals.

Marketing Strategy

Our marketing strategy centers on fostering customer loyalty and expanding our client base. With substantial
business originating from our existing customer base in the facade and windows verticals, we prioritize
encouraging repeat orders. To achieve this, we engage with personalized post-purchase messaging, leaving a
positive, lasting impression and keeping our brand top-of-mind for re-purchases. Additionally, we
strategically incentivize second purchases through discounts and promotions. Simultaneously, for new client
acquisition, we'retargeting thetop buildersin the construction industry, showcasing our expertisein windows
and our innovative site/factory management system. We are also assessing the market viability of potential
client segments and actively participating in community events, exhibitions, forums, and industry events to
generate new leads and build relationships. This combined strategy ensures strong customer retention and
new client acquisition, positioning us for sustained growth.

SWOT ANALYSIS

Strengths Weakness
Experienced management with industry expertise Dependency on Raw Materials
Customer goal centric-customised strategies Limited Personalization at higher scalability

Optimum use of technological infrastructure

Strong customer relationship

Opportunities Threats

Overall market growth and expansion Compstitive risks from established players and new
entrants

Cost and business process optimisation due to

technological advancements Raw Material Price Volatility

Strategic Partnerships for customer acquisition Technological Disruption

PLANT AND MACHINERY

The manufacturing unit of our Company is located at Shree Vardhan, Gat no. 374, Opp. SBI, Pune-Aurangabad
Highway, Koregaon Bhima, Shirur, Pune, Maharashtra — 412216.

Currently, our manufacturing facility operates on semi automation. We intend to optimize our fabrication
processes and minimize manual intervention by embarking on a modernization and upgrade initiative. As on the
date of this Prospectus, the list of machinery installed at our Company’s facility is a under:

Sr. No Description Process Quantity
1 CNC Machine Machining 01
2 Double head cutting machine Cutting 03
3 Single Head cutting machine Cutting 01
4 Drilling Machine Machining 05
5 Punching Machine Machining 03
6 Copy Router Machining 02
7 End Miling Machining 02
8 Injection Molding Plastic Moulding 01
9 Powder Coating Booth Powder Coating 01
10 Power Press Pressing 01
11 Ark Wielding 200amp + 350 amp 1ph | Welding 02
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12 Compressor Utility Machinery 03
13 Slit Machine Aluminium dlitting 01
14 Glazing Machine Facade Glazing 01
15 Asian Dryer Air Dryer 01
16 EQT Crane Material Handling 01
17 Powder Coating Booth Powder Spraying 01
18 Oven Powder Coating section baking 01
19 Generator 82.5 KVA Power Generation 01

(For the above details relating to installed machinery we have relied upon the certificate dated 10 January 2024,
issued by Mr. Prakash M Shrivastav)

For risk associated with our Manufacturing Facility kindly refer to Risk Factor No. 21 mentioned in Section titled
‘Risk Factors’ beginning of page 26 of this Prospectus.

CAPACITY AND CAPACITY UTILIZATION

Ason the date of this Prospectus, the company has atotal installed capacity of 200,224 sg. Mts. Please find herein
below the year wise installed capacity and its utilization details:

Particulars September 30, 2023 March 31, March 31, March 31,
(Half-year) 2023 2022 2021
Installed Capacity (sg. mtrs) 100,112 160,368 160,368 160,368
Capacity Utilization 55,149 65,378 38,747 28,058
Capacity Utilization (%) 55%* 41% 24% 17%

* Not Annualized

(For the above details relating to installed capacity and its utilization we have relied upon the certificate dated
10 January 2024, issued by Mr. Prakash M Shrivastav)

DETAILSOF COMPLETED PROJECTS:

Total Projects successfully implemented/completed by the Company in the past three years and stub period are as
follows:

Details of projects Apr-Sep’23 | FY 2023 | FY 2022 | FY
(Stub 2021
Period)

No. of projects completed during the period 30 44 19 40

EXPORT AND EXPORT OBLIGATIONS

As on the date of filing of this Prospectus, our Company does not export and also does not have any export
obligation.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Our work forceisacritical factor in maintaining quality and longevity, which strengthen our competitive position.
As of September 30, 2023, we had 178 permanent employees. We train our employees on a regular basis to
increase the level of operational excellence, improve productivity and maintain compliance standards on quality
and safety.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our employees (Permanent and Temporary) by department:

Sr. No Department Number of Employees
1 Accounts & Finance 7
2. Admin & HR 8
3. Planning & MIS 9
4. Production and Dispatch 61
5. Project and Site Management 87
6. Purchase 6
TOTAL 178
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Our KMP are Murli Manohar Kabra (Managing Director), Rgjesh Kabra (Executive Director), Jagmohan
Ramshankar Kabra (Executive Director), Govinda Kabra (Chief Marketing Officer), Akshat Murli Manohar
Kabra (Chief Technology Officer), Varsha Amrutlal Shah (Chief Financial Officer) and Darshan Aher (VP-Plant
Head).

Additionally, in order to build a responsive and respectful work environment, we have prepared an employee
hiring policy, Probation and Confirmation Policy, Safety Policy, Whistle Blower Policy, Leave policy, prevention
of sexual harassment at workplace policy, Fraud Prevention Policy and code of conduct for employees among
others.

UTILITIESAND INFRASTRUCTURE FACILITIES
Registered Office

604, Palm Spring Centre, Link Road, Maad (West), Mumbai City, MUMBAI, Maharashtra, India, 400064. Our
office is furnished with essential technologica infrastructure, including computer systems, servers, specialized
software, communication equipment, uninterrupted power supply, internet connectivity, security systems, and
other amenities necessary to facilitate seamless business operations.

Manufacturing Unit

The manufacturing unit of our Company is located at Shree Vardhan, Gat no. 374, Opp. SBI, Pune-Aurangabad
Highway, Koregaon Bhima, Shirur, Pune, Maharashtra— 412216.

Power and Electricity

We have a sanctioned load (KW) of 60.00 HP from Maharashtra State Electricity Distribution Co. Ltd. at our
factory premises at Koregaon (Maharashtra), which is sufficient to meet our power requirements. Our
manufacturing processes require uninterrupted supply of power in order to ensure that we are able to manufacture
our productsin time. We haveinstalled 82.5 KVA DG set in factory situated at Koregaon Bhima. It isinstalled to
meet electricity requirement in the event of power failure. Thisreliably fulfills our power needs.

Our Company meets its power requirements at our registered office from Adani Electricity and the same is
sufficient for our day-to-day functioning.

Water

Our registered office has adequate water supply arrangements for human consumption purpose. The requirements
are fully met at the existing premises.

Competition

The industry we serve is highly competitive, characterized by a mix of small, medium, and large companies.
While many small and medium-sized companies contribute, a few large enterprises dominate the market.
Competing in this landscape, we prioritize agility in responding to dynamic market demands and consumer
preferences. Our strategy centers on delivering a comprehensive range of high-quality products and services
tailored to diverse customer needs, providing integrated solutions. Our goal isto expand our business, innovate,
and consistently offer outstanding products and distinctive services. We maintain rigorous safety and control
measures to effectively compete. Our commitment involves robust competition to secure a greater market share
while efficiently managing our growth.

For risk associated with respect to competition kindly refer to Risk Factor No 32 mentioned in Section titled ‘Risk
Factors’ beginning of page 26 of this Prospectus.

PROPERTY
I mmovable Properties

We own and rent certain properties for our corporate operations and office. The brief details of some of the
material properties owned/rented by our Company are set out below:
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S Owner/ Consideration /
‘ Details of the Property Rights Purpose Used L ease Rental /
No. L essor .
License Fees (%)
1 | 604, Palm Spring Centre, Link Aluwind Commercial
Road, Malad (West), Mumbai Usage - 3
City, MUMBAI, Maharashtra, | W& Ar&ieﬁgra' Registered ¥ 2,05,00,000/
India, 400064 Office
2 First floor, Flat no-4, Amrut Lease Commercia
. ) Usage - Product
Park Co-operative Housing Period: Disolay Centre
Society, S. No. 219, Plot No.19 : . splay
) 02-12- Mrs. Alice used as
Fina plot No. 12 Town ; . %36,728.50/- pm
. . 2023 Avelino Lobo Experience
planning schemeno 1, Kalyani To Centre. disol
Pune Nagar Road, Yerwada, » GISpiay
Pune 411006 01-09- of company
2026 products.
3 | Shree Vardhan, Gat no. 374, Commercial
Opp. SBI, Pune-Aurangabad Aluwind Usage —
Highway, Koregaon Bhima, | Owned Architectural Manlﬁturin %2,78,02,020/-
Shirur, Pune, Maharahstra - Pvt Ltd Facilit 9
412216 Y
4 | Flat no 1804, Interface Heights, Aluwind Commercial
CTS no. 1406A/10 of Maad . Usage - Guest
(South), Village Malad, Taluka Owned Architectural House for %69,05,000/-
- . Pvt Ltd
Borivli, Mumbai employees

For risk associated with respect to leased premises kindly refer to Risk Factor No 16 mentioned in Section titled
‘Risk Factors’ beginning of page 26 of this Prospectus.

INSURANCE

Our existing insurance coverage includes protection for various aspects, including factory stock, registered office,
furniture and fixtures, factory building and other assets including computers, etc, ensuring comprehensive risk
management. We are confident that we have all essential insurance policiesin place, aligned with industry norms.
Regular reviews are conducted to ensure the adequacy of coverage. While we strive to minimize liability for
damages, it's important to note that our insurance may not always provide full protection or be enforceable in
every situation, potentially leaving us partially liable for damages.

For risk associated with respect to leased premises kindly refer to Risk Factor No 31 mentioned in Section titled
‘Risk Factors’ beginning of page 26 of this Prospectus.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Intellectual property rights are important to our business, and we devote significant time and resources to their
development and protection. Werely on acombination of trademark protection in India, aswell as confidentiality
procedures and contractual provisions to protect our intellectual property. As of the date of this Prospectus, we
are the registered owners of trademark “ALU-WinD” under class 6. For details, see “Government and Other
Approvals— Intellectual property related approvals” on page 224.

COLLABORATIONS/PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE

Aluwind and Eternia (a brand of Hindalco, a company forming part of the Aditya Birla Group) have been into
an exclusive fabricator agreement since June 2020. As per the renewed agreement signed between the companies,
in December 2023, Aluwind isnow an Anchor partner for Eterniafor MMRDA region. This renewed agreement
isvalid for 3 years and would be due for renewal in December 2026.

The Anchor Partnership agreement brings synergies in marketing, sales and quality products for the two
companies. The arrangement also benefits Aluwind in optimising its operational efficiencies through multiple
projects being undertaken. The companies synergistically cater to large scale B2B building projects (both
residential and commercial).
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As of the filing of the Prospectus, we have entered into a strategic agreement with Eternia as our Committed
Anchor Partner. This collaboration further solidifies our dedication to providing value-added products, allowing
us to access high-quality window materials, ensure sourcing, and expand our product distribution network.
Partnering with Eternia, aligns with our goa of delivering quality and excellence to customers, thereby
reinforcing our position in the market as committed anchor partners.

The revenue that the Company generates from projects where Eternia products are used, as a % of total revenue
generated from operations, for past three years and stub period is as follows:

(R in Lakhs)

Type of Project Apr 2020- Apr 2022- Apr 2022- | Apr 2023-
Mar 2021 Mar 2022 Mar 2023 | Sep 2023

Revenue from projects involving Eternia 56.82 491.05 2528.06 2159.60

Brand products

Total Revenue from operations 2128.25 2899.09 4886.49 4135.81

Percentage of revenue from Projects

involving Eternia Brand Products to Total

revenue from operations 2.67% 16.94% 51.74% 52.22%

(For the above details relating to revenue from projects involving Eternia Brand Products, we have relied upon
the certificate dated February 23, 2024, UDIN — 24171607BKBFRL9700 issued by the Statutory Auditors of the
Company i.e., M/s. RKegjriwal & Co., Chartered Accountants)

For risk associated with the collaboration with Eternia kindly refer to Risk Factor No 25 mentioned in Section
titled ‘Risk Factors’ beginning of page 26 of this Prospectus.

RAW MATERIAL
Our core materials for the fabrication of facades, windows, and related products comprise a range of essential

elements, including glass, aluminum composite panels, aluminum profiles, mild steel, Gl sheets, sealants, gaskets,

and hardware. These key materials are sourced from both local and international marketsto ensure product quality
and diversity in our supply chain.

(Thisrest of the page isintentionally left blank)
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KEY INDUSTRIAL REGULATIONSAND POLICIES

The following description is a summary of certain key statutes, rules, notifications, memorandum, circulars and
policies which are applicable to the Company and business undertaken by the Company.

The information available in this chapter is based on current provision of key statutes, rules, regulations,
notifications, memorandums, circulars and policies, as amended, subject to future amendments, changes and/or
moadifications. Theinformation in this chpater has been obtained from publicationsavailablein the public domain.
The description of laws and regulations set out below may not be exhaustive and is only intended to provide
general information to the investors and are neither designed nor intended to substitute for professional legal
advice.

For details of government Approvals obtained by our Company, see ‘Government and Other Approvals’ On page
224 of this Prospectus.

APPROVALS

For the purpose of the business undertaken by our Company, our Company is required to comply with various
laws, statutes, rules, regulations, executive orders, etc. that may be applicable from time to time. The details of
such approvals have more particularly been described for your reference in the chapter titled “Government and
Other Statutory Approvals” beginning on Page 224 of this Prospectus.

INDUSTRY RELATED LEGISLATIONS
BUSINESS TRADE RELATED LAWSREGULATIONS
The Factories Act, 1948

The Factories Act, 1948 (“Factories Act”) seeks to regulate labour employed in factories and makes provisions
for the safety, health and welfare of the workers. The term ‘factory’, as defined under the Factories Act, means
any premises which employs or has employed on any day in the previous 12 (twelve) months, 10 (ten) or more
workers and in which any manufacturing processis carried on with the aid of power, or any premises wherein 20
(twenty) or more workmen are employed at any day during the preceding 12 (twelve) months and in which any
manufacturing process is carried on without the aid of power. An occupier of afactory under the Factories Act,
means the person who has ultimate control over the affairs of the factory. The occupier or manager of the factory
is required to obtain a registration for the factory. The Factories Act also requires inter aia the maintenance of
various registers dealing with safety, labour standards, holidays and extent of child labour including their
conditions. Further, notice of accident or dangerous occurrence in the factory isto be provided to the inspector by
the manager of the factory.

Thelndian Contract Act, 1872

The Contract Act isthe legidation which lays down the genera principlesrelating to formation, performance, and
enforceability of contracts. The rights and duties of parties and the specific terms of agreement are decided by the
contracting parties themselves, under the general principles set forth in the Contract Act. The Contract Act also
provides for circumstances under which contracts will be considered as ‘void’ or ‘voidable’. The Contract Act
contains provisions governing certain special contracts, including indemnity, guarantee, bailment, pledge, and
agency.

Sale of Goods Act, 1930

The Sale of Goods Act, 1930 including its amendment from time to time, define and amend the law relating to
the sale of goodsin India. The act providesfor setting up of contractswhere the seller transfers or agreesto transfer
the title (ownership) in the goods to the buyer for consideration. It is applicable all over India. Under the act,
goods sold from owner to buyer must be sold for a certain price and at a given period of time.

TheMicro, Small and M edium Enter prises Development Act, 2006
The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Devel opment Act, 2006 and Industries (Development and Regulation)

Act, 1951 The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“MSME Act”) In order to promote
and enhance the competitiveness of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise (MSME) the Micro, Small and Medium
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Enterprises Development Act, 2006 isenacted. A National Board shall be appointed and established by the Central
Government for MSME enterprise with its head office at Delhi in the case of the enterprises engaged in the
manufacture or production of goods pertaining to any industry mentioned in first schedule to Industries
(Development and Regulation) Act, 1951.

Industrial Policy of Relevant State
The Maharashtra Industrial Policy 2013

The Maharashtra Industrial Policy 2013 has given a specia attention to encourage small scale industries. For
financial stability of MSMEs (Micro Small and Medium Enterprises), the state government will provide fiscal
incentives and support to less devel oped areas, such as 75% reimbursement of cost of water and energy admissible.
There is 100% stamp duty exemption within investment period for acquiring land and for term loan purposes.
Exemption from payment of electricity duty to eligible new unitsis also availablein certain cases. Power tariff of
INR L/- per unit consumed is available for eligible new unitslocated in Gondia, Kinvat, Chandrapur, etc. Financial
incentives are available in the form of Industrial Promotion Subsidy (IPS), Interest Subsidy, Electricity duty
exemption, Waiver of Stamp Duty, Power Tariff Subsidy, etc. Up to 70 lacs can be utilized in the various ways.
The Industrial Promotion Subsidy, which is receivable in cash as a specific percentage of net VAT and CST is
aso provided. Existing units can also be benefited under this scheme provided that they make 1) minimum
investment in capital assets of 25%; 2) same increase in production capacity; and 3) minimum 10% increase in
employment.

GENERAL COMPLIANCE
The Companies Act, 2013 (to the extent notified)

The Companies Act, 2013, has been introduced to replace the existing Companies Act, 1956 in a phased manner.
The 2013 Act is divided into 29 chapters containing 470 sections as against 658 Sections in the Companies Act,
1956 and has 7 schedules. A new term of "one-person company” is included in this act that will be a private
company. Further, the Act deals with incorporation of companies and the procedure for incorporation and post
incorporation. The conversion of private company into public company and vice versais aso laid down under the
Companies Act, 2013. The procedure related to appointment of Directors. The procedure relating to winding up,
voluntary winding up, appointment of liquidator also forms part of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has
issued the rules and new improved e-forms complementary to the Act establishing the procedure to be followed
by companiesin order to comply with the substantive provisions of the Act.

Thelndian Stamp Act, 1899

Under the Indian Stamp Act, 1899, stamp duty is payable on instruments evidencing a transfer or creation or
extinguishment of any right, title, or interest in immovable property. Stamp duty must be paid on al instruments
specified under the Stamp Act at the rates specified in the schedules to the Stamp Act. The applicable rates for
stamp duty on instruments chargeable with duty vary from state to state.

The Registration Act, 1908

The purpose of the Registration Act, amongst other things, is to provide a method of public registration of
documents so as to give information to people regarding legal rights and obligations arising or affecting a
particular property, and to perpetuate documents which may afterwards be of legal importance, and also to prevent
fraud.

SEBI REGULATIONS

Securities And Exchange Board of India is the regulatory body for securities market transactions including
regulation of listing and delisting of securities. It forms various rules and regulations for the regulation of listed
entities, transactions of securities, exchange platforms, securities market and intermediaries thereto. Apart from
the SEBI Act, 1992, SCRA 1956, SCRR 1957 and other rules and regulations, listed entities are mainly regulated
by SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeover) Regulations,
2011 and SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.
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TAX RELATED LEGISLATIONS
Income Tax Act, 1961

The government of India imposes an income tax on taxable income of all persons including individuals, Hindu
Undivided Families (HUFs), companies, firms, association of persons, body of individuals, local authority and
any other artificial judicial person. Levy of tax is separate on each of the persons. The levy is governed by the
Indian Income Tax Act, 1961. The Indian Income Tax Department is governed by CBDT and is part of the
Department of Revenue under the Ministry of Finance, Govt. of India. Income tax is a key source of funds that
the government usesto fund its activities and serve the public. The quantum of tax determined as per the statutory
provisionsis payable as:

a) Advance Tax;

b) Self-Assessment Tax;

¢) Tax Deducted at Source (TDS);

d) Tax Collected at Source (TCS);

€) Tax on Regular Assessment.

Goods and Service Tax (GST)

The GST Act levies indirect tax throughout India to replace many taxes levied by the Centra and State
Governments. The GST Act was applicable from July 1, 2017 and combined the Central Excise Duty, Commercial
Tax, Vaue Added Tax (VAT), Food Tax, Central Sales Tax (CST), Introit, Octroi, Entertainment Tax, Entry Tax,
Purchase Tax, Luxury Tax, Advertisement Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Surcharges. GST is levied on all
transactions such as sale, transfer, purchase, barter, lease, or import of goods and/or services. India has adopted a
dual GST model, meaning that taxation is administered by both the Union and State Governments. Transactions
made within asingle state is levied with Central GST (CGST) by the Central Government and State GST(SGST)
by the government of that state. For interstate transactions and imported goods or services, an Integrated GST
(IGST) is levied by the Central Government. GST is a consumption-based tax; therefore, taxes are paid to the
state where the goods or services are consumed and not the state in which they were produce.

LABOUR LAW LEGISLATIONS
The Occupational Safety, Health and Working Conditions Code, 2020

The Occupational Safety, Health and Working Conditions Code, 2020 received the assent of the President of India
on September 28, 2020 and proposes to subsume certain existing legidations, including the Factories Act, 1948,
the Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970, the Inter-State Migrant Workmen (Regulation of
Employment and Conditions of Service) Act, 1979 and the Building and Other Construction Workers (Regulation
of Employment and Conditions of Service) Act, 1996. The provisions of this code will be brought into force on a
date to be notified by the Central Government. The Central Government has issued the draft rules under the
Occupationa Safety, Health and Working Conditions Code, 2020. The draft rules provide for operationalization
of provisions in the Occupational Safety, Health and Working Conditions Code, 2020 relating to safety, health
and working conditions of the dock workers, building or other construction workers, mines workers, inter-state
migrant workers, contract labour, journalists, audio-visual workers and sales promotion employees.

Thelndustrial Relations Code, 2020

The Industrial Relations Code, 2020 received the assent of the President of India on September 28, 2020 and it
proposes to subsume three existing legidations, namely, the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947, the Trade Unions Act,
1926 and the Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946. The provisions of this code will be brought
into force on a date to be notified by the Central Government.

The Code on Social Security, 2020

The Code on Socia Security, 2020 received the assent of the President of India on September 28, 2020 and it
proposes to subsume certain existing legidations including the Employee's Compensation Act, 1923, the
Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948, the Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952,
the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Building and Other Construction
Workers’ Welfare Cess Act, 1996 and the Unorganized Workers’ Social Security Act, 2008. The provisions of
this code will be brought into force on a date to be notified by the Central Government. The Central Government
has issued the draft rules under the Code on Social Security, 2020. The draft rules provide for operationalization
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of provisions in the Code on Social Security, 2020 relating to employees’ provident fund, employees’ state
insurance corporation, gratuity, maternity benefit, social security and cess in respect of building and other
construction workers, social security for unorganized workers, gig workers and platform workers.

In addition to above, we are subject to wide variety of generally applicable labour laws concerning condition of
working, benefit and welfare of our laborers and employees such as the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Employees (Provident Fund and
Miscellaneous Provision) Act, 1952.

Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

Under the Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 (EPF Act), compulsory provident
fund, family pension fund and deposit linked insurance are payable to employees in factories and other
establishments. The legidation provides that an establishment employing more than 20 (twenty) persons, either
directly or indirectly, in any capacity whatsoever, is either required to constitute its own provident fund or
subscribe to the statutory employee‘s provident fund. The employer of such establishment is required to make a
monthly contribution to the provident fund equivalent to the amount of the employee‘s contribution to the
provident fund. There is also a requirement to maintain prescribed records and registers and filing of forms with
the concerned authorities. The EPF Act also prescribes penalties for avoiding payments required to be made under
the abovementioned schemes.

Employees State Insurance Act, 1948, as amended (the “ESIC Act”)

The ESI Act, providesfor certain benefitsto employeesin case of sickness, maternity and employment injury. All
employees in establishments covered by the ESI Act arerequired to be insured, with an obligation imposed on the
employer to make certain contributions in relation thereto. In addition, the employer is also required to register
itself under the ESI Act and maintain prescribed records and registers.

Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, as amended (the “Gratuity Act”)

The Gratuity Act establishes a scheme for the payment of gratuity to employees engaged in every factory, mine,
il field, plantation, port and railway company, every shop or establishment in which ten or more persons are
employed or were employed on any day of the preceding twelve months and in such other establishmentsin which
ten or more employees are employed or were employed on any day of the preceding twelve months, as notified
by the Central Government from time to time. Penalties are prescribed for non-compliance with statutory
provisions.

Under the Gratuity Act, an employee who has been in continuous service for a period of five yearswill be eligible
for gratuity upon his retirement, resignation, superannuation, death or disablement due to accident or disease.
However, the entitlement to gratuity in the event of death or disablement will not be contingent upon an employee
having completed five years of continuous service. The maximum amount of gratuity payable may not exceed 1
million.

Certain other laws and regulations that may be applicable to our Company in Indiainclude the following:

¢ Minimum Wages Act, 1948 and Maharashtra Minimum Wages Rules, 1963 (“MWA Rules”)

* Public Liability Insurance Act, 1991 (“PLI Act”)

* Industrial (Development and Regulation) Act, 1951 (“IDRA”)

* Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 (“ID Act”)

e Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 (“POB Act”)

« Child Labour (Prohibition and Regulation) Act, 1986

* Inter-State Migrant Workers (Regulation of Employment and Conditions of Service) Act, 1979

»  Sexua Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 ("SHWW
Act")

* Equal Remuneration Act, 1976 (“ER Act”)

» Contract Labour Regulation and Aboalition) Act, 1970 (CLRA) and Contract Labour (Regulation and
Abolition) Central Rules, 1971 (Contract Labour Rules)

e Workmen Compensation Act, 1923 (“WCA”)

« Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 ("Maternity Act")

+ Industrial Employment Standing Orders Act, 1946

» Apprentice Act, 1961 read with The National Policy of Skill Development and Entrepreneurship 2015,
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ENVIRONMENTAL LEGISLATIONS
National Environmental Policy, 2006

The dominant theme of this policy is that while conservation of environmental resources is necessary to secure
livelihoods and well-being of al, the most secure basis for conservation is to ensure that people dependent on
particular resources obtain better livelihoods from the fact of conservation, than from degradation of the resource.

Environment (Protection) Act, 1986 as amended (“EPA”)

The EPA has been enacted for the protection and improvement of the environment. It stipulates that no person
carrying on any industry, operation or process shall discharge or emit or permit to be discharged or emitted any
environmental pollutant in excess of such standards as may be prescribed. Further, no person shall handle or cause
to be handled any hazardous substance except in accordance with such procedure and after complying with such
safeguards as may be prescribed. EPA empowersthe Central Government to take all measures necessary to protect
and improve the environment such as laying down standards for emission or discharge of pollutants, providing
for restrictions regarding areas where industries may operate and generally to curb environmental pollution.
Pollution control boards have been congtituted in al states in India to exercise the powers and perform the
functions provided for under these statutes for the purpose of preventing and controlling pollution. Companies are
required to obtain consents of the relevant state pollution control boards for emissions and discharge of effluents
into the environment.

Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974 (the “Water Act”)

The Water Act provides for one Central Pollution Control Board, as well as state pollution control boards, to be
formed to implement its provisions, including enforcement of standards for factories discharging pollutants into
water bodies. The Water Act prohibitsthe use of any stream or well for thedisposal of polluting matter, in violation
of the standards set down by the State PCB. The Water Act also provides that the consent of the State PCB must
be obtained prior to opening of any new outlets or discharges, which are likely to discharge sewage effluent. The
Water Act prescribes specific amounts of fine and terms of imprisonment for various contraventions.

Hazardous and Other Wastes (Management and Transboundary Movement) Rules, 2016 (the “Hazardous
Waste Rules™)

The Hazardous Waste Rules regulate the management, treatment, storage and disposal of hazardous waste. Under
the Hazardous Waste Rules, “hazardous waste” inter alia means any waste which by reason of characteristics such
as physical, chemical, biological, reactive, toxic, flammable, explosive or corrosive, causes danger or islikely to
cause danger to health or environment, whether alone or in contact with other wastes or substances. Every occupier
and operator of afacility generating hazardous waste must obtain authorization from the relevant state pollution
control board. Further, the occupier, importer or exporter isliable for damages caused to the environment or third
party resulting from the improper handling and management and disposal of hazardous waste and must pay any
financia penalty that may be levied by the respective state pollution control board.

The Public Liability Insurance Act, 1991 (the “PLI Act”) and the Public Liability Insurance Rules, 1991
(the “PLI Rules”)

The PLI Act imposes liability on the owner or controller of hazardous substances for any damage arising out of
an accident involving such hazardous substances. A list of hazardous substances covered by the legidation has
been enumerated by the government by way of a notification. Under the PLI Act, the owner or handler is aso
required to take out an insurance policy insuring against liability. The PLI Act also provides for the establishment
of the Environmental Relief Fund, which shall be utilized towards payment of relief granted under the Public
Liability Act. The PLI Rules mandate the employer to contribute a sum equal to the premium paid on the insurance
policies towards the Environmental Relief Fund.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY LAWS
Indian Patents Act, 1970
The purpose of the Patent Act in Indiaisto protect inventions. Patents provide the exclusive rights for the owner

of a patent to make, use, exercise, distribute and sell a patented invention. The patent registration confers on the
patentee the exclusive right to use, manufacture and sell his invention for the term of the patent. An application
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for a patent can be made by (&) person claiming to be the true and first inventor of the invention; (b) person being
the assignee of the person claiming to be the true and first invention in respect of the right to make such an
application; and (c) legal representative of any deceased person who immediately before his death was entitled to
make such an application. Penalty for the contravention of the provisions of the Patents Act include imposition of
fines or imprisonment or both.

The Copyright Act, 1957

The Copyrights Act governs copyright protection in India. Under the Copyright Act, copyright may subsist in
original literary, dramatic, musical or artistic works, cinematograph films, and sound recordings. Following the
issuance of the International Copyright Order, 1999, subject to certain exceptions, the provisions of the Copyright
Act apply to nationals of all member states of the World Trade Organization. While copyright registration is not
a prerequisite for acquiring or enforcing a copyright, registration creates a presumption favouring ownership of
the copyright by the registered owner. Copyright registration may expedite infringement proceedings and reduce
delay caused due to evidentiary considerations. Once registered, the copyright protection of a work lasts for 60
years. The remedies available in the event of infringement of a copyright under the Copyright Act include civil
proceedings for damages, account of profits, injunction and the delivery of the infringing copies to the copyright
owner. The Copyright Act also providesfor criminal remedies, including imprisonment of the accused, imposition
of fines and seizure of infringing copies.

Trade Marks Act, 1999

A trademark is used in relation to goods so as to indicate a connection in the course of trade between the goods
and a person having the right as proprietor or user to use the mark. The Trademarks Act, 1999, (Trademarks Act)
governs the registration, acquisition, transfer and infringement of trademarks and remedies available to a
registered proprietor or user of atrademark. Registration is valid for a period of 10 years but can be renewed in
accordance with the specified procedure. As per the Trademarks (Amendment) Bill, 2009, Registrar of Trade
Marks is empowered to deal with international applications originating from India as well as those received from
the International Bureau and maintain arecord of international registrations. It also removes the discretion of the
Registrar to extend the time.

OTHER APPLICABLE LAWS
Other Indian Laws

In addition, to the above, the company is aso governed by the provisions of the Competition and rules framed
thereunder, other relevant central and state tax laws, foreign exchange and investment laws, applicable building
and fire-safety related laws, customs act, contract act and foreign trade laws and other applicable laws and
regulation imposed by the Central Government and State Governments and other authorities for over day to day
business, operations and administration.

State Laws

We own and operate hotels and commercial projects in various states. Accordingly, legislations passed by the
state governments are applicable to usin those states. Theseinclude legislationsrelating to inter alia classification
of land use, fire prevention and safety measures and legidations dealing with license for sale of alcohol. Further,
we require severa approvals from local authorities such as municipal bodies. The approvals required may vary
depending on the state and the local area.

Municipality Laws

Pursuant to the Constitution (Seventy-Fourth Amendment) Act,1992 the respective state legislaturesin Indiahave
power to endow the municipalities with power to implement schemes and perform functionsin relation to matters
listed in the Twelfth Schedule to the Constitution of India. The respective States of India have enacted laws
empowering the municipalitiesto issuetradelicensefor operating eating outletsand implementation of regulations
relating to such license along with prescribing penalties for non-compliance.

Approvalsfrom Local Authorities

Setting up of afactory or manufacturing / housing unit entails the requisite planning approvalsto be obtained from
the relevant Local Panchayat(s) outside the city limits and appropriate Metropolitan Development Authority
within the city limits. Consents are also required from the state pollution control board(s), the relevant state
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electricity board(s), the state excise authorities, sales tax, among others, are required to be obtained before
commencing the building of afactory or the start of manufacturing operations.

Shops and Establishmentslegidationsin various states

Under the provisions of local shops and establishment legislations applicable in the states in which establishments
are set up, establishmentsare required to be registered under the respective legidations. Theselegidationsregulate
the condition of work and employment in shops and commercial establishments and generally prescribe
obligations in respect of inter alia registration, opening and closing hours, daily and weekly working hours,
holidays, leave, health and safety measures and wages for overtime work.

OTHER REGULATIONS

Apart from the above list of laws — which isinclusive in nature and not exhaustive - general laws like the Indian
Contract Act 1872, Specific Relief Act 1963, Negotiable Instrument Act 1881, The Information Technology Act,
2000, Sale of Goods Act 1930 and Consumer Protection Act 1986, The Arbitration & Conciliation Act, 1996 are
also applicable to the company.

PROPERTY RELATED LAWS

The Company is required to comply with central and state laws in respect of property. Central Laws that may be

applicable to our Company's operations include the Land Acquisition Act, 1894, the Transfer of Property Act,
1882, Registration Act, 1908, Indian Stamp Act, 1899, and Indian Easements Act, 1882.

(Rest of the page isintentionally left blank)
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HISTORY AND CERTAIN CORPORATE MATTERS
BRIEF HISTORY OF OUR COMPANY

Our Company was originally incorporated as a private limited company under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956 pursuant to Certificate of Incorporation issued by Registrar of Companies, Mumbai dated April 22, 2003
with the name “Aluwind Architectural Private Limited” bearing Corporate Identity no.
U74210MH2003PTC140090.

The Company was converted into Public Limited Company and the name of our Company was changed to
“Aluwind Architectural Limited” by a special resolution passed on October 4, 2023. A fresh certificate of
incorporation consequent to conversion was issued on January 3, 2024 by the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai.

Our Corporate Identification Number is U74210MH2003PL C140090.

The Promoters of our Company are Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra, Rajesh Kabra, Jagmohan Ramshankar
Kabraand M/s. Jagmohan Kabra HUF.

CHANGESIN REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY IN LAST 10 YEARS:

Date Details of Registered Office Reason for Change
At Incorporationi.e. | 16" Municipal Shopping Centre, For Conveniences, reduction of cost
April 22,2003 New Link Road, Mitha Nagar, and saving time, other reason etc.

Goregaon West, Mumbai 400 090
From June 20, 2014 | 70 C, Government Industrial Estate, Charkop, | For Conveniences, reduction of cost
Hindusthan Naka, Near Reliance Energy, | and saving time, other reason etc.

Kandivali Mumbai, 400 067
From June 21, 2021 | 604, Palm Spring Centre, Link Road, For Conveniences, reduction of cost
Malad (West), Mumbai City, and saving time, other reason etc.

Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400064

MAIN OBJECTS OF THE COMPANY
The main objects of our Company as set forth in the Memorandum of Association of our Company are as follows:

1. To acquire running business of “M/S Aluwind Industries” a partnership firm having its Regd. Office at-16™
Municipa Shopping Center, New Link Road, Mitha Nagar, Goregaon (West), Mumbai- 400090, along with
its assets and liabilities and after takeover the firm shall stand dissolved.

2. Tocarry onthebusinessto deal ininterior and exterior decoration materias, building and house construction
products, fittings, sections, used for commercial, domestic and industrial products, furniture, fixtures, made
of metals, wood, products, plywood, veneer and blends of artificial, natural or combined materials and to
produce, process, treat, ater, convert, shape, improve, manipulate, press, hammer, cut, trim, design, grind
machine and to otherwise deal in furnishing material, products, articles or things used in interior or exterior
parts of building.

AMENDMENTSTO THE MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION OF OUR COMPANY::

Since the incorporation of our Company, the following changes have been made to the Memorandum of
Association:

Date of Amendment /
Shareholders’ Resolution
January 5, 2008 Clause V of MOA was amended to reflect increase in the Authorized Share Capital
of the company from % 5,00,000/- divided into 50,000 Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each
to % 25,00,000/- divided into 2,50,000 Equity shares of % 10/- each vide Ordinary
Resolution passed at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on January 5, 2008.

February 20, 2023 Clause V of MOA was amended to reflect the increase in the Authorized Share
Capital of the company from % 25,00,000/- divided into 2,50,000 Equity shares of
% 10/- each to % 5,00,00,000/- divided into 50,00,000 Equity shares of % 10/- each
vide ordinary Resolution passed at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on
February 20, 2023.

Nature of Amendment
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Date of Amendment /

Shareholders’ Resolution

September 30, 2023 Clause V of MOA was amended to reflect the Authorized Share Capital of the
company wasincreased from % 5,00,00,000/- divided into 50,00,000 Equity shares
of % 10/- each to X 24,99,00,000/- divided into 2,49,90,000 Equity shares of % 10/-
each vide ordinary Resolution passed at the Annual General Meeting held on
September 30, 2023
Octaber 4, 2023 Clause | of our Memorandum of Association was amended to reflect the changein
the name of our Company from ‘ALUWIND ARCHITECTURAL PRIVATE
LIMITED’ to ‘ALUWIND ARCHITECTURAL LIMITED’, pursuant to the
special Resolution passed at the Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on October
4, 2023 for conversion of the company from a private limited company to a public
limited Company and consequent to the fresh Certificate of Incorporation issued
by Registrar of Companies, Mumbai dated January 03, 2024.

Natur e of Amendment

ADOPTING NEW ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF THE COMPANY:

Our Company has adopted a new set of Articles of Association of the Company, in the Extra-Ordinary General
Meeting of the Company dated October 4, 2023.

(Thisrest of the page is intentionally left blank)
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KEY EVENTSAND MILESTONES

Aluwind incorporated asa Private Limited
Company and took over the business of
M/s. Aluwind Industries, a partnership
firm

2007

PAN India’s biggest work — Mantri
Cosmos (Hyderabad) — worth INR 7
crore

2015

Tied up with Eternia Window Systems
and received its Eternia Project Marian
Park

2022

Received India 500 SME Awards for its
outstanding contribution in quality and
excellence, in realm of customer
satisfaction, impact on society through
service and management

2024

Keyseventsand Milestonesin the history of our Company

*—0 00 0 ©

2003

Successfully delivered a significant
project valued at approx. 3 crores in
Kayaninagar for Vascon Engineers in
2007. Subsequently, accomplished
multiple projects for Vascon Engineers
totalling approx 21 crores between 2007
and 2009

2013

Bagged 1st prestigious order from L& T
Realty Ltd in 2015. Series of new work
order received from L& T during 2015-
2022 — cumulative value ~ Rs 65 crs

2020

Aluwind receives its first biggest
work order — Birla Vanya worth over
INR 20 crores

2023

Conversion of the company from
private to public limited company

(Thisrest of the page isintentionally left blank)
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OTHER DETAILSABOUT OUR COMPANY

For details of our Company’s activities, products, growth, technology, marketing strategy, competition and our
customers, please refer chapter titled “Our Business”, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Conditions and Results of Operations” and “Basis for Issue Price” beginning on pages 105, 198 and 81
respectively of this Prospectus. For details of our management and managerial competence and for details of
shareholding of our Promoters, please refer to chapter titled “Our Management” and “Capital Structure”
beginning on pages 135 and 61 of this Prospectus respectively.

CAPITAL RAISING (DEBT / EQUITY)

For details in relation to our capital raising activities through equity, please refer to the chapter titled “Capital
Structure” beginning on page 61 of the Prospectus. For details of our Company’s debt facilities, please refer
chapter “Financial Information” beginning page 161 of this Prospectus.

TIME/COST OVERRUN IN SETTING UP PROJECTS

Ason the date of this Prospectus, there have been no time/cost overruns in setting up our projects.

LOCK-OUT OR STRIKES

Our Company has, since incorporation, not been involved in any labour disputes or disturbances including strikes
and lockouts. As on the date of this Prospectus, our employees are not unionized.

INJUNCTION OR RESTRAINING ORDER

As on the date of this Prospectus, there no injunctions/ restraining orders that have been passed against the
Company.

KEY AWARDS & ACCREDITATION OR RECOGNITION
Our company has received India 500 SME Awards for its outstanding contribution in quality and excellence.

DEFAULTSOR RESCHEDULING OF BORROWINGSWITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS/BANKS
AND CONVERSION OF LOANSINTO EQUITY SHARES

There have been no defaults or rescheduling of borrowings with any financial institutions/banks as on the date of
this Prospectus. Furthermore, except as disclosed in chapter titled “Capital Structure” beginning on Page 61 of this
Prospectus, none of the Company's |oans have been converted into equity in the past.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DIVESTMENTS OF BUSINESS'UNDERTAKINGS, MERGERS,
AMALGAMATION, REVALUATION OF ASSETS, ETC. IN THE LAST 10 YEARS

Except as disclosed in this Prospectus, there has been no materia acquisition or divestment of
business/undertakings, mergers, amalgamation, revaluation of assets since incorporation.

HOLDING COMPANY

As on the date of this Prospectus, there is no holding company of our Company.
SUBSIDIARY OF OUR COMPANY

Ason the date of this Prospectus, our Company does not have any subsidiary company.
JOINT VENTURES OF OUR COMPANY

Ason the date of this Prospectus, the Company does not have any joint ventures.
ASSOCIATES OF OUR COMPANY

Ason the date of this Prospectus, the Company does not have any associate.
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CHANGESIN THE MANAGEMENT
For details of change in Management, please see chapter titled “Our Management” on page 135 of this Prospectus.
DETAILS REGARDING PAST PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY.

For detailsin relation to our past financial performance in the previous 3 (three) financial years, please refer to
chapter titled “Restated Financial Statements” beginning on page 161 of this Prospectus.

CHANGESIN ACTIVITIES OF OUR COMPANY DURING THE LAST FIVE (5) YEARS

There has been no change in the business activities of our Company during last five (5) years from the date of this
Prospectus which may have had a material effect on the profit/loss account of our Company except as mentioned
in Material development in chapter titled “Management’s discussion and analysis of financial conditions & results
of operations” beginning on page 198 of this Prospectus.

SHAREHOLDERS OF OUR COMPANY

Our Company has Twelve (12) shareholders as on the date of this Prospectus. For further details on the
shareholding pattern of our Company, please refer to the chapter titled “Capital Structure” beginning on page
61 of this Prospectus.

SHAREHOLDERS AGREEMENTS

As on the date of this Prospectus, there are no subsisting shareholder’s agreements among our shareholders in
relation to our Company, to which our Company is a party or otherwise has notice of the same.

AGREEMENTSWITH KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, DIRECTORS, PROMOTER, OR ANY
OTHER EMPLOYEE

Neither our Promoter, nor any of the Key Managerial Personnel or Senior Management, Directors or employees
of our Company have entered into an agreement, either by themselves or on behalf of any other person, with any
Shareholder or any other third party with regard to compensation or profit sharing in connection with the dealings
of the securities of our Company.

OTHER AGREEMENTS

Non-Compete Agreement

Our Company has not entered into any Non-compete Agreement as on the date of filing of this Prospectus.

Joint Venture Agreement

Except the agreements entered in the ordinary course of business carried on or intended to be carried on by us, we
have not entered into any other Joint V enture agreement.

Collaboration Agreements

Except as mentioned in this Prospectus, Our Company does not have any collaboration agreement as on the date
of this Prospectus.

Strategic Partners

Except as mentioned in this Prospectus, Our Company does not have any strategic partners as on the date of this
Prospectus.

Financial Partners

Our Company does not have any financial partners as on the date of this Prospectus.
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OUR MANAGEMENT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Under the Articles of Association, our Company is authorized to have a minimum of 3 (Three) Directors and a
maximum of up to 15 (Fifteen) Directors, unless otherwise determined by our Company in ageneral meeting. As
on the date of this Prospectus, our Company has 6 (Six) Directors, comprising of 1 (One) Managing Director, 2
(Two) Executive Directors and 3 (Three) Non-Executive Independent Directors including 2 (Two) Women
Independent Directors. The present composition of our Board and its committees is in accordance with the
corporate governance requirements provided under the Companies Act 2013 and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations.

The following table sets forth details regarding our Board as on the date of this Prospectus:

Sr. No. Name of the Directors DIN Designation
1 I\K/l:brlr;M anohar Ramshankar 00178667 Managing Director
2 Rajesh Kabra 00178688 Executive Director
3 Jagmohan Ramshankar Kabra 08247152 Executive Director
4 Aruna Bangur 08179706 | Woman Non-Executive Independent Director
5 Santosh Kumar Rathi 06478349 Non-Executive Independent Director
6 Y ogita Dharmendra Poriya 10109812 | Woman Non-Executive Independent Director

The following table sets forth details regarding the Board of Directors as on the date of this Prospectus:

Sr. No. | Particulars Details
1. Name Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra
Father’s Name L ate Ramshankar Bhimrgj Kabra
Residential Address Flat No. 403, Bldg-G, Pam Project, Palm Court Complex,

Link Road, Behind D-Mart, Malad West
Mumbai — 400 064

Date of Birth March 29, 1963

Age 60

Designation Managing Director

DIN 00178667

Occupation Business

Nationality Indian

Qualification Diplomain Mechanical Engineering

Brief Biography Mr. Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra, aged 60 years, is one of the

Promotors of our Company. He has been part of the Board since
inception and is currently designated as Managing Director of our
Company with effect from January 4, 2024. He has completed his
Diploma in Mechanical Engineering conducted by Government
Polytechnic College, Bhopal (MP). He has a long standing and rich
experience of more than 2 decades in window & fagade industry. He
has been a part of humerous Indian projects and worked with both
Indian & International Brands. He has a very strong presence in
fenestration industry and an excellent connect from client to supply

chain.
Date of Appointment April 22, 2003
Date of Changein January 4, 2024
Designation
Term 5years, i.e., with effect from January 4, 2024 to January 3, 2029

Period of Directorship | He has been the director of the Company since incorporation of the
Company i.e., April 22, 2003
Directorship in other NA

companies
2. Name Rajesh Kabra
Father’s Name L ate Ramshankar Bhimragj Kabra
Residential Address 401, Rustomjee, Ozone Tower-4, Goregaon Mulund Link Road,

Near Mini Exchange, Goregaon West, Mumbai - 400104
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Date of Birth July 20, 1965

Age 58

Designation Executive Director
DIN 00178688
Occupation Business
Nationality Indian
Qualification LLB

Brief Biography

Mr. Rajesh Kabra, aged 58 years, is one of the Promotors of our
Company. He has been part of the Board since inception and is
currently designated as Executive Director of our Company. He has
completed is LLB from Dr Harisingh Gour Vishwavidyalaya, Sagar
(M.P.) He manages the complete Logistics from the manufacturing
facility to construction site. He has an extensive experience of more
than 2 decades in in window & facade industry. He has strong
connections in the diverse segment of supply chain of fenestration &
facade industry. He understands the cost sensitiveness in the market
and optimizesthe resource initsfull effectivenessto get the best value
for the product & services.

Date of Appointment April 22, 2003

Date of Changein NA

Designation

Term 5years, i.e., with effect from January 24, 2024 to January 23, 2029

Period of Directorship

He has been the director of the Company since incorporation of the
Company i.e, April 22, 2003

Directorship in other NA
companies
Name Jagmohan Ramshankar Kabra

Father’s Name

L ate Ramshankar Bhimrgj Kabra

Residential Address

C-11-A, S. N. 201, Kumar Picasso, 17 1/2 Nali,
Pune City, Hadapsar, Pune - 411028

Date of Birth

December 6, 1960

Age 63

Designation Executive Director
DIN 08247152
Occupation Business
Nationality Indian
Qualification Master of Commerce

Brief Biography

Mr. Jagmohan Ramshankar Kabra, aged 63 years, is one of the
Promoters and an Executive Director of our Company. He overlooks
the entire manufacturing facility. He has obtained his Degree in
Masters of Commerce from Sagar University, Hoshangabad (M.P). He
has a rich experience of more than a decade in window & fagade
industry. He has strong people connection which helps and directs the
Company on a broader scale.

Date of Appointment

October 5, 2018

Date of Changein
Designation

September 30, 2019

Term

5years, i.e, with effect from January 24, 2024 to January 23, 2029

Period of Directorship

He has been the Director of the Company since October 05, 2018

Directorship in other
companies

NA

Name

Aruna Bangur

Father’s Name

Om Prakash Pasari

Residential Address

1106 Palm Court, G Wing, New Link Road,
Near Infiniti Mall, Malad West, Mumbai — 400 064

Date of Birth

October 30, 1972

Age 51

Designation Woman Non-Executive Independent Director
DIN 08179706

Occupation Employment
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Nationality

Indian

Qualification

Bachelor of Science from University of Calcutta

Brief Biography

Mrs. Aruna Bangur, aged 51 years, is a Woman Non-Executive
Independent Director of our Company since January 4, 2024. She has
completed a Bachelor’s Degree in Science from University of
Calcutta. She is associated with Vnat Resources Private Limited, as a
Director of the Company since May, 2022 and a Designated Partner of
Anchaman Foods LLP since August 2018. She is currently employed
with Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance Company Limited as Insurance
Agent (Life Advisor) since August 2017

Date of Appointment January 4, 2024

Date of Changein NA

Designation

Term 5years, i.e., with effect from January 4, 2024 to January 3, 2029

Period of Directorship

She has been the Director of the Company since January 4, 2024

Directorship in other
companies

1. Vnat Resources Private Limited
2. Anchaman FoodsLLP

Name

Santosh Kumar Rathi

Father’s Name

Radhakrishna Rathi

Residential Address

E Block 802, E Block, DSR Fortune Prime, Madhapur, Telangana -
500081

Date of Birth

November 8, 1952

Age 71

Designation Non-Executive |ndependent Director
DIN 06478349

Occupation Business

Nationality Indian

Qualification Master of Commerce

Brief Biography

Mr. Santosh Kumar Rathi, aged 71 years, is a non-Executive
Independent Director of our Company since January 4, 2024. He holds
a bachelor's degree in commerce from Indore University since 1971
and amaster's degree in commerce from Indore University since 1973.
He is currently associated with Prima Urbanscapes Pvt Ltd and ENR
Infraprojects Pvt Ltd, which work in the Infrastructure Industry, in the
capacity of Director since September, 2016 and March, 2013
respectively

Date of Appointment January 4, 2024

Date of Changein NA

Designation

Term 5years, i.e, with effect from January 4, 2024 to January 3, 2029

Period of Directorship

He has been the Director of the Company since January 4, 2024

Directorship in other
companies

1. PrimaUrbanscapes Private Limited
2. ENR Infraprojects Private Limited

Name

Y ogita Dharmendra Poriya

Father’s Name

Dharmendra Damji Poriya

Residential Address

Room No. 3, Francis Chawl, Ashok Nagar,
Near Bonanza Industrial Estate,
Bandongri, Kandivali East S.O, Mumbai — 400 101

Date of Birth April 21, 2000

Age 23

Designation Woman Non-Executive Independent Director

DIN 10109812

Occupation Employment

Nationality Indian

Qualification Higher Secondary Certificate, Certificate coursein Social Media

Marketing and Certificate Course in Search Engine optimization

Brief Biography

Ms. Yogita Dharmendra Poriya, aged 23, is a non-executive woman
independent director of our Company, effective January 4, 2024. She
is the Director of Karnavati Stitching Enterprise Pvt Ltd since
November 2023. Further sheisworking with Shivanjay Resources Pvt
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Ltd as HR/Digital Marketing since January 2021.
Date of Appointment January 4, 2024

Date of Changein NA
Designation
Term 5years, i.e., with effect from January 4, 2024 to January 3, 2029

Period of Directorship | She has been the Director of the Company since January 4, 2024
Directorship in other Karnavati Stitching Enterprise Private Limited
companies

FAMILY RELATIONSHIPSBETWEEN THE DIRECTORS

Except as mentioned below, none of the Directors of the Company are related to each other within the meaning
of Section 2(77) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Director Other Director Relationship
Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra | Rajesh Kabra Brother
Jagmohan Ramshankar Kabra Brother
Rajesh Kabra Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra Brother
Jagmohan Ramshankar Kabra Brother
Jagmohan Ramshankar Kabra Rajesh Kabra Brother
Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra Brother

CONFIRMATIONS:

a

There are no arrangements or understanding between major shareholders, customers, suppliers, or others
pursuant to which any of the Directors were selected as a director or member of a senior management as
on the date of this Prospectus.

Our Company has not executed any service contracts with its directors providing for benefits upon
termination of their employment.

None of our Directors is or was a director of any listed company during the five years immediately
preceding the date of this Prospectus, whose shares have been or were suspended from being traded on any
stock exchange during the term of their directorship in such company.

None of our Directorsisor was adirector of any listed company which has been or was delisted from any
stock exchange during the term of their directorship in such company.

None of the Directors are categorized as a wilful defaulter or a fraudulent borrower, as defined under
Regulation 2(2)(Ill) of SEBI ICDR Regulations.

None of our Directors have been declared as fugitive economic offenders as defined in Regulation 2(1)(p)
of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, nor have been declared as a ‘fugitive economic offender’ under Section 12
of the Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018.

None of the Directors of our Company are debarred from accessing the capital market by SEBI.

None of the Directors has been or is involved as a promoter or director of any other Company which is
debarred from accessing the capital market under any order or directions made by SEBI or any other
regulatory authority.

No consideration, either in cash or shares or in any other form have been paid or agreed to be paid to any
of our directors or to the firms, trusts or companies in which they have an interest in, by any person, either
to induce him to become or to help him qualify as a director, or otherwise for services rendered by him or
by the firm, trust or company in which he is interested, in connection with the promotion or formation of
our Company.

In respect of the track record of the Directors, there have been no criminal cases filed or investigations
being undertaken with regard to alleged commission of any offence by any of our directors and none of
our directors have been charge-sheeted with serious crimes like murder, rape, forgery, economic offence
etfc.
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BORROWING POWERS OF THE BOARD

Pursuant to a Special Resolution passed at an Extraordinary General Meeting of our Company held on January
04, 2024 and pursuant to provisions of Section 180(1)(c) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, and pursuant to Articles of Association of the Company, the Board of
Directors of the Company is authorized to borrow monies from time to time borrow any sum or sums of money
by obtaining loans, as and when required, from Bank(s), Financial Ingtitution(s), Foreign Lender(s), anybody
corporates, authorities, through suppliers credit, through any other instruments either in Indian Rupees or in any
other foreign currencies as may be permitted under law from timeto time, which, together with the moniesalready
borrowed by the Company (apart from temporary loans obtained or to be obtained from the Company's Bankers
in the ordinary course of business) may exceed, at any time, the aggregate of the paid-up share capital and free
reserves, provided that the total amount so borrowed by the Board shall not at any time exceed X 50 Crores (Rupees
Fifty Crores only) or equivalent amount in any other foreign currency

POLICY ON DISCLOSURES AND INTERNAL PROCEDURE FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER
TRADING

The provisions of Regulation 9(1) of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 will be
applicable to our Company immediately upon the listing of its Equity Shares. We shal comply with the
requirements of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 on listing of Equity Shares on NSE
Emerge. The Company Secretary & Compliance Officer will be responsible for setting forth policies, procedures,
monitoring and adherence to the rules for the preservation of price sensitive information and the implementation
of the Code of Conduct under the overall supervision of the Board.

POLICY FOR DETERMINATION OF MATERIALITY OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONSAND
ON DEALING WITH RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 will be
applicable to the Company immediately upon the listing of Equity Shares of the Company on NSE Emerge. We
shall comply with the requirements of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 on listing of Equity Shares on NSE Emerge. The Board of Directors at their meeting held on January 10,
2024 have approved and adopted the policy for determination of materiality and determination of materiality of
related party transactions and on dealing with related party transactions.

TERMSOF APPOINTMENT OF OUR EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
MR. MURLI MANOHAR RAMSHANKAR KABRA:

Mr. Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra has been the Executive Director of the Company since the incorporation
of the Company. The Shareholders of the Company at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on January 04,
2024, in accordance with the Sections 196 and 197 and 203 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act and
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 has appointed Mr. Murli
Manohar Ramshankar Kabra as the Managing Director of the Company w.e.f., January 04, 2024 for a period of 5
years on the following terms of Remuneration:

Remuneration:
¥ 2,25,000 per month (inclusive of perquisites ¥ 25,000 per month)

Perquisites and allowances.
a. The Managing Director shall be entitled to be reimbursed in respect of al expenses incurred by him
(including traveling, entertainment, etc.) for and on behalf of the Company during the course of business.
b. Reimbursement of all medical expenses incurred, including premium paid on health insurance policies,
whether in India or abroad for self and family including hospitalization.
Leave Travel Concession/allowance: Foreign trip once ayear with family or/and inland trip for self and
family twicein ayear.
Club fees subject to a maximum of two clubs.
Personal accident insurance premium.
Mobile Phone & bill payment Facilities.
Use of Company maintained cars with drivers for business and personal use.

o
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MR. RAJESH KABRA:

Mr. Rajesh Kabra has been the Executive Director of the Company since the incorporation of the Company. The
Shareholders of the Company at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on January 24, 2024, in accordance
with the Sections 196 and 197 and 203 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act and Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 has appointed Rajesh Kabra as the Executive Director
of the Company w.ef., January 24, 2024 for a period of 5 years on the following terms of Remuneration:

Remuneration:
% 2,00,000 per month.

Perquisites and allowances:
a.  The Executive Director shall be entitled to be reimbursed in respect of all expenses incurred by him
(including traveling, entertainment, etc.) for and on behalf of the Company during the course of business.
b. Reimbursement of all medical expensesincurred, including premium paid on health insurance policies,
whether in India or abroad for self and family including hospitalization.
Leave Travel Concession/allowance: Foreign trip once ayear with family or/and inland trip for self and
family twicein ayear.
Club fees subject to a maximum of two clubs.
Personal accident insurance premium.
Mobile Phone & hill payment Facilities.
Use of Company maintained cars with drivers for business and personal use.

o
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MR.JAGMOHAN RAMSHANKAR KABRA:

Mr. Jagmohan Ramshankar Kabra has been the Executive Director of the Company October 2018. The
Shareholders of the Company at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on January 24, 2024, in accordance
with the Sections 196 and 197 and 203 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act and Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 has appointed Jagmohan Ramshankar Kabra as the
Executive Director of the Company w.ef., January 24, 2024 for a period of 5 years on the following terms of
Remuneration:

Remuneration:
% 1,25,000 per month.

Perquisites and allowances: -
a  The Executive Director shall be entitled to be reimbursed in respect of all expenses incurred by him
(including traveling, entertainment, etc.) for and on behalf of the Company during the course of business.
b. Reimbursement of all medical expensesincurred, including premium paid on health insurance policies,
whether in India or abroad for self and family including hospitalization.
Leave Travel Concession/allowance: Foreign trip once ayear with family or/and inland trip for self and
family twicein ayear.
Club fees subject to a maximum of two clubs.
Personal accident insurance premium.
Mobile Phone & hill payment Facilities.
Use of Company maintained cars with drivers for business and personal use.

o

Qoo

PAYMENT OR BENEFIT TO DIRECTORS OF OUR COMPANY: :
Details of the remuneration paid to our Directorsin the Financial Y ear 2022-2023 are set forth below.
a. Remuneration to our Executive Directors:

Details of the remuneration paid to our Executive Directorsin the Financial Y ear 2023 are set forth below:

Sl. No. Name of Executive Director Details Amount in Lakhs
1 Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra Remuneration 18.00
Bonus 3.00
. Remuneration 18.00
2 Rajesh Kebra Bonus 3.00
Remuneration 9.00
3. Jagmohan Ramshankar Kabra Bonus 3.00
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b. Remuneration to our Non-Executive Director and Independent Directors:
The Company during Financial year 2022-2023, Company did not have any Non-Executive Directors
and/or Independent Directors on the Board of Directors of the Company.

c. Siting Fee
The Executive Directors of the Company are not entitled any sitting fee for attending the meeting of the
Board of Directors or Committees thereof. Further as per the terms of the appointment, the Independent
Directors of the Company are entitled to be paid remuneration by way of fee for attending meetings of the
Board of Directors or Committees thereof

Asonthedate of this Prospectus, no sitting fee shall be paid to any Non-Executive Directors & Independent
Directors for attending the Meeting of Board of Directors or Committees thereof

d. Payment or benefit to Non-Executive Independent Directors of our Company:
As the terms of the appointment, the Independent Directors of the Company are entitled to be paid
remuneration by way of fee for attending meetings of the Board or Committees thereof or for any other
purpose whatsoever as may be decided by the Board, reimbursement of expenses for participating in the
Board and other meetings and profit related commission within the limits stipulated under Section 197 of
the Act.

e. Payment of Benefits (Non-Salary Related):
Except as disclosed above, no amount or benefit has been paid or given within the two (2) years preceding
the date of filing of this Prospectus or is intended to be paid or given to any of our directors except the
remuneration for services rendered and/or sitting fees as Directors.

f. Contingent and Deferred Compensation Payable to Directors:
Thereis no contingent or deferred compensation payable to our directors, which does not form part of their
remuneration.

g. Bonusor profit-sharing plan of the Directors:
Our Company does not have any bonus or profit-sharing plan for our Directors.

THE DETAILS OF THE SHAREHOLDING OF OUR DIRECTORS AS ON THE DATE OF THIS
PROSPECTUS ARE ASFOLLOWS

Name of the Shareholder No. of Equity Shares FES cerg:gﬁgjf (E:/Z?I ssue F:esrsﬁtzn(t:afpeiztc:‘] F()(?/og)
Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra 63,90,468 35.02% 25.72%
Rajesh Kabra 54,89,467 30.08% 22.09%
Jagmohan Ramshankar Kabra 32,205 0.18% 0.13%

INTEREST OF OUR DIRECTORS

All our Directors may be deemed to be interested to the extent of remuneration and reimbursement of expenses,
if any, payable to them by our Company as well as sitting fees, if any, payable to them for attending meetings of
our Board of Directors. For further details, see “Terms of Appointment of our Executive Directors” and “Payment
or benefit to Directors of our Company”, on pages 139 and 140, respectively.

Further our directors may be deemed to be interested to the extent of shareholding held by them, their relatives,
their companies, firms and trusts, in which they are interested as directors, members, partners, trustees,
beneficiaries and promoter and in any dividend distribution which may be made by our Company in the future.

Further, relatives of certain of our Directors are also shareholders and / or employees of our Company and may
be deemed to be interested to the extent of the payment of remuneration made by our Company and dividends
declared on the Equity Shares held by them, if any. For the payments that are made by our Company to such
relatives of the Directors, see “Restated Financial Information — Annexure VI — Notes to Restated Financial
Information Note 39: Related party disclosures as required under Ind AS-24” on page 187.

No sum has been paid or agreed to be paid to our directors or to firms or companies in which they are members,
in cash or shares or otherwise by any person either to induce them to become, or to qualify them as directors, or
otherwise for services rendered by them by such firms or company, in connection with the promotion or formation
of our Company.
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Except as stated “Restated Financial Information — Annexure VI — Notes to Restated Financial Information Note
39: Related party disclosures asrequired under Ind AS-24 ” on page 187, No loans have been availed or extended
by our directors from, or to, our Company.

INTEREST IN PROPERTY OF THE COMPANY

Except as stated in the heading titled “Properties” under the chapter titled “Our Business”, beginning on page 105
of this Prospectus, none of our directors have interest in any property acquired or proposed to be acquired by our
Company.

INTEREST IN PROMOTION OF THE COMPANY

Except Mr. Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra, Mr. Rajesh Kabra and Mr. Jagmohan Ramshankar Kabra, who
are the promoters of our Company, none of the Directors are interested in the promotion of our Company.

CHANGESIN OUR BOARD IN THE LAST THREE YEARS

Name of Director Date of Event Nature of Event Reason
. Appointment as Non-Executive
Aruna Bangur January 4, 2023 Appointment Independent Director
Santosh Kumar Rathi January 4, 2023 Appointment Appointment as Non-Executlve
Independent Director
. . . Appointment as Non-Executive
Y ogita Dharmendra Poriya January 4, 2023 Appointment Independent Director
Murli Manohar Ramshankar Changein Appointment as Managing
Kabra January 4, 2023 Designation Director
Rajesh Kabra January 4, 2023 Appointment Appol ntnl;?:écatsolrixecunve
Jagmohan Ramshankar . Appointment as Executive
Kabra January 4, 2023 Appointment Director

MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In additions to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the Corporate Governance,
provisions of the SEBI LODR Regulations will be applicable to our company immediately up on the listing of
Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges. As on date of this Prospectus, as our Company is coming with anissuein
terms of Chapter 1X of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 as amended from time to time, the requirement
specified in regulations 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of
regulation 46 and paraC, D and E of Schedule V isnot applicable to our Company, although we require to comply
with requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 wherever applicable. Our Company has complied with the corporate
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governance requirement, particularly in relation to appointment of independent directors including woman
director on our Board, congtitution of an Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

Our Company stands committed to good Corporate Governance practices based on the principles such as
accountability, trangparency in dealing with our stakeholders, emphasis on communication and transparent report.

Our Board functions either on its own or through committees constituted thereof, to oversee specific
operational areas. As on the date of this Prospectus, our Company has 6 (Six) Directors, comprising of 1 (One)
Managing Director, 2 (Two) Executive Directors and 3 (Three) Non-Executive Independent Directors including
2 (Two) Women Independent Directors.

COMMITTEES OF OUR BOARD

Our Board has congtituted the following committees including those for compliance with Corporate Governance
requirements:

A) Audit Committee
B) Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee
C) Nomination and Remuneration Committee

A) Audit Committee

As per section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, The Board of Directors of every listed company and such
other class or classes of companies, as may be prescribed, shall constitute an Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee shall consist of a minimum of three directors with independent directors forming a mgjority:
Provided that majority of members of Audit Committeeincluding its Chairperson shall be personswith ability
to read and understand, the financial statement.

Our Audit Committee was constituted pursuant to aresolution of our Board Meeting dated January 10, 2024.
The Audit Committee comprises of :

Name of the Directors Designation in Board Designation in Committee
Santosh Kumar Rathi Non- Executive Chairperson
Independent Director
Non- Executive
Aruna Bangur Independent Director Member
Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra Managing Director Member

The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company shall act as the Secretary of the Audit
Committee.

Set forth below are the scope, functions and the terms of reference of our Audit Committee:
Power/Responsibility of the Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee shall have powers, including the following:

1. toinvestigate any activity within its terms of reference

2. toseek information from any employee

3. toobtain outside legal or other professional advice; and

4. to secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary; and

5. such other powers as may be prescribed under the Companies Act and SEBI Listing Regulations.

Role of Audit Committee

Therole of the Audit Committee shall include the following:

1. Therecommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the company;

2. Oversight of the Company's financia reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to
ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

3. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financia statements before submission to the board for
approval, with particular reference to:
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16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21
22,
23.

24,
25,

26.

27.
28.
29.

30.

31.

32.
33.
34.

35.

36.

Matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board's report
in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management;
Significant adjustments made in the financia statements arising out of audit findings;

Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;

Disclosure of any related party transactions;

Qualificationsin the draft audit report; and

. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process.

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;

To oversee and review the functioning of the vigil mechanism which shall provide for adequate safeguards
against victimization of employees and directorswho avail of the vigil mechanism and also providefor direct
access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in appropriate and exceptional cases

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is
suspected fraud or irregularity or afailure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the
meatter to the board.

Call for comments of the auditors about internal control systems, scope of audit including the observations
of the auditor and review of the financial statements before submission to the Board,;

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors.

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well
as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings and follow up there on.

Examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon;

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;

Approva of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the
finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience & background,
etc. of the candidate.

Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly and half yearly financial statements before submission to the
board for approval

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is
suspected fraud or irregularity or afailure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the
meatter to the Board;

Discussion with statutory auditors, internal auditors, secretarial auditors and cost auditors before the audit
commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of
concern;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

Evaluation of internal financia controls and risk management systems;

Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses/ application of funds raised through an issue (public
issue, right issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated
in the offer document/Draft Prospectus/ Prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency
monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations
to the Board to take up stepsin this matter.

The Committee may call for the comments of the auditors about internal control systems, the scope of audit,
including the observations of the auditors and review of financia statement before their submission to the
Board and may also discuss any related issues with the internal and statutory auditors and the management
of the company.

The Committee shall have authority to investigate into any matter in relation to the items specified above or
referred to it by the Board and for this purpose shall have power to obtain professional advice from external
sources and have full accessto information contained in the records of the company.

To investigate any other matters referred to by the Board of Directors;

Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

Carrying out any other function as may be required / mandated as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and/or any other
applicable laws;

Reviewing the utilization of loan and/or advances from investment by the holding company in the subsidiary
exceeding X100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans
[ advances /investments;

the Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information:

144



B)

a. Management discussion and analysis of financial information and results of operations;

b. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by

the management;
Management letters/ letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;
Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and

oo

e. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall be subject to

review by the Audit Committee.

Meetings of the Audit Committee
Audit committee shall meet as and when required and not more than 120 days shall €l apse between 2 meeting.

The quorum of the meeting shall be either two members or one-third of the members, whichever is greater,
provided that there should be a minimum of two independent directors present.

The decisions at the committee meetings shall be by amajority of the votes of members present at the meeting
and in the event of equality of votes, the Chairperson shall have a second or casting vote.

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee:

As per section 178 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013, The Board of Directors of a Company which consists of
more than one thousand shareholders, debenture-holders, deposit-holders, and any other security holders at
any time during a financial year shall constitute a Stakeholders Relationship Committee consisting of a
chairperson who shall be a non-executive director and such other members as may be decided by the Board.

Our Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee was constituted pursuant to a resolution of our Board Meeting
dated January 10, 2024. The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee comprises of:

Name of the Directors Designation in Board Designation in Committee
Santosh Kumar Rathi Non- Executive |ndependent Director Chairperson
Aruna Bangur Non- Executive |ndependent Director Member
Rajesh Kabra Executive Director Member

Set forth below are the scope, functions and the terms of reference of our Stakeholders Relationship
Committee:

Role of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee
The Role of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee shall include the following, but shall not be limited to:

Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints related to transfer of
shares or debentures, including non-receipt of share or debenture certificates and to review of casesfor refusal
of transfer / transmission of shares and debentures, non-receipt of annual report or balance sheet, non-receipt
of declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc. and assisting with quarterly
reporting of such complaints.

1. Review of measurestaken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders

2. Investigating complaints relating to allotment of shares, approval of transfer or transmission of shares,

3.

debentures, or any other securities

Giving effect to all transfer/transmission of shares and debentures, demateriaisation of shares and re-
materialisation of shares, split and issue of duplicate/consolidated share certificates, compliance with al the
requirements related to shares, debentures and other securities from time to time

Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various services being
rendered by the registrar and share transfer agent of the Company and to recommend measures for overall
improvement in the quality of investor services

Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum of
unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the
sharehol ders of the company; and

Carrying out such other functions as may be specified by the Board from time to time or specified/provided
under the Companies Act or SEBI Listing Regulations, or by any other regulatory authority. The
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee is required to meet at least oncein ayear under Regulation 20(3A) of
the SEBI Listing Regulations.
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M eetings of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee shall meet as often as required.
The quorum of the meeting shall be two members present.

The decisions at the committee meetings shall be by amajority of the votes of members present at the meeting
and in the event of equality of votes, the Chairperson shall have a second or casting vote.

Nomination and Remuner ation Committee

As per section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, The Board of Directors of every listed company and such
other class or classes of companies, as may be prescribed shall constitute the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee consisting of three or more non-executive directors out of which not less than one-half shall be
independent directors: Provided that the chairperson of the company (whether executive or non-executive)
may be appointed as a member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee but shall not chair such
Committee.

Our Nomination and Remuneration Committee was constituted pursuant to aresolution of our Board Meeting
dated January 10, 2024. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of:

Name of the Directors Designation in Board Designation in Committee
Santosh Kumar Rathi Non- Executive |ndependent Director Chairperson
Aruna Bangur Non- Executive |ndependent Director Member
Y ogita Dharmendra Poriya Non- Executive |ndependent Director Member

Set forth below are the scope, functions and the terms of reference of our Nomination and Remuneration
Committee:

Role of Nomination and Remuner ation Committee

The Role of Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall include the following, but shall not be limited
to:

1. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director
and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel

and other employees (“Remuneration Policy”).

2. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee, while formulating the above policy, should ensure that:
i.  Thelevel and composition of remuneration be reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and
motivate directors of the quality required to run our Company successfully
ii. Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks; and
iii. Remuneration to directors, key manageria personnel and senior management involves a balance
between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short- and long-term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

3. Formulation of criteriafor evaluation of independent directors and the Board
4. Devising apolicy on Board diversity

5. ldentifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management
in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and

carrying out evaluation of every director’s performance (including independent director)
6. Analysing, monitoring and reviewing various human resource and compensation matters
7

Deciding whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of

the report of performance evaluation of independent directors

8. Determining the Company’s policy on specific remuneration packages for executive directors including

pension rights and any compensation payment, and determining remuneration packages of such directors

9. Recommending to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management and other

staff, as deemed necessary

10. Carrying out any other functions required to be carried out by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
as contained in the SEBI Listing Regulations or any other applicable law, as and when amended from time

totime
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11.

12.

13.

14.

Reviewing and approving the Company’s compensation strategy from time to time in the context of the then
current Indian market in accordance with applicable laws.
Perform such functions as are required to be performed by the compensation committee under the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014, if applicable.
Frame suitable policies, procedures and systems to ensure that there is no violation of securities laws, as
amended from time to time, including:
i the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
and
ii. the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Fraudulent and Unfair Trade Practices
Relating to the Securities Market) Regulations, 2003, by the trust, the Company and its
employees, as applicable.
Perform such other activities as may be delegated by the Board or specified/ provided under the Companies
Act, 2013 to the extent notified and effective, as amended or by the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended or by any other applicable
law or regulatory authority. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is required to meet at least once
in ayear under Regulation 19(3A) of the SEBI Listing Regulation.

M eetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall meet as often as required.

The quorum of the meeting shall be either two members or one-third of the members, whichever is greater,
provided that there should be a minimum of one independent directors present.

The decisions at the committee meetings shall be by amajority of the votes of members present at the meeting
and in the event of equality of votes, the Chairperson shall have a second or casting vote.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

PROFILE OF KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The details of the Key Managerial Personnel as on the date of this Prospectus are set out below.

Sr. No. | Particulars Details
1 Name Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra
Designation Managing Director
Date of Joining He has been the Director of the Company since the incorporation of
the Company and was appointed as the Managing Director of the
Company w.e.f. January 04, 2024
Qualification Diplomain Mechanical Engineering
Term of Office 5years, i.e., with effect from January 4, 2024 to January 3, 2029
Experience Mr. Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra, aged 60 years, is one of the
Promotors of our Company. He has been part of the Board since
inception and is currently designated as Managing Director of our
Company with effect from January 4, 2024. He has completed his
Diploma in Mechanica Engineering conducted by Government
Polytechnic College, Bhopa (MP). He has a long standing and rich
experience of more than 2 decades in window & fagade industry. He
has been a part of humerous Indian projects and worked with both
Indian & International Brands. He has a very strong presence in
fenestration industry and an excellent connect from client to supply
chain.
Details of Previous NA
Employment
2. Name Varsha Amrutlal Shah
Designation Chief Financial Officer

Date of Joining

She had joined the Company on February 10, 2014 as Accounts
Manager and subsequently was appointed as the Chief Financia
Officer of the Company w.e.f. January 04, 2024

Qualification

B.Com.

Term of Office

NA
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Experience

She have over 2 Decade of experience in the field of Finance and
Accounts and have been associated with our Company since February
10, 2014. She currently isthe Chief Financial Officer of our Company
heading the Finance Department of the Company.

Details of Previous

1. Galaxystar Pharma Pvt Ltd — Accountant

Employment 2. Arrow Pipes & Fittings FZCO (Dubai-UAE) — Accounts Assistant
3. Name ShripriyaMishra

Designation Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Date of Joining January 04, 2024

Qualification ACS

Term of Office NA

Experience She has post qualification experience of over 1 decade in the field of

Compliance. Sheisjoined the Company on January 04, 2024 to head
the Compliance Division of the Company.

Details of Previous
Employment

1. Alliancebernstein Solutions (India) Private Limited — Company
Secretary

2. Landbase India Limited — Company Secretary
3. Logix Developers Private Limited — Company Secretary

SERVICE CONTRACTSWITH KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Our Key Managerial Personnel have not entered into any service contracts with our Company which provide for
any benefits upon termination of their employment in our Company.

RELATIONSHIP AMONG KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND AMONG KEY MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL AND DIRECTORS

Except as mentioned below, none of the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company are related to each other
and/or to the Directors of the Company within the meaning of Section 2(77) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Key Managerial Personnel Other Key Managerial Personnél / Director Relationship
Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra | Rajesh Kabra, Executive Director Brother
Jagmohan Ramshankar Kabra, Executive Director Brother

ARRANGEMENT OR UNDERSTANDING WITH MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS, CUSTOMERS,
SUPPLIERSOR OTHERSPURSUANT TO WHICH ANY OF THE KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
WASSELECTED ASA KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

None of the Key Manageria Personnel has been selected pursuant to any arrangement or understanding with
major shareholders, customers, suppliers or others, as key manageria personnel of the Company.

REMUNERATION/ COMPENSATION PAID TO OUR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Details of remuneration paid to Key Managerial Personnel in previous year (FY 2022-23) isasfollows:

Sl. No. Name of Executive Director Details Amount in Lakhs
1 Murli Manohar Ramshankar K abra Remuneration 18.00
Bonus 3.00

Remuneration 6.38

2 Varsha Shah BonLs o5
iDFi i Remuneration NA

3. Shripriya Mishra Bonls nA

BONUS AND/ OR PROFIT-SHARING PLAN FOR THE KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
Our Company does not have any bonus and/ or profit sharing plan for the Key Managerial Personnel. However,

our Company makes bonus payments to the employees based on their performances, which is as per their terms
of appointment.

148



CONTINGENT AND DEFERRED COMPENSATION PAYABLE TO KEY MANAGERIAL

PERSONNEL

Thereis no contingent or deferred compensation payable to Key Managerial Personnel, which does not form part

of their remuneration.

STATUSOF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL IN OUR COMPANY

All our Key Managerial Personnel are permanent employees of our Company.

SHAREHOLDING OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL IN OUR COMPANY

The details of the shareholding of our Key Managerial Personnel as on the date of this Prospectus are as follows:

Name of the Key . Percentage of | Percentage of
I\Slrd Managerial Designation No.s?:alfg.uty Pre-lssue Post-1ssue
) Per sonnel Capital (%) Capital (%)
1 Murli Manohar Managing 63,90,468 35.02% 25.72%
Ramshankar Kabra Director
2 | VarshaAmrutla Shah | SHief Financia NIL NA NA
Officer
I . Company
3 | ShripriyaMishra Secretary NIL NA NA
Total 63,90,468 35.02% 25.72%

CHANGES IN OUR COMPANY’S KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL DURING THE LAST THREE
(3) YEARS

Changes in our Key Management Personnel during the three years immediately preceding the date of this
Prospectus are set forth below.

Name of KM P Event Date of change
Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra | Appointment as Managing Director January 4, 2024
Varsha Amrutlal Shah Appointment as Chief Financial Officer January 4, 2024
Shripriya Mishra Appointment as Company Secretary January 4, 2024

ATTRITION OF KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The Company before January 04, 2024 had no Key Manageria Personnel as defined under Companies Act, 2013
and hence the attrition rate cannot be determined.

EMPLOYEE SHARE PURCHASE AND EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN

Our Company does not have an employee stock option scheme as on the date of this Prospectus.

PAYMENT OF BENEFITSTO OFFICERS OF OUR COMPANY (NON-SALARY RELATED)

No non-salary related amount or benefit has been paid or given to any Key Management Personnel of our
Company within the two years preceding the date of filing of this Prospectus or is intended to be paid or given,
other than in the ordinary course of their employment.

INTERESTS OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

None of our Key Management Personnel has any interest in our Company except to the extent of their
remuneration, benefits, reimbursement of expenses incurred by them in the ordinary course of business. Our Key

Manageria Personnel and senior management may also be interested to the extent of Equity Shares, if any, held
by them and any dividend payable to them and other distributions in respect of such Equity Shares.
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SENIOR MANAGEMERIAL PERSONNEL

PROFILE OF SENIOR MANAGEMERIAL PERSONNEL

The details of the Senior Management Personnel as on the date of this Prospectus are set out below.

Sr. No. | Particulars Details
1 Name Govinda Jagmohan Kabra
Designation Chief Marketing Officer
Date of Joining He had joined the Company on May 10, 2015 as Assistant Business
Development Manager and subsequently was appointed as the Chief
Marketing Officer of the Company w.e.f. January 10, 2024
Qualification Bachelor of Technology (Mechanical)
Term of Office NA
Experience He has over 1 Decade of experience in the field of Business
Development and Marketing and have been associated with our
Company since May 2015. He currently isthe Chief Marketing Officer
of our Company heading the Business Development and Marketing
Division of the Company.
Details of Previous IBM India Private Limited
Employment
2. Name Akshat Murli Manohar Kabra
Designation Chief Technology Officer
Date of Joining He had joined the Company on September 01, 2020 as Design Manager
and subsequently was appointed as the Chief Technology Officer of the
Company w.e.f. January 10, 2024
Qualification Master in Science and Bachelor in Technology
Term of Office NA
Experience He has over 4 years of experience in the field of Designing and
Information Technology and have been associated with our Company
since September 2020. He currently isthe Chief Technology Officer of
our Company engaged in overseeing al IT infrastructure and
production system reguirement.
Details of Previous NA
Employment
3. Name Darshan Machhindra Aher
Designation VP — Plant Head
Date of Joining He had joined the Company on October 01, 2022 as Plant Head and
subsequently was appointed as the VP — Plant Head of the Company
w.e.f. January 10, 2024
Qualification Bachelor in Mechanical Engineering
Term of Office NA
Experience He has worked as General Manager of Operations (Plant Head) for one
year with Model Infra Corp.Pvt Ltd and has been heading the Factory
of the company as Plant Head since October 2022 and recently have
been promoted as the VP Plant Head of the Company.
He oversees the plant operations, ensuring seamless integration of
technical and commercial functions.
Details of Previous Model Infra Corp. Private Limited
Employment

SERVICE CONTRACTSWITH SENIOR MANAGEMERIAL PERSONNEL

Our Senior Management Personnel have not entered into any service contracts with our Company which provide
for any benefits upon termination of their employment in our Company.
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RELATIONSHIP AMONG SENIOR MANAGEMERIAL PERSONNEL AND AMONG KEY
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL AND DIRECTORS

Except as mentioned below, none of the Senior Management Personnel of the Company are related to each other
and/or to the Directors of the Company within the meaning of Section 2(77) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Key Managerial Personnel Other Key Managerial Personnel / Director Relationship
Govinda Jagmohan Kabra Jagmohan Ramshankar Kabra, Executive Director Son
Akshat Murli Manohar Kabra | Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra, Managing Director | Son

ARRANGEMENT OR UNDERSTANDING WITH MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS, CUSTOMERS,
SUPPLIERS OR OTHERS PURSUANT TO WHICH ANY OF THE SENIOR MANAGEMERIAL
PERSONNEL WASSELECTED ASA SENIOR MANAGEMERIAL PERSONNEL

None of the Senior Management Personnel has been selected pursuant to any arrangement or understanding with
major shareholders, customers, suppliers or others, as key manageria personnel of the Company.

REMUNERATION/ COMPENSATION PAID TO OUR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Details of remuneration paid to Senior Management Personnel in previous year (FY 2022-23) is asfollows:

Sl. No. Name of Executive Director Details Amount in Lakhs

i Remuneration 7.50

1 Govinda Jagmohan Kabra Bonus o
2 Akshat Murli Manohar Kabra Remuneration 6.94
Bonus 0.20

3 Darshan Machhindra Aher Remuneration 7.20
Bonus -

BONUS AND/ OR PROFIT-SHARING PLAN FOR THE SENIOR MANAGEMERIAL PERSONNEL
Our Company does not have any bonus and/ or profit sharing plan for the Senior Management Personnel.
However, our Company makes bonus payments to the employees based on their performances, which is as per
their terms of appointment.

CONTINGENT AND DEFERRED COMPENSATION PAYABLE TO SENIOR MANAGEMERIAL
PERSONNEL

Thereis no contingent or deferred compensation payable to Senior Management Personnel, which does not form
part of their remuneration.

STATUS OF SENIOR MANAGEMERIAL PERSONNELIN OUR COMPANY
All our Senior Management Personnel are permanent employees of our Company.
SHAREHOLDING OF SENIOR MANAGEMERIAL PERSONNELIN OUR COMPANY

The details of the shareholding of our Senior Management Personnel as on the date of this Prospectus are as
follows:

Name of the Key . Percentage of | Percentage of
’\Slro. Managerial Designation No.é)galfgjlty Pre-lssue Post-1ssue
) Per sonnel Capital (%) Capital (%)
1 Govinda Jagmohan Chi ef Marketing 771120 4.23% 3.10%
Kabra Officer
Akshat Murli Chief Technology o o
2 Manohar Kabra Officer 7,71,120 4.23% 3.10%
3 iﬁresrha” Machhindra. | \/p pyant Head NIL NA NA
Total 15,42,240 8.46% 6.20%
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CHANGES IN OUR COMPANY’S SENIOR MANAGEMERIAL PERSONNELDURING THE LAST
THREE (3) YEARS

Changes in our Senior Management Personnel during the three years immediately preceding the date of this
Prospectus are set forth below.

Name of KM P Event Date of change
Govinda Jagmohan Kabra Appointed as Chief Marketing Officer January 10, 2024
Akshat Murli Manohar Kabra Appointed as Chief Technology Officer January 10, 2024
Darshan Machhindra Aher Appointed as VP Plant Head January 10, 2024

ATTRITION OF SENIOR MANAGEMERIAL PERSONNEL

The Company before January 10, 2024 had no Senior Management Personnel as defined under Companies Act,
2013 and hence the attrition rate cannot be determined.

EMPLOYEE SHARE PURCHASE AND EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN

Our Company does not have an employee stock option scheme as on the date of this Prospectus.

PAYMENT OF BENEFITSTO OFFICERS OF OUR COMPANY (NON-SALARY RELATED)

No non-salary related amount or benefit has been paid or given to any Senior Management Personnel of our
Company within the two years preceding the date of filing of this Prospectus or is intended to be paid or given,
other than in the ordinary course of their employment.

INTERESTS OF SENIOR MANAGEMERIAL PERSONNEL

None of our Senior Management Personnel has any interest in our Company except to the extent of their
remuneration, benefits, reimbursement of expensesincurred by them in the ordinary course of business. Our Key
Manageria Personnel and senior management may aso be interested to the extent of Equity Shares, if any, held
by them and any dividend payable to them and other distributions in respect of such Equity Shares.

(Rest of the page isintentionally left blank)
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OUR PROMOTERSAND PROMOTER GROUP

OUR PROMOTERS

Ason the date of this Prospectus, the Promoters of our Company are Mr. Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra,
Mr. Rajesh Kabra, Mr. Jagmohan Ramshankar Kabra and M/s. Jagmohan Kabra HUF.

Ason the date of this Prospectus, the promoter shareholding is as under:

a.  Mr. Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra holds 63,90,468 Equity Shares, representing 35.02% of the

issued, subscribed, and paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company.

b. Mr. Rgesh Kabra holds 54,89,467 Equity Shares, representing 30.08% of the issued, subscribed, and

paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company.

c. Mr. Jagmohan Ramshankar Kabra holds 32,205 Equity Shares, representing 0.18% of the issued,
subscribed, and paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company.

d. M/s. Jagmohan Kabra HUF holds 26,76,240 Equity Shares, representing 14.67% of the issued,
subscribed, and paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company.

Ason the date of this Prospectus, Promoters and Promoter Group hold Equity shares of our company representing
98.22% of the issued, subscribed and paid-up Equity Share Capital of our Company. For further details, please
refer the chapter fitled “Capital Structure” on page 61 of this Prospectus.

Our Promoters and Promoter Group will continue to hold majority of the post-issue paid-up equity share capital

of our Company.

BRIEF PROFILE OF OUR PROMOTERSARE ASFOLLOWS:

Name Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra

DIN 00178667

Date of Birth March 29, 1963

Age 60

Address Flat No. 403, Bldg-G, Pam Project, Pam Court
Complex,
Link Road, Behind D-Mart, Malad West Dely
Mumbai — 400 064

Qualification Diplomain Mechanical Engineering

Brief Biography

Mr. Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra, aged 60
years, is one of the Promotors of our Company. He
has been part of the Board since inception and is
currently designated as Managing Director of our
Company with effect from January 4, 2024. He has
completed his Diplomain Mechanical Engineering
conducted by Government Polytechnic College,
Bhopa (MP). He has a long standing and rich
experience of more than 2 decades in window &
facade industry. He has been a part of numerous
Indian projects and worked with both Indian &
International Brands. He has a very strong
presence in fenestration industry and an excellent
connect from client to supply chain.

Occupation Businessman
Permanent Account AAMPK9044L
Number

Passport Number L 7357900

No. of Equity Shares
held in Company

[% of Shareholding
(Pre-lssug)]

63,90,468 Equity Shares, representing 35.02% of
the issued, subscribed, and paid-up Equity Share
capital
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Position/postsheld in
the past

He has been the Director of the Company in
executive role since the incorporation of the
Company and was appointed as the Managing
Director of the Company w.e.f. January 04, 2024

DirectorshipsHeld

Nil

=S¢ @

Other Venturesof the | Nil

Promoter

Achievements Nil

Name Rajesh Kabra

DIN 00178688

Date of birth July 20, 1965

Age 58

Address 401, Rustomjee, Ozone Tower-4,
Goregaon Mulund Link Road,
Near Mini Exchange, Goregaon West,
Mumbai - 400104

Qualification LLB

Brief Biography

Mr. Rajesh Kabra, aged 58 years, is one of the
Promotors of our Company. He has been part of
the Board since inception and is currently
designated as Executive Director of our Company.
He has completed is LLB from Dr Harisingh Gour
Vishwavidyalaya, Sagar (M.P.) He manages the
complete Logistics from the manufacturing facility
to construction site. He has an extensive
experience of more than 2 decadesin in window &
facade industry. He has strong connections in the
diverse segment of supply chain of fenestration &
facade industry. He understands the cost
sensitiveness in the market and optimizes the
resource in its full effectiveness to get the best
value for the product & services.

Occupation Businessman
Permanent Account AGQPK7572D
Number

Passport Number N3718216

No. of Equity Shares
held in Company

[% of Shareholding
(Pre-lssug)]

54,89,467 Equity Shares, representing 30.08% of
the issued, subscribed, and paid-up Equity Share
capital

Position/postsheld in
the past

He has been the Director of the Company in
executive role since the incorporation of the
Company and was appointed as the Executive
Director of the Company w.e.f. January 24, 2024

DirectorshipsHeld

Nil

Other Venturesof the | Nil
Promoter
Achievements Nil
Name Jagmohan Ramshankar Kabra
DIN 08247152
Date of birth December 6, 1960

- Age 63

. Address C-11-A, S. N. 201, Kumar Picasso, 17 1/2 Nali,
Pune City, Hadapsar, Pune - 411028

Qualification Mastersin Commerce

Brief Biography

Mr. Jagmohan Ramshankar Kabra, aged 63 years,
is one of the Promoters and an Executive Director
of our Company. He overlooks the entire
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manufacturing facility. He has obtained his Degree
in Masters of Commerce from Sagar University,
Hoshangabad (M.P). He has a rich experience of
more than a decade in window & fagade industry.
He has strong people connection which helps and
directs the Company on a broader scale.

Occupation Businessman

Permanent Account ABYPK9270B

Number

Passport Number 23944907

No. of Equity Shares | 32,205 Equity Shares, representing 0.18% of the
held in Company issued, subscribed, and paid-up Equity Share
[% of Shareholding | capital

(Pre-Issue)]

Position/postsheld in | He was appointed as an Additional Director of the
the past Company in executive role on October 05, 2018

and was regularized on September 30, 2019.
Subsequently was appointed as the Executive
Director of the Company w.e.f. January 24, 2024
DirectorshipsHeld Nil

Other Venturesof the | Nil
Promoter
Achievements Nil

JAGMOHAN KABRA HUF

HUF Information and History: Jagmohan Kabra HUF cameinto existence on September 1, 2006. Mr. Jagmohan
Ramshankar Kabra is the Karta and Mrs. Sunita Kabra, Mr. Govinda Jagmohan Kabra and Mr. Atharva
Jagmohan Kabra, Mrs. Radhika Kabra & Kiyansh Kabra are its coparceners.

PAN: AAEHJ5362E
Address: C-11-A, S. N. 201, Kumar Picasso, 17 1/2 Nali, Pune City, Hadapsar, Pune - 411028

Shareholding: 26,76,240 Equity Shares, representing 14.67% of theissued, subscribed, and pai d-up Equity Share
capital

For further details of the experience of our promoters in the business of our company, please refer the chapter
titled “Our Management” beginning on page 135 of this Prospectus.

DECLARATION

e  We confirm that the Permanent Account Number, Bank Account number, Passport number, Aadhaar Card
number and Driving License number of our Promoter have been submitted to the Stock Exchange at the
time of filing of the Prospectus with the Stock Exchange.

e  Our Promoter and the members of our Promoter Group have confirmed that they have not been identified
aswillful defaulters or fraudulent borrowers by the RBI or any other governmental authority.

e  Our Promoter have not been declared as a fugitive economic offender under the provisions of section 12 of
the Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018.

e No violations of securities |law have been committed by our Promoter or members of our Promoter Group,
in the past or is currently pending against them. None of (i) our Promoter and members of our Promoter
Group or persons in control of or on the boards of bodies corporate forming part of our Group Companies
(i) the Companies with which any of our Promoter are or were associated as a promoter, director or person
in control, are debarred or prohibited from accessing the capital markets or restrained from buying, selling,
or dealing in securities under any order or directions passed for any reasons by the SEBI or any other
authority or refused listing of any of the securitiesissued by any such entity by any stock exchangein India
or abroad.
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UNDERTAKING/ CONFIRMATIONS

None of our Promoter or Promoter Group or Group Company or person in control of our Company has been:
e prohibited or debarred from accessing or operating in the capital market or restrained from buying,
selling or dealing in securities under any order or direction passed by SEBI or any other authority or

o refused listing of any of the securitiesissued by such entity by any stock exchange, in India or abroad.

¢ Nomateria regulatory or disciplinary action istaken by any by astock exchange or regulatory authority
in the past one year in respect of our Promoters, Group Company and Company promoted by the
promoters of our company.

e There are no defaults in respect of payment of interest and principal to the debenture / bond / fixed
deposit holders, banks, FIs by our Company, our Promoters, Group Company and Company promoted
by the promoters during the past three years.

e Thelitigation record, the nature of litigation, and status of litigation of our Company, Promoters, Group
company and Company promoted by the Promoters are disclosed in chapter titled “Outstanding
Litigations and Material Developments” beginning on page 218 of this Prospectus.

CHANGE IN THE CONTROL OR MANAGEMENT OF OUR COMPANY IN LAST FIVE YEARS

Except as mentioned in the head “Details of Build up of our Promoter’s Shareholding” and head “Shareholding of
our Promoters and Promoter Group” in the chapter titled “Capital Structure” beginning on page 61 of this
Prospectus, there has not been any change in the control in the last five years.

COMMON PURSUITS CONFLICT OF INTEREST

None of our Promoter Group are engaged in business activities similar to that of our Company and accordingly,
our Promoter Group do not have common pursuits amongst Promoter Group and our Company. We shall adopt
the necessary procedures and practices as permitted by law to address any conflict situation as and when they arise.

INTEREST OF PROMOTERS

Our Promoters are interested in our Company to the extent (i) that they have promoted our Company; (ii) of their
shareholding and the shareholding of relatives in our Company and the dividend payable, if any and other
distributions in respect of the Equity Shares held by them or the relatives; (iii) of being Director of our Company
and the remuneration, sitting fees and reimbursement of expenses payable by our Company to them; (iv) that they
provided personal guarantees for the loans availed by our Company; (v) of their relatives having been appointed
to places of profit in our Company; and (vi) that our Company has undertaken transactions with them, or their
relatives or entities in which our Promoters hold shares.

For further details regarding the nature and extent of interest of our Promotersin our Company, please refer the
chapter titled “Our Management” beginning on page 135 of this Prospectus.

For details regarding the shareholding of our Promoters and Promoter Group in our Company, please refer the
head “Details of Build-up of our Promoter’s Shareholding” and head “Shareholding of our Promoters and
Promoter Group” in the chapter titled “Capital Structure” beginning on page 61 of this Prospectus

For detailsregarding the relatives having been appointed to places of profit in our Company, please refer Chapter
titted “Our Management” beginning on page 135 of this Prospectus & Chapter titled “Related Party
Transactions” beginning on page 197 of this Prospectus

For details regarding the transaction undertaken by our company with the promoters, promoter group, entitiesin
which our Promoters hold shares, please refer Chapter titled “Related Party Transactions” beginning on page
197 of this Prospectus.

Our Promoters are not interested as a member of a firm or company, and no sum has been paid or agreed to be
paid to our Promoters or to any firm or company in cash or shares or otherwise by any person either to induce him
to become, or to qualify him as a directors, promoters or otherwise for services rendered by such Promoters or by
such firm or company, in connection with the promotion or formation of our Company.
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INTEREST IN PROPERTY, LAND, CONSTRUCTION OF BUILDING AND SUPPLY OF
MACHINERY

Our Promoters have no interest, whether direct or indirect, in any property acquired by our Company within the
preceding three years from the date of this Prospectus or proposed to be acquired by it, or in any transaction by
our Company with respect to the acquisition of land, construction of building or supply of machinery.

PAYMENT OF BENEFIT TO PROMOTERS

Except as stated hereinabove in “Interest of Promoters” and the chapter titled “Related Party Transactions”
beginning on page 197 of this Prospectus, there has been no payment of benefits to our Promoters, members of
our Promoter Group and Group Entities, during the two years preceding the filing of this Prospectus.

MATERIAL GUARANTEES

Our Promoters have not given any material guaranteesto any third parties with respect to the Equity Shares, ason
the date of this Prospectus.

COMPANIESWITH WHICH OUR PROMOTERS HAVE DISASSOCIATED IN THE LAST THREE
YEARS

Our Promoters have not disassociated themselves as a Promoter(s) from any Company in three years preceding
the date of this Prospectus.

OUR PROMOTER GROUP

Apart from our Promoters, as per Regulation 2(1)(pp) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the following individuals
and entities shall form part of our Promoter Group:

A. Natural Personswho are part of the Promoter Group
1. Mohini Kabra
2. AshaDeepak Singhi
3. ManglaMurli Kabra
4. Akshat Murli Manohar Kabra
5. Nirgj Murli Manohar Kabra
6. Murlidhar Raghunathdas Rathi
7. Minakshi Murlidhar Rathi
8. Jaiprakash Murlidhar Rathi
9. Syjit Murlidhar Rathi
10. Lata Satish Kabra
11. Sangeeta Rgjesh Kabra
12. Anurag Rajesh Kabra
13. Aditi Kabra
14. Mohini Khator
15. Dharmendra Khator
16. Hemant Khator
17. Seema Shekhar Singhi
18. Shashi Somani
19. SunitaKabra
20. Govinda Jagmohan Kabra
21. Atharva Jagmohan Kabra
22. RadhikaKabra
23. Somanth Parasram Biyani
24. Jawahar Bihani
25. Shyam Sunder Bihani
26. ManglaMundra
27. Kiyansh Kabra

B. Entitiesforming part of Promoter Group:

1. Companies. There are no Companies forming a part of the Promoter Group.
2. LLPs Thereareno LLPsforming apart of the Promoter Group.
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Partner ship Firms: There are no partnership firms forming a part of the Promoter Group.

HUF: Murli Manohar KabraHUF & Rajesh Kabra HUF

Proprietary concern: There are no proprietary concerns forming a part of the Promoter Group.

Other Persons forming part of Promoter Group: There are no other persons forming a part of the
Promoter Group.

(Rest of the pageisintentionally left blank)
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GROUP ENTITIES OF OUR COMPANY

In terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the term “group companies of our Company”, for the purpose of
disclosure in this Prospectus, shall include:

1. companies with which there were related party transactions, during the period for which financial
information is disclosed in the Restated Financia Information, as covered under the applicable
accounting standards, and

2. such other companies as considered material by the Board pursuant to the Materiality Policy.

Accordingly, for (1) above, all such companies (other than the Promoters) with which there were related
party transactions during the periods covered in the Restated Financia Statements, as covered under the
Accounting Standard 18 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) shall be considered
as ‘Group Companies’ of the Company in terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

With respect to (2) above, our Board in its meeting held on January 10, 2024 has adopted the Materiality Policy
and has considered group companies of our Company to be such companies (other than the companies categorised
under (1) above) that are a part of the Promoter Group (as defined in Regulation 2(1)(pp) of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations) with which the our company has entered into one or more transactions in last restated financial
statement exceeding 10% of total revenue of our Company for the last Restated Financial Statements.

Based on the parameters outlined above, our Company does not have any group company as on the date of this
Prospectus.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Our Company does not have any formal dividend policy for the equity shares. Our Company can pay Fina
dividends upon arecommendation by Board of Directors and approval by majority of the members at the General
Meeting of the shareholders subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association and the Companies Act, 2013.
The Members of our Company have the right to decrease, not to increase the amount of dividend recommended
by the Board of Directors. The Articles of Association of our Company aso gives the discretion to Board of
Directors to declare and pay interim dividends.

The dividends may be paid out of profits of our Company in the year in which the dividend is declared or out of
the undistributed profits or reserves of previousfiscal yearsor out of both which shall be arrived at after providing
for depreciation in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The declaration and payment of
dividend will depend on anumber of factors, including but not limited to the results of operations, earnings, capital
requirements and surplus, general financial conditions, applicable Indian legal restrictions, contractual obligations
and restrictions, restrictive covenants under the loan and other financing arrangements to finance the various
projects of our Company and other factors considered relevant by our Board of Directors.

Interim Dividend/Dividends are payable within 30 days of approval by the Board of Directors of the Company or
the Equity Shareholders at the annua general meeting of our Company, respectively. When dividends are
declared, al the Equity Shareholders whose hames appear in the register of members of our Company as on the
“record date” are entitled to be paid the dividend declared by our Company. Any Equity Shareholder who ceases
to be an Equity Shareholder prior to the record date, or who becomes an Equity Shareholder after the record date,
will not be entitled to the dividend declared by our Company.

Our Company has not declared any dividends on the Equity Shares during the last three financial years, and the
period from March 31, 2023 until the date of this Prospectus. Our Company’s corporate actions pertaining to
payment of dividends in the past are not to be taken as being indicative of the payment of dividends by our
Company in the future.

(For the above details relating divident, we have relied upon the certificate dated January 29, 2024, UDIN —

24171607BKBFRC7684 issued by the Satutory Auditors of the Company i.e., M/s. RKegjriwal & Co., Chartered
Accountants)
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SECTION VII — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

RESTATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S EXAMINATION REPORT ON RESTATED FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

To,

The Board of Directors

ALUWIND ARCHITECTURAL LIMITED
604, Palm Spring Centre,

Link Road, Malad (West),

Mumbai City, Maharashtra,

India- 400064.

Dear Sir/Madam,

1.

We have examined, the attached Restated Financial Information of Aluwind Architectural Limited (formerly
known as Aluwind Architectural Private Limited) (the “Company” or the “I ssuer”), comprising:

a)

b)

©)

d)

the “Restated Statement of Assets and Liabilities” as at September 30, 2023 and March 31, 2023, 2022
and 2021;

the “Restated Statement of Profit and Loss” for the six-month period ended September 30, 2023 and for
the years ended March 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021,

the “Restated Statement of Cash Flows” for the six-month period ended September 30, 2023 and for the
years ended March 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021; and

the “Summary of significant accounting policies and relevant notes to the Restated Financial
Information” for the six-month period ended September 30, 2023 and for the years ended March 31,
2023, 2022 and 2021,

(Hereinafter together referred to as the “Restated Financial Information™), as approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 10™ January’ 2024 for the purpose of inclusion in the
Draft Prospectus (“DP”") and Prospectus to be prepared by the Company in connection with its proposed
initial public offer of equity shares (“SME IPO”).

These restated summary statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of

a)

b)

0)

Section 26 of Part I of Chapter III of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act") as amended from time to time;

The Securitiesand Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2018, as amended to date (the "SEBI ICDR Regulations") issued by the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (the “SEBI”); and

The Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (Revised 2019) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”), as amended from time to time (the “Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for the Restated Financial Statements

3.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the Restated Financial Information
for the purpose of inclusion in the DP and Prospectus to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (“SEBI”), SME platform of NSE Limited (“NSE”) and the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai,
Maharashtra (“ROC Mumbai”), where the equity shares of the Company are proposed to be listed (“Stock
Exchanges”), in connection with the proposed IPO. The Restated Financial Information have been prepared
by the management of the Company in accordance with the basis of preparation stated in Note 2 forming part
of ‘Significant Accounting Policies’ of the Restated Financia Information.
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The Board of Directors of the Company isresponsible for designing, implementing and maintaining adequate
internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Restated Financial Information. The Board
of Directors are also responsible for identifying and ensuring that the Company complieswith the Act, ICDR
Regulations and the Guidance Note.

Auditor’s Responsibilities

4,

We have examined such Restated Financial Information taking into consideration:

a) The terms of reference and terms of our engagement agreed upon with you in accordance with our
engagement letter dated 04™ January, 2024 in connection with the proposed SME IPO of equity shares
of the Company;

b) The Guidance Note. The Guidance Note also requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of
the Code of Ethicsissued by the ICAI;

¢) Concepts of test checks and materiality to obtain reasonable assurance based on verification of evidence
supporting the Restated Financial Information; and

d) The requirements of Section 26 of the Act and the ICDR Regulations. Our work was performed solely
to assist you in meeting your responsibilities in relation to your compliance with the Act, the ICDR
Regulations and the Guidance Note, in connection with the proposed PO of equity shares of the
Company.

These Restated Financial Information have been compiled by the Company’s management from:

a) Audited specia purpose interim financial statements of the Company as at and for the six month period
ended September 30, 2023 prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standard 25 “Interim Financial
Reporting” notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 as amended, to the extent applicable, and the presentation requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP) which was approved
by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 04™" January, 2024; and

b) Audited Financial Statements of the Company as at and for years ended March 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021,
prepared in accordance with the IGAAP which were approved by the Board of Directors at their meetings
held on September 29, 2023, September 20, 2022 and November 18, 2021 respectively.

¢) Asat and for the year ended 31st March 2023; from the financial statements prepared by the company
in accordance with the Indian GAAP and reaudited by us, as the previous auditor was not required to
undergo Peer Review and there was the requirement of reaudit as per the SEBI Guidelines. The same
have been approved by the board of directors at their meeting held on 04" January, 2024.

For the purpose of our examination, we have relied on:

a) Auditors’ report issued by us dated 04" January, 2024 on the Specia Purpose Interim Financial
Statements of the Company for the six-month period ended September 30, 2023, and

b) Auditors’ report issued by Shyam Saboo & Co (the “Previous Auditors™) dated 29/09/2023, 20/09/2022
and 18/11/2021 on the Financial Statements of the Company as at and for the years ended March 31,
2023, 2022 and 2021 as referred in paragraph 5 above.

Opinion

7.

Based on our examination and according to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the
Restated Financial Information:

a) have been prepared after incorporating adjustments for the change in accounting policies, materia errors
and regrouping/reclassifications, if any, retrospectively in the financial years ended March 31, 2023,
2022 and 2021 to reflect the same accounting treatment as per the accounting policies and
grouping/classifications followed as at and for the six-month period ended September 30, 2023;
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b) does not require any adjustment for modification as there is no modification in the underlying audit
reports referred in paragraph 6 above; and

c) have been prepared in accordance with the Act, ICDR Regulations and the Guidance Note.

8. We have not audited any financial statements of the company as of any date or for any period subsequent to
31st March 2023. Accordingly, we express no opinion on the financial position, results of operations, cash
flows and statement of changesin equity of the Company as of any date or for any period subsequent to 30th
September 2023.

9. The Restated Financial Information do not reflect events that occurred subsequent to the respective dates of
the reports on the special purpose interim financial statements and audited financial statements mentioned in
paragraph 5 above.

10. Thisreport should not in any way be construed as areissuance or re-dating of any of the previous audit reports
issued by us or the Previous Auditors, nor should this report be construed as a new opinion on any of the
financial statements referred to herein.

11. We have no responsibility to update our report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of the
report.

Restriction on use

12. Our report is intended solely for use of the Board of Directors for inclusion in the DP/Prospectus with the
SEBI, NSE and ROC Mumbai for the proposed SME IPO. Our report should not be used, referred to, or
distributed for any other purpose except with our prior consent in writing. Accordingly, we do not accept or
assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is
shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing.

For R Kgriwal & CO.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 133558W/

Sd/_

CA Khushboo Shah

Partner

Membership Number: 171607
UDIN: 24171607BKBFQJ8914
Place: Surat

Date: 10.01.2024
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ALUWIND ARCHITECTURAL LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN ASALUWIND ARCHITECTURAL PRIVATE LIMITED)

RESTATED STATEMENT OF ASSETSAND LIABILITIES

(R in Lakhs)
Sr. No Particulars Notes For the six-months For the year ended March 31,
period ended
September 30, 2023 2023 2022 2021
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1) Shareholders’ Funds
a. Share Capita 4 253.44 253.44 12.07 10.77
b. Reserves & Surplus 5 1816.09 1449.13 1417.80 1030.56
2069.53 1702.56 1429.87 1041.33
2) Share Application Money Pending Allotment - - - -
3) Non-Current Liabilities
a Long Term Borrowings 6 104.57 105.13 114.67 105.98
b. Long Term Provisions 7 18.53 8.69 5.60 7.46
123.10 113.81 120.27 113.44
4) Current Liabilities
a. Short Term Borrowings 8 889.41 602.39 524.26 330.08
b. Trade Payables 9
Total Outstandlng dues of Micro enterprises 48075 35357 253,53 282,06
and small enterprises
Total O_utaandl ng _dues of creditors othq 506.87 736.03 40013 200.99
than Micro enterprises and small enterprises
c. Other Current Liabilities 10 706.13 486.36 472.85 176.17
d. Short Term Provisions 11 131.34 91.80 31.85 33.65
Total Current Liabilities 2,714.51 2,270.15 1,682.61 1,022.96
Total Equity & Liabilities 4,907.14 4,086.53 3,232.74 2,177.73
ASSETS
1) Non Current Assets
a. Property, Plant & Equipment and 12
Intangible Assets
i. Tangible Assets 647.38 614.96 541.09 323.39
ii. Intangible Assets 0.09 0.09 0.09 0.19
iii. Intangible Assets under devel opment 7.18 3.82 - -
iv. Capital Work in Progress - - - 4.40
b. Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 13 8.48 4.92 3.45 (0.52)
c. Non-current Investments 14 52.61 171.80 171.80 135.35
d. Long Term Loans & Advances 15 96.61 96.61 96.61 99.15
e. Other Non Current Assets 16 11.80 10.46 10.79 11.66
824.14 902.66 823.83 573.62
2) Current Assets
a Current Investments - - - -
b. Inventories 17 716.72 938.88 787.08 562.07
c. Trade Receivables 18 1,917.12 1,428.07 1,106.36 764.83
d. Cash and Cash Equivalents 19 129.40 88.41 71.24 112.09
e. Short Term Loans & Advances 20 152.22 95.10 109.17 25.06
f. Other Current Assets 21 1,167.52 633.41 335.07 140.05
Total Current Assets 4,082.99 3,183.87 2,408.91 1,604.11
Total Assets 4,907.14 4,086.53 3,232.74 2,177.73

The accompanying notes form an integral part of restated financials statements
As per our report of even date attached

For RKegriwal & Co
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-

Khushboo Shah
Partner

FRN: 133558W

M.No.: 171607

Date: 10/01/2024

Place: Surat

UDIN: 24171607BK BFQJ8914

For and on behalf of Aluwind Architectural Limited

Sd/-

Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra

DIN: 00178667
Managing Director

Sa/-

Varsha Amrutlal Shah
Chief Financial Officer

Sd/-

Rajesh Kabra
DIN: 00178688
Executive Director

Sd/-

Shripriya Mishra
Company Secretary




ALUWIND ARCHITECTURAL LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN ASALUWIND ARCHITECTURAL PRIVATE LIMITED)

RESTATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND L OSS

(R in Lakhs)
Sr. No Particulars Notes For the six-months For theyear ended March 31,
period ended
September 30, 2023 2023 2022 2021
A INCOME
Revenue from Operations 22 4,136.15 4,886.72 2,898.65 2,128.35
Other Income 23 6.82 13.90 26.48 10.94
Total Income (A) 4,142.96 4,900.62 2,925.13 2,139.29
B EXPENDITURE
Cost of materials consumed 24 2,925.72 3,761.72 2,229.60 1,556.18
Purchase of Stock in Trade - - - -
Change in Inventories 25 89.24 (52.23) (17.03) 6.84
Employee benefit expenses 26 372.63 496.95 367.44 256.96
Finance costs 27 40.55 51.10 45.11 50.26
Depreciation and amortisation expense 28 42.61 78.81 61.00 40.12
Administrative Selling & Other Expenses 29 174.42 204.55 133.14 114.89
Total Expenses (B) 3,645.16 4,540.89 2,819.26 2,025.25
C Pr ofit befor e exceptional, extraordinary 497.80 35973 105.87 114.04
itemsand tax (A-B)
Exceptiond items - - - -
D Profit befor e extraordinary items and tax 497.80 359.73 105.87 114.04
Extraordinary Expenses - - - -
E Profit beforetax 497.80 359.73 105.87 114.04
Tax expense
(i) Current tax 128.54 91.14 31.05 32.53
(i) Earlier Year Tax Adjustment - - - -
(i) Deferred tax (3.56) (1.46) (3.97) 459
F Total Tax Expense 124.97 89.67 27.08 37.12
G Profit after tax (E-F) 372.83 270.05 78.80 76.92
Adjusted Earning per equity share 30
(face value of Rs 10/- each): Basic (in R9) 1471 1066 311 305
Adjusted Earning per equity share
(face value of Rs 10/- each): Diluted (in Rs) 1471 1066 311 3.03

The accompanying notes form an integral part of restated financials statements
As per our report of even date attached

For RKegriwal & Co
Chartered Accountants

Sa/-

Khushboo Shah
Partner

FRN: 133558W

M.No.: 171607

Date: 10/01/2024

Place: Surat

UDIN: 24171607BK BFQJ8914

For and on behalf of Aluwind Architectural Limited

Sd/-

Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra

DIN: 00178667
Managing Director

Sd/-
Varsha Amrutlal Shah
Chief Financial Officer

Sd/-
Rajesh Kabra
DIN: 00178688

Executive Director

Sd/-

Shripriya Mishra
Company Secretary

165




ALUWIND ARCHITECTURAL LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN ASALUWIND ARCHITECTURAL PRIVATE LIMITED)

RESTATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(R in Lakhs)
Particulars For the six-months For theyear ended March 31,
period ended

September 30, 2023 2023 2022 2021
Cash flow from operating activities:
Net Profit before tax as per Profit And Loss A/c 497.80 359.73 105.87 114.04
Adjusted for:
Depreciation & Amortisation 42.61 78.81 61.00 40.12
Interest & Finance Cost 40.55 51.10 45.11 50.26
Other Income (0.49) (2.58) (2.91) (2.82)
Profit or Loss on digposal of assets (1.19) (0.57) 14.84 1.08
Restated adjustments- Prior period item (5.86) 2.64 4.75 1.04
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 57341 489.13 228.66 203.72
Adjusted for (Increase)/ Decrease:
Inventories 222.16 (151.80) (225.01) 236.39
Trade Receivables (489.05) (321.71) (341.53) (228.39)
L oans and advances and other assets (591.24) (284.27) (276.57) (97.37)
Liabilities & Provisons 167.18 512.49 463.61 219.58
Cash Generated From Operations (117.54) 243.83 (150.83) 333.94
Direct Tax Paid (128.54) (91.14) (31.05) (32.53)
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Operating Activities: (A) (246.07) 152.70 (181.88) 301.40
Cash Flow From Investing Activities:
(Purchase)/Sale of Fixed Assets (78.50) (155.93) (293.44) (32.14)
Increase in Non-Current Assets (1.34) 0.33 0.88 (2.10)
(Purchase)/Sale of Investments 120.50 - (32.06) (4.40)
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Investing Activities: (B) 40.66 (155.60) (324.62) (38.64)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
Proceeds From Share Capital & Share Premium - - 304.99 -
Proceeds/(Repayment) from Long/ Short Term Borrowing-Net 286.47 68.59 202.86 (164.46)
Other Income 0.49 2.58 291 2.82
Interest & Finance Cost (40.55) (51.10) (45.11) (50.26)
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Financing Activities ( C) 246.41 20.07 465.66 (211.90)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 41.00 17.16 (40.85) 50.86
Cash & Cash Equivaents As At Beginning of the Y ear 88.41 71.24 112.09 61.23
Cash & Cash Equivalents As At End of the Year 129.40 88.41 71.24 112.09

Statement of cash flow has been prepared under the indirect methord as set out in AS-3 on statement of cashflows specified under Sec-
133 of Companies Act,2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Componentsof closing cash & cash equivalents:

Balances with Banks
- Current Account 1.38 191 17.75 4.82
- in Fixed Deposits (Marked aslein) 117.84 82.41 51.81 105.97
Cash on hand 10.18 4.09 1.69 1.30
129.40 88.41 71.24 112.09

The accompanying notes form an integral part of restated financials statements

As per our report of even date attached

For RKegriwal & Co
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of Aluwind Architectural Limited

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Khushboo Shah Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra Rajesh Kabra
Partner DIN: 00178667 DIN: 00178688
FRN: 133558W Managing Director Executive Director
M.No.: 171607

Date: 10/01/2024 Sd/- Sd/-

Place: Surat Varsha Amrutlal Shah Shripriya Mishra

UDIN: 24171607BK BFQJ8914

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES TO ACCOUNTS TO RESTATED FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

1. CorporateInformation

ALUWIND ARCHITECTURAL LIMITED ("the Company") formerly known as ALUWIND
ARCHITECTURAL PRIVATE LIMITED is a public limited company domiciled in India, incorporated on
April 22, 2003 under the provisions of erstwhile Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the Company
is located at 604, Palm Spring Centre, Link Road, Maad (West), Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400064. The
Company is engaged in the business of fabrication and installation of Aluminium Windows and Glass Facade
Work.

The Company was converted to public limited vide board resolution dated 03" October’ 2023 having effect
from 39 January’2024.

2. Basisof Preparation & Presentation of Restated Financial Information
2.1. Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation & Presentation

The Restated Statement of Assets and Liabilities as at September 30, 2023 and March 31, 2023, 2022
and 2021, the Restated Statement of Profit and Loss and the Restated Statement of Cash Flows for the
six-month period ended September 30, 2023 and years ended March 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021 together
with summary of relevant notes to accounts and significant accounting policies are collectively referred
to asthe Restated Financial Information.

The Restated Financial Information have been prepared by the Management of the Company for the
purpose of inclusion in the Draft Prospectus (‘DP’) / Prospectus to be filed by the Company with the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (“NSE”) and the
Registrar of Companies, Mumbai (“ROC Mumbai”) in connection with proposed Initial Public Offering
(“IPO”) of equity shares of the Company (“the Offer”).

The Restated Financia Information have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of:
a) Section 26 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”);

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capita and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018 as amended (“ICDR Regulations”); and

¢) The Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectus (Revised 2019) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) as amended (“the Guidance Note™).

The Restated Financia Information have been compiled by the Management from:

a) Audited specia purpose interim financial statements of the Company as at and for the six month
period ended September 30, 2023, prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards notified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2006 as amended, to the extent applicable, and the presentation requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP) which was
approved by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 04" January’ 2024 and

b) Audited Financia Statements of the Company as at and for years ended March 31, 2023, March 31,
2022 and March 31, 2021, prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards notified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules,
2006 as amended, to the extent applicable, and the presentation requirements of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP) which has been approved by the
Board of Directors at their meeting held on September 29, 2023, September 20, 2022 and November
18, 2021 respectively.
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The Restated Financial Information have been:

a) prepared after incorporating adjustments for the changes in accounting policies, material errors and
regrouping/reclassifications retrospectively in the financial years ended March 31, 2023, March 31,
2022 and March 31, 2021 to reflect the same accounting treatment as per the accounting policies
and grouping/classifications followed as at and for the six-month period ended September 30, 2023;

b) prepared after incorporating the tax impact resulting from the aforesaid adjustments, if any.

The Restated Financial Information do not reflect the effects of events that occurred subsequent to the
respective dates of board meeting for adoption of the Audited Financial Statements and the Special
Purpose Interim Financial Statements.

The Restated Financia Information of the Company were approved by the Board of Directors vide
resolution dated 10™ January’2024.

2.2. Functional and Presentation Currency

The Restated Financial Information are presented in Indian Rupees () which is the functional and the
presentation currency of the Company and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs with two decimals,
except when otherwise indicated.

2.3. Basis of Measurement
The Restated Financia Information have been prepared on historical cost basis.

A historical cost is a measure of value used for accounting in which the price of an asset on the balance
sheet isbased on its historical cogt, it isgenerally fair value of consideration given in exchange for goods
and services at the time of transaction or original cost when acquired by the Company.

2.4. Key Accounting Estimates & Judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IGAAP requires the Management of the
Company to make judgements, estimates and assumptions in the application of the accounting policies
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results may differ from
these estimates. Continuous evaluation is done on the estimation and judgements based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

The Restated Financia Information have been prepared using the significant accounting policies summarised
below. These were used throughout all the periods presented in the Restated Financial Information.

3.1. Current and Non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilitiesin the Statement of Assets and Liabilities based on current /
non-current classification.

Anasset it is classified as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

Expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
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3.2.

3.3.

A liability is classified as current when:
e |tisExpected to be settled in normal operating cycle,
e Itisheld primarily for the purpose of trading,
e |tisdueto be settled within 12 months after the reporting period, or
e Thereisno unconditiona right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has determined its operating cycle, as explained in schedule 111
of the Companies Act, 2013, as twelve months, having regard to the nature of business being carried out
by the Company. The same has been considered for classifying assets and liabilities as current and non-
current while preparing the financial statements.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded on initial recognition in the reporting currency, using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Subsequently, at each Balance Sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing
rate, whereas non-monetary items are carried at historical cost, determined using the exchange rate at the
date of the transaction.

Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting of monetary items at
each Balance Sheet date at the closing rate are recognised as income or expense in the period in which
they arise.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of property, plant and equipment comprisesits purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates,
but includes import duties and other non — refundable purchase taxes and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to working condition and location for itsintended use, including relevant borrowing
costs.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probabl e that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance cost
are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which they were incurred.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Material items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and service equipment are classified as property,
plant and equipment when they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment as specified in AS
10 — Property, Plant and Equipment.

Anitem of property, plant, and equipment is derecognized upon its disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal of the item of property, plant,
and equipment isincluded in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Capital subsidy receivable, if any has been deducted from the gross block of the Property, Plant &
equipments.

An item of property, plant and equipment that is not ready for itsintended use on the date of the Balance
Sheet is disclosed as “Capital work-in-progress”.
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3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

3.7.

Inventories

Inventory includes raw materials, work-in-progress, stores and spares and finished goods which are
valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. The Company used First-In-First-Out (FIFO)or Specific
Identification Method for valuing its inventory.

Cost of inventory comprisesall costs of purchase, cost of conversion and other costsincurred in bringing
theinventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated cost
of completion and the estimated cost necessary to make the sale.

The Company reviews the condition of its inventories and makes provision against obsolete and slow —
moving inventory items which are identified as no longer suitable for sale or use. Obsolete and slow —
moving items are valued at cost or estimated net realisable value, whichever is lower. Any write down
of inventories is recognised as an expense during the year. However, the value of raw materials, stores
and spares is not impaired to its net realisable value and is carried at cost where the finished good in
which they are used is sold at or above cost.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash on hand and at banks and short-term
investments with original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changesin value. It also includes fixed deposits made by the Company, which are marked aslien against
the bank guarantees offered by the Company.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of
the Company’s cash management.

Investments

Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the
date on which such investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments
are classified as long-term investments.

On initia recognition, al investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price and
directly attributable acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.

Current investments are carried in the Restated Financial Information at lower of cost and fair value
determined for each category separately. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision
for diminution in vaue is made to recognize a decline other than temporary in the value of the
investments.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is
charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss.

I ntangible assets and amortisation

Intangible assets are stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated
amortisation and cumulative impairment. Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the
future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the
asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are amortized over their useful life as follows:
Specialised software: over a period of six years.

Technical know-how: over aperiod of six yearsin case of foreign technology and three yearsin the case
of indigenous technology.

Development costs for new products: over a period of five years.
Administrative and other general overhead expenses that are specifically attributable to acquisition of

intangible assets are allocated and capitalised as a part of the cost of the intangible assets. Intangible
assets not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed as “intangible assets
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3.8.

3.9.

underdevelopment”. Amortisation on impaired assets is provided by adjusting the amortisation charges
in the remaining periods so as to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount over its remaining useful
life.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as aresult
of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
When the Company expects some or all of aprovision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net
of any reimbursement.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non—occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Company or apresent obligation that is not recognized becauseit isnot probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or reliable estimate of the sameis
possible. A contingent liability also arisesin extremely rare cases where thereisaliability that cannot be
recognized because it cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent asset is not recognised unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic
benefits will arise. When an inflow of economic benefits is probable, contingent asset are disclosed.

Contingent assets and liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
Taxes

Current Income Tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences between the income accounted in financial statements
and the taxable income for the year, and quantified using the tax rates and laws enacted or substantively
enacted as on the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets relating to unabsorbed depreciation/business losses/losses under the head “capital
gains” are recognised and carried forward to the extent there is virtual certainty that sufficient future
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

Other deferred tax assets are recognised and carried forward to the extent that there is a reasonable
certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets
can berealised.

3.10. Employee Benefit Expenses

Short-term Employee Benefits

All employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short term employee benefits. The benefits like salaries, wages, short term compensated absences etc.,
and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the
related service.

Post-employment Benefits
Defined Contribution Plans
The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, during the
period in which employeerenderstherelated service. If the contribution payableto the schemefor service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the
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scheme is recognized as a liability. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for
services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that
the pre-payment will lead to areduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Defined Benefit Plans
The company’s liabilities under Payment of Gratuity Act is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation
made at the end of each financial year using the projected unit credit method.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rate used
for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the market
yield on government securities of a maturity period equivalent to the weighted average maturity profile
of the related obligations at the Balance Sheet date.

Actuarial gains and losses, Current service cost and interest obligation thereon are recognised
immediately in the Statement of Profit and L oss as Employee Benefit Expenses.

Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognised when the
curtailment or settlement occurs. Past service cost is recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over
the average period until the benefits become vested.

3.11. Revenue Recognition

The Company derives revenue primarily from the fabrication and installation of Aluminium Windows
and Glass Facade Work on client premises under contractual agreements. The Company enters into
fixed price contracts with its customers and recognizes the revenue on same based on the accounting
prescribed under AS— 7 i.e., “Construction Contracts”.

Contract Revenue is recognized only to the extent of cost incurred till such time the outcome of the job
cannot be ascertained reliably. When the outcome of the contract is ascertained reliably, contract
revenue is recognized at cost of work performed on the contract plus proportionate margin, using the
percentage of completion method. The percentage of completion is the proportion of cost of work
performed to-date, to the total estimated contract costs.

Expected loss, if any, on the construction/project-related activity is recognised as an expense in the
period inwhich it isforeseen, irrespective of the stage of completion of the contract. While determining
the amount of foreseeable loss, al elements of costs and related incidental income not included in
contract revenue are taken into consideration.

Revenue from contracts for the rendering of design services and other services which are directly
related to the construction of an asset is recognised on similar basis as stated above.

Revenue excludes amounts collected on behalf of government authorities such as Goods and Service
Tax (GST), returns, trade allowances, rebates and amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

3.12. Finance Costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are attributabl e to the acquisition, construction or production
of aqualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of such asset till such time the asset is ready for
its intended use and borrowing cost are being incurred. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial time to get ready for itsintended use. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period they are incurred.

Borrowing cost includesinterest expense, commitment charges, amortisation of discountsand ancillary
costs incurred in connection with borrowing of funds. Interest income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

3.13. Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of property, plant and equipment
over its useful life and is provided on a straight-line basis over the useful life as prescribed in Schedule
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3.14.

3.15.

3.16.

II to the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) or as per technical assessment by the Management.
Freehold land with indefinite life is not depreciated.

Depreciable amount for property, plant and equipment is the cost of property, plant and equipment less
its estimated residual value. The useful life of property, plant and equipment is the period over which
it is expected to be available for use by the Company or the number of production or similar units
expected to be obtained from it by the Company. The Company has considered the useful lives
prescribed by Schedule Il of the Act, for the purpose of depreciating its property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation on additionsis provided on a pro — rata basis from the month of installation or acquisition
and in case of projects from the date of commencement of commercia production. Depreciation on
deductions/ disposalsis provided on a pro-rata basis up to the month preceding the month of deduction
/ disposals.

Depreciation charge for impaired assets is adjusted in future periods in such a manner that the revised
carrying amount of the asset is allocated over its remaining useful life.

Impairment
Asat each Balance Sheet date, the carrying amount of assetsistested for impairment so asto determine;

e theprovision for impairment loss, if any; and
e thereversal of impairment loss recognised in previous periods, if any.

Impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is determined:

e inthecase of anindividual asset, at the higher of the net selling price and the value in use;
e inthe case of acash generating unit (a group of assets that generates identified, independent
cash flows), at the higher of the cash generating unit’s net selling price and the value in use.

Vauein useis determined as the present value of estimated future cash flows from the continuing use
of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.

Earningsper share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled
to participatein dividendsrelative to afully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted
for events, such as bonus shares, bonus element in right issue, share split, other than the conversion of
potential equity shares, that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding without a
corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or lossfor the period attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Commitments

Commitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure. Commitments are classified and
disclosed as follows:
e Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided
for,
e Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid,
e Funding related commitment to subsidiary, associate and joint venture companies and,
e Other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the extent they are considered material and
relevant in the opinion of management.
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Other commitments related to sales/procurements made in the normal course of business are not
disclosed to avoid excessive details.
3.17. Extraordinary and Exceptional Items
Income or expenses that arise from events or transactions that are clearly distinct from the ordinary
activities of the Company are classified as extraordinary items. Specific disclosure of such
events/transactionsismade in thefinancial statements. Similarly, any externa event beyond the control

of the Company, significantly impacting income or expense, is also treated as extraordinary item and
disclosed as such.

On certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the
ordinary activities of the Company, is such that its disclosure improves an understanding of the
performance of the Company. Such income or expense is classified as an exceptiona item and
accordingly disclosed in the notes to accounts.

Notesto the Restated Financial Statements

NOTE 4 - SHARE CAPITAL (R in Lakhs)
Particulars Asat Asat March 31,

Sep 30, 2023 2023 2022 2021
EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL.:
AUTHORISED:
2,49,90,000 Equity Shares of X 10/- each 2499.00 500.00 25.00 25.00
Total 2499.00 500.00 25.00 25.00
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP
25,34,364 Equity Shares of % 10/- each 253.44 253.44 12.07 10.77
Total 253.44 253.44 12.07 10.77

Sharesallotted for consideration other than cash (for period of five years preceding the B/S date)
24,13,680 Equity Shares of Rs 10 each were issued as fully paid bonus shares on 27th March 2023 in the ratio of
20:1 (i.e. 20 (twenty) fully paid up equity share for every 1 (one) Equity share held to the sharehol ders.

12,984 Equity Shares of Rs 10 each were issued as fully paid by conversion of loan into equity shares on 31st
March 2022.

Unpaid calls
By Directors Nil
By Officers Nil

Terms/ rights attached to shares:

The Equity shares have aface value of Rs 10 per share. Each holder of share is entitled to one vote per share. In
the event of liquidation of company, al shareholders will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the
company after the distribution of all preferential amountsin proportion to the shares held by them.

The Company has not declared any dividend during the year ended March 31, 2021, March 31, 2022, March 31,
2023 and six month ended September 30, 2023.

Reconciliation of number of sharesoutstanding at the end of the year:

Particulars Asat Asat March 31,
Sep 30, 2023 2023 2022 2021
Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 25,34,364 1,20,684 1,07,700 1,07,700
Add: Shares Issued during the year - - 12,984 -
Add: Bonus Shares issued during the year - 24,13,680 - -
Equity Sharesat the end of the year 25,34,364 25,34,364 1,20,684 1,07,700
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Details of Shareholders holding morethan 5% of the aggr egate shares of the company:

Asat 30th Sep, 2023

NEEEr SIETEN S No. of SharesHeld | % of Holding
Rajesh Kabra 7,62,426 30.08%
Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra 8,87,565 35.02%
Jagmohan Kabra HUF 3,71,700 14.67%
Mohini Kabra 2,10,000 8.29%

Name of Shareholders

Asat 31st March, 2023

No. of SharesHeld | % of Holding

Rajesh Kabra 7,62,426 30.08%
Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra 8,87,565 35.02%
Jagmohan Kabra HUF 3,71,700 14.67%
Mohini Kabra 2,10,000 8.29%

Name of Shareholders

Asat 31st March, 2022

No. of SharesHeld | % of Holding

Rajesh Kabra 36,306 30.08%
Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra 42,266 35.02%
Jagmohan Kabra HUF 17,700 14.67%
Mohini Kabra 10,000 8.29%

Name of Shareholders

Asat March 31, 2021

No. of SharesHeld | % of Holding

Rajesh Kabra 32,900 30.55%
Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra 32,900 30.55%
Jagmohan Kabra HUF 17,700 16.43%
Mohini Kabra 10,000 9.29%

Shares held by promoters at the end of the period:

Asat 30th Sep, 2023

Name of promoter Number of % holding inthat | % change during
shares held class of shares the year
Rajesh Kabra 7,62,426 30.08% 0.00%
Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra 8,87,565 35.02% 0.00%
Jagmohan Kabra HUF 3,71,700 14.67% 0.00%
Jagmohan Ramshankar Kabra 4,473 0.18% 0.00%
Total 20,26,164 79.95% 0.00%
Asat 31st March, 2023
Name of promoter Number of % holding inthat | % change during
shares held class of shares the year
Rajesh Kabra 7,62,426 30.08% 0.00%
Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra 8,87,565 35.02% 0.00%
Jagmohan Kabra HUF 3,71,700 14.67% 0.00%
Jagmohan Ramshankar Kabra 4,473 0.18% 0.00%
Total 20,26,164 79.95% 0.00%
Asat 31st March, 2022
Name of promoter Number of % holding inthat | % change during
shares held class of shares the year
Rajesh Kabra 36,306 30.08% -0.46%
Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra 42,266 35.02% 4.47%
Jagmohan Kabra HUF 17,700 14.67% -1.77%
Jagmohan Ramshankar Kabra 213 0.18% -99.82%
Total 96,485 79.95% -97.58%
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Asat March 31, 2021
Name of promoter Number of % holding inthat | % change during
shares held class of shares the year
Rajesh Kabra 32,900 30.55% 0.00%
Murli Manohar Ramshankar Kabra 32,900 30.55% 0.00%
Jagmohan Kabra HUF 17,700 16.43% 0.00%
Total 83,500 77.53% 0.00%
(X in Lakhs)

NOTE 5- RESERVES AND SURPLUS

IS Asat Asat March 31,

Sep 30, 2023 2023 2022 2021
Securities Premium Reserve
Opening Balance 342.78 342.78 39.08 39.08
Add: Proceed Received - - 303.70 -
Less: Bonus Sharesissued - - -
Closing Balance 342.78 342.78 342.78 39.08
Profit & Lossalc
Opening Balance 1,106.35 1,075.02 991.48 913.52
Add: Profit for the year 372.83 270.05 78.80 76.92
(Less): Bonus Shares issued - 241.37 - -
(Less): Restated adjustments 5.86 (2.64) (4.75) (1.04)
Closing Balance 1,473.32 1,106.35 1,075.02 991.48
Total 1,816.09 1,449.13 1,417.80 1,030.56
NOTE 6 - LONG TERM BORROWINGS  in Lakhs)
. Asat Asat March 31

PEMIEUETS Sep 30, 2023 2023 2022 2021
Secur ed
Term Loan from Banks
Vehicleloan 49.94 43.86 37.31 -
Machinery loan 35.83 40.83 50.00 -
bLess : _Current maturities of long-term (30.19) (28.55) (21.12) )

orrowings

Unsecured
From Directors 48.99 48.99 48.47 105.98
Total 104.57 105.13 114.67 105.98

Natur e of security and terms of repayment:

Car loan- (CITROEN) taken from Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd of Rs 26,88,000 is repayable in 36 monthly equal
installments of Rs 81,231 each beginning from 01/02/2022 and ending on 01/01/2025 and is secured against
hypothecation of the financed vehicle.

Car loan- Skoda taken from Punjab National Bank of Rs 16,00,000 is repayable in 36 monthly equal installments
of Rs 50,731 each beginning from 16/08/2023 and ending on 16/07/2026 and is secured against hypothecation of
the financed vehicle.

Commercial vehicle loan no CVVL000800831778 is repayable in monthly equal instalments of Rs 35,430 each
beginning from 02/06/2021 and ending on 02/05/2025 and is secured against hypothecation of the financed
vehicle.

Commercial vehicle loan no L9001010428608372 is repayable in monthly equal instalments of Rs 12,684 each
beginning from 10/07/2022 and ending on 10/06/2026 and is secured against hypothecation of the financed
vehicle.

Commercial vehicle loan no 93009526 is repayable in monthly equal instalments of Rs 47,710 each beginning
from 05/02/2023 and ending on 05/01/2026 and is secured against hypothecation of the financed vehicle.
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Term loan for machinery is payable in equal principal amount of Rs 83,333 per month starting from May-22 and
interest shall be charged at Repo rate + Spread per annum plus applicable statutory levy, if any. Last instalment
to be paid on or before Nov-26.

Term loan from ICICI bank for machinery is secured by way of:

a)

b)
c)

Hypothecation of entire stock of raw materials, semi-finished and finished goods, consumables stores
and spares and such other movables including book debts, bills whether documentary or clean,
outstanding monies, receivables fixed assets, both present and future, in aform and manner satisfactory
to the bank, charge on fixed assets.

Unconditional and irrevocable personal guarantee of directors of the company

Equitable mortgage on the following properties owned by the company:

i.) 604, Pam Spring Centre, Link Road, Malad (W), Mumbai — 400064

ii.) 1804, C wing, Interface Heights, Malad West Mumbai - 400064

iii.) Gate no 374, Village Koregaon Bhima, Taluka - Shirur, Dist — Pune - 412216

NOTE 7- LONG TERM PROVISIONS (R in Lakhs)
e Asat Asat March 31
Sep 30, 2023 2023 2022 2021
Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 32) 18.53 8.69 5.60 7.46
Total 18.53 8.69 5.60 7.46
NOTE 8 - SHORT TERM BORROWINGS (X in Lakhs)
e Asat Asat March 31
Sep 30, 2023 2023 2022 2021
Secured
L oans repayable on demand
-From Banks 559.55 573.84 503.14 330.08
Current Maturities of Long Term
Borrowings 30.19 28.55 21.12 -
Unsecured
From Others 299.67 - - -
Total 889.41 602.39 524.26 330.08

Natur e of security and terms of repayment of Secured Overdraft loan facility:

Overdraft facility from I CICI bank is secured by way of:

a)

hypothecation of entire stock of raw material's, semi-finished and finished goods, consumables stores and
spares and such other movables including book debts, bills whether documentary or clean, outstanding
monies, receivables fixed assets, both present and future, in aform and manner satisfactory to the bank,

charge on fixed assets.

b) Unconditiona and irrevocable personal guarantee of directors of the company.
¢) Equitable mortgage on the following properties owned by the company:
i.) 604, Pam Spring Centre, Link Road, Malad (W), Mumbai — 400064

ii.) 1804, C wing, Interface Heights, Malad West Mumbai - 400064

iii.) Gate no 374, Village Koregaon Bhima, Taluka - Shirur, Dist — Pune — 412216

NOTE 9- TRADE PAYABLES (X in Lakhs)

Particulars Asat Asat March 31

Sep 30, 2023 2023 2022 2021

Unsecur ed, Considered as Good
~Outstanding dues of Micro enterprises 480.75 35357 25353 282.06
and small enterprises
~Outstanding dues of creditors other than 506.87 736.03 400.13 200.99
Micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total 987.62 1,089.59 653.66 483.05
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Trade Payable Ageing schedule (R in Lakhs)
. Asat Asat March 31
PerticuEre Sep 30, 2023 2023 2020 2021
Undisputed dues
a) Micro, small and medium Enterprise
Lessthan 1 year 480.75 353.57 253.53 282.06
1To2Year - - - -
2to3 Year - - - -
Morethan 3 Year - - - -
b) Others
Lessthan 1 Year 453.10 676.00 370.55 161.90
lto2year 28.92 33.86 3.52 24.06
2to 3year 2.64 3.01 16.19 9.20
More than 3 year 22.22 23.16 9.87 5.83
Total 987.62 1,089.59 653.66 483.05
NOTE 10- OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES (X in Lakhs)
. Asat Asat March 31
FEIRIENETS Sep 30, 2023 2023 2022 2021
Statutory Dues Payable 99.19 41.36 32.42 34.07
Advance from Customers 411.15 337.25 362.71 86.30
Security Deposit - 2.50 2.50 2.50
Other Expenses Payable 76.50 42.15 25.60 17.84
Payable to employees 119.30 63.09 49.62 35.46
Total 706.13 486.36 472.85 176.17
NOTE 11 - SHORT TERM PROVISIONS (X in Lakhs)
Particulars Asat Asat March 31
Sep 30, 2023 2023 2022 2021
Provision for Income Tax 128.54 91.14 31.05 32.53
Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 35) 2.81 0.67 0.80 112
Total 131.34 91.80 31.85 33.65

(Rest of the pageisintentionally left blank)

178




NOTE 12- PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENTSAND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

. Computer and . . Intangible
Particulars Land BFU?%?%/S Bla)ilfgﬁ]egs data processng Mpal;?itng’y FuFriT(lttLTrr;& qufi);fxllcfn t's Vehicles assets- Total
units Software

Gross Carrying Valueason March 31, 2021 85.65 206.57 - 13.88 173.61 19.36 10.93 86.90 1.82 598.72
Addition during the year - - 209.61 2.71 38.15 4.74 5.38 40.35 - 300.94
Deduction during the year - - - - 32.65 - - 32.42 - 65.07
Gross Carrying Valueas on March 31, 2022 85.65 206.57 209.61 16.59 179.10 24.11 16.31 94.83 1.82 834.59
Addition during the year - - - 5.08 112.28 8.03 1.00 27.72 - 154.11
Deduction during the year - - - - - - - 5.63 - 5.63
Gross Carrying Valueas on March 31, 2023 85.65 206.57 209.61 21.67 291.39 32.14 17.31 116.92 1.82 983.07
Addition during the year - - - 3.05 50.17 2.62 0.75 20.55 - 77.14
Deduction during the year - - - - 242 - - - - 242
Gross Carrying Value as on September 30, 2023 85.65 206.57 209.61 24.72 339.14 34.76 18.05 137.47 1.82 1,057.79
Accumuilated depreciation and impalr ment as on - 83.63 - 11.83 103.47 15.98 8.74 49.87 163 275.14
March 31, 2021
Addition during the year - 11.68 17.36 1.91 14.13 1.38 1.81 12.63 0.10 61.00
Deduction during the year - - - - 14.24 - - 28.49 - 42.73
Accumulated deprediation and impairment as on - 95.31 17.36 1375 103.35 17.36 1055 34.01 173 203.41
March 31, 2022
Addition during the year - 10.57 9.36 3.50 31.67 1.96 2.36 19.38 - 78.81
Deduction during th